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Introduction

HBOS 2008 Results

The MBOS 2008 Reasults contained in this report cover the
rasulis of the HBOS Group for the year ended 31 December
2008. Unless otherwise stated, the analysis throughout this
document compares the year to 31 December 2008 with the
year to 31 Decermber 2007.

Background

The continuing global dislocation in financial markets in 2008
has resulted in exceptional instability and volatiity, leading to
talling market, investor and customer confidence. This has
had a profound effect on the banking sector generally and on
HBOS specifically. Since the summer of 2007, it had become
increasingly difficult for HBOS to raise funds in wholesale
markets. Pressures on the banking and financial services
sectors were evident through increases in the cost of insurance
against bank defaults, deteriorating economic conditions,
increased concerns about credit risk and sustained tight
conditions in wholesale money markets, despite measures
taken by central banks to increase liguidity. The Board of
HBOS sought to restore confidence and stability through an
agreement to be acquired by Lioyds TSB, as announced on 18
September 2008.

However turbulsnce in the markets continuad, fuelled by

concerns about credit risk and worsening economic conditions.

Measures by national authorities and ceniral banks falled to
stern this turbulence and restors inter-bank confidence. The UK
Giovernment dacided that it would be appropriate for the UK
panking sector 1o increase its level of capitalisation. This lec to
the UK Government announcing, on 8 October 2008, specific
and comprehensive measures 10 ensure the stability of the

UK financial system. This included a significant recapitalisation
of the UK banking sector togsther with the introduction of

a guarantee by HM Treasury in respect of future short and
medium terms debt issuance. On 13 October 2008, the terms
of the acquisition by Lloyds T3B were amended and, as part

of the UK Government’s co-ordinated package of measures,
HBOS announced a Piacing and Open Offer to raise £11.5bn of
new capital (consisting of £8.5bn in ordinary shares and £3.0bn
in preference shares). The capital raising, undsrwritten by the
UK Government, was made avaitable to HBOS on condition
that the acquisition by Lioyds TS completed. On 16 January
2009, the acquisition of HBOS by Lloyds TSE completed

and the name of the combined group was changed to Lioyds
Banking Group plc (LBG).

On 13 February 2009, LBG issued a trading updaie for the year
ended 31 December 2008 which stated, in respect of HBOS,
that:

“Since its 12 December 2008 trading update, HBOS's 2008
trading has been further impacted by increasingly difficult
market conditions, an acceleration in the deterioration of credit
quality and falls in estimated asset valugs. The Group expects
HBOS to report an underlying loss before tax of some £8.5
bilkon for tha year ended 31 December 2008. On a statutory
basis, adjusting for the impact of short term fluctuations
(c.£0.25 bifiion], foss on sale of businesses {c.£0.85 biliar),
FSCS levy (c.£0.2 billion) and goodwill impairment {c.£0.15
bilicn), the toss belore tax is expected to be approximately £10
billion, before the policyholder tax charge which is currently
expected to be approximately £0.2 billlon. The key elements
of the ioss are the £4 billion impact of market dislocation

and approximately £7 billion of impaiments in the HBOS
corporate division. The market dislocation has been driven

by deterioration in asset guality and falling market valuations.

The impairments are, principally as a result of applying a mors
conservative provisioning methodology consistent with that
used by Lioyds TSB, and reflecting the acceleration in the
deterioration in the econamy, some £1.8 billion higher than our
expactations when we issued our shareholder circular at the
beginning of November last year.”

The HBOS 2008 Results contained in this report are in line with
LBG expactations at the time of the 13 February 2009 trading
update.

Further information on LBG can be found in the LBG Annual
Report and Accounts. This includes pro-forma information
{showing the combination of loyds TSB and HEOS) including
a pro-forma Consolidated Balance Sheet and pro-forma
reguistory capital ratios as at 31 December 2008.

Prospects

The prospects for the Group should now be considered in the
centext of the combined LBG and reference should be made to
the LBG Annual Report and Accounts for fusther information,

The UK banking sector is expacted to see continued pressure
on earnings from the ongoing dislocation in financial markets
and the detericrating glabal economic environment. The
continuing cislocation in giobal financial markets is expected

to perpetuate the ongoing scarcity of wholesaie funding for the
banking sector leading to higher funding costs. Valuation for
the sector’s dabt securities and other structured products are
expected 1o continue ta come under pressura as the aconamic
siowdown impacts on asset values generally. The reduced
supply, and increased cost, of credit in the global economy

is putting further strain on consumars, SMEs and large
corporate businesses and is a significant factor in driving the
deteriorating economic conditions. Rising UK unemployment

is expectad to result in higher UK sector impairment losses for
mortgage and consumer lending. This is in addition 1o higher
impairment losses expected from property based lending as the
reduced availability of credit continues to push residential and
commercial property prices lower.

(~ Key Performance Indicators ™y

2008 2007 2006

‘Sgtat)utory {loss)/profit hefore tax {10,825) 5,474 5,706
m

thnd)erlying {toss)/profit before tax {8,490) 5,708 5,537
m

Net asset value per share {p)™ 202p 551p 516p
Net asset value per share (p)}"? 150p
Core Tier 1 capital ratio 4.1% 57%
Tier 1 capital ratio 6.0% 7.7% W
Core Tier 1 capital ratio™ 8.7%
Tier 1 capital ratio!® 9.9%
. S

{1} The net asset value is cakulated after deducting equity preference shares
of £1,267m (2007 £1,267m) from shareholters’ equity exciuding minority
interasts.

(2} Including the net proceeds of £8.3bn arising frorn the Plaging and Open
Ofter and, in respect of tha Tier 1 capital ratio, £3.0bn of proceeds from the
issuance of Preference Shares to HM Treasury in January 2009,

{3} On 1 January 2008, HBOS implementad Basel Il nufes for capital adequacy.
Ratios presented for earlier years are not therafora comparabls.



Basis of Presentation

In order to provide a clearer representation of the Group's
underlying busingss performance the Group presents its results
on a basls referrec to as ‘underlying’ which incorporates the
following adjustments:

-~ Excluding regulatory provisions, the impact of the change in
corporation tax rates, goodwill impairment, the loss on sale of
BankWest and St. Andrews, policyhelder tax, and the impact
of short term fluctuations (STFs) and changes to economic
assumpticns for Long Term Assurance Business accounted
for on an embedded value basis;

- Operating lease depreciation, impairment on investment
securities, changes in insurance and investment contract
liabilities, change in unallocated surplus and net claims
incurred on insurance contracts are netted against income;

- Share of (losses)/profits of associates and jointly controlled
entities is included within underlying non-interest income.

A reconciliation of underlying {loss)/profit before tax to the
statutory profit before tax is shown above.

During 2008, certain businesses were transferred between
the Retail, Corporate and Treasury divisions. The 2008 Results
are reported in line with this new structure and the 2007
divisional compargatives have been restated. There is no impact
on the 2007 Group Consclidated Balance Sheet and Income
Statement previously published.

(" Year Yeap
ended anded
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
£m £m
Underlying net interest income 8,171 7314
Underlying non-interest income (1,562) 5,689
Underlying net operating income 6,609 12,903
Underlying operating expenses {5,344) (8,274}
Underlying profit before provisions 1,265 7629
Impalrment losses on loans and advances {9,857) (2,012}
MNon-operating income 102 a1
Underlying (loss)/profit before tax {8,490) 5708
Adijusted for:
Regulatory provisions charge (200) (122)
Goodwill impairment {158} (8)
Loss on sale of BankWast and
St. Andrews (845)
fmpact of the 2008 change in
corporation tax rate on the
value of leasing assets (10)
Shaort term fluctuations {239) (118)
{Loss)/profit before tax, excluding
policyholder tax (9,932) 5,456
Policyholder tax (893) 18
{Loss)/profit before tax - statutory {10,825) 5.474
Net Interest Margin 1.60% 1.63%
Impairment losses as a %
of average advances 2.28% 0.50%
\Costincome ratio 80.9% 4O.Q%J
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Financial Review

Overview of Results

The Group operated in difficult market conditions during
2008. The resuits were affected by a significant deterioration
in credit quality, particularly in the tast quarter of 2008 as the
UK economy deteriorated and residential and commerciat
property prices declined. They were also affected by the
continuing dislocation in financial markets which led to further
sharp falls in the values of our Treasury debt securities portfolio.
Statutory loss before tax was £10,825m (2007 profit before
tax of £5,474m), which includes a charge of £893m relating to
policyholder tax.

The income statemant commentary that follows is presented
on an underlying basis (see ‘Basis of Presentation’ above).
Underlying foss before tax for the year to 31 December 2008
was £8,490m (2007 profit of £5,708m).

Net Interest Income

Undertying net interest income increased to £8,171m (2007
£7,314m)}, mainly due to growth in Retail, which benefited from
improved margins, and to growth in International and Corporate
reflecting increased advances.

The Group net interest margin reduced to 1.60% (2007
1.63%). While the Group margin faced a headwind from higher
wholesale funding costs, the decline reflected a change in
business mix across the divisions with reductions of 3bps and
23bps in Internaticnal and Corporate respectively, more than
offsetting an increase of 4bps in Retail.

The impraovement in the Retail margin reflects the beneficial
effect of higher mortgage acquisition, retention and credit

card spreads which more than offset higher funding costs.
Corporate's margin fell due to slower turnover of the back book
which has influenced the timing of fee recognition as well as the
increased cost of deposits and higher wholesale funding costs.

Non-interest Income

Underlying non-interest income decreased to negative £1,562m
(2007 income of £5,589m). Excluding the negative £4,044m
{2007 negative £227m) impact of Markat Dislocation, described
in further detail in the Treasury divisional section, underlying
nan-interest income decreased to £2,482m (2007 £5.816m).
The significant decline is due to Corporate and reflects
significant impairment losses on property related investments
made by the Joint Ventures business and private equity fund
investments made by the Integrated Finance business, together
with a material decline in the trading performance, generated by
jointly controlled entities, particularly in the housebuilding and
property sectors. In insurance & Investment, underlying non-
interest income was £140m higher, due to lower weather relatec
claims in the General Insurance business in 2008,

Operating Expenses

Underlying operating expenses increased to £5,344m (2007
£5,274m). The increase of £70m includes additionaf costs
arising from planned investments in International, additional
marketing spend in General Insurance, partially offset by
reduced staff costs in Corporate, benefits from cost reduction
Initiatives in Retail and lower bonus costs across the Group.

Group costincome ratio including the impact of Market
Dislocation increased to 80.9% (2007 40.9%). The Group
costiincome ratic excluding the impact of Markef Dislocation
was 50.6% (2007 40.2%).

MBIAIBAD

MBINGH SSBUISNG

FOUBLIBAOLD)

SJUBLUBIRIS |BIDLRUIY



4 HBOSpic Annual Report and Accounts 2008

Financial Review
continued

Credit Quality

Impairment losses on loans and advances were £9,857m
(2007 £2,012m) represanting 2.28% of avarage advances
(2007 0.50%). While increases were seen in all three banking
divisions, the most significant increase was in Gorporate. This
increase reflacts the worsening economic conditions, which
specifically deteriorated in the last quarter of 2008, The higher
impairment losses in Corporate were also the result of applying
a provisicning methodotogy more consistent with that used by
Lloyds TSB. In Retail, the increase in impairment losses mainly
related to secured lending as the difficult economic conditions
resulted in higher mortgage arrears, particularly in the speciafist
book. This, together with a materiai decline in house prices,
resulted In increased provisioning requirements. Similar trends
to the UK were avident in our International division, reflecting the
deteriorating economies.

ltems exciuded from underlying (loss)/profit before tax
Regulatory Provisions charge - The regulatory provisions charge
of £200m is in respect of the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme (FSCS) relating to HBOS's share of expenses, primarily
the interest payable on the loan taken out by FSCS to pay
compensation to depositors. (n 2007 the charge relates o ex
gratia refunds ot current account service fees, together with the
associated administration costs.

Loss on sale of BankWest and St. Andrews - On 19 December
2008, BankWest and St. Andrew's Australia were sold to
Commeonwealth Bank of Australia for a total consideration of
A$2.4bn. The sale generated a ioss of £845m, including the
write off of £240m of goodwill.”

Policyholder tax - IFRS requires that profit before tax includes
charges or credits mads to policyholders for tax. However, an
associated amount is inciuded within tax on profit resulting

in there baing no effect on profit after tax. The amount of
policyholder tax is primarily influanced by investment rmarket
performance (such as equities, gilts and property), as this tax
is charged or credited based on investment gains or losses.
To remove this volatility, poticyholder tax effects are excluded
from underlying profit to give & more meaningfut measure of
the Group's performance. Policyhotder tax for the year to 31
December 2008 was a charge of £893m (2007 £18m credit).
The movement batween the two years predominantly relates to
a movernent in deferred tax provided in respect of unrealised
gains and losses on investments held for policyholders and
taxable under the policyholder tax nies.

Short term fluctuations - Short term fluctuations represent the
impact of fluctuations in investment returns relative to those
based on longer term assumptions and variances in actual
policyholder tax payable from an expecied charge for the year.
This amount has increased to a negative £239m (2007 negative
£115m) primarily due to failling equity and fixed income markets.

s,

Gooawill impairment - Goodwill impairment principally
comprises £72m in respect of the full write down of goodwil

~ held in respect of the acquisition of the ICC business banking

divigion In lreland and £50m being the write down of goodwill
relating to a specialist area of the UK credit card business to a
recoverable amount of £20m.

Taxation

The tax credit for the year of £3,409m (2007 tax charge of
£1,365m} includes a £893m tax credit (2007 £18m tax charge)
in raspect of the tax attributable to the policyholder earnings in
the Group’s UK life companies, The 2007 tax charge of £1,365m
includes a credit of £178m in respect of the change in the rate of
UK corporation tax. Excluding these, and other items stripped
out of underlying (loss)/prafit (ie, regulatory provisions, ioss on
sale of BankWest and St. Ancrews, short term fluctuations and
goodwili impairments), resuits in an effective rate of 28% {2007
28%). Included within the tax credit of £3,409m is an overseas
tax charge of £233m (2007 £293m).

Balance Sheet Analysis

Loans and advances to customers were £435.2bn (2007
£430.0bn). On a like-for-ike basis, excluding BankWast and

St. Andrews which were sold in December 2008, loans and
advances to customers increased by 7% reflecting an increase
of 8% in Corporate, prirarily arising from growth in the first half
of 2008 and by foreign currency movements and 1% in Retail.
In International, loans and advances to customers declined by
9% prirnarily reflacting the sale of BankWest and St. Andrews.

Customer deposits decreased to £222.3bn (2007 £243.2bn).
On a like-for-like basis, excluding BankWest and St. Andrews,
the decrease was 2%. This reflected declines in Corporate and
Retall, primarily arising as a result of net outfiows in September
and Qctober, partially offset by an increase in Treasury due

to the increased use of repos. Deposit flows have improved
fallowing the announcement of the LBG acquisition.

Liguidity and Funding

Following speculation on HBOS's future in mid-September, the
HBOS Group suffered deposit outflows, further increasing the
Group’s refiance on wholesale funding markets. The majority

of these deposit outflows were non-bank financial institutions
and large corporates, rather than personal account customers.
in recent manths this position has stabilised with net inflows
avident following the announcement of the proposed transaction
with Lloyds TSB. Further information on the Group's funding is
inchuded in the Risk Management Report on page 26.



Regulatory Capital

On 1 January 2008 HBOS implemantad the Base! 1l rules for
capital adequacy and the capitat ratios below are therefore
shown on a Basel [l basis onty.

HBOS completed a Rights lssue at the end of July 2008 raising
anet £4.0bn of capital. In addition a net equity capital placing of
£8.3bn and preference share issuance of £3bn, sponsored by
the UK Government, was completed in January 2009, The Tier
1 capital ratio at 31 December 2008 is 6.0% (1 January 2008
7.7%) and the Core Tier 1 ratio is 4.1% (1 January 2008 5.7%).
Including the net £11.3bn capital injection in January 2009, the
Tier 1 ratio would be 9.9% with the Core Tier 1 ratio at 6.7% at
31 December 2008,

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs)
RWAs have increased by 6% to £328,0bn (1 January 2008
£308.2bn) driven by the following factors:

- Retail RWAs increased by 10% due to ecenomic conditions
increasing average risk weights.

- Corporate RWAS increased by 5% initially due to Loans &
Advances growth in the first quarter of the year. Corporate
asset growth subseqguently slowed, with RWAS recucing
in the second half of the year as a result of asset reduction
and impairment provisions offsetting the effect of currency
retranslations and deteriorating sconomic conditions.

In International, RWAs decreased by 5% with the impact of
the sale of BankWest reducing RWAs, offset by currency
retranslations.

- In Treasury & Asset Management, RWAs growth was 49%
primarily due to increased liquidity holdings and an increase
in average risk weights due to rating downgrades on asset
portfolios.

Capital Structure Basel Il
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Tier 1 Capital

Tier 1 capital decreased by £3.9bn during 2008 reflecting

the loss attributable to parent company shareholders and the
payment of the 2007 final dividend in May 2008. This was
partially offset by the issuance of innovative preferred securities
of £780m in March 2008 and by the Rights Issue in July 2008.

At 31 December 2008 there was a regulatory restriction con the
value of perpetual securities in Tier 1 capital, however, including
the proceeds of the Placing and Open Offer the full benefit of
preferred securities is recognised within Tier 1.

Tier 2 Capital

The increase in Tier 2 capital during the year is due to dated
subordinated debt issues of 175m and US$2bn, In Sterling
equivalent terms at 31 December 2008, these new issuances
totalled £1,526m. Exchange translations on subordinated debt
of £3.5bn also contributed to the increase in Tier 2 capital. At 31
December 2008 there was a regulatory restriction in including
the value of debt issues in Tier 2 capital, however including the
procesds of the Placing and Open offer, the full benefit of this
capital is included within Tier 2,

Supervisory deductions

Supervisory decuctions mainly reflect invastments in subsidiary
undertakings that are not within the banking group for regulatory
purposes. These uncansolidated investments are primarity
Clerical Medical, St. James's Place, St Andrew's Group and
Heldelberger Leben, Total supervisory deductions decreased to
£5,044m frem £5,102m primarily as a resuit of capita! repatriated
from the insurance and investment group o the banking group,
offsetting increases in embedded value of life policies.

4 Asat As at Asat h
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 01.01.2008
{Including Placing and Open Offer)*
£m £m £m
Risk weighted assets 328,023 328,023 309173
Capital Resources
Core Tier 1 21,848 13,503 17,703
Perpetual non-cumautative preference shares 6,195 3,195 2,781
Innovative Tier 1 4,576 - 3,002 3,247
Total Tier 1 capital 32,619 19,790 23,731
Upper Tier 2 8,066 9,550 6,241
Lower Tier 2 11,894 10,306 9,900
Deadugctions from Tier 2 . {823} (823) (812)
Total Tier 2 capital 19,137 19,033 15,229
Total Supervisory Deductions (5,044} (5,044) (5,102)
Total Capital Resources 46,712 33,779 33,858
Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 9.9% 6.0% 77%
Core Tier 1 ratio (%) 6.7% 4.1% 57%
Total capital ratio (%) 14.2% 10.3% 11.0%
\Tier 1 Gearing (%) 33.0% 31.8% 25.4% )

* Includes the net procesds of £8.3bn Ordinary Shares and £3bn Preference Shares from Government recapitalisalion within capital rasources. There is no impact on

Risk Weightad Assets.
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Financial Review

continued

Segmental Analysis

Income Statement

ra
insurance Treasury & Year Yea?
Inter- Asset Group ended endsd
Retail Corporate Investment national Mgmt ltems 31.12.2008  31.12.2007
Year ended 31 Dacember 2008 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m m
Underlying net interest income™ 4,237 2,280 {97} 1,474 181w 8,075 7314
Underlying non-interest incomea®™ 1,287 {1,465) 1,731 484 4458 2,482 5.816™M
Underlying net operating income! 5,524 815 1,634 1,958 Bz2em 10,557 13,1300
Underlying operating expenses (2,029 {939) (895) (846) {305) (330) (5,344) (5.274)
Underlying operating profit/{loss)
before provisions'" 3,495 {124) 739 1,112 3219 {330) 5,213% 7356
Impairment losses on loans and advances {2,230 {6,663} {958) (9,857) {2,012)
Underlying operating profit/{(loss)" 1,265 {6,793) 739 154 a1n (330) {4,644)" 58440
Non-operating income 102 102 N
Underlying profit/(loss) before tax
{exchuding impact of MD) 1,367 {6,793) 739 154 Az (330) {4,542)"  5935"
impact of Market Dislecation (3,948} (3,948) (227}
Underlying profit/{loss) before tax 1,367 (6,793) 739 154 (3,627} {330} (8,490) 5,708
'Year endsd 31 December 2007
Undarlying profit/(loss) before tax 2,026 2,359 B44 757 259 {337) 570543)
.

(1) Excluding the impact of Market Diglocation In Treasury & Asset Management, co

non-interast income resulting in a total Impact of Market Distocation of £{3,948)m (2007 £{227m).
{2) Retail, Corporate and Treasury & Asset Management have been restated to reflact the divisional reorganisation.

Key Balance Sheet and Credit Quality Items

mprising £96m in net interest income and £(4,044)m (2007 £(2Z7)m) in underlying

\.

4 Treasury & Yenr\
Retail Retall Retail Asset ended
As at 31 December 2008 Secured Unsecured TYotat Corporate  International  Management 31.12.2008
Loans and advances to customers (Con) 238.5 16.8 255.3 116.4 61.0 2.5 435.2
Customer deposits {Ebn) 143.7 38.5 6.6 33.5 222.3
Aisk weighted assets (£bn)™ 73.7 171.5 56.7 25.3 328.0
Impaired loans (£m) 8,914 2,209 9,123 13,848 3,060 26,031
Impaired loans as a % of closing advances (%) 2.90 13.15 3.57 11.90 5.02 5.98
Impairment provisions (£m) 1,219 1,819 3,038 6,563 1,002 10,693
Impairment provisions as a % of impaired loans (%} 18 82 a3 47 36 41
As at 31 December 2007
Loans and advances 1o customers (Ehn) 2358 17.0 252.6 1101 871 0.2 430.0
Customer deposits (£on) 154.0 48.4 2386 17.2 243.2
Risk weighted assets (Cbny2 67.2 164.1 59.7 170 308.2
Impaired loans (£m) 4,234 2,269 6,503 3,218 641 10,362
Impaired lcans as a % of closing advances (%) 1.80 13.35 257 292 0.86 2.41
Impairment provisions {£m) 330 1,889 2,219 832 322 3.373
impairment provisions as a % of Impaired lcans %) 8 83 34 26 50 ssj

(1) Risk weighted assets include £0.8bn (2007 £1.2bn) attributable 16 Insurance & Investment.

(2) On 1 January 2008 HBOS implementad the Basel It risles for capital adequacy.

These balances are therefore presented on a Baset il basis.



( Year Year\
ended ended
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
{restated)
Income Statement £m £m
Net interest income 4,237 3,996
Underlying non-interest income 1,287 1,265
Underlying net operating income 5,524 5,281
Underlying oparating expenses {2,029) (2,045)
Underlying operating profit
before provisions 3,495 3218
Impaimnent losses on loans and advances §2,230) {1,277
Underlying operating profit 1,265 1,839
Non-operating income 102 87
Underlying profit before tax 1,367 2,026
Nat interest margin 1.66% 1.62%
Impairment losses as a %
of average advances 0.88% 0.52%
\ Cost:income ratio 36.7% 38.9%)
(" Year \fearN
ended ended
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Balance Sheet and Asset Quallty {restated)
Loans and advances o customers £255.3bn £252.6bn
Classification of Advances* % %
Secured 93.4 93.3
Unsecured 6.6 6.7
100 100
Impaired loans* £m em
Secured 6,914 4,234
Unsetured 2,209 2,269
Jotal 9,123 6,503
Impaired loans as a % of closing advances % %
Secured 2.90 1.80
Unsacured 1315 13.35
Total 3.57 2.57
Impairment provisions on advances £m £m
Secured 1,219 330
Unsacured 1,819 1,889
Total 3,038 2,219
Risk weighted assets £73.7bn £67.2bn
\ Customer deposits £143.7bn £154.0bn

* Before impairment provisions

Financial Performance

Underlying profit befare tax in Retaif decreased to £1,367m
(2007 £2,026m) as a result of increased impairment losses on
loans and advances.

Yotal operating income increasesd to £5,524m (2007 £5,261m).
Net interest income was the main driver, increasing to £4,237m
(2007 £3,996m).
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Retall

Net interest margin increased 4bps to 1.668%, despite the

cost of both wholesale and retail funding increasing as a
consequence Qf the dislocation in financial markets and a more
competitive retail savings market. The margin improvement
mainly reflects the beneficial impact of higher mortgage
acquisition and retantion spreads.

Underlying operating expenses decreased to £2,028m (2007
£2,045m) and reflect the continusd benefit from cost reguction
initiatives in prior years together with further cost reduction
measures taken during 2008.

Impairmant losses increased to £2,230m (2007 £1,277m).
Secured impairment togses were £1,125m (2007 £28m) with
the charge for unsecured lending at £1,105m (2007 £1,249m).
The difficult market conditions have seen total impaired loans
increase to 3.57% (2007 2.579%) of closing advances,

Operational Performance

Loans and advances increased o £255.3bn (2007 £252.6bn)
due to growth in mortgages, with balances in each of the

three unsecured product areas remaining broadly unchanged.
Deposit balances reduced to £143.7bn (2007 £154.0bn) caused
by the dislocation in financial markets, intense competition for
retall funds and outflows caused by the general uncertainty

ir the banking sector and greater awareness of the Financial
Savings Compensation Scheme (FSCS) imit of £50,000 per
banking licence.,

Mortgages

Given the slowing market and the increased cost of borrowing,
price and criteria changes have been made to focus asset
growth selectively, both to manage the overall risk profile

and improve risk adjusted returns on capital. As a result, the
propertion of high foan 1o value {LTV) business has been
reduced, delivering new business LTV of 67% for the fult year
(2007 65%) against a backdrop where equity for both home
purchasers and remortgage customers has been eroded by
negative HPL Gross lending for 2008 was £50bn (2007 £73bn},
representing a market share of 20% (2007 20%;. Principat
repaid was £47bn (2007 £58bn), representing a market share
of 22% (2007 23%). As a consegquence, net lending was £3bn
{2007 £15bn), representing a 9% (2007 15%) market share,

Unsecured lending

In the current economic environment the cauticus approach to
unsecured fending continues with the acguisition strategy being
to target the existing customer base with an increased focus on
credit risk and proactively tighten credit availability to existing
credit card customers.

Savings and Banking

2008 has been characterised by far greater volatility of flows.
Despite these difficuft market conditions, HBOS retains its
market leading position of Household Sector Liquic assets

with a market share of 13.2% (2007 15.6%; and this pasition,
combined with the brand and distribution strength together with
innovative products, providas an excellent platform from which
to attract future inflows. The competitiveness of the range of
current accounts has continued to drive the sales momentumn.
New bank accounts acquired totalled 960,000 (2007 1 million)
and of these 75% (2007 75%) were full faciiity current accounts.
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Corporate

& Year Year\
ended ended
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
{testaled)
Income Statement £m £m
Underlying net interest income 2,280 2172
Underlying non-interast income {1,465} 1,806
Underlying net operating income 815 3,978
Undertying operating expenses {939) {1,000)
Underlying operating {loss}/profit
before provisions {124) 2,978
Impairment lcsses on loans and advances (6,669) (619)
Underlying {loss)/profit before tax {6,793) 2,389
Net intarest margin 1.92% 2.15%
impairment losses as a % of
average advances 5.80% 0.82%
@ost:inccme ratio 115.2% 25.&6)
r Year Year )
ended ended
31.12,2008 31.12.2007
Balance Sheet and Asset Quality (restated)
Lcans and advances to customers £116.4bn £110.1bn
Classification of Advances* % %
Agriculture, farestry and fishing 1 1
Energy 1 2
Manufacturing industry 3 5
Caonstruction and property ) 36 35
Hotels, restaurants and wholesale
and retail trade 10 10
Transport, storage and communication 6 8
Financial 5 6
Other services 10 12
Individuals 2 3
Non-UK residents 26 18
100 100
Impaired loans® £43,848m £3,218m
Impaired ioans as a % :
of closing advances! 11.90% 2902%
Impairment provisions £6,563m £832m
Risk weighted assets £171.5bn . £164.1bn
LCus‘comer deposits £38.5bn QdSAbn)

* Before impairment provisions

(1) 2007 was previously calculated as impaired loans with loss as a percentage of
closing advarces but hag been restated in order to be consistent with 2008,

Financial Performance

Undarlying loss before tax was £6,783m (2007 £2,359m profit)
due primarily to a significant deterioration in corporate credit
conditions, particutarly in the second half of 2008.

Underlying net interest income increased ta £2,280m (2007
£2,172m) due 1o the growth in the loan book arising in the

first half of the year. This was partially offset by lower margins
refiecting slowing of back book chumn which has impacted the

“timing of fee recognition and the increased cost of deposits and

higher wholesale funding costs.

Undarlying non-interest income decreased to a loss of £1,485m
{2007 £1,806m profit). Pronounced falls In estimated values of
praperty and other investments resulted in substantial ;osses
from the investment portfolie, primarily in the private equity and
joint ventures businesses.

Underlying operating expenses dacreased to £839m (2007
£1,000rm) reflecting lower levels of performance based
remuneration and lower headcount.

impairment losses on loans increased to £6,668m {2007
£619m). Impalred loans as a percentage of closing advances
increased to 11.90% (2007 2.92%). The level of impairment
losses experienced, especially in the last quarter, was principalty
a reflection of the acceleration in the deterioration in the
economy and as a resuit of applying a provisioning methodology
mare consistent with that used by Lioyds TSB. The shape of the
Corporate book, and in particular its exposure to housebuilders,
risk capital (foan stock, preference shares and ordinary shares)
and large single credit exposures, exacerbated the impact.

Given the economic environment and the significant
deterioration in credit quality and reflecting a provisioning
methadology more consistent with that used by Lioyds TSB,
the Collective Provision has been strengthened in the year -
by £1,366m resulting in a provision at the end of the year of
£1,500m (2007 £134m).

Operational Performance

Advancaes increased by 5%. This growth was primarily at the
start of the year due to a pipeiine of business at the end of 2007.
Foreign exchange movements account for 6% of the growth.
Customer depesits decreased by £9.9bn to £38.5bn mainly
due to the dislocation in financial markets, customers spreading
iheir deposits across several institutions and the draw down by
corporates for working capital.

The business is organised by the following asset classes:

In Real Estate as UK property values have fallen, increases in
advances has been restricted to a small number of existing
customers drawing down existing commitments.

In Commergcial existing lending customers and new, primarily
deposit led, full banking relationships were focused on.

in Asset Solutions the vehicle finance husinesses have been
materially impacted in 2008 by residual value and impairment
losses on assets,

Specialised Industry Finance (SIF) businesses performed well in
2008 in a difficult market environment.

The Joint Ventures business has seen an extremely challenging
2008 across all sectors in the UK, with housebutding suffering
from falling volume sales and the negative impact on land
valugs. Commaercial property has also been adversely impactad
by the rapid deterioration in credit markets and the underlying
economy significantly reducing values.

Integrated, Structured & Acquisition Finance has been materially
impacted by the reduced deal volumes and falling asset values
experienced across the private equity sector in the UK and
continental Eurgpe. The drawn LBO portfalio debt totalled
£6,7bn (end 2007 £6.0bn) with undrawn facilities totaling
£1.3bn {end 2007 £1.3bn).
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Insurance & Investment

( Year Yea?'
ended ended
91.12.2008 31.12.2007
Income Statement £m £m
Net interest gxpense {97 (88)
Underlying nen-interest income 1,731 1,591
Underlying net operating incomle 1,634 1,493
Underlying operating expenses (895) (849)
Underlying profit before tax 739 644
Year Year
ended ended
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
General insurance Income Statement £m £m
Net interest expense 21 23
Underlying non-interast incama 537 358
Underlying net operating income 558 3a1
Underlying operating expenses {193} (149}
Underlying profit before tax 365 232
Year Year
ended anded
31.42.2008 31.12.2007
Investment Business Income Statement £m £m
Naw business - insurance contracts 254 269
New business - investment contracts (238) (221)
Expectad return on existing business 37 361
Actual vs. expected 62 122
Expectsd return on sharsholders’
net assels 143 115
Development expenditurg {65) {(67)
Qverheads associated with
davelopment activity (31} (39}
Debt financing cost {131) (128)
| Underlying profit before tax a4 412}

Financial Performance
Underlying profit before tax in Insurance & Investment increased
o £739m (2007 £644m).

In 2008, the division contributed £1,135m to the Group capital
position, through dividend payments (2007 £312my). Of this,
£595m arose from the Investment business demoenstrating the
continued focus on improving capital efficiency. The majority of
this dividend was paid in December 2008 after full consideration
of exceptional market conditions and future downside
scenarios. The capital strength of the life businesses remains
strong.

General Insurance

General Insurance underlying prafit increased to £365m (2007
£232m), in part refiecting more benign weather conditions this
year, following the flood events in 2007,

Heusehold insurance has performed strongly, driven by
increased sates, improved customer retention and claims
management, primarily due te lower weather related claims
compared to 2007°s claims of £135m. Underlying cperating
expenses increased to £193m (2007 £148m) which included the
significant spend in marketing resource in the Motor business to
capitalise on growth opportunities available.

Investment Business

investment underlying profit decreased to £374m (2007 £412m),
raflecting the difficult trading conditions which reduced new
business volumes, particularly investiment bonds.

HBOS adopts a Traditional Embedded Value approach to
accounting for insurance and participating investment contracts
under IFRS 4. Effective 1 July 2008, certain assumptions in this
methadology were changed to bring thern more into line with

a market gonsistent approach to embedded value reporting.

It is not however fully compliant with the CFO Forum’s Market
Consistent Embedded Value Principles published in June 2008.

The effect of this change on the IFRS results was to increase
embedded value profit before tax by £308m. In addition, the
new business contribution in 2008 was £18m higher than would
have been reported on the previous assumptions.

On a like-for-like basis the contribution from new business
insurance contracts has decreased by 20% to £254m principally
dus to lower investment bond sales through the Bancassurance
channel. New business strain on investment contracts was
higher at £236m (2007 £221m) reflecting a shift in business mix,
driven mainly by increased strain on mutual funds business.

Actual versus expectad experience was £62m {2007 £122m)
driven by three principal components. Firstly, a £103m benefit
arose from enhancements to the intermediary bond customer
proposition, with the result that their accounting treatment
changed to an EV bagis, accelerating the recognition of profits.
With effect from 1 July 2008, in ling with evolving industry
practice, HBOS moved to a more market consistent version
of embedded value, giving a net benefit of £108m, Thirdly,
advarse persistency experience {current year and assumption
changas), particularly on Bancassurance investment bonds,
driven by market uncertainty and adverse publicity, impacted
performance by £225m. Additionally a number of individually
smaller refinements to the calculation of value of in-force
business, actuarial fiabilities and other items led to a £76m net
benefit,

Operational Performance

General insurance sales increased to £1,799m of gross written
premiums (GWP) (2007 £1,761m). Strong performances in both
Motor (up 41%} and Household (up 6% offset the lower sates in
Repayment Insurance (down 15%).

‘Investment sales measured on a PYNBP basis decreased to

£13,659m (2007 £14,775m). 2007 reported sales of £16,551m
PVNBP included £1,776m PVNBP in respect of the Guarantead
Growth Bond {GGB) product which is no longer sold given its
refatively low profitability.

Overall sales performance demonstrated the henefits of the
rmulti channel diversification, with Intermediary sales up 6%,
Wealth Management down 4% and Bancassurance sales down
17%. Positive net fund flows of £1.8bn {2007 £1.7bn) have been
delivered, suppoerted by improvements from succassiul retention
initiatives.
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International

'
Year Year
ended endad
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
ncome Statement £m &m
Net interest income 1,474 1,088
Underlying non-interest income - 484 499
Underlying riet aperating income 1,958 1,587
Underlying operating expenses {846) {714}
Underlying operating profit
before provisions 1,12 873
Impairmant losses on loans and advances {358) {116}
Underlying profit before tax 1584 757
Net interast margin 1.90% 1.83%
Impairment losses as a %
of average advances 1.50% 0.20%
LCost:incorne ratio 43,.2% 45.015)
( As at As at\
Batance Sheet and Asset Quality 31.12,2008 21:42.2007
Loans and advances to customers £61.0bn £67.1bn
Classification of Advancas® % %
Agriculturs, forestry and fishing 2
Energy 3 2
Manutacturing industry 4 3
Construction and property Kl 27
Hotels, restaurants and wholesale
and retail trade 10 9
Transport, storage and communication 3 2
Financial 4 3
{Other services 10 8
Individuals:
Heme mortgages 30 40
Other personal lending 5 4
100 100
impaired loans* £3,060m £641m
Impaired loans as a %
of closing advances 5.02% 0.96%
Impairment provisions £1,092m £322m
Rigk weighted assets £56.7bn £59.7bn
Customer deposits - £6.6bn £23.6bn )

* Before impairment provisions.

Financial Performance

Undsrlying profit before tax decreased to £154m (2007 £757m)
reflecting an increase in impairment losses, as a result of a
dateriorating economic environment. Operating profit before
provisions increasad to £1,112m (2007 £873m), reflecting strong
incore growth across all three Internationai divisions.

impairmant losses increased from £116m in 2007 to £958min
2008. In Australia and Ireland, the extremely challenging
sconomic and market conditions led to a deterioration in credit
guality which resulted in rising arrears and faling asset values.
In ENA deteriorating econhomic conditions across the key
markets saw impaired loans increase, however the increase in
impairment losses was driven primarily by twa iarge exposurss.

Australia

Underlying profit before tax in Australia decreased to £206m
{2007 £308m) reflecting an increase in impairment losses which
has been particularly prevalent acress the Property and
Caorpoerate sectors.

The income statement includes 2008 results for the BankWest
and 5t. Andrews businesses up until their disposal on 19
Dacember 2008 to Commonwealth Bank of Australia, and the
full year results for all other HBOS Australia businesses.

Ireland

Underlying loss before tax in Ireland was £262m (2007 £184m
prafit) and reflects a substantial increase in impairment losses
from a low base along with higher funding costs. The extremely
challenging economic and market conditions have led 10 a
significant deterioration in credit quality and as a censequence,
higher impairment losses have been recognised. :

Europe & North America

Underlying profit before tax decreased to £210m (2007 £265m),
refiecting a deliberate slowdown in new lending activity and an
increase in impairment losses, both of which are symptomatic of
current economic conditions in a year of economic turbulence
across all the operating geographies. Underlying operating profit
before provisions increased to £332m (2007 £278m).

Lending and Deposit Growth

Loans and advances were £61,0bn (2007 £67.1bn). Part of this
declina raflects a £27.0bn reduction in balances in Australia
following the sale of BankWast and 5t. Andrews. In Ireland.
lending increased to £30.7bn (2007 £21.9bn), and in local
currency growth was 8%. It ENA, lending increased to £17.5bn
(2007 £12.0bn), local currency growth was 10%.

Deposits declined by £17.0bn to £6.6bn (2007 £23.6bn)
primarily refiecting the sate of BankWesi. On a like-for-ike basis,
excluding BankWest, deposits fell by £0.8bn to £6.8bn,
reflecting significant outflows caused by uncertainty prior to the
announcement of the Lioyds TSB acquisition of HBOS and the
irish government deposit guarantee scheme (the Scheme).
However, the deposit base increased following the
announcement not ta join the Scheme.
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Treasury &

Asset Management

f Year Ysaq
ended anded

31,12.2008 31.12,2007

{restated)

Income Statement £m £m
Net intarast incomet? 181 156
Underlying non-interest income™ 445 865
Underlying net operating income §26 11
Underlying operating expenses (305) (329)
Underlying operating profit'" an 482
Nen-operating income 4
Underlying profit before tax!! 321 486
impact of Market Cistocation (3,948) {227)
Underlying {loss)/profit before tax (3,627) 258
Costiincome ratiot" 48.7% 40.6%
Insight’s assets under management £119.2bn £108.1bn
nvista's assels under management £6.3bn £8.7on
Lﬁl’sk weighted assets £25.3bn 5317.0an

{1} Excluding the impact of Market Distocation,

Financial Performance

Underlying profit before tax (excluding the impact of Markst
Dislocation) decreased to £321m {2007 £486m). Including the
impact of Market Dislocation of £(3,948)m (2007 £{227)m) loss
before tax was £{3,627)m (2007 profit before tax of £258m).

Operating Income

Underlying sales of Treasury products to customers remained
robust but operating income was adversely affected by the
impact of dislocated financial markets on tfrading revenues.

Operating Expenses

Underlying operating expenses decreased to £305m (2007
£329m) primarily reflecting a reduction in performance related
staff costs.

Treasury Debt Securities

As part of its investment credit activities Treasury holds a
partiolio of debt securities which are analysed on page 12. The
investment credit business has twa functions: firstly it manages
part of the Group's prudential liquidity portfolio and secondly it
takes investment positions principally through the Grampian
cenduit.

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's (IASB}
decision to permit the reclassification of Financial Assets,
Treasury reclassified certain securities from assets held for
trading into the Available for Sale (AFS) portfolio and,
subsequently, in light of increasing illiquidity in the markets for
asset backed securities (ABS), changad the classification of
ABS from AFS, 10 Loans and Receivables.

ABS and FRNs with book values (as at 31 December 2008) of
£10.1bn and £3.4bn respectively were transferrad out of Trading
into the AFS portfolio with effect from 1 July 2008.
Subsequently, ARS with book values (as at 31 December 2008}
of £37.2bn were transferred out of the AFS portfolic and into
Loans and Receivables with effect from 1 November 2008, If
these assets had not been reclassified during the year additional
negative fair value adjustments (NFVA} of £981m wouid have
been recognised in the income statement and the AFS reserve
movement would have besn reduced by £68m (past tax).

The decrease in ABS to £40.2bn (2007 £41.9bn) was due to
paydowns of £4,3bn and NFVA and impairments of £8.,8bn,
partially offset by the effects of foreign currency movements
which resulted in an increase of £11.3bn. The holding of bank
CDs have reduced through maturities being replaced with
Government backed bonds.

Market Dislocation losses

For the year to 31 December 2008, tosses taken to the income
statement due to the impact of Market Dislocation on the
Treasury debt securities portfolio totalled £3.948m (2007
£227m), after reclassification, as follows:

4 Year ‘r’ea?
ended andec
| 231.12.2008 31.12.2007
Income Statement £m £m
Negative fair value adjustments {2,527) {227)
Impairment losses {1,421)
Total impact of Market Dislocation™ {3,948} (227))

(1} Comprising £96m in net interest income and £{4,044)m (2007 £(227)m)in
underlying non-interest income,

During the second half of the year a significant deterioration in
market sentiment and liquidity has affected the fair value of the
ABS portfolio and in particular certain asset classes including
Alt-A bonds and CDOs. In addition the adverse trends on
credit guality which commenced in the first half of 2008 have
intensified in the secand half of 2008 and early 2008 and as
aresult, impairment losses of £0.8bn have been incurred,
primarily relating to Alt-A, £0.6bn ang ABS CDOs, £0.1bn. As a
result of these developments, certain asset classes have been
written down significantly at year end, resulting in the Alt-A
portfolio with an average carrying mark of 59%, ABS CDOs of
20% and other CBO positions of 53%.

Ir &ddition, following the failure of a number of financial
institutions in the second half of 2008 impairment losses of
£0.6bn have been incurred on the FRN bock refating to the
exposures to Lehman Brothers, Washington Mutual and
Icelanciic Banks.

Exposures to monolines

Treasury has credit exposure both through negative basis trades
with purchased CDS protection and wrapped bonds. As at 31
December 2008, nominal exposures were £3.7bn of negative
hasis COS (2007 £2.8bn) and £2 6bn of wrappad bonds (2007
£2.3bn). The calculated exposure to monolines using the
internal methodology at 31 December 2008 was £1.2bn (2007
£0.4bn}.

Asset Management

Equity markets have fallen dramatically in 2008, but insight's
strategic focus on Liability Driven investment (LD1), Fixed
Income, Cash and Absclute Return products has been effactive,
Insight has experienced net inflows of £13.4bn in 2008 (2007
£9.8bn}. The majority of these sales are within the Institutionat
channel and largely into the market leading LDI capability,
Owerall, net inflows in Insight have more than offset market
depreciation such that assets under management have
increased by 9% to £119.2bn (2007 £109.1bn). Invista's assets
under managemsent declined to £6.3bn (2007 £8.7hn).
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Treasu

Managem
Asset Management

. Treasury debt securities

Treasury's total debt securities portfolio as at 31 Decernber 2008, net of negative fair value adjustments (NFVA) and impairments, is

summarised in the following table:

(- Fair Yalue Total Total
Loans & Available threugh asat as at
Receivables for Sale P&L 81,12.08 3132.07
Asset Class £bn Ebn £5n £hn £bn
Asset Backed Securities
Direct 20.5 3.0 23.5 23.3
Grampian conduit 16.7 16.7 18.8
Total ABS 372 30 40.2 41.9
GCovered Bonds 41 4.1 3.2
Bank/Financial Institution Floating Rate Notes {(FRNs)} 16.0 1.8 17.9 1748
Bank Certificates of Depaosit (CDs) 29 3.1 6.0 15,31
Other® 1.8 6.0 78 28
Total Treasury Assets 3rz 24.8 14.0 76.0 806
L andale o7 0.7 06
Total {net of NFVA and impairment provisions) 37.2 25.5 14.0 76.7 81.2 ]
{1) £1.8bn rectassified between CDs and FRNS,
(2} Principally Governments and Supra-nationals.
Exposure to Asset Backed Securities (ABS)
4 ™
Net Exposure Average Mark Net Exposure Average Mark
as at gsat as at as at
31.12.08 31.12.08 312,07 314207
Asset Class £bhn % Cbn %
Mortpage Backed Securities
Us RMBS® 6.9 64 93 98
Non-US RMBS 7.9 a3 79 99
CMBSH 3.3 95 33 38
18.1 79 205 a9
Collateralised Debt Obligations
CBOw 21 49 33 a8
cLon 3.5 91 3.2 99
5.6 68 6.5 )
Personal Sector
Auto Loans 1.6 a8 1.5 100
Cradit Cards 35 96 2.8 jeie]
Personal Loans 1.1 95 1.0 98
6.2 96 5.3 99
FFELP Students Loans!" 7.0 94 58 98
Other ABS 0.6 89 Q.7 o]
Total Uncovered ABS 37.5 82 388 jeie’
Negative Basis'? 2.7 70 3.3 99
\ Total ABS™ 1! 40.2 81 My 99

(1) RMBS means Residential Mortgage Backed Sscurifies: CMBS means Commerciat Mortgage Backed Securities; CBO means Collateralised Bond Obligations;
LO means Collateralised Loan Obligatiohs; FREL® means Federal Family Education Loan Programme.
{2) Negative basis means bonds held with separate matching credit defaull swap (CDS) protection.

@

The total comprises US securities of £24.36n and Nen-US securities of £15.9bn.

(4) There has been nc increase in net exposure as a result of the purchase of ABS during the year. Any Increase I net exposure is the resull of exchange rate

movements in excess of paydowns, NFVAs and impairments.
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Risk Management

Introduction

During 2008, the global dislocation in financial markets has
resulted in exceptional instability and volatility, impacting upon
market and investor confidence which has been characterised
by a marked reduction in liguidity in the international money
markets. This crisis which started in 2007 and has impacted
upon financial markets since, led the UK Government to inject
liquidity into the financial system and to require (and participate
in) recapitalisation of the banking sector to restore confidence to
the market,

On 13 October 2008, as part of the co-ordinated package

of capital and funding measures for the UK banking sector,
implemented by HM Treasury, the Group participated in the
Government Funding Package and thereby facilitated access to
the UK Gevernment backed provision of liquidity.

Global market and sconomic conditions continue 1o pressurise
the Group. However, through the injection of capitat and liquidity
facilitated by the UK Government, both currently and going
forward, HBOS remains confident it will navigate through this
difficult period, as it becomes part of the Lloyds Banking Group
(LBG).

As a wholly owned subsidiary, HBOS is dependent on LBG for
funding.

The key dependencies on successfully funding the enlarged
Group's balange shest include the continued functioning

of tha money and capital market at their current levels; the
continued access of the Group to central bank and Government
sponsered liquidity facilities, including issuance under HMT's
credit guarantee scheme (CGS) and access to the Bank of
England's various facilities, limited further deterioration in the
Group's credit ratings and no significant or sudden withdrawal
of deposits resulting in increased reliance on money markets or
Government support schemes.

The Lloyds Banking Group was created on 16 January 2009.
Subsegquently, HBOS has adopted LBG Risk practices. This
report discusses Risk practices in effect in HBOS during 2008,

Key risks and uncertainties facing the Group
This section describes the risk factors which are considered to
be materiat in relation to the Group.

These risks should not be regarded as a complete and
comprehensive statement of all potential risks and uncertainties.
Additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known,
or which are currently deemed immaterial, may also have

an adverse effect on the Group's operating results, financial
condition and prospects.

Each of the Divisions faces key risks and uncertainties in the
execution of their strategy. These are set out in the divisional
sections of the Business Review, where they can be read

i conjunction with the Division's strategy, and financial and
operating performance.

Credit Risk: The financial performance of the Group is
affected by borrowers ability and willingness to repay
amounts lent by the Group

Credit risk arises in the Retail, Corporate & International divisions
and the Treasury function, reflecting the risks inherent in the
Group's lending activitias. Over the last year the banking crisis
has impacted the financial services industry resulting in high
profile losses and writedowns.

Tha detericrating economic outlook, both in the UK and
overseas, is also leading to significant increases in impairments.
The Group is impacted by the economic downturn and a further
worsening of the business environment could impact earnings
adversely. This poses a major risk to the Group and its lending
businesses in:

- Retall, where rising unemployment impacts the ability
of customers 1o meet repayment dates on unsecured and
secured lending and lsads to a consequent increase in
arrears. Additionally, the downtum in the housing market
reduces collateral values for residential property and this
impacts upon tha profitability of secured fending.

- Corporate, where companies are facing increasingly difficult
conditions, resulting in corporate defautt lsvels rising and
lezding to increases in corporate impairments.

Liquidity Risk: The Group may be unable to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due or is unable to
raise sufficient funds to take full advantage of growth
opportunities

This is known as liquidity risk and arises from mismatches in
the maturities and the timing of cashfiows relating to assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments, HBOS relies

and intends to rely increasingly on customer savings and
transmission balances, as welt as ongoing access to the
wholesale lending markets, central bank liquidity facilities such
as the Special Liquidity Scheme and the Extendsd Open Market
Operations operated by the Bank of England, and support from
HM Treasury’s guarantee scheme.

Further information about the approach to managing fiquidity
risk is explained on pages 25 to 28,
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Risk Management

continued

Market Risk: Changes in interest rates, credit spreads,
forelgn exchange rates and commodity and equity
prices and other market risks affect the HBOS Group’s
business and financial results

This is referred to as market risk and is defined as the potential
loss in value or earnings of the HBOS Group arising from
changes in external market factors such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates, commaodity and equity prices
and the potential for customers to act in @ manner which is
inconsistent with business, pricing and hedging assumptions.
Changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and credit spreads
may affect the interest rate margin realised between lending and
borrowing costs. .

Further infarmation about the management of, and exposure to,
market risk is set out on pages 22 to 25.

Capital: The Group may have insufficient capital
resources to meet the regutatory minimum
requirements, to finance growth, or to support its credit
rating

Capital discipfine is o key elemant of the Group's strategy.
Capital is a scarce resource and the task is to deploy it to
achieve sustainable returns and add value for shareholders.

To strengthen the Group's capital position, HBOS launched a
whally underwritten £4bn Rights issue in May 2008. However
further market pressures, the failure of Lehman Brothers In the
US and S&P downgrading of HBOS had a severe impact on the
Group, uttimately resulting in the recommended acquisition of
HBOS plc by Lloyds TSB Group pic.

Based upon projections by management, assuming the
availability of the existing and announced Government Funding
Package, the Group Delieves it has adequate resources 1o
continue in business for the foreseeabsle future,

The Graup's approach to the management of capital is set out
on pages 31 to 33,

Insurance and Investment Risk: The Group's earnings
may be affected by the potentiai for loss through
adverse claims, expense and persistency experience,
from both life and general insurance contracts

Insurance and investment risk and its management is described
in more detail on pages 28 to 30.

Operational Risk: Operational risks exist in the normal
course of the Group’s business

In a large crganisation with many different processes, IT
systems and colleagues, there is a risk that operational fosses
can result. Examples of the sources of such risks include fraud,
systems reliability, human errar, failure of key sunpliers, IT
security, change management, operational outsourcing or failure
to comply with tegislation or regulation. Further informaticn
aboust the management of operational risk is set out on page 31.

Regulatory Risk: The Group's business and earnings
can be affected by changes in financial services laws
and regulations in each of the locations in which it
operates

Any significant regulatory changes could affect how the Group
conducts business and its financial performance. Regulatory
risk is explained in detail o pages 31 to 33.
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Management and Controls

Governance

The governance model comprises a well established and embedded committee structure and associated control environment
across the Group, The business and control enviranments of St. .lames’s Place plc and Invista Real Estate Investment Holdings
plc fall outwith the governance framework described in this section of the Annual Report and Accounts. The framework discussed
describes that in effect in HBOS for the financial year.

HBOS Board
1st Line of Defence | 2nd Line of Defence i 3rd Line of Defence
[—( Group Chief Executive )
(" Divisi N i A ) S ™
Divisionat i | Executive L Group Functions j Audit
Chief Exacutives i | Commitiee Committee
supported by : ‘ ‘
Do Group Group Capital Commities )]
Committees Finance . — \ ~
Director Group Funding and Liquidity )
Share Markel Activity Committes )] Divisionat
Risk Control
Regulatory Capital Adeguacy Cormmitiee ) Commitiees
Group Credit Risk Committee ]
i it
— Group Market Risk Committes ] oo
Risk » ; nternal
Director Group Insurance Risk Commitles ] Pl
L J L Group Operational Risk Commitias | BEIRY g
- J/
The Risk Management Framework
HBOS allocates specific rates in the management of risk to executives and senior managers and to the Board and Executive
Committees. This is undertaken within an averall framawork and strategy established by the Board. The model is based on the
concept of ‘three lines of defence’.
~
pst tine of Defence RISK MANAGEMENT + Civisional CEQs * Strategy
» Divisional Risk Specialists * Parformance
* Divisional Risk Committees * Risk control
2nd Line of Defence RISK OVERSIGHT s Group Chief Executive
* Executive Committee * Centralised policy management
* Group Functions (inc. Group Risk * Independent oversight of risk
and Group Finance)
+ Executive Risk Committees
3rd Line of Defence RISK ASSURANCE » Apdit Commitiee
*» Divisional Risk Control Commitiees ¢ independant assurance
» Group Internal Audit
\. J
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Risk Management

continued

Divisional management has primary responsibility for identifying
and evaluating sigrificant risks to the business and for designing
and operating suitable controls. Intermal and external risks are
assessed, including economic factors, control breakdowns,
disruption of information systems, competition and regulatory
requirements.

The four Group Executive Risk Committees - Group Credit Risk
Cormmitiee, Group Market fisk Committee, Group Insurance
Risk Committee and Group Operationai Risk Commiittee
develop the policies and paramsters within which Divisions

are required to manage risk. The Committees provide central
oversight by reviewing and challenging the wark of the Divisions'
own risk committees and considering the application of
apprapriate risk management technigues.

Tha specialist Group Risk function, reporting to the Group Risk
Director, supports thesé Comimittees. Its responsibilities are:

- to recommend Group policies, standards and limits;

- to monitor compliance with thase policies, standards
and limits;

- to provide leacership in the development and implementation
of risk management techniques; and

~ 1o aggregate risks arising int the Divisions and to monitor
the overall Group position independently from the Divislong’
own analysis.

Consideration of capital, liquidity and balance sheet
management is undertaken on an integrated basis. All capital
and funding related activities are the responsibility of the Group
Capital Committee, supported by three sub-committees, which
focus on the core aspects of overall Group requirements. The
Group Capital Committes is chaired by the Group Finance
Director and operates under delegated authority from the Board
to oversee and manage the Group's Balance Sheet and Capital
in accordance with the Board approved Group Business Plan
and within regulatory ratios.

in judging the effectiveness of the Group’s centrals, the Board
reviews the reports of the Audit Commitiee and management.

Certain respensibiities are delegated to the Audit Committee
including ensuring that there is regular review of the adequacy
and efficiency of internal control procedures. This role provides
independent assurance that there is an appropriate control
structure throughout the Group.

The Audit Committee, supported by Divisional Risk Control
Committees, obtains assurance about the internal controt and
risk management environment through regular reports from
Group Functions fincluding Group Risk and Group Finance) and
Group Internal Audit. It also considers extarnal auditors’ reports.

Management of Key Risks

(The information set out balow, up to and including the section
entitied ‘Genaral Insurance’ on page 30 forms an integrai part of
the audited financial staterments as described in the Accounting
Dolicies section of the Financial Statements on pags 48.)

Credit Risk ‘ _
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss from counterparty's
failure to settle financial obligations as they fall due.

Credit Risk Performance

During the second haif of 2008 the pressures being experienced
in wholesale and liquidity markets spread to become severe
aconomic daterioration in the LK, This pressure accelerated
significantly in quarter four 2008 and saw substantial issues
arising in Corporate lending and Treasury investments.

The Corporate Divisior's Credit Risk Management was

unabile to react quickly enough to cortair the deterioration,
exacerbated by HEOS historic levels of exposure concentration
within property and property related sectors, giving little

room for manoeuvre in a deteriorating market and resulting in
impairment losses increasing dramatically.

In addition, Treasury has been materially impacted by the
reduction in fair value of the ABS portfolio as a result of credit
concems, paor market sentiment and liquidity pressures. This
has besn exacerbated following a strategic decision of moving
away from using Government bonds to provide fiquidity, instead
relying on AAA rated Asset Backed Securities and investment
grade bank FRNs, which whilst effective in liquidity terms,
significantly increased the credit risk profile of the Group.

The credit risk risk profile within HBOS is susceptible to further
increases in impairmeants if the UK economy continues to
deteriorate. Additional pressure will also be evident in Treasury's
ABS portfolic if US real estate valuas fall further, resuiting in
increasing fair value and impairrment losses.

Management of Credit Risk

The Group Credit Risk Commitiee (GCRC), one of the Executive
Risk Committeas, is chaired by the Group Risk Director and
comprises senior executives from across the business Divisions,
Group Risk and Group Finance functions. it meets monthly and
reviews the Group's lending portfolio, approves Group credit
standards, limits and divisional credit risk policies. The Group
Cradit Risk Policy Statement is approved by the Board on an
annual basis. The GCRC also assists the Beard in formulating
the Group's credit risk appetite in respect of key products and
sactors.

Group Credit, a specialist support function within Group

Risk, provides centralised expertise in the area of credit risk
measurement and management techniques. In addition to
reporting on the performance and forward lcoking risks of
gach divisional pertiolio to the GCRC (and other senior HBOS
committees), Group Credit exercises independent oversight
over the effectiveness of credit risk management practices and
adherence to approved policies, standards and mits.



Day to day management of cradit risk is undertaken by
specialist credit teams warking within each Division in
compliance with policies approved by divisional committees,
under lending authorities delegated by the Board (via GCRC).
Typically, functions undertaken by these teams include credit
sanctioning, portfolio management and management of high
risk and defaulted accounts and credit risk model build and
governance.

To manage credit risk, a wide range of policies and techniques
are used across the Group:

- For retail portiolios, extensive use is made of credit scoring
in the assessment of new applications for credit. In addition,
behavioural scoring is used to provide an assessment
of the conduct of a customer's accounts in granting
extensions to, and setting Kmits for, existing facitities and
in identifying customers at risk of default. Affordability is a
vitalty important measure and Is reviewed in combination
with either application and/or behavicural scores, HBOS has
been involved in data sharing initiatives within the industry
and makes extensive use of credit bureau flles to inform the
assessment of customer risk and affordability and to aid
responsible lending. Small business customers are assessed
for their credit-worthiness in a similar manner to retail
customers,

= For corporate portfolios, a fult credit assessment of the
financial strength of each potential transaction and/or
customer is undertaken, including a stress test of key financial
aspects of the transaction, awarding an internal risk rating
which is reviewed regularly. The same approach is also used
for larger SME (small to medium enterprise) customers.

Within Treasury Division {Treasury), which handles the
Grroup’s banking and sovereign related exposures, as well as
the Group's structured credit bond {ABS) portfolio held for
liquidity and proprietary purposes, focused credit risk policies
are established and reviewed by the Group Wholesale Credit
Committee (GWCC}, a sub-commitiee of the GCRC. Basel

Il Advanced [RB compliant models ars used to rate banking
and sovereign counterparties. Structured credit bonds are
reviewed individually by an independent credit function prior
o purchase and an internal rating is applied to all exposures.
Additiongl thresholds and limits are applied by rating and by
asset class in line with the business strategy. As part of an
ongoing portfolio review process, monitoring is performed
covering each bond holding, supptemented by stress
analyses conducted on a pericdic basis.

An additional measure within the credit risk framework is the
establishment of product, risk profite, industrial sector and
country limits to manage excessive concentrations of risk.
Materiad portfolios, such as mortgages, have approved sub-
sector Bmits to ensure that they remain within plan and tolerance
for risk. All such limits are set and monitored by the GCRC.
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Standards have been established across the Group for the
management of cradit risk. All Divisions are independently
rated against these internal standards by the Group Credit
function (on an annual basis) and work together to continucusly
improve credit risk management capability. There continues

to be significant levels of investment in the development of
credit risk rating tools, including enhancements to the portfolic
risk measurement systems and in governance arrangements
to support operations within the terms of the Basel If Accord.
These include principtes for development, validation and
performance monitoring of credit risk models. The approval
process for credit models is dependant upon the materiality

of the moedel, with all models impacting the regulatory capital
calcutation requiring approval by the Group Modsl Governance
Committee (GMGC), which Is a sub-committee of GCRC, and
those deamed material to the Group being approved by the
Group Capital Committee (GCC).

Internal reporting has developed in response to the introduction
of improved rating tools. Senior Management across tha Group
are now provided with reports assessing the risk profile in terms
of Probabitity of Default and Expected Loss and will continue to
de so under the Basel Il environment going forward.

Standard Technical Definitions
- PD - Probability of Default. The probability that an obligor
enters default in the next 12 months.

~ EAD - Exposure At Default. The obligor's credit exposure at
the point of default, assuming default occurs within the next
12 months,

- LGB - Loss Given Default. The proportion of an obligor's
exposure at default that the lender loses as a result of default,
assuming that default occurs within the next 12 months. This
is a percentage.

- EL - Expected l.oss. The monetary amount expected to lose
from an obliger, arising from a defauit in the next 12 months.

Derived by the formula £t. = PD x EAD x LGD.

Scope of HBOS IRB Permission

In the period to 31 Decembear 2007 HBOS operated under what
is commanly know as the Basel | regulatory capital regime,
Under Basel | the FSA required each bank and banking group
to maintain an individually prescribed ratio of total capital to
risk-weighted asssts, taking into account bath balance sheet
assets and off-balance sheet transactions. From 1 January
2008 HBCS, in common with UK peers, adopted the Basel li
framework through application of the FSA BIPRU rules.

Basal Il seeks to augment arrangaments and introduces a risk
sensitive framework. Basel H is structured to provide a choice
of methodologies to determine credit risk reguiatory capital
requirements, with different levels of complexity.
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Risk Management

continued

HBOS makes use of the Standardised and Advanced Intermal
Ratings Based (AIRB) approaches with no partfolios using the
Foundation Internal Ratings Based approach.

— Standardised appreach. This is an extension of Basel | and
requires banks to use external credit ratings to determine risk
weightings for rated counterparties. Like Basel 1, it groups
other counterparties into broad categories and applies
regulatory determined risk weightings to these categories.

- Advanced Internal Ratings Based approach (AIRB). This is the
most sophisticated approach. Banks use their own internal
assessment of PD, EAD and LGD to determine risk weight
asset values.

HBOS is approved by the FSA to use the Advanced Internal
Ratings Based approach [AIRB) for regulatory capital purposes.

The scope of permission covers all Basel !l asset classes,
nowever, HBOS has a modal roli-out schedule to complete,
predominately in relation to International and Corporate
businesses. The roll-out plan and mandatory parallel run will run
until the end of 2010.

Beside these, HBOS has a number of small partiolics where,
for economic reasons, it is not commearcially viabla to construct
AIRB models. These are typically products which ara no longer
sold and effectively in run off mode or new products where
HBOS has yet to establish the critical mass of data necessary
to construct AIRB models. In such cases the Standardised
approach is applied.

The models that are used in the regulatory capital calculation
also underpin the credit risk measurement framework used by
HBOS. It is a regulatory requirement that the mocels deployed
in the capital calculations are used to inform credit related
decisions. :

Internal Ratings Process

For each IRB asset class the approach has been to build
internal models to genarate PD's, LGD's and EAD's for products
within the asset class. This is summarised below.

Retail Assets - Retaii agsets include residential mortgages,
overdrafts, credit cards and unsecured personal lending
exposures. The mathodology for Retall agsets is transaction
based, with a foundation in the scorecards used for application
decision and account management. The regulatory EL is
mapped to a Lifetime Expectad Loss {LEL} which is used in
wider business processes, including assessment of rigk appetite
ang pricing.

Corporate Assets - Corporate assets include exposures

tc corporate and SME entities. The methadology for non
specialised lending Corporate assets considers, individually, the
obligor PD, the transaction EAD and LGD then combines these
to produce the transaction EL. The approach within HBOS fo
estimating PD has been to undertake a statistical analysis of the
obligor's financial statements with a supplementary qualitative
but standardised overlay.

This is then calibrated to the higtorically identified (and where
nacessary appropriately adjusted) default rate for the portfolio
in hand. EAD estimates are based on current exposures plus
an additional preportion of the undrawn positions. The LGD
component is estimated, taking account of the EAD less any
recognisable collateral,

Specialisad Lending Assets - This asset class predominantly
comgprises property investment and property development
transactions but also includes major asset financing deals, such
as shipping and aircraft. This is a transaction based approach.
Where full models are in place, the methodology has been

to stochastically assess the transaction’s cash flows over its
lifetime and use this to calculate the 12 montn EL.

Financial Institutions and Sovereign Assets - This comprises
exposures ta governments together with exposures to bank
counterparties. Given the historical imited defaull data for
such portfolios the methodology for these agsets has beento
predict what rating would be provided by an External Credit
Assessment Institution (ECA) should the obligor have sought
one. This rating is then related to a PD value based upon

the long run historic information associated with such ECAI
ratings. A transaction EAD is estimated based on the product
characteristics while LGD is directly associated with the
standing of the chligor, These components are then combined
to produce the transaction EL.

Within HBOS, all models have been developed internally and
there is no use of external modals (although there may be
reliance on external feeds such as bureau data, PD ratings for
axternal third parties such as tenants, anc feeds to Treasury’s
Bank rating modals}. Minimum Standards for the development
and montioring of Credit Risk Models are in force across the
Group.

In accordance with the HBOS federal structure, credit risk
control units have been established within each divisional risk
function. Divisional credit teams are iIndependent from business
generation teams and are responsible for:

- development, validation, implementation and recalibration of
credlit risk models;

- monitoring of the ongoing performance of the credit risk
models; and

- seouring annuat approval of all credit risk models from the
appropriate body.

The mest material internal rating models are appraved for use
by Group Capital Committee with the remainder at Group
Model Governance Committee, which is a sub-committea of
GCRC. Group Cradit Risk undertake independent technical
review of Divisional credit risk models in accordance with the
Group's standards, These reviews take place annually or when
a model is materially changed and result in a recommendation
to the GMGC or Group Capitat Committee where the model is
approved for use.



Use of Internal Estimates

The Group has introduced IRB modsls on a phased basis,
ensuring that full confidence in the outputs is built up within the
credit areas before moving to full use in decisioning.

IRB parameters are being widely usad in the divisions
particularly in those that will experience the most material benefit
under Basel Il and for the most material requirements.

Credit approval

Credit agsessment and approval within HBOS is mainly
conducted at the divisional level in line with the Group Credit
Risk Policy Statement (GCRPS) and divisional credit policy
statements. The GCRPS requires adherence to the canons of
lending appropriate for a financial institution of HBQOS's size and
sophistication, and in relation to IRB inputs it specifically requires
that:

- each borrower must be assigned a credit rating or score, or
directly, a probability of defautt (PD) which is updated at least
annually; and

- PD and EL shouid be considered as part of a credit
assessment.

The divisional processes can be broken down into two main
categories:

Portfolio level credit approval (defined as low value, high volume
autornated credit processes and used primarity for assessing
retail portfolios). Typically, Lifetime EL and EL. estimates
generated from/by IRB models are used to set application
scorecard cut-offs. Therefore, the level of business accepted via
automated decision making processes is directly influenced by
IRE outputs, Decisioning and pricing are linked and LEL outputs
are alse fed into profitability medels that are used to make
pricing decisions.

Transaction level credit approval (defined as high value, low
volume exposures which are addressed directly by credit
analysts - used for corporate, corporate SME, financial
institution and sovereign asset classes).

n general, the process operates as follows:

- the relationship manager inputs the appropriate information
into the models which return PD / EL outputs; and

- an independent credit risk management unit checks the
inputs to the model calculations for accuracy and plausibility
{and for outputs); and verifies that the correct model has been
used.

Credit Limits
The governance process for imits approval is:

- at Group leve!, imits for products, sectors and countries are
set under the authority of GCRC; and

— within the divisions, sanctioning is conducted under a set of
agreed delegated lending authorities granted to individuals
or cradit committees. These delegated authorities have been
revised substantially in response to the deteriorating credit
conditions.
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Divisicnal risk committees do not make individual credit
decisions but are responsible for putting in place appropriate
governance arrangernents, approving policies and standards
and credit risk rating systems and monitoring all aspects of
credit risk within their respective divisions.

Pricing

Transaction/portiolio level pricing is set by the divisions who are
increasingly basing these decisions on the outputs of the iRB
models.

For Retail, pricing and decisioning are intrinsically linked. The
lffetime expected losses are fed into the profit mode!, along

with other costs, to allow a price to be set that generates the
required retumn. Afl pricing decisions have been assessed using
the Basel lifetime expected loss to ensure that current pricing
passes the required hurdle rates dependent on the risk involved.

For Corporate, the pricing model facilitates the incorporation of
pricing infomation into the credit approval process.

For Treasury, the major activities are funding, liquidity and
hedging in external markets on behalf of the wider HBOS group.
Treasury is not normally a market maker in the markets within
which it operates, and is therefore dependent on prices quotad
to it by the market,

Portfolic Reporting

Credit risk reporting is conducted at both Group and divisional
levels, embedding IRB parameters into management
information. This inckudes analysing PD, LGD, EAD, and EL
measures. Model performance and parameter assessment are
also presented.

Factors Impacting Loss Experience

The deterioration in the loss experience generally reflects the
increasing economic pressures over the yeat, characterisad

by declining economic activity, rising unemployment, the
contraction of the mortgage market, reduced availability of credit
and the failt in house and commercial property values.

The increase in mortgage losses was driven predominantly by
increased affordability pressures and reduced attrition from
higher risk customers as well as the rise in Loan o Value ratios
due to reduced housing values.

The Corporate credit envircnment has suffered significant
deterioration, with zn increasing number of customers operating
under stressed concitions. In particular, the exposure to the
construction and real estate sectors, where there has been
historically targe concentrations of lending, have been impacted
more severaly than other sectors. In addition, HBOS strategy
was to support relatively high levels of exposure to a small
nurmber of long term customer relationships, these single name
concentrations have placed the Group at risk of significant loss,
should default occur. The general deterioration of the credit
erwironment and associated market dislocation has limited

the opticns available to Corporate to restructure or dispose

cof distressed assets. As a result, not only has HBOS been
impacted earlier and more significantly than most of its peers,

it has been very difficult to materially reduce the balance sheet
risk profile in reaction to the ervironment.
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Risk Management

continued

Likewise, the loss experience within the international businesses
reflacts the deteriorating economies within which it operates.

Losses experienced in Treasury are due to both the fair
value impact of the market dislocation on tha Asset Backed
Securities portfolio, including Alt A bonds and CDOs and the
well publicised fallure of certairs bank counterparties resulting
in credit impairments. The fall in valus has been driven largety
by credit concerns, poor market sentiment end liquidity
requiremeants.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Collateral is the pledging of assets which in the event of default
can be sold in order to realise some, or afl, of the outstanding
monies. HBOS has documented policies in respect of the
criteria for recognition of collateral taken as cregit risk mitigation.

HBOS employs a variety of credit risk mitigation technigues In
arder to mitigate the credit risk faced. These techniques include
netting, collateral, guarantees and credit derlvatives.

The Retail mortgage portfolios are formally secured on
residential properties. Corporate exposures utilise a broad
range of collateral types serving o reduce the foss in event of
default. Financial collateral is predominantly cash. Other eligible
coltateral includes first charges on commercial and residential
real estate and other physical assets such as aircraft, shipping,
commercial vehicles and car fleets.

On-balance sheet netting is recognised where the agreement

is tagally etfective and enforceable and there is an intention and
abiity to settle on a net or simuttanecus basis in all jurisdictions.
In recognising the netting agreements HBOS ensures it can
determine at any time those assets and liabifities that are subject
to the netting agreement.

On-balance sheet netting is recognised in respect of mutual
claims between HBOS and its counterparty. This is limited to
reciprocal cash balances between HBOS and the counterparty.

For master netting agreements covering repurchase
transactions and/or securities or commadities lending or
borrowing transactions and/or other capitat market driven
transactions to be recognised for the purposes of the calculation
of requiatory capital, they shall: ’

- be legally effective and enforceable in all relevant jurisdictions,
including in the event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of the
counterparty;

- giva the non-defaulting party the right to terminate and close-
out in a timely manner all transactions under the agreement
upon the event of default, including in the event of the

. bankruptey or inscivency of the counterparty: and

- provide for the netting of gains and losses on fransactions
closed out under a master agreement, so that a single net
amount is owed by one party to the othar.

HBOS policy is to calculate the market value of coliateral taken
and periodicalty reassess it. Notwithstanding, revaluation is
undertaken whenever HBOS has reason to belisve that a
significant decrease in market value has pccurred.

Where the cotlateral is held by a third party, HBOS takes
reascnable steps to try 1o ensure that the third party segregates
the collateral from its own assets.

Where real estate is pledged as collateral the value of the
property is frequently assessed. More frequent assessment is
carried out where the market is subject o significant changes in
conditions.

Statistical methods are used to monitor the value of the property
and to identify property that requires to be revalued. The
property valuation is reviewed by an independent valuer when
information indicates that the value of the property may have
declined matetially, relative to general market prices.

The value of other physical forms of coflaieral is assessed on

a frequent basis and at a minimum once every year. More
frequent assessment is required where the market is subject to
significant changes in conditions.

HBOS policy is to ensure It has the ability to liquidate the
collateral, the apility to establish objectively a price or market
value, the frequency with which the value can readily be
obtained {including a professional appraisat or valuation),

and the volatility or a proxy of the volatility of the value of the
collateral, Bath inttial valuation and revaiuation take into account
any deterioration or obsolescence of the collateral, Particular
attention is paid in valuation and revaluation to the effects of the
passage of time on fashion/date-sensitive collateral.

HBOS policy in recognising collateral is that there is the right to
physically inspect the collateral, ensuring also that the collateral
taken as protection is adequately insured against damage.

Guarantees exist when one entity commits to paying the
outstanding monies in event of default of another entity, which
has entered into a transaction with HBOS. The Group receives
a variety of guarantee types, however, capital calculation
recognition is only taken through the use of PO substitution for
guarantees provided by appropriate sovereigns and institutions.

Credit derivatives are an investment banking product whereby
HBOS pays a premiumn to a credit protection provider in order
to receive the full amount of menies owed should a specific
courterparty default on their obligations. In effect, thisis a form
of insurance policy and is used in Treasury to mitigate Credit
Risk.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Internal capital and credit limits

Bank and Sovereign AIRB rating predictor models are used

to produce an internal rating for each counterparty within the
portfolio. These ratings are mapped across {0 statistically
derived (based upon Moody's history of default data) PO and
LGD tables. When combined with EAD, these values determine
EL. To determine EAD axposure, values for derivative products
are calculatec by using the mark-to-market methodoiogy for
regulatory purposes and Intermnally developed models for limit
management. EL is then used to calculate the minimurn capital
from which the Risk Weighted Asset (RWA} is derived. Treasury
does not use economic capital models, thus RWAS are used to
determine regutatory capital,



Securing collateral and establishing credit reserves
Treasury makes active use of collateral and rigk mitigation
technigues to reduce credit risks In its portfolio, These
include the use of collateral (cash, government securities and
guarantees), break clauses and netting. In addition, a gross
notional control for repo and stock borrawing exists.

To recognise the effects of cradit rigk mitigation, the mitigaticn
agreernents must be valid, enforceable, unconditional and
irrevocable, In addition, collateral must be transferred to Bank of
Scotland through the passing of title and should be netable on
a portfolio basis, Once these and other conditions specified by
the credit sanctioner are met, the effect of collateral received is
reflected in reductions to all applicable credit exposures and in
capital adequacy calculations.

Treasury Collateral Operations are raguired to actively monitor
collateral using established best risk management practices.

Correlation risk

Under ths repo framework, the issuer of collateral held and
the counterparty tha trade is transacted with should be neither
the same nor connected. The same rule applies for derivatives
under collateral assets standards. Treasury Credit has the
discretion to extend the rule to other cases where there is
significant correlation.

Financial instruments subject to credit risk

The table below sets out the Group's exposure o credit risk
relating to financial instruments before taking account of
collateral and other security. Policyhoider assets are excluded
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Financial assets held for trading

As described above, full credit analysis is undertaken and,
based upon that, an internal rating is derived which helps to
establish a credit appetite for the issuer or asset intended to be
acquired.

As Treasury manages the liguidity of the HBOS Group, its
mandate is to try to maintain a high quality credit portfolic and
actively uses portfolio technigues to manage and monitor the
quatity of its portfolios. This includes the use of rating based
thresholds, established portfolio level thresholds, asset class
limits and sub-limits.

There are also rules governing the types of assets that can be
held within Treasury's Liquidity portfolios, Trading and Banking
books and for individual Asset Backed Security (ABS) tranche
sizes. There are also limits contrelling the maximum weightad
average life of assets.

Financial assets held for trading are predominantly investment
grade investments with 98.8% (2007 99.6%;) of inter-bank and
structured investment portfolios rated ‘A’ or above based on an
internal credit ratings scals that is, in general, aligned with the
ratings scales of the major credit ratings agencies (Moody's,
S&P and Fitch).

During the course of 2008 £12.2bn of ABS and FRN assets
were transferred from the Trading Book to the AFS Boaok.
Subsequently, £35.4bn of ABS was transferred from the AFS
Boak into the L.oans & Receivables Book.

from the analysis in the table as the underlying credit risks are 4 Asat aset)
for the account of the policyholders and have no direct impact 91.12.2008 31122007
on the Group's results, as described further on pages 28 to 30. % %
A full reconciliation between the Group’s consolidated balance AAA 67.4 515
sheet and financial iInstruments subject to credit risk is set outin AR 19.3 44
ncte 48 on page 123. A 121 137
Below A 1.2 0.4
( Financial F:nancia? S
instruments instruments r
subject subject Debt secqr_lhes . \ oy
tocreditrisk  tocradit risk Debt securities are primarily hetd within the Treasury or
Asat As at Insurance & Investment Divisions and are predominantly
Sti22008  smzam invested in invesiment grade counterparties with 92.7% (2007
96.5%) of debt securities rated ‘A" or above, again based on the
Loans and advances to customers 435,223 430,007 internal rating scale.
Financlal assets held for trading 22,5M 54,881 - ~
4, As at As at
Debt securata.es 71,395 56,100 31.12.9008 Azt
Other financial assets 69,392 24,256 % o
598,581 568,044 AAA 52.0 57.8
Contingent liabilities and commitments 61,217 78,904 AA 23.8 258
(ratal 659,798 643,948 A 16.8 128
@elow A 74 3.5J

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are managed on a divisional
basis. Information about the credit quality of Ioans and
advances 1o customers is set out in note 48 on page 124,

QOther financial assets

Other financial assets include cash and balances at central
banks, items in the course of collection, derivative assets, loans
and advances to banks and sundry financial assets,
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continued

Market Risk
Market risk is defined as the potential loss in value or
earnings of the organisation arising from:

- changes in external market factors such as interest rates
(interest rate risk), foreign exchangde rates (foreign exchange
risk), credit spreads, commaodities and equities; and

— the potential for customers to act in a manner which
is inconsistent with business, pricing and hedging
assumptions.

The objectives of the Group's market rigk framework are to
ensure that: )

— market risk is taken only in accordance with the Board's
appetite for such risk;

- such risk is within the Group's financial capability,
management understanding and staff cornpetence;

- the Group comgplies with all regulatiory requirernents relating to
the taking of market risk; and

- the quality of the Group's profits is eppropriately managed
and its reputation safeguarded.

Risk appetite is set by the Board which aliocates respansibility
for oversight and management of market risk to the Group
Market Rigk Comrmittes, an Executive Risk Committes chaired
by the Group Risk Director,

The Group devotes considerable resources to ensuring that
market risk is captured, modelled and reported, and managed.
Trading and non-trading portfolios are managed at various
organisational levels, from the HBOS Group overall, down

to specific business areas. Market risk measurement and
management methods are designed to meet or excesd industry
standards, and the tools used facllitate internal market risk
management and reporting,

Market risk is controlled across the Group by setting limits
using a range of measurement methodologies. The principal
methodologies are Net interest lncomes (NI} sensitivity and
Market Value (MV) sensitivity for banking bhooks and Value-at-
Risk (VaR) for trading books.

Al are supplemented by scenario analysis which is performed
In order to estimate the potential economic loss that couid arise
from extreme, but plausible strass events..

Detaited market risk framework docurments and limit structures
have been developed for each Division. These are tallored to
the specific market risk characteristics and business objectivas
of each Division. Each divisional policy requires appropriate
divisional sanction, and is then forwarded to the Group Market
Risk Commities for approval on at least an annual basis.

Market risk within the insurance and investment busingsses
arises in & nurmbar of ways and, depending upon the product,
gome risks are borne directly by the customar and some Dy

the insurance and investment companies. Risk to customers is
controlled by adherence to and regular monitering of investment
mandates and, if appropriate, unit pricing sysiems and controls.
In the case of tha risk to the companias, individual Boards
approve overal risk appetites and policies against which
exposure is monitored.

Markat risk - principally interest rate, inflation and equity — also
arises from the Group's dafined bensfit pensions cbligations.
Trese sensitivities are regularly measured and are reported 1o
the Group Market Risk Committee every month.

interest Rate Risk (Non-Trading)

A key market risk faced by the Group in its non-trading book is
interest rate risk. This arises where the Group’s financial assets
and liabilites have interest rates set under different bases or
reset at different times.

The orincipal Board limit for structural interest rate risk is
expressed in terrs of potential volatility of net interast income
in adverse market conditions. Risk exposure is manitored using
the following measures;

— Net Interest income sensitivity — This mathodology comprises
an analysts of the Group's current interest rate risk position
overlaid with behavioural assessment and re-pricing
assumptions of planned future activity. The change to
foracast NIl is calculated with reference to a set of defined
parallel interest rate shocks which measure how much current
projactions wauld alter over a 12 mionth period.

- Market Value sensitivity - This methodology considers all
re-pricing mismatches in the current balance sheet including
those beyond the time horizon of the NIl measure, It is also
calculated with reference to a set of defined interest rate
shocks.

The Board has delegated authority to the Group Market Risk
Coemmittes to allocate limits to divisions as appropriate within
the overall risk appetite approved by the Board each year. In
turn, the Group Market Risk Committee has granted limits which
constitute the risk tolerance for each Division.

Banking divisions are required to hedge all significant open
interest rate mismatch positions with Treasury and are not
permitied to take positions of a speculative nature. A limit
structure exists to ensure that risks stemming from residual and
temporary positions or from changes in assumptions about
customer behaviour remain within the Group's risk appetile.

Markst risk in non-trading books consists almost entirely of
exposure to changes in interest rates. This is the potential
impact on earnings and value that could occur when, if rates fall,
liabilities cannot be re-priced as quickly as assets; or when, i
rates rise, assets cannct be re-priced as quickly as fiabilities.

s



Net Interest Income Sensitivity

The following table shows, spiit by major currency, the Group's
sensttivities as at 31 December 2008 to an immediate up and
down 25 basis points change to all interest rates.

- 2\
As Bt 31,12.2008
+25bps ~25bps
impact of imerest rate shilt £m £m
Currency '
Sterling 82.4 {119.6)
US Dollar {2.9) 2.7
Euro (8.0) 841
AU Doltar {1.5) 1.5
Qther (0.3) 0.3
Jotal 69.7 (107.0y
[ Asa\BLIZ?OO?
+ 25 bps ~ 25 bps
Impact of interast rata shift £m £m
Currency
Sterling (21.2) 218
US Dollar {0.6} Q.5
Euro (4.3} 4.3
AU Dollar 0.1 Q.1)
Other 0.1 .1}
Gotal ' {25.9) 26.2)

Base case projected Nii is calculated on the basis of the
Group's current balance sheet, forward rate paths implied by
current market rates and contractual re-pricing dates (adjusted
according to behavioural assurmptions for some products); it
also incorporates business planning assumptions about future
balance sheef volumes and the level of early redemption fees.
The above sensitivities show how this projected NIl would
change in respense to an immediate paraflel shift to all relevant
interest rates — market and administered.

The principal driver of the risk is re-pricing mismatch but the
methodology also recognises that behavicural re-pricing
assumptions - for example, prepayment rates - are themselves
a function of the level of interest rates.

The measure, howsaver, is simplified in that it assumes all interest
rates, for all currencies and maturities, move at the same time
and by the same amount. Also, it does not incorporate the
impact of management actions that, in the event of an adverse
rate movement, could reduce the impact on NIl

Basis Risk

Major structural interest rate exposure will largely ba addressed
by quantifying re-pricing risk, however, there is potentially a
material risk relating to basis, i, the exposure relating 1o the
Group’s (net} asset position repricing off a different index than
the {net) iiability position,
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The primary source of basis risk exposure within the Group is
in the UK, where HBOS has a net asset position referenced to
Bank Rate and a net liakility position referenced to short term
LIBOR rates. Analogous Bank Rate / LIBOR positions also exist
in Ireland.

The following table shows net assets for the Banking Divisions
(excluding Treasury} by pricing basis and refiects the major
componerts of the Group’s balance sheet as it relates to basis
risk.

r ™
2008 2007

Bank Rate 97.9 113.0

Variable Market Rates (79.5) {58.6)

Administered Rates {20.4) {£2.3)

Fixed {including capital and low/

Con~interest bearing) 1.0 (7.9)}

Reserve Sensitivity

The following table shows the market value sensitivity, for a 25

basis point shift, of those items in respect of which a change in
market value is reflected in the equity of the Group - principally
‘available for sale’ assets and cash flow hedges.

( As at 31.12.2008
+25bps - 25 bps

Impact of iInterast rate shift £m £m

Available for sale reserve {14.5) 14.5
Cash fiow hedge reserve 84.9 (84.9)
Jotal 704 (70.4)
~

4 As at 31.12.2007

+ 25 bps -25bps

impact of interast rata shift £m £m

Avallable for sale reserve {15.7) 6.7
Cash flow hedge reserve 181 (116.1)
\Total 100.4 {100.4),

Foreign Exchange Risk (Non-Trading)

The Group Funding & Liquidity Committes is responsible for
the framework within which structural foreign currency risk is
managed. The Group Funding & Liquidity Committee manages
fargign currency exposures based on forecast currency
information praovided by the Divisions, and mandates Treasury
to execute transactions and undertake currency programmes
to manage structural currency risk. The actual risk position is
monitored monthly by the Group Market Risk Commities.

Transaction exposures arise primarily from profits generated in
the overseas operations, which will be remitted back to the UK
and then corwerted into sterling.

Translation exposures arise due to earnings that are retained
within the overseas operations and reinvested within their own
balance sheet.

Structural currency exposures arise from the Group's
investments in overseas subsidiaries, branches and other
investments and are noted in the table overlaaf,
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~ Tooa)

2008
Net Borrowing Rematning
investments  taken putto structural
in overseas hedge net currency
Functional currency operations  Investments exposure
of the operation £m £m £m
AU Dollar 2,015 2,015
Euro 3,011 3,011
US Dollar 191 181 10
Other {23) {23)
LTotal 5,194 5,207 (13}
{ 2007 )
Not Borrowing Remaining
invasiments taken out to structural
ih gversaas hedge nat currancy
Functional currency operalions investments axposurs
of the operation £m £m £m
Al Dollar 2,023 2,023
Eura 1,888 1,613 275
US Dolar 97 97
Gther 4 4
7!
Jotal i 4,012 3,733 279

As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 there are no
material net currency exposures in the non-trading book relating
to transactional {or non-structural) pesiticns that would give rise
to net currency gains or [psses.

Trading

The Group's market risk trading activities are principally
conducted by Treasury Division. This Group activity Is subjact
to a Trading Book Policy Statement, which is approved by the
Board, and limits set by the Group Market Risk Committee.

Treasury trading primarily centres arcund two activities:
proprietary frading and trading on the back of business flows.
Both activities incur market risk, the majority being interest rate
and foreign exchange rate exposure, In addition, a number of
marketable assets held as part of the kguidity risk management
framework are also held in trading books. Such activity gives
rise to market risk as a result of movements in credit spread.

The Group employs several complementary techniques to
measure and contro! trading activities including: Value-at-Risk
(VaR), sensitivity analysis, siress testing and position limits.

The VaR model, used as part of the Group's management of
traciing activity, expresses market risk to 99% confidence using
1 one cay holding period. The number provides ar indication
of the maximum mark-to-market loss which, to this evel of
confidence, might be incurred on a single day given the size

of currant trading positions, it is computed using & histotical
simulation approach and a one year history of price data.

The underlying assumption of VaR is that future price volatility
and correlation will net differ significantly from that previously
observed. !t also implicitly assumes that all positions are
sufficiently liquid to be realisable within the chosen one day
holding period.

VaR gives no indication of the size of any loss that could occur
frormn extreme adverse price changes (je, cutside the chosen
confidence level). For these reasons, stress testing is employed
to simutate the effect of selected adverse market movements.
Three ditferent types of stress tests are conducted:

- historical scenarios,
- defined scenarios tailored 1o key vulnerabilities; and
- extreme shiocks to single risk factors.

Such measures are particularly relevant when market conditions
are abnormal and daily price movements are difficult to source.

The Group's trading market risk exposure for the year ended 31
December 2008 is analysed below.

Owing to the unprecedented level of volatlity in the credit
markets, VaR has been suspended as a measure for the credit
rating portiolic. Positions are now managed using sensitivity
measures. The large increase in VaR, relative to 31 December
2007, is due principally to higher price volatility in wholesale
markets - the size of underlying trading positions has not
changed materially.

f_ ™
As at As at Average Highest Lowest
3 Dec2008 31 Dec 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Exposure &m £m £m £m em £m £m £m
Total value at risk 8.4 13.2 12.2 7.6 18.3 13,9 50 40
Interest rates 8.4 a7 5.5 3.0 9.1 59 28 1.7
Credit spread suspended 8.3 suspended 4.3 suspended 8.4 suspended 1.8
Foreigh exchange 6. 1.9 8.3 08 16.3 20 C 13 01
LEquity risk factor 04 0.2 0.2 0.2 11 0.4 0.0 0.0)




The regulatory capital charge for market risk trading exposures
represents only 0.85% (2007 1.87%) of the Group's capital
base.

fFor all significant exposures VaR is calculated on a dally basis
and Is used by senior management to manage market risk. On
amore detailed desk and trader level, to increase transparency
interast rate risk relating to the trading book I principally
managed using sensitivity methadology to measure exposure
and set limits. This methodology calcutates the present value
impact of a one basis point movement in interest rates on the
outstanding positions, Credit spread risk is managed using
position fimits based on credit spread sensitivity. Foreign
exchange risk is principally managed by the use of position
limits. Equity risk is managed through Equity index VaR and
position limits.

The VaR model was granted CAD2 recognition by the FSA
in December 2007 for general market risk in London for the
following risk factors:

- Interest Rate
- Foreign Exchange
-~ Equity

It is validated by daily backtesting against chserved P&L both at
the {otat (diversified) leve! and at sub-portfolic levels.

Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group uses a limited
range of derivativa instruments for both trading and non-trading
purposes. The principal derivativa instruments used are interest
rate swaps, interest rate options, cross currency swaps, forward
rate agreements, credit derivatives, forward foreign exchange
contracts and futures. The Group uses derivatives as a risk
management tool for hedging interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk.

The Group’s activity in derivatives Is controlled within risk
management limits set by the Board and overseen by the
relevant Group Risk Committees. Details of derivative contracts
outstanding at the year end are included in Note 17 to the
Accounts on pages 76 and 77.

Liguidity Risk

The risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial
resources tc meet its obligations when they are due or will
have to do so at excessive cost.

Liguidity Risk is governed by the Group Liquidity Policy
Statement which is approved by the Board and defines the core
principles for identitying, measuring, managing and meonitoring
liquidity risk across the Group. Detailed liquidity risk framework
documents and limit structures are in place for the Group's
operations, where liguidity is managed cn a Group basis,

and for overseas banking units subject to specific regulatory
requirements. The responsibility for aversight and management
of Liguidity Risk is delegated to the Group Capital Committee
(GCQC).
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Palicy is reviewed at least annually to ensure its continued
relevance to the Group’s current and planned operations.
Oparational liquidity management is delegated to Treasury. The
authaority to set specific limits and guidetines and responsibility
tor monitoring and controlling Bquidity is delegated by the GCC
to the Group Funding & Liguidity Committee (GLFC).

The Group's banking operations in the UK should comply with
the FSA's Sterling Stock Liguidity approach for sterling liquidity
management and regulatary reporting. A key element of the
FSA's Sterling Stock Liquidity Policy is that a bank should hold
a stock of high quality jiquid assets that can be sold or used via
repo, quickly and discrestly in order to replace funding that has
been withdrawn due o an actual or perceived problem with
the bank. The objective is that this stock enables the bank to
continue business, whilst providing an opportunity to arrange
more permanent funding solutions. Limits on the five day sterling
net wholesale outflow and the minimum level of stock liquidity
have been agreed with the FSA.

HBOS shoutd also adhere to the requirements of other
regulatory authorities including the Australian Prudential
Regulatory Authority, the Irish Financlal Regulator and the Office
of the Comptroliar of the Currency in the United States, in whose
jurisdictions the Group has branches ar subsidiaries.

The internal approach to lquidity management has been in
place for several years, operating within regulatory reqguirements,
The approach logks at the forecast cash flows across all
currencies and at longer timeframes than the regulatory

norms. At 31 December 2008, the Group's liquidity portfolio

of marketable assets was E77.3bn (2007 £67.0bn), of which.
£39.5bn (2007 £13.4bn) has been used for repo. The liguidity
portfalio is recorded in Treasury and predominantly comprises
Treasury debt securities, exctuding Gramplan and Landale.

Betails of the Treasury debt securities portfolio are disclosed cn
page 11. The assets in the liquidity portfolio are treated in two
forms.

Firstly, assets known to be eligible under normal arrangements
with the Bank of England, the Eurcpean Central Bark and the
Federal Reserve. Secondly, a substantial pool of high quality
assets that allow us to manage through periods of stress taking
inte account the likely behaviours of depositors and wholesale
markets. These approaches are supported by a liquidity
framework that includes:

- funding diversity criteria focusing on retail, other customer and
wholesale sources;

~ sight to one week and sight to one month mismatch limits
25 & percentage of total wholesale funding for il major
currencies and for all currencies in aggregate;

- targets on the appropriate balance of short to medium term
wholesale funding; and

- criteria and limits on marketable assats, by asset class
for Sterling, US Dollars, Euros, other currencies and for all
currencies in aggregate.
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Daily menitoring and control processes are in place to address
both statutory and prudential liquidity requirements. tn addition,
ihe framewark has two other important components.

= Firstly, HBOS stress tests its potential cash flow mismatch
position under various scenarics on an ongoing basis. Tha
cash flow mismatch position considers on-balance shest
cash flows, commitrnents received and granted and material
derivative cash flows, Specifically, commitments granted
include the pipeline of new business awaiting completion as
well as othar standby or revolving credit faciliies, Behavioural
adjustments are developed evaluating how the cash flow
positicn might change under each stress scenario to derive
a stressed cash flow position. Scenarlos cover both HBOS
name specific and systemic difficulties. The scenarios and the
assumptions are reviewed at least annually 10 gain assurance
they continue to be refevant 1o the nature of the business.

- Secondly, the Group has a Liquidity Contingency Flan
embedded within the Group Liquidity Poiicy Statement which
nas been designed to identify emerging liquidity concerns at
an early stage, so that action can be taken to avoid a more
serious orisis developing. This is achieved through the use of
Early Warning Indicators (Ewls). Clear guidelings are set out
for the management escalation process in the event of EWis
triggering and the actions ta bie taken (short and medium
term), should such an event take place.

In response to the market dislocation that started in the second
half of 2007 and intensified in September 2008, the Group

has increased vigilance by operating under full contingency
arrangements including daily monitoring of funding and liquidity
positions with GCC reating on a weekly basis to monitor and
manage the Group Balance Sheet.

Funding

The wholesale funcing capacity of the Group Is dependent upon
factors such as the strength of the balancs sheet, earnings,
asset quality, ratings and market position, as welt as market
sentiment and percaption, most evident in share and debt price
volatility.

8 1)
Asat As at

31.12.2008 31.12.2007

£bn £on

Loans and advances 0 customers ~ 436.2 430.0
Customer accounts 222.3 243.2
Customer lending less customer accounts 212.9 186.8

Customer accounts as a % of loans

bnd advances to customers 51.0% 56.6%

it has been the Group's policy 1o manage its balance sheet
profile {0 ensure customer deposits sourced cutside Treasury
represent a significant component of overal funding, and GFLC
directs and co-ordinates the activitias of the Divisions in raising
liabiiities from a range of sources.

in order to strengthen the Group's funding position, HBOS has

over the last few years diversified its funding sources, and also

lengthened the maturity profile of market sensitive funding. This
has been achieved through:

- widening the wholesale investor base and product set;

- building and maintaining a term issuance programme
- securitisation, covered bonds, Medium Term Note
programmes; and

- utilising the geographic divarsity of New York and Sydney as
funding hubs for the Group.

The ability of the HBOS Group 1o access wholesale funding
sources and raise retall deposits on favourable economic terms
is dependent on a variety of factors, including a number outside
of its contral, such as general market conditions including

the state of UK and global finance markets, an increase in
competitive behaviour, and confidence i the UK banking
system in general of the HBOS Group in particular.

Foliowing specuiation on HBOS's future in mid-Seotember,

the HBOS Group suffered deposit outflows, further increasing
the Group’s reliance on whalasale funding markets. The
maijority of these deposit cutflows were non-bank financial
institutions and larga corporates, rather than personal account
customers. In recent months this position has stabllised with
net inflows evident following the announcement of the proposed
transaction with Lloyds TSB. :

In wholesale markets, the HBOS Group has previously looked
to achisve a geographically diverse investor base and product
set of an appropriate maturity profile to ensure it is not overly
exposed to short-term market diglocation.

As a result of the increasingly turbulent conditions in the globat
financial markets in the second haif of 2008, there has been

a significant Geterioration in the inter-bank and term funding
markets and a consequent material reduction in the availability
of longes-term funding. As a result, HBOS has had to source
more shorter-term and overnight funding, with a consequent
increase of refinancing risk.

In recent months, the strain in the financial systems has
increased substantially, leading to a significant tightening in
market liguidity and the threat of a more marked deterioration

in the global economic outlook, with a consequent increase in
recourse to liquidity schemes provided by central banks. While
various governments, including the UK Governmertt, have taken
substantial measures to ease the current crisis in liguidity, such
as the measures anncunced in the UK on 8 October 2008 and
13 Qcteber 2008, there can be no assurance that these global
measures will succeed in improving the funding and liquidity of
the markets in which tha major banks, including HBOS, operate.

HBOS, as a wholly owned subsidiary, will be dependent on
Lloyds Banking Group for funding and expects reliance for the
foreseeable future on the continued availablity of central bank
liquidity facilities (particularly those with the Bank of England) as
well as HM Treasury's guarantee scheme for short and medium-
term debt issuance.

The Group's wholesale funding sources are shown in the tables
overleaf. Tables are prepared on the basis that "retall” is defined
using the current statutory definition, ie, adrministered rate
praducts. Whotssale funding, when issued in a foreign currency
but swapped into Sterling, Is included at the swap exchanged
amount. Wholesale funding is shown excluding any Repo
activity and tha funding raised in the names of the conduits.
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’
Retail and Whalesale Funding sources

As at 31.12.2008

As at ij;.h?C}G?1
%

Instrument £bn % £bn
Bank Deposits 13.7 a3 331 87
Deposits from Customers 240 57 278 5.6
Debt Securities in issua:
Certificatas of Deposit 51.0 12.2 63.9 12.0%
Medium Term Notes 45.7 10.9 43.2 87
Covered Bonds 291 7.0 244 4.9
Commerclal Paper 8.9 24 16.8 34
Securitisation 35.8 8.6 45.9 9.34
170.5 40.8 194.2 39.2
Suhordinated Debt 22.2 53 181 37
Other 7.6 1.8 6.9 1.3
Total Wholesale 238.0 56.9 2801 56.5
Retail 180.1 431 2154 435
L‘I’otal Group Funding 4181 100.0 495.5 100‘0)

{ '
As at 31.12.2008 As at 31.12.2007
Wholesale funding - Currency £bn % Ebn %
'JS dollar §2.8 22.2 105.2 378
Euro 87.4 36.7 796 28.4
Sterfing 80.1 33.7 70.3 25.1
OCther 17.7 7.4 250 8.9
\ Total Wholesale Funding 238.0 100.0 2801 160.0,
B )
As ot 31.12.2008 As at 31.12.2007
Wholesale tunding - Residual Maturity £bn Yo £bn %
Less than one yaar 119.4 50.2 166.2 59.3
One to two years 25.2 10.6 218 77
Two o five years 44.1 18.5 46.3 18.5
More than 5 years 49.3 20.7 46.0 16.5
\Total Wholesale Funding 238.0 100.0 280.1 100.0)
The increased use of repo activity as a funding tool has materially impacted the levels of wholesale funding shown in the tables.
The following tables reconcile wholesaie figures reported above with those in the Statutory Balance Sheet.
. Interest h
Accruals and
Other Statutary
Risk Repos and Accounting Balance
Report Conduits  Adjustments Shaet
Accounting Classification - as a1 31.12.08 £bn £bn £bn £bn
Debt Securities in [ssue 170.5 3.0 14.9 188.4
Sub Debt and Other 29.8 0.3 30.1
Deposits by Customers 204.1 18.2 222.3
Bank Depasits 13.7 70.9 12.6 97.2
Jota! 418.1 9241 y
(" Interest )
Accruals and
Othar Statutory
Risk Repos and Accounting Balance
Raport Conduits Adjustments Sheet
Accounting Classification - as at 31.12.07 Lon £bn £bn £bn
Debt Securities in lssug 194.2 12.0 03 206.5
Sub Debt and Other 250 {0.7) 24.3
Deposits by Customers 243.2 243.2
Banrk Deposits 3341 7.8 06 41.5
\ fotal 495.5 19.8 y,
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Conduits

HBOS sponsors two conduits, Grampian and Landals, which
are special purpose vehicles that invest in highly rated assets
and funds via the Asset Backed Commergial Paper (ABCP)
market. At 31 Decermber 2008, investments heid by Grampian
totalled £21.7bn ang £0.7bn of assets held by Landale were
consclidated. Grampian is a long established, high grade credit
investment vehicle that invests in diversified Asset Backed
Securities of which over 75.9% are rated AAA by S&P and Aaa
by Moody’s. Grampian has a liquidity line in place with HBOS
which covars all of the assets and programmea wide credit
ennhancement is also provided by HBOS. Grampian has been
fully consolidated into the balance shegt. Landale holds both
assets originated from the Group balance shest and third party
transactions. Landale has liguidity fines from HBOCS and from
third party banks, and therefore the former, but not the latier, are
consolidated into the balance shest.

In 2008, there have been occasions when Grampian and
Landals fin respect of assets backed by HBOS liguidity lines)
have declined to issue Asset Backed Commercial Paper. At
thesa times the concuits were funded through the avallable
liquidity lines rather than through the ABCP market. At 31
Decernber 2008, HBOS had provided funding to the Grampian
and Landale conduits of £20.4bn.

General Insurance & Long Term Assurance Business
Risks ]

The general insurance and long term assurance business
contracts underwritten by the Group expose HBOS to both
investment and insurance risk.

Insurance risk is the potential for loss, arising out of
adverse claims from both life and general insurance
contracts.

Investment risk is the potential for financial loss

arising from the risks associated with the investment

management activities of the Group. Investment risk

includes market, credit and liquidity risks. The loss can be

as a result of:

— Direct risks relating to changes in the value of Group
assets in support of the general insurance and long term
insurance contracts; )

— Indirect risks arising from policyholder funds where the
assets and policyholder liabilities are matched; and

- Indirect risks associated with the management oi‘ assets
held on behalf of third parties. :

The Group Insurance Risk Committes, one of the Executive
Risk Committees described on page 16, considers regular
reports on specified aggregate insurance risks across all of the
Group’s insurance and investment pusinesses. It oversees the
development, implementation and maintenance of the overall
insurance risk management framework, covering insurance risk
in each business individually, as well as in aggregate.

As part of the overall Group risk management framewaork, the
Group nsurance & Investment Risk team provides regutar
support 1o the Group Market Risk Committee and to the
Group Credit Risk Comrnittee on the inter- relationship between
insurance risk and investment risks {market, credit and fiquidity
risks respectively) arising within these businesses, and the
development of appropriate policies and standards for the
management of those risks.

The majority of the Group's long term insurance and investment
contract liabilities are managed within the HBOS Insurance &
Investrnent Division and Insight Investment with approximately
8% (2007 3%,) operated by the iife businesses outside the

UK. Day to day management of insurance and investrnent risk
is undertaken by management supportad by specialist risk
functions. Use is made of the statutory actuarial roles, both to
help ensure ragulatory compliance in respect of the authorised
insurance cormipanias in the Group and to help mest Group risk
management standards.

Long Term Assurance

The insurance and investment business that is transacted

by the life insurance companies within the Group comprises
unit linked business, fixed benefit busingss {also known as
non-profit business) and with-profits business (descriced as
insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participating features {DPF) written within the with-profits fund}.

Several companies within the insurance and investment
business transact either unit linked and/or other non-profit
business, but al with-profits business is underwritten by
Clerical Medical Investrient Group Limited (Clerical Medical), a
subsidiary of HBOS Financial Services Limited.

The key characteristics of long term assurance that give rise
to Insurance and investment risk are its long term nature, the
guarantees provided to policyholders, the dependancy on the
performance of investment markets and the extent to which
assets backing the contractuai liabilities are matched.



The guality, mix and volurne of business have a significant
influence on the extent of insurance and investment rigk
assumed by the Group and resulting profits. The quality of
business written is influenced by variations in preduct terms as
well as the average premium size, age and terrn profile withirt
the particular products. Accordingly, the mix in products written
may impact on profits, depending on the nature, extent and
profitability of new business in addition to existing business. This
risk is managed through the application of ¢lear pricing poticies
that require fult financial assessment for each new product,
incorporating consideration of expected hurdle rates of return.

Additicnally, variations in administration and development
costs may impact the available profit margin within the product
charges. To manage this risk, there is a regular process of
expense budgeting and reporting with appropriate targets set
for new insurance and investment products that are developed.

The risks assoclated with particular sections of the long term
assurance business are set out below,

Unit Linked Funds

For unit linked funds, including consoiidated collective
investment schemes, which comprise 78% (2007 77%;} of
the Group's long term insurance and investment contract
liabilities, investors bear the investment rigk, with changes in
the underlying investments being matched by changes in the
underlying coniract liabiliies, Similarly, the Group manages a
number of collective investrnent schemes where the investors
bear the investment risks. The investor selects from a range
of investment opportunities available from the Group in
accordance with their personal risk appetite and circumstances.

On a day-to-day basis, cash outflows which are necessitated
by investors withdrawing their funds are generally met by cash
inflows from naw investors. [n circumstances where funds are
contracting, or 10 meet unusually high levels of withdrawals,

the Group sells assets in the fund in order to meet the cash
demands with any dealing costs charged to the underlying unit
linked fund and conseqguently the policyholders. The underlying
assets in the unit linked funds are subject to credit and market
risks in the form of interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange
and other market risks depending on the fund, including
movement in property values, These changes are maiched by
changes in the unit linked liabilities. Accardingly, the Group is
not directly exposed to significant liquidity, credit or market risks,
although the investors’ benefits will vary as a consequence.
Decreases in tha capital valug of unit linked funds (as a resuit
of falls in market values of equities, property or fixed interest
assets) will however reduce the future annual investment
management charges that will be earmned from unit linked
business.
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The Group sstimaies that if the capital value of the unit finked
funds, excluding censolidated collective investment schemes,
classified as investment contracis had been reduced, on
averags by 10% for the vear, the profit before tax for the year
would have decreased by £20m (2007 £22m). For unit linked
contracts classified as either insurance ¢ontracts or investment
contracts with DPF the Group has considered the sensitivities to
a number of risks in Note 28 to the Accounts on pages 87 to 89.

Uinit linked products provide some discretion for variation in
annual administration charges, and therefore management of
variations in expenses may be achieved through variation in
charges.

An additionat risk the Group faces, in respect of unit linked
business, is the risk that increases to surrender rates for both
insurance and investment contracts reduce the value of future
investment management charges. Actions to control and
monitor this risk include charges applicable on some products
where the investor surrenders early, regular experience
monitoring, consideration of the sensitivity of product profitability
to tevels of lapse rates at the product development stage; and
initiatives within the relevant businesses to encourage customner
retention.

Non-Profit Business

The Group has a diversified portfolio of life insurance and
annuity policies within its portfolio of non-profit insurance
contracts, which includes the insurance risk component of unit
linked policies classified as insurance contracts. The principal
investment risk in respect of the non-profit businass is interest
rate risk which arlses because assets and fiabilities may exhibit
ditfering changes in value as a result of changes in interest
rates. This may potentizlly impact on the results and the capital
pesition. The investment risk also includes the risk of increases
in corporate bond yield spreads over government risk free yields
or the ratings downgrade of certain securities, both of which
reduce the capital value of the bonds. These risks are controlled
by processes carried out to heip ensure an appropriate level

of matching is maintained in the funds so that changes in fixed
interest assets backing the non-profit business are substantially
mitigated by offsetting changes in liabilities, {zs the discount
rate used in vatuing the liabilities is linked to that of the matching
assets). These processes include the use of and monitoring
against fund mandates.

The ultimate amounts payable under these policias are
sensitive to general trends in mortality rates. For annuitants
comprising 3% (2007 3%) of the Group’s long term insurance
and investment contract liabilities, there is a risk that increases
1o life expectancy through medical advances will prove greater
than that anticipated, For protection business, the risk is that an
unforeseen event such as a natural disaster wilt cause a material
increase in death rates.

The extent of the Group's expostire to insurance risks is set out
in Note 30 to the Accounts on pages 90 to 93.
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Risk Management

continued

With-Profits Fund

The insurance and investment business includes the Clerical
Madical With-Profits Fund which cormprises 17% (2007 17%}
of the Group's long term insurance and investment contract
liabilities. The with-profits Jund takes somea investment risks
with the aim of enhancing policyholder returns but aims to imit
payouts to policyholders to that supportable by the with-profits
fund's assets.

For ‘unitised” with-profits contracts the Group recelves an
annual management charge. For 'traditional’ with-profits
contracts, which form the minority of the with-profits fund
business, the Group recaives one nirth of bonuses declared to
policyholders as long as there is a distributable surplus within
the fund.

Ordinarily, variations in the capital value of the fund's assets
would result in variations in the level of benefits available to

the with-profits contract holders and accordingly a variation

in tha insurance and Investment contracts with DPF liabilities.
Included in the with-profits fund are certain contracts with
minimum payment guarantees at certain policy durations and
on death. Of these with-profits contracis issued between 1997
and 2001, a significant proportion have guaranteed benefits
which are in the roney at the balance sheet date.

The cosis of meeting these guarantees, up to a certain level,
are met by charges to the benefits for alt with-profits contract
policyholders. The amount of these guaranteed benefits, net of
charges tc be levied on policyholder funds, was less than 2%
{2007 1% of the Group's long term insuranae and investment
contract liabilties at the balance sheet date, Above this level
the costs are met by the free assets of the fund {the assets
maintained in the fund which are not held o meet contractuat
liabilities). There remalns a risk that Clerical Mediical may suffer
an additional charge in exceptional circumsiances where

even after management action, the fund is unable to mest

the costs of guarantees within the fund. This is set out in the
Principles and Practices of the With-Profits Fund, availabls
from the Clerical Medical Investment Group website {www.
clericalmedical.co.uk}.

As well as pooling of risks, the other important measures in
controliing the investment risk within the with-profits fund
include having agreed managemant actions to adjust the nature
and extent of investment exposura in response o certain
investment conditions; by recognising and holding appropriate
levels of risk capital; by restricting hoidings to assets which meet
admissibility criteria; and by using derivative strategies to reduce
downside risk.

Accordingly, the insurance and other investment risks {Crediit,
liquidity and market risks) within the with-profits fund are
generally expected to be borna by the with-profits insurance
and investment contracts with DPF policyholders except in the
extreme scenarios. The sensitivity of the Group result to certain
changes in key variables relating to insurance and investment
contracts with DFF within the with-profits fund have been
included in Nate 30 to the Accounts on pages 90 and 93,

Additionally, in order to demonstrata the sensitivity of the with-
profits fund to certain key market variables, and conseduently
the ability of the with-profits fund to meet its policyholders’
expectations, the Group has set out a sensitivity analysis of
unallocated divisiple surplus in Note 32 to the Accounts on page
94.

General Insurance

For general insurance household contracts the most significant
risks to claims experience arise from weather events, For
repayment insurance contracts the most significant risks arise
from changes in economic conditions.

The Group manages its exposure to insurance risk through

a strategy which includes limitation of the nature of the risks
underwritten and atiowance within the price charged for the
undexlying risks. This allowance for risks Is based on toth
external information and HBOS's own experience data. For all
classes of insurance thers are pricing models that are regularly
adjusted for actual claims experience. For household insurance
the Group fimits its exposure to large weather events through
the use of reinsurance. Any reinsurance purchased must have
a minimum credit rating, and if that rating is breached no further
business is placed with that provider.

The maiority of claims are reported and settled within 12 months
and generally there is limited reserving uncertainty for events
before the balance sheet date.

For some renewable contracts (household, travel and some
repayment insurance), the longer teqm exposure to risk s
managed in conjunction with the ability to re-price contracts
to take account of changes in the level of rigk within those
contracts.

Set out in Note 30 to the Accounts on page 83 are the Group's
general insurance claim provisions by poiicy type.

{End of information that forms an integral part ¢f the audited
financial statements.)



Operational Risk

Operational Risk exists in the normal conduct of business
and is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes or systems, or from people-related

ar external events. Examples of potential scurces of
operational risk include fraud, system reliability, human
error, failure of key suppliers, IT security, business
continuity, change management, operational cutsourcing
and failure to comply with legislation or regulation.

The Board has approved an Operational Risk Palicy that
establishes the framework for managing operational risk, The
main components of the Framework include risk and control
assessment, internal loss reporting, capture of risk event
information, key risk indicator monitoring and evaluation of
external events.

The Group Operational Risk Committee is one of the four
Executive Risk Committees chalred by the Group Risk Director.
It is attended by senior executives from the Divisions and Group
specialist areas. The commitiee considers the management

of issues and exposures, recormmends the appropriate capital
requirement, approves policies and standards anc provides
oversight of the operational risk communities.

A key enhancement to the infrastructure has been to focus on
the explicit risk rnanagement of specialist areas that underpin
the HBOS Operational Risk Framework. Each specialist risk
area is supported by a relevant specialist Group Function, The
specialists' role is to ensure that appropriate risk management
practice is operating across their ‘community’. The key elements
of the Group specialists’ 1oles are:

~ Set and maintain policy.

~ Provide opinion on the effectiveness of risk management for
their area of specialism.

The Group Business Risk function co-ordinates the specialist
areas, designs and maintains Group-wide risk systems and a
specialist portfolic management team undertakes the detailed
modeling required to assess risk exposure using internat and
external loss event information. External information is available
through HBQS membership of the Operational Risk Data
Exchange (ORX). ORX provides anonymous information from a
number of international banks which assist in the identification,
assessment and modeling of operational risk.

The FSA granted HEOS Advanced status under Baset Il and
consequently the Group utifises the Advanced Measurement
Approach {AMA] for regulatory capital reporting in most of
its businesses. HBOS does not currently use insurance or
expected losses to offget s regulatory capital requirement.
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Regulatory Risk

The Financial Services Authority is the main regulator
for HBOS, although the Group's international businesses
in the USA, Australia and Irefand are subject to direct
serutiny from the US Federal Reserve, APRA and The
Financial Regulator respectively.

HBOS understands that consumers have a choice of supplier
and product and are more demanding of financial services
providers. The Group supports the FSA's Treating Customers
Fairly initiative and has set clear principles for deing business.
This is supported by ongoing maintenance of procedures
across the Group, with associated enhancement and
development where necessary. The objective is to meet the
requirements of shareholders through meeting customer needs.

HBOS is alert to the wider, cumulative picture of regulatory
change and utilises centralised expertise in the area of
regulatory and legal compliance, specifically to:

- Identify and assess the impact of, respond to and where
possible influence the direction of regulatory developments on
behalf of HBOS;

- Leed the development and monitoring of the application of
specific Group-wide policies and standards; and

~ Oversee the management, support and co-crdination of the
tisison and interaction with HBOS regulatory stakeholders
across all its internationat businesses.

The impact of regulatory change is reported acress all Executive
Risk Committees with specific referenca to the discipline
affected and at Group leve! to Audit Committee and the Board.

(The information set out below ending before the section
entitled ‘Capital Requirements’ on page 33 forms an integral
part of the audited financial statemenis as described in the
Accounting Policies section of the Financial Statements on page
48.)

Capital Management

Capital management within HBOS has Board visibility and is
managed primarily through the capital planning process, which
in turn forms part of the overall Group Business Plan, The capital
planning process assists in determining the optimal amount

of capital that should be held by the Group and the most
appropriate mix between the different components of capital,
subject to regulatory limits. The day-to-day management of the
Group's capital is delegated to the Group Capital Committee
with support from underlying committees, including the Group
Regulatory Capital Adequacy Committee.
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Risk Management

continued

The Group Capital Committes is responsible for establishing
the strategic and management framework for the assessment
and allocation of capital within the parametars set by the Board
through the agreed terms of the Group Business Plan and the
approved Risk Appetite. The committee monitors compliance
with tha capital plan, including stress and scenaric analysis,
contingency planning and capital management strategies.

The Group Capital Committes supports wider business
planning and decisions by analysing business levels that are
sustainable under internal capital generation, what options are
avaliable with regards to the levels of capital generated by the
business and also reviews and provides oversight on business
cases that are put forward for inorganic activity.

As part of its capital managemsnt remit, the Group Capital
Committee also ansurss compliance with the Group Capital and
Funding Policy. This policy is reviewed annually and approved
by the Board.

The policy covers the following key areas:

- Capital planning management process and responsibilities;
- The type and level of capital required and held by the Group,
- Monitoring and controling capital plans and forecasts; and
- Supsidiary regulated entities and capital transferability.

For the latter, the policy governs the transferability of capital
around the Group subject to guiding principles which require
that all subsidiary regulated entities within the Group must

hold sufficient capital to ensure that they continue to meet

their individual reguiatory capital ratios as imposed by the local
regulator. Each reguiated entity is required to set out their capital
plans for approval by the Group Capital Committee.

Surplus capital heid at regulated entity levels may be released
up to HBOS pic level in the form of dividends or capital
repatriation. .

The capital planning process ensuras Divisions and reguleted
tegal entity 'owners’ commit to and are manitored against key
drivers, including:

~ Risk Weighted Assets and Expected Losses;
- Other deductions from capital;

- Nen-equity capital and gearing: and

- Surplus capital and agreed utilisation.

The capital plan is monitored on a continuous basis. Itis
updated formaliy as part of the annual planning and guarterly
reforecasting cycles, in line with the Group Business Plan,
with additional revisions made in the intervening periods as
necessary.

The capital plan is stressed under demanding economic
scenarios with both common and specific univariate sensftivity
analysis undertaken.

The Group Capital Committee receives a monthly update

and review of the capital position of the Group. Summary Mt

i& also passed ta the Executive Committee and the Board.

A reconciiation of monthly actual data to forecast is also
completed with commentary on varances and submitted to the
Group Capital Committee,

Throughout 2C08 the Group Capital Commitiee has met weekly
in order to maintain an up-to-date view of market conditions-and
key capital ratios and to ensure issues arising are identified and
actioned promptly. The Group's on-going capital strength has
been a core focus of the Group Capital Committes during the
year.

The Group Regulatory Capital Adeguacy Committee is
responsible for supperting the Group Capital Committee in its
capital management rcie. It achieves this through establishing
policies and minimum standards to measure and monitor

the financial capital resource raguirements of the Group in
accordance with the Group’s risk profile and appropriate
regulatory requiremenis. The Committee relies on input from
the specialist executive risk committees (the Group Cradit Risk
Committee, the Group Market Risk Committee and the Group
Operational Risk Committe), '

Where capital requires to be raised, it is the Group's policy to
issue capital in a range of different forms and also from diverse
sources to spread the investor base. HBOS pic raises the non-
equity Tler 1 capital and subordinated debt for all the Group’s
businesses, with the exception of Clerical Medical which is
permitted to raise capital separately as part of the overail Group
capital plan to spread the investor base for subordinated debt.

The types of capital held by the Group are subject to regulatory
timits which have been established to ensure that restrictions are
placed on the extent to which certain types of capital, such as
innovative Tier 1, are eligible for inclusion within a frm's capital
resouUrces.

The ragulatory kimits specify that:
- at least 50 per cent of Tier 1 Capital must be ‘Corg’ Tier 1;

— the amount of innoviate Tier 1 cannot exceed 15 per cent of
overall Tier 1 Capital;

~ qualifying Tier 2 Capital cannot exceed Tier 1 Capital; anc

- qualifying dated subordinated loan capital may not exceed 50
per cent of Tier 1 Capital,

There are also limitations on the amount of collectively assessed
impairmant provisions which may be included as part of Tier 2
Capital.



The principal forms of capital are included in the following
balances on the consolidated balance sheet: called up share
capital, share premium account, other reserves, retained
eamings and other borrowed funds,

In July 2008 HBOS raised £4.0bn {net) of capital through a rights
issue. Subsequent to the year end a further £11.3bn (net) of
capital was raised. This comprised of £8.3bn of ordinary shares
raised through a Placing and Open Offer exercise supported

by the UK Government and £3.0bn of preference shares
subscribed to HM Treasury.

The latter capitat raising exercise was made in support of the
Proposed Government Funding initiative devised to stabilise the
UK banking system and was conditional on the completion of
the acquisition of HBOS by Lloyds TSB Group plc.

(End of information that forms an integral part of the audited
financial statements),

Capital Requirements

The FSA requires each bank and banking group to maintain
adequate capital resources to meet their total capital
recuirements (Pillar 1 and Pillar 2) under the Basel il Framework.
This includes any additionat capital requirements identified
through the firm's or group's Individual Capital Guidance.

The FSA supervises HBOS on a regulatory consolidated basis
and as such receives information on the capital adequacy of,
and sets capital requirements for, HBOS as a whole. A similar
function is performed at sub-group levels within the business,
including at Bank of Scotland Group level.

Individual banking and insurance subsidiaries are directly
regulated Dy sither the FSA or their local supervisors, who set
their capital adequacy reguirements. This includes supervision
on & 'solo consolidation’ basis.

HBOS must at all times monitor and demonstrate compliance
with the relevant regulatory capital requirements of the FSA.
The Group has in place, extensive processes and controls to
monitor the Group's capital adequacy and freguent reporting of
the Group's capital position and associated data and analysis
is mads to the FSA under the Integrated Regulatery Reporting
Regime.

Capital Structure

- Tier 1 Gapital comprises shareholders’ funds, innovative Tier
1 securities and minority interests, after adjusting for items
reflected in shareholders’ funds which are treated differently
for the purposes of capital adequacy. The book values of
goodwill and intangible assets are deducted in arriving at the
Tier 1 Capital position.

~ Tier 2 Capital comprises gualifying subordinated loan capital,
certain collectively assessed impairment provisions, and
unrealised gains arising on the fair valuation of equities held as
available for sale.
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In addition the excess of Expected Loss over and above any
accounting impairment provisions made is deducted 50% from
Tiar 1 Capital and 50% from Tier 2 Capital. Other regulatory
deductions made on a similar basis relate to securitisation
positions held and material holdings.

From the total of Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital the carrying amounts
of unconsolidated investments (including holdings in Insurance
operations), investrnents in the ¢apital of other barks, and
cartain requlatory items are deducted.

Movements in Tier 1 Capital and the capital structure of the
Group are given on page 136,

Pillar 2 Capital Requirements

In order to satisfy the requirements of Piflar 2, HBOS is required
to perform an Intarnal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(iCAAP).

The HBOS ICAAR is based upon a 'Pillar 1 Plus' approach
whereby the ‘Pillar 1* regulatory capital requirements for Credit
Risk, Cperational Risk and Market Risk {Trading Book) are
supplemented by consistent assessments of the key risks not
capturad under Pilllar 1, of which the most material are Pension
Obligation Risk and Concentraticn Risk.

The individual risk assessments are aggregated with no
allowance for inter-risk diversification, generating a total intarnat
capital assessment which is incrementally greater than the
total Pillar 1 amount. The total minimum regulatory capital
requirement is set by the FSA taking into account this internal
assessment. A strong capitai buffer, defined as the amount

by which the total capital resources exceed the total capital
requirement, is held.

The current capital planning forecasts show a satisfactory
capital buffer even in a detericrating economic scenario,
significantly bolstered by the post year end capital injection,

Pillar 3 Disclosures

The HBOS plc Basel It Fillar 3 Disclosures for the year ended
31 December 2008 will be published online during the second
Quarter of 2009.

These disclosures will represent the first full set of Pilar 3
disclosures to be published by HBOS under the Basel |l
Framework,

The purpaose of Pillar 3 is 1o communicate the firm's risk
management practices, its approach to capital management,
its capital resources and Pillar 1 capital requirements and to
provide a detailed analysis of its cradit risk exposures.

Pillar 3 disclosures bulld on a number of equivalent disclosures
made within the Annuaf Report and Accounts, providing greater
detalf and analysis,
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Directors’ Report

The Direclors present the Annual Report and Accounts to the
members of HBOS plc in respect of the HBOS Group (the
Group) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Principal Activities

HBOS pic is the holding company of the Group. The principal
activities of tha Group are the provision of banking and cther
financial services through branches and offices in the UK and
overseas. A list of the main subsidiary undertakings, and the
nature of each company's business, is given in Note 22 on
pages 82 and 83,

On 21 July 2008 the Company confirmed that it had raised
£4.0bn through a fully underwritten rights issue which offered
2 new ordinary shares for every 5 existing ordinary shares at
275 pence per share.

On 13 October 2008, BBOS announced a Placing and Open
Offer to raise £11.5bn of new capital (consisting of £8.5bn in
ordinary shares and £3.0bn in preferenca shares) as part of a
co-ordinated package of capital and funding measures for the
panking sector implamented by HM Treasury. The capital raising
was made available 1o HBOS on condition that the acquisition
by Lioyds TSB Group ple (now Lioyds Banking Group pic)
completed. COn 16 January 2009 the entire issued share capital
of HBOS was acquired by Lloyds Banking Group plc, pursuant
to a Scheme of Arrangement under sections 895 o 899 of the
Companies Act 2006.

On 18 December 2008, the Company sold its St. Andrews and
BankWast businesses to the Commorwealth Bank of Australia.

Business Review

The Companies Act 2006 requires ihe Diractors’ Report to
include a Business Review of the Group giving a fair review of -
the business of the Group and a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faging it.

Tre Group's development and performance during the year,
position at the year end and fikely future prospacts are reviewad
in the Divisional Reviews on pages 7 to 12, the Introduction on
page 2, the Risk Management report on pages 13 to 33 with
financial aspects covered in the Financial Review on pages 3

to 6. The information in each of these sections and in the rest
of this Directors® Repart, which fulfils the requirements of the
Business Reviaw, is incorporated into this Directors’ Report by
reference.

The Annual Repart and Accounts, including this Directors’
Raport, have been prepared solely for the Company's members
as a body. To the extent permitted by law, the Compary, its
Directors, employeas, agents and advisers disclaim liability

to any other persons in respect of information contained in

the Annual Report and Accounts. By their nature, statements
containing risks and uncertainties facing the HBOS Group,

and any other forward-looking staternents, involve uncertainty,
since future events and circumstances can cause results

and developments to differ materially from those anticipated.
The forward-looking statements reflect the knowledge and
information available at the date of preparation of the Annual
Report and Accounts and the Company undertakes no
obligation to update these forward-loaking statements. Nothing
in the Annuat Repott and Accounts shall be consirued as a
profit forecast,

Results and Dividends :

The Group's loes attributable to shareholders for the year
ended 31 Decernber 2008, as shown in the Consolidated
Income Statemant, was £(7.499)m (2007 £4,045m profit). A
Capitalisation amount totaling £320m, equivalent to 6.07 pence
per existing ordinary share, was allocated on G October 2008 af
an issue price of 232 pence per new share (being the value per
share impiied by the then terms of the proposed acquisitionof
HBOS by Lloyds Banking Group pic); this resutted in the issue of
137,482,576 ordinary shares, equating to 1 new share for every
38.2207578 existing ordinary shares held. No final dividend is
being proposed for the year.

Going Concern

As set out in the "Principles Underlying Going Concem
Assumpticn' of the Basis of Preparation section of the Notes

io the Accounts, the Directors are satisfied that the Group has
adequate resources 1o continue in business for the foreseeable
future and consequently the going concern basis continues to
be appropriate in preparing the accounts.

Directors

The Directors in office at the date of this report are W C G
Berngt®, Sir Victor Blank®, E Brown®, J E Daniels®, J Dawsan,
P A Gore-Randall, J P du Plessis®, # N Green*, Sir Juliar
Horn-Smitke, A G Kane", Lord Leiteh®, Sir David Manning”, C J
McCall*, M A Scicluna*, G T Tate, T J W Tookey*, D J Watking
and H A Weir.

C W Dunstons stood down as a Non-axacutive Director at

the Armual General Meeting (AGM) on 28 April 2008. P J
Cummings, M H Ellis and C Matthew served as Executive
Directors, A H Hornby as Chief Executive, Lord Stevenson as
Chalrman and Sir Ron Garrick as Deputy Chairman/Senior
Independent Diractor, throughout the year and all resigned from
the Board on 16 January 2009, R J Cousing, A J Hobson, KE
D Jones, J E Mack, C L McConville and K A Nealon served as
Non-executive Directors throughout the year and resigned from
the Board on 16 January 2009.

* appointed 18 January 2009.



The powers of the Directors, along with provisions relating to
their appointment and replacement, are set out in the Articles of
Assoclation and governad by UK company law. Any alteration to
the Articles of Association must be approved by shareholders,
The specific authorities delegated to Executive Directors during
the year were set out in a detalled Board Contro! Manual.

The Company provides directors’ and officers’ liability
Insurance, giving appropriate cover for legal action brought
against its Directors, and has also agreed 1o indemnify Directors
in circumstances where thay are not considered to be culpable.
The indeminity, which is a qualifying third party indemnity
provision for the purpose of the Companies Act, is for the
benefit of alt of the Company’s current Directors.

Directors' share interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors and their immediate
families in the ordinary shares of HBOS plc at 31 December
2008 are set cut below:

r Number of Shares Number of Shme-s\
at 31.12.08 at 31.12.07

Chairman
Dennis Stevenson 584,550 406,892
Executive Directors
Pater Cummings 274,632 131,407
Jo Dawson 259,846 105,654
Mike Ellis 544,454 350,545
Philip Gore-Randai 15,31 -
Andy Hornby 1,037175 808,031
Colin Matthew 627,619 361,844
Dan Watkins 114,356 63,251

Non-executive Dirgctors

Aichard Cousins 8,107 5,644

Sir Ron Garrick 49,544 33,002
Anthony Hebson 10,774 7.500
Karen Jones 15,693 10,255
John E Mack 14,366 8,000
Coline McCanville 15,672 10,910
LKate Nealon 21,374 12.879)
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Corporate Governance

The Board held 17 meetings during the year at which the most
impartant decisions affecting the Company were taken. The
Board also oversaw the Company’s performance and set the
framework for how authority and accountability was delegated
throughout the Group.

The Board included, throughout the year, a balance of Executive
Directors who managed the business on a day-to-day basis and
independent Non-executive Directors. The roles of Chalrman
and Chief Executive were separate.

The Board was also supported by a structure of committees
which included an Audit Committee (itself supported by a
structure of Divisionai Risk Control Committaes), a Nomination
Committes and a Remuneration Committee. Membaership of
each of the three main committeas during 2008 was as below:

rAL.rcm Nomination Remuneration

A J Hobson {chair) Sir Ron Garrick (chain K E D Jones {chair
C L MeConville R J Cousins R J Cousins

J E Mack A H Hornby Sir Ron Garrick

K A Nealon K E D Jones C L McConville
John Crmerod™ C L McConvile

\(resignad 25.07.2008) Lord Stevenson )

** John Grmerod was neither an HBOS Director nor an employee of the Group.

Corporate Responsibility

The approach of HBOS to Corporate Responsibility (CR)

has focused an best serving the diverse interests of key
stakeholders, whose views and concerns informed strategy.
HBOS has worked to integrate CR into its overarching
management framework with the Board reviewing CR strategy
and performance annually,

Customers

HBOS aims to provide customers with value for money progucts
supported by simple customer communications, for example
clear summary boxes on product statements.

Colleagues

Againist a background of unprecedented financial turmceil in
global markets, a focus on strong leacarship at all levels has
never been more important. HBOS-LJ, the corporate university,
was extended 1o all leaders during 2008. In the second half of
2008 HBOS-U focused on performance, change, leadership
and managing ambiguity.
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Directors’ Report

continued

4 )
2008
Number of colleagues participating in devetoprment
through HBOS-U in 2008 15,000
Percentage of participants whe valued the devalopment
received through HBOS-U 96"/)

The Group's Total Reward strategy seeks to align colleagus
reward with persanal, Divisional and Group performance. A
number of employee share schemes cperated throughout the
year, Further detalls of these plans are set outin Note 40 to the
Financial Statements on page 108.

During the year HBOS used a mutti-media approach when
communicating with colleagues throughout the Group. This
included e-mall, electronic and printed magazines, intranets,
business television and face-to-face cammunication. A Group-
wide electronic magazine, entitied HBOS Today, was used

to update colleagues on key business news. It was issued as
required (rather than on a set pubiishing cycle). In 2008 37
issuas were published. Topical news stories were also placed
on the Company’s intranet site.

The views of HBOS celleagues were sought on a regular basis,
most notably through opinion surveys conducted by MOR! and
through regular consultation with the recognised trade unions
ACCORD and Linite, with whom the Company has entered into
a partnership agreement.

HBOS is recognised by Jobcentre Plus as a ‘two-tick” employer,
actively seeking applications for empioyment from disabled
people and guaranteeing &n interview where disabled applicants
meet the essential criteria for the role being apphed for. In the
event of an existing colleagus becoming disabled, HBOS works
with external specialists to ensure ihat all possible reasonable
adjustments are made to aliow the colleague to continue in

thair existing roie. If, after making all possitile adjustments, a
colleague is not able to continue in thelr current role, HBOS

will look at suitable alternative roles within the Group and
provide retraining accordingly. Training ana career development
opportunities are apen to ali colleagues including disabled
colleagues and Group policies are designed with inclusion of
disabled colleagues in mind.

Stakeholder engagement

in discharging their duties, the Directors have had regard to
the Interasts of key stakeholders as well as 1o any other factors
likely to impact on the success of the Company. Consideration
of these matters is fully integrated within the Board's decision
making processes. '

In 2008 HBOS launched a new Supplier Risk Management
Framework to improve consistency in the way CR risks and
issues were managed in the supply chain, The Framework
significantly improved governance in the supply chain. HBOS
has continued to maintain contact with key consumer groups
including Which?, Citizens Advice and the Financial Services
Consumer Panel,

The Group spends approximately £2.4bn per annum with
external suppliers (excluding rents and rates), HBOS recognises
the importance of suppliers as stakeholders in its business
and the importance of ensuring that it builds effective,
competitive relationships that add value for its customers and
shareholders. A dedicated Procuremant function operated
within the HBOS Group throughout the year and ca-ordinated
contract negotiations, management of these key relationships,
setting policy and ensuring that appropriate risk management
processes were put in place in respect of contracts above
certain financial thresholds.

Payment Palicy
For the forthcoming period the Group's policy for the payment of
suppliers will e as follows:

- Payment terms will be agreed at the start of the relationship
with the supplier and will only be changed by agreement;

- Standard payment terms to suppliers of goods and services
wiil be 30 days from the date of & correct invoice that has
been received for satisfactory goods or services which have
been ordered and received unless other terms are agreed in
a contract;

- Payment will be made in accordance with the agreed terms or
in accordance with the law if no agreement has been made;
and

- Suppliers will be advised without delay when an Invoice is
contested and disputes will be settled as quickly as possible.



The Company complies with the Better Payment Practice
Code. Information regarding this Code and its purpose can be
cbtained from the Better Payment Practice Group’s website at
www.payontime.co.uk.

The Company’s main trading subsidiary undertaking, Bank of
Scotland plc, had trade creditors outstanding at 31 December
2008 representing 19 days of purchases. The Company owed
no amounts to trade creditors at 31 December 2008.

Community, Charitable Donations and Environment

As part of its community investment strategy, during the year,
the Groun made charitable donations in the UK of £9.5m. The
majority of donations were made to the HBOS Foundation,
which provides granis to charities to fund initiatives primarity
relating 1o financial fteracy and money advice. in addition, ai
funds raised by colteagues, customers and shareholders for the
Millish £ Challenge were matched by the HBOS Foundation and
went to CLIC Sargent, Age Concern and Diabetes UK. Further
to this, a total of £1.1m has been made available to charities as
aresult of their affinity 10 the Visa Charity credit cards offersd

by the Group. The affinity cards are offered in partnership with
specific charities such as Cancer Research UK, the NSPCC and
the SSPCA.

In 2008, HBOS launched a new strategy to control use of paper,
including increasing the use of 100% recycled paper, reducing
the averall use of paper and increasing recycling. During 2008
100% recycled paper was introduced for office paper, business
cards and complimeants slips.

4 )

2008 2007

UK CO2 gmissions {tonnes) 55,272 53,577
Water use (m3} 540,000 531,477
Total waste {tonnes} 19,306 17,944
@ waste recycled 55.3% 51.5%

* n 2008 DEFRA. intraduced changes o the conversion factors used
to calculate CO2 emissions from renswable energy consumption and
travel. HBOS purchased 100% renewable electricity for the antire LK
estate in 2008. The total CO2 emissions reported above have been
calculated using the old conversion factors to provide a more accurate
like for like comparison, Using the new guidelines, the total emissions
for 2008 would increase to 231,415 tonnes. in 2008, a priority for

the Lloyds Banking Group will be to baseling environmental impacts
across the combined Group.
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Political Donations

It is HBOS policy not to make donations to political parties or
incur political expenditure and the Company made no paolitical
donations in the year. However the law in this area Is extremely
broad in scope and could potentially capture legitimate
business activities not in the ordinary sense considered to be
political donations or political expenditure. To avoid inadvertent
infringement, at its 2008 AGM the Board obtained shareholders’
approval for the Company to make donations to EU Political
Organisations and/or to incur EU Political Expenditure up to
defined limits.

Share Capital

Details of the structure of the Company's share capital as at the
year end, as well as movements in the authorised and issued
share capital during the year, are provided in Note 39 to the
Financlal Statements on page 107.

For the purposes of the Companias Act 20086, as at 31
December 2008 the Company had issued ordinary and
preference share capital of £1,952m, comprising £1,352m
(69%) In ordinary sharss and £600m (31%) in preference
shares (for the purposes of this calculation, the nominal value

of certain preference shares denominated in US dollars has
been translated at the exchange rate prevailing on 31 Dacember
2008). Holders of ordinary shares enjoy the rights accorded

fo them under UK company law including the right to receive
the Company's Annual Report and Accounts, to attend and
speak at general mestings, to appoint proxies and to exercise
voting rights. Holders of preference shares have lirmited voting
rights and in general may only vote on a variation of class rights,
on a resolution to wind up the Company or in the event of the
preference dividend being unpaid. Further datails regarding the
rights and obligations attaching to share classes are contained
in the Articles of Asscciation.

At 31 December 2008 there were no restrictions on the transfer
of shares; prior approval was not reguired from the Company
nor from other holders for such a transfer. No limitations were
placed on the holding of shares and no class of shares carried
special rights with regard to the control of the Company. No
rastrictions were placed on voting rights other than as outlined
above with respect to preference shargs. At 31 December
2008 the Company was not aware of any agreements betwean
shareholders that may restrict the transfer of shares or exercise
of voting rights.
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Directors’ Report

continued

< Number of Parcentage of tasued Nature Sh
Disclosable Interests Shares Share Capital Haolding
224,431,407 415% Direct
Legal & General Group pic and/or its subsidiaries 25,274,214 0.47% Indirect
53,078,621 0.98% Direct
QXA SA 596,217,137 11.03% Indirect
Disclosable Interests Properties

As at 31 December 2008 thers was a disclosable interest in
the voting rights of the Company. as nofified to the Company
in accordance with Chapter & of the LK Listing Authority's
Disclosura & Transparency Pulgs, as shown in the table above.
Other than as shown, the Company was not aware of any
ordinary sharsholder with an interest of 3% or more inthe
issued shara capital of the Company at 31 December 2008.

Significant Agreements

The Placing and Open Offer to raise £11.5bn of new capital
{consisting of £8.5bn in ordinary shares and £3.0bnin
preference shares) as part of a co-ordinated package of capital
and funding measures for the banking sector implemented by
HM Treasury was made available to HBOS an condition that
the acquisition by Lioyds Banking Group ple completed. Other
than this. in terms of the Companies Act 2006, the Company
had not, as at 31 December 2008, identified any significant
agreements that would take effect, alter or terminate on &
change of control of the Company. Throughout the year the
Company was & party to certain nen-material agreements
{including, for example, joint venture agreements and trust
deeds relating to certain employee share plans) that did contain
changs of control provisions in the event of the takecver of the
ultimate parent company but these were not considersd 10 be
significant on an individual basis.

The Directors are of the opinicn that the current market value
of the Group's properties is not significantly different from the
amount at which they are included in the balance shest.

Auditors

A rasoiution to appoint PricewaternouseCoopers LLP as
auditars of the Comparny In the place of the outgoing auditors
will be put to the 2009 AGM.

The Directors whao held office at the date of approvai of th'is
Directors' Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware:

- there is no relevant audit information (as defined by
section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1885) of which the
Company’s Auditors are unaware; and

- each Director has taken all the steps that they cught to
have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are awara of that information.

On behalf of the Board
H E Baines !
Company Secret% — —— )

26 February 2009
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Group and parent Company financial staterments in
accordance with applicable law.

Campany law requires the Directors to prepare Group &nd
parent Company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they are required to prepare the Group financial
staterments in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and applicable law
and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial
statements on the same basis.

The Group and parent Company financiat statements are
required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present
fairly the financial pasition of the Group and the parent Company
and the performance for that period; the Companies Act 1985
provides in relation to such financial statements that references
ir the relavant part of that Act to financial statemants giving

a true and fair view are references to their achieving & fair
presentation,

In preparing each of the Group and parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

- select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

- state whether they have been prepared in accerdance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
parent Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent Company and enable them 1o
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 1985. They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable faw, the Directors are also responsibie for
preparing a Directors' Report that complies with that law.

The Directors are responsibie for the maintenance and

integrity of the corperate and financial information inciuded on
the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
frorn legistation ir other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of HBOS plc

We have audited the Consolidated and Parent Company
financial statements (the ‘financial statements') of HBOS plic
for the year ended 31 December 2008 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Statements of Recognised Income and Expense,
and the related notes. These financlai staternents have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out thergin.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a
bady, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s membears those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fuliest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company'’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report,
Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU are set cut in the
Statement of Diractors’ Responsibilities on page 39.

QOur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory regquirements and
Internationat Standards on Auditing {UK and freland).

Wa report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accardance with
the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the |1AS Regulation, We also report

to you whether in our opinion, the information given in the
Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements. The
information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific
information presented in the Annual Repoert that is cross referred
from the Business Review sectian of the Directors' Report,

In addition we report to you if, in our opinian, the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for cur audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual
Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
financial statements. We consider the implications for our
report if we become awars of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financlal statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includas examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial staternents. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors

in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are apprapriate to the Group's and
Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to.obtain ali the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error.

In forming our opinion we alsc evaluated the overall adequagy of
the presentation of information in the financlal statements,

Opinion
In our opinion;

- the Consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state
of the Group's affairs as at 31 Decermber 2008 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

~ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation;

- the Parent Company financial statements give a true and
fair viaw, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, of the state of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31
December 2008;

— the Parent Company financial staternents have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1885 ; and

- the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent
with the financial statements.

Wem . Aa—PLe

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Edinburgh

26 February 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £m £m
Interest income 37,411 35012
interest expense {29,240) . (27.708)
Net interest income 1 8,171 7304
Fees and commission income 2,305 2,378
Fees and commission expenseg (1,178) (1,118}
Net earned premiums on insurance contracts 5 5,344 5,616
Net trading (expense)/income 2 {2,878) 178
Change in value of in-force long term assurance business {300) 16
Net investment (expensel/income related to insurance and investment business (9,524) 4,813
Other operating income 1,672 2,304
Net operating income 3 3,612 21,29
Change in investrment contract liabilities 6 12,816 {2,538}
Net claims incurred on insurance contracts 5 (3,703) {2,952)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities {3,863) (2,244)
Change in unallocated surplus 32 942 50
Administrative expenses 7 {5,114) (4.979)
Depreciation and amortisation:
intangible assets other than goodwill 23 (209) {193)
Property and equipment 24 {221) (224)
COperating lease assets 26 {1,178) (985)
{1,608) {1,402)
Goodwill impairment 23 {158) (5)
Operating expenses {688) (14,070)
Impairment losses on loans and advances 12 {a} {9,857) 2.012)
lmpairment losses on investment securities 12 (b} (2,193) {(80)
Operating {loss)/profit {9,126) 5,149
Share of {loss)/profit of jointly controlied entities 21 (669) 234
Share of loss of associates 21 {287)
{Loss)/profit on sale of businesses 4 {743) 21
(Loss)/profit before taxation 1 (10,825) 5,474
Tax on {loss)/profit 13 3,409 (1,365)
(Loss)/profit after taxation {7,418) 4,109
Profit of subsidiary acquired with a view to resale 4
{Loss)/profit for the year {7,416} 4,113
Attributable to:
Parent company shareholders {7,499) 4,045
Minority interests 83 88
{7,416) 4113
Earnings per crdinary share 14 {Restated)
- Basic (167.8)p 103.4p
- Dituted (167.8)p 102.8p
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Nates £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 53 2,502 2,945
ltems in course of collection 445 o045
Financial assets held for trading 16 22,571 54,681
Derivative assets 17 51,810 14,141
Loans and advances 1o banks 17,8645 7683
Loans and advanges to customers 18 435,223 430,007
Investment securities 20 133,372 127,659
interests in jeintly controlled entities ' 21 938 1,351
interests in associates 21 223 373
Geodwill and other intangible assets - 23 2,375 2,780
Property and equipment 24 1,433 1,494
Investment properties 25 3,045 473
Operating lease assets 26 3,967 4,643
Deferred costs 27 1,181 1,101
Retirement benefit asset 33 629
Value of in-force long term assurance business 28 . 2,892 3,184
Other assets 29 4,851 7,468
Current tax assets 983
Deferred tax assets 34 2,556 70
Prepayments and accrued income 1,176 1,751
Total Assets 689,917 667,017
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 97,150 41,513
Custormer accounts 222,251 243,221
Financial liabilitles held for trading 16 18,851 22,705
Derivative liabilities 17 38,905 1231
Notes in circulation 957 881
Insurance contract liabilities a0 30,7112 26,864
Investment contract abilities 31 39,482 52,828
Unallocated surplus 32 551 1,493
Retirement benefit liabilities 33 152 347
Current tax liabilities 58 370
Deferred tax liakitities 34 2927 2,800
Other liabiities 35 5,109 5072
Accruals and deferred ingome 3,099 3,630
Provisions 36 347 175
Debt securities in issue ar 188,448 206,520
Other borrowed funds a8 30,119 24,253

Total Liabilities 676,418 544,783
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2008 2007
Notes £im £m

Shareholders' Equity
Issued share capital 39 1,550 1,131
Share premium 41 6,709 2997
QOther reserves . Ly {5,616} 154
Retained gamings 41 9,556 17,567
Shareholders’ Equity (excfuding minority interests) 12,199 21,849
Minority interests 41 1,300 385
Total Shareholders’ Equity 41 13,499 22,234
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 689,917 667,017

Approved by the Board on 26 February 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Jo Dawson Philip Gore-Randall Tim Tookey Dan Watkins
Director Diractar j Director

V’@’W PA Gree Rkt
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Consolidated Statement of
Recognised Income and Expense
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
£m £m
Net actuarial gains from defined benefit plans {net of tax) 568 12
Foreign exchange translation 1a7 2
Available for sale investments:
Net change in fair value {net of tax) {5,897) {333)
Net gains transferred to the income statement (net of tax} (17) (201)
Impairmeant recognised In income statament (net of tax) 915 17
Cash flow hedges:
Etfactive portion of changes in fair value taken to equity {net of tax) {2,802) (218)
Net losses/(gains) transterred 1o the income statement (net of tax) 1,844 (292)
Net expense recognised directly in equity (5,202) (711}
{Loss)/profit for the year (7,416) 4113
Total recognised income and expense (12,618) 3,402
Attributable to:
Parent company shareholders (12,701} 3,334
Mincrity interests - B3 68
{12,618) 3,402
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2003
2008 2007
Notes £Em £m
{Lossy/profit before taxation {10,825) 5,474
Adiustments for:
Impairment losses on loans and advances 9,857 2,02
Impairment losses on investment securities 2,193 60
impairment losses on property under construction 10
Degreciation and amartisation 1,608 1,402
Goodwill impairment 158 5]
Interest on cther borrowed funds 1,579 1,229
Pension charge for defined benefit schames 171 146
Cash contribution tc defined benefit schemeas {225) (295}
Exchange differences” 1,311 {769}
Maovement in derivatives bield for trading 1,193 {1,487}
Cther non-cash items 4,276 45
Net change in operating assets {14,265} {(78,714)
Net change in operating liabilities 7,468 68,470
Net cash fiows from operating activities before tax 4,509 (2.422)
Income taxes paid (797) (895)
Cash flows from operating activities 3,712 {3,317)
Cash flows from investing activities 863 (289)
Cash flows from financing activities 1,343 298
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and ¢ash equivalents 5,918 (3,308).
Opening cash and cash equivalents 6,185 9,493
Closing cash and cash equivalents 33 12,103 6,185

4] Adustrment to bring changes between cpening and closing balance sheet amounts 10 average rates. This is not done on a fine-by-lne hasis, as details cannot be

determined without unreasonable expense.
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2008 2007
£m £m
Sale of other intangible assets 409 31
Purchase of other intangible assets {306) (249}
Sate of property and equipment 185 182
Purchase of property and equipment {410) {(307)
Purchase of investment properties {129)
Sale of investrnent properties 398 58
Irvestrnent in subsidiaries (41
Qisposal of subsidiaries 1,110 115
Investment in jointly controlled entities and associates (489) {396)
Disposal of jointly controlled entities and associates 75 176
Dividends received from jointly controlled entities 12 132
Dividends received from associates 8 10
Cash flows from investing activities 863 (289)
Financing Activities
2008 2007
£m £m
Issue of ordinary shares 4,131 148
Issue of equity preference shares to minority shargholders 750
Share capital buyback (500)
Purchase of own shares {189) {212)
Disposal of own shares 101 35
Issue of other borrowed funds 2,285 4,742
Repayments of other borrowed funds (3,021} {928)
Interest on other borrewed funds relating to the servicing of finance {1,505) (1,199
Minority irterest acquired 242
Repayment of capital 1o minotity interests (110)
Equity dividends paid (1,286) (1,747)
Bividends paid to minority shareholders in subsidiaries {55) (39}
Cash flows from financing activities 1,343 298
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Company Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £m £m
Assets
Amounts owed by Group entities 22 50,157 38,885
Derivative assets 17 2,638 162
investment securities 20 1
Intangible assets 23 4 8
Retirernant benefit asset 33 629
Other assels 28 185 395
Deferred tax assets 34 a5
Prepayments and ascrued income 171
Investments in subsidiaries 22 15,783 14,475
Total Assets 69,567 54,009
Liabilities :
Amounts owed to Group entities 36,450 29,267
Derivative liabilities 17 55 58
Retirament benefit liabilities 33 104 360
Deferred tax kabilities 34 161
Other tabilities 35 296 204
-Accruals and deferred incorme 100 68
Other borrowed funds 38 22,235 158,503
Tota! Liabilities 58,401 45,458
Shareholders’ Equity
lssued share capital 39 1,550 1131
Share premium 4 6,709 2,997
Other raserves 4 67 62
Ratained earnings M 1,840 4,354
Total Bhareholders’ Equity Lyl 10,166 8,551
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 69,567 54,009
Approved by the Board on 26 February 2009 and signed on its behalf Dy
Jo Dawson Philip Gore-Randall Tim Tookey Dan Watkins
Director Director Dir Director
CA G Ko
Company Statement of
Recognised Income and Expense
For the year ended 31 December 2008
2008 2007
Notes £m £m
Met actuarial gain from defined benefit plans (net of tax) 593 261
Net income recognised directly in equity 593 261
(Loss)/profit after taxation 15 {1,902} 1,731
Total recognised income and expense {1,309} 1992
Attributable to:
Parent company sharehalders {1,309) 1,992
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £m £m
{Loss}/Profit before taxation {1,949} 1682
Adjustments for:
Impairment losses on investment in subsidiaries 4,192
Dividends received (2,374) (2,013}
Interast o other borrowed funds 1,068 776
Pension charge for defined benefit schemes {20} (n
Cash contribution to defined bensfit schemes (105}
Other non-cash items (19) 9
Net change in operating assets {7,551) (728}
Net change in operating liabllities 8,814 4.309
Net cash flows from operating activities before tax 2,161 3.889
income taxes received 245 29
Cash flows from operating activities 2,406 3918
Cash flows from investing activities (5,581) {3.832)
Cash flows from financing activities 3,868 (169}
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 693 (83)
Cpening ¢ash and cash equivalents 1177 1,260
Closing cash and cash equivalents 53 1,870 1477
Investing Activities
2008 2007
Em £m
Investrment in subsidiaries (5,500) {2,480)
Advances to Group entities {2,455} (3,365)
Dividends recaived 2,374 2013
Cash flows from investing activities {5,581) {3,832}
Financing Activities
2008 2007
£m £m
Issue of shares 4,131 146
Ordinary share buyback including costs (500}
Issue of other borrowed funds 2,284 2,746
Repayment of ather borrowed funds (267}
Equity dividends paid (1,2886) (1,747)
Interest on other borrowed funds relating 1o servicing of finance (982) (752)
Purchase of own shares (12) {62)
Cash flows from financing activities 3,868 (169)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

Financial Statements

The financial statements of HBOS plc comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated and
Company Balance Shests, Cash Flow Statements and
Staterments of Recognised Income and Expense togather

with the related Notes o the Financial Statements. The notes
include information contained in the Risk Managerment section
of the Business Review on pages 13 to 33 that are cross-
referenced into the financial statements, Thess disclosures are
required under IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
relating to the managemant of capftat and IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’ refating to the nature of risks and their
managament. These disclosures form an integral part of the
financial statements and are prefaced as such on the respective
pages.

Statement of Compliance

The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
interpretations issued by the International Financiat Reparting
Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) as adopted by the European
Union. The standards applied by the Group and Company are
those endorsed by the Eurapean Union and effective at the date
the financial staternents are approved by the Board. However,
the Group has not utilised the carve-out provisions in respect

of fult fair value and portfolio hedging of core deposits in IAS

39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’

as adopted by the European Union and has impiernentad

the principles of IFRIC 12 Service Concassion Arrangements
alttiough this has an immaterial effect on the financial
staternents. Consequently, the financial statements comply with
International Financial Reperting Standards.

The financial statements also comply with the refevant
provisions of Part Vil of the Companies Act 1985, as amended
by the Companies Act 1985 {International Accounting
Standards and Other Accounting Amendments) Regulations
2004. Additionaily, the Group has appiied Financial Reparting
Standard 27 'Life Assurance’ issued by the UK Accounting
Standards Board as appropriate.

Basis of Preparation

a) Principles Underlying Golng Concern Assumption
During 2008, global financial markets expsrienced difficutt
conditions which have been characterised by a marked
reduction in fiquidity. As a conseguence of this, governments
and central banks carried out 2 series of actions to address the
lack of liquidity within their respective banking systems. In the
UK these actions have included the introcuction by the Bank

of England of liquidity support, through schemes (collactively
“Bank of England faciliies”) such as the extended Long-Term
Repo open market operations and the Special Liguidity Scheme
(SLS) whereby banks and building societies ¢an exchange
eligible securities for UK treasury bills; and the creation of

a credit guarantee scheme by HM Treasury, providing a
government guarantee for certain short and medium term
senior debt securities issued by eligible banks. During 2008 the
Group has made use of these measures in order to maintain
and improve a stable funding position.

in the context of this continued turbulence and uncertainty

in the financial markets, combined with a deteriorating

global economic outlook, the Group has also takan steps to
strengthen its capital positicn in order to provide a buffer against
further shocks arising fror the financial systems and to ensure
that it remaing competitive, On 15 January 2008, in conjunction
with the takeover of the Group by Lloyds TSB Group plc {Note
57}, the Group raised £11,345m (net after costs) in preference
and ordinary share capital (Note 39).

On 16 January 2009, foliowing completion of the acquisition of
the Group by Lloyds Banking Group plc, the Group became

a wholly owned subsidiary and became dependent upon the
ultimats parent and its banking subsidiaries for its capital,
liquidity and funding needs.

There is a risk despite the substantial measures taken so

far by governments, that further deterioration in the markets
could ocour. In addition the economic conditions in the UK

are deteriorating more quickly than previously anticipated
plaging further strain on the Llioyds Banking Group's capital
rasources. The key dependencies on successfully furiding the
Lloyds Banking Group's balance sheet include the continued
functioning of the money and capital markets at their current
levels; tha continued access of the Lioyds Banking Group to
central bank and Government sponsored liquidity facilities
including aceess o HM Treasury's credit guarantee scheme and
access to the Bank of Engiand’s various facilitles; fimited further
deterioration in the Lloyds Banking Group’s credit ratings; and
no significant or sudden withdrawai of deposits resulting in
increased rellance on moneay markets ar Government support
schemes.

Based upon projections prepared by Lloyds Banking Group
ple management which take into account the acquisition on

16 January 2008 of the Group (Note 57) and together with the
Lioyds Banking Group's current ability to fund in the market and
assumption that announced Govermnment sponsored schemes
will cantinue to be available, the Directors are satisfied that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue
in business for the foreseaable future, The Group has received
confirmation that it is the current intenticn of Lioyds Banking
Group ple to ensure that the Group's subsidiaries should have
at all times for the foreseeable future access o adeqguate
rasources to continue 1o trade and meet their liabilities as they
fall cue. Accordingly, the financial staternents of the Company
and the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have bean prepared under the
historical cost basls, except that the following assets and
liabilities which are stated at their fair valugs: derivatives,
financial instrurnents held for trading, financial instruments
designated st fair value through the incame statement, financial
instruments classified as available for sale and investment
properties. In addition insurance contracts, investment contracts
with discretionary participation features and value of in-force
long term assurance business included in the insurance and
investment business are prepared on the basis set cut in the
applicable accounting policy.

IFRS Applied in 2008
The following IFRS amendments have been applied in 2008;

Amendments to 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments:
Recagnition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’.

In view of the ongoing market dislocation and the dsterioration
of the world's financial markets, the Group transferrad certain
asset backed securities (ABS) and floating rate notes (FRNs)
from the *held for trading' classification to the ‘available for sale’
classification with effect from 1 July 2008 at their fair values

at that date. Subsequently, in Tight of increasing Higuidity in
the markets for ABS, the Group changed the classification of
ABS from ‘available for sale’ to loans and receivables’ with
effact frorm 1 November 2008. There have been no other
reclassifications in the year. Thereafter the recognition and
measurement principles of AS 39 are followed. Disclosure of
these reclassifications is given in Note 45.



The following IFRIC interpretations have been applied in 2008;

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 ‘Group and Treasury Share Transactions'.
IFRIC 11 provides guidance on accounting in the separate
financial statements of subsidiaries for transactions where a
parent grants rights {o its equity instruments directly to the
employees of subsidiaries and where the subsidiary grants to
its eamployees rights to the equity instruments of the parent. The
application of this interpretation has not affected the company
financial staterments as costs are recharged to the subsidiaries
on the basis prescribed in the interpretation.

IFRIC 14 ‘The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and thelr Interaction”.

This interpretation has been applied in full within these tinancial
statements. However, due to the financial rules of the Group's
defined benefit schemes, its application has not impacted upan
the Group's recognition or measurement of pension assets and
tiabilities under 1AS 19 'Employee Benefits', nor is it expected to
at future reporting dates.

The accounting policies below have been consistently applied
to all periods presented in these financial staterents. Certain
comparative emounts have been reclassified {0 conform to the
current year's presentation.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financiat statements include the results of
the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (and, where
appropriate, special purpose vehicles), fogether with the
Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

The financial statements of entities centrolled by the Group are
consolidated in the Group financial statements commencing
on the date control is chtained untit the date control ceases.
Contraol is defined as being where the Group has power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies

of such aentities so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently

are exercisable or convertible are taken into account, When
assessing whether or not a special purpose entity (SPE) that
has been sponsored by the Group should be consolidated

or not, the Group censiders the indicaters of control that are
included in the Standing Interpretations Committee {SIC)
tnterpretation 12 ‘Consolidation — Speciat Purpose Entities” and
if these are met the SPE is included in the consolidation.

Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) where the Group,
through the Group's life funds, has a controlling interest are
consolidated. The unit holders’ interest is reported in investment
contract liabilities.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses arg
eliminated on consolidation. ~

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Assets and
Liabilities

The Group recognises loans and advances to customers and
banks, deposits by banks, customer accounts, debt securities
in issue, other borrowed funds and other financial assets and
liabllittes upon originaticn.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the
right to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
the transterred financial asset that is created or retained by the
Group is recognised as a separate assat.
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The Group deracognises a financiat liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.

Derivatives

Derivatives are measured at fair value and initially recognised on
the date the contract is entered into. Where the fair value of a
derivative is positive, it is carried as a derivative asset and where
negative, as a derivative liability. The gain or loss from changes
in falr vatue is taken to net trading iIncome, except for interest
from derivatives used for economic hedging purposes that do
not qualify for hedge accounting treatment which is taken to nat
interast income, insurance and investment related derivatives
which are taken to net investment income related to insurance
and investment business or when cash flow hedge accounting
is employed.

Hedge accounting allows one financial instrument, generally

a derivative such as a swap, to be designated as a hedge of
ancther financial instrument such as a loan or depaosit or a
portfolio of the same, At inception of the hedge relationship
formal documentation is drawn up specifying the bedging
strategy. the component fransactions and the methodology that
will be used to measure effectiveness.

Monitoring of hedge effectiveness is undertaken continually.

A hedge is regarded as effective if the change in fair value or
cash flows of the hedge instrument and the hedged item are
negatively correlated within a range of 80% to 125%, either for
the period since effectiveness was last tested or cumulativety
since Inception.

The Group uses three hedge accounting methods:

Firstly, fair value hedge accounting offsets the change in the fair
value of the hedging instrument against the change in the fair
value of the hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged.
The hedged iterm is adjusted for the fair value of the risk being
hedged irrespective of its financial instrument classification.
These changes in fair value are recognised in the incoma
statement through net trading income. Adjustments mads to
the carrying amount of the hedged itern for fair value hedges are
amortised on an effective interest rate basis over the remaining
expected life in line with the presentation of the underlying
hedged item. If the hadge is highly effective the net impact on
the income statement is minimised.

Secondly, cash flow hedge accounting matches the cash

flows of hedged itemms against the corresponding cash flow of
the hedging derivative. The effective part of any gain or loss

on a hedging instrument is recognised directly in eguity in the
cash flow hedge reserve and the hedged item is accounted

for in accordance with the policy for that financial instrument.
Any ineffective portion of the hedging instrument's fair value is
recognised immediately in the income statement through net
trading income. The amount deferred in reservas remains until
the designated transaction occurs at which time it is released
and accounted far in the income statement in line with tha
treatment of the hedged itern, Where the hedge relationship
subsequently proves ineffective, or where the hedged item is
settled early or is terminated, the associated gains and losses
that were recegrised directly in reserves are reclassified to

the income statement through net trading income. Where the
hedging Instrument expires or is terminated before the forecast
transaction ccours, the associated gains and logses recognised
in reserves remain deferred untit the forecast transaction cccurs.

Thirdty, hedging of net investments in foreign operations is
discussed within the foreign currencies accounting policy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

A derivative may be embedded in another financial
instrument, known as the host contract. Where the economic
characteristics and risks of an embedded derivative are not
closely related to those of the host contract, the embadded
derivative is separated from the host and held separately on
tha balance sheet at fair value, except for those instruments
that have been designated at fair value through the income
statement, where the derivative is not separated from the host
instrument. Changes in fair value are taken to the income
statement through net trading income, and the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the policy for that class of
financia! instrument.

if quoted or market values are not available then derivative
fair vatues are determined using valuation techniques that
are consistent with techniques commonly used by market
participants to price these instruments. These technigues
include discounted cash flow analysis and other pricing
models. The fair values calculated from these models are
requiarly compared with prices cbtained in actual market
transactions to ensure reliability. In all material instances
these technigues use only observable market data.

Loans and Advances

Loans and advances hetd for trading principally consist of
reverse repurchase agreements, are carried at fair value and are
classified as financial assets held for trading. Gains, losses and
related income are takan to net trading income as they arise.

All other loans and advances are classified as loans and
recelvables. They are initially recognised at the draw

down date at the fair value on the commitment date plus
directly attributable incremental transaction costs. They are
subsequently carried at amartised cost using the effective
interest method less provision for impairment,

The fair value of joans and advances 16 customers is measured
at the commitrment date and calculated by discounting
anticipated cash flows, including intersst, at a current

market rate of interest. The fair value of floating rate loans

and advances and overnight deposits is cansidered by the
Group to be equai to the carrying value as these loans and
advances are accounted for at current interest rates and
credit risk is assessed in the impairment review. The fair value
of fixed interest bearing accounts is based on cash flows
discounted using current money markat interest rates for
debts with similar maturity and credit risk characteristics.

Loans and advances that are performing in accaordance
with the underlying contract are ciassified as neither past
due nor impaired. If a customer fails to make & paymant
that is contractually due, or if the loan is in excess of
tacility limit, the loan is classified as past due.

i subsequently all contractually due payments are made
or if the laan continues to operate within limit, the loan
reverts to its neither past due nor impaired status.

The Group assesses whather objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant and individually or collectively for assets that are

fiot significant. The estimation involved in these impalment
assessments is considered a critical accounting estimate.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired ingludes
significant difficulty of the customer, breach of coniract such as
interest or principal payments being missed, the loan being in
excess of fagility limit for a sustained period or the likelihood that
the borrower will enter bankruptcy.

Objective avidence may also arise from wider econamic and
financial market indicators including factors that pertain to a
particular industry sector or local economy.

The amount of any impalrment is calculated by comparing the
net present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the loan's original effective interest rate, with the carrying vaiue
of the loan. If impaired, the carrying vaiue is adjusted via the
provision and the additional provigion is charged to the income
statement.

The written down valua of the impaired loan is compoundad
back to the net realisable balance over time using the original
effective interest rate. This is reported through interast income
in the income statement and represents the unwinding of

the discount.

A write-off is made when it is not possible or economically
viable to collect all or part of a claim. Write-offs are offset against
the release of a previously established impairment provision or
directly through the income staternent.

Loans with no identified evidence of individual impairment are
subject to collective impairmant assessment. This is to quantify
impairment losses which exist at the balance shest date,

but which have not yet been individually identified. Collective
assessment is carried out for groups of agsets that share similar
risk characteristics. Collective impairment is assessed using a
methodology based on existing risk conditions or events that
have a strong correlation with a tendency to default,

Terms and conditions for past due or impaired loans and
advances may be renegotiated. When the renegetiated contract
becomes effective, the toan is subsequently classified as past
due, impalrad or neither past due nor impaired according o its
performance under tha renegotiated terms.

Loans and advances to customers include advances that

are subject to non-returnable finance arrangements following
securitisation of portfolios of mortgages and other advances,
The principal benefits of these advances are acquired by special
purpose securltisation entities that fund their purchase primarily
through the issue of debt securities in issue.

Syndications

Syndication activity is undertaken as part of the Group's risk
management strateqy specifically with the intarion of
transferring credit risk and ebtaining financing as distinct from
trading.

The Group considers that loan commitments and subsequent
draw down form one contract and the loan is therefore
recognised at the date of the draw down at the fair value as
measured at the commitment date plus directly attributable and
incremental transaction costs. Loans pending syndication are
classified as loans and receivables and derecognised upon sell
down when the risks and rewards are transferred to a third party.

Finance Leases and Operating Leases

Assets leased to customers that transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the custormer are
classified as finance leases. They are recorded at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease, less any provisions for
impairment, within loans and advances to cusiomers.

The difference between the gross receivable and the present
value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the pre-tax net investment methed, which reflects a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment.



All other assets leased to customers that do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as operating leases. These assets, less any provision for
impairment, are separately disclosed In the balance sheet and
are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Operating lease rentals are recognised in operating
incorme on a straight-line basis over the fease term. Finance and
operating lease assets are regulary reviewed for impairment.

Leases entered into by the Group as lessee are primarily
operating leases. Operating lease rentals payable are
recogrised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term unless a more systematic basis
is more appropriate,

Investment Securities

Investment securities held for trading are classified as financial
assets held for trading and are carried at fair value. Gains,
tosses and related income are taken o net trading income as
they arise. Investment securities designated at fair vatue through
the incorme staternent are carried at fair value, Gains, losses
and related income are taken to other operating income as

they arise, except for those refated to insurance and investment
business which are taken to net investment income related to
insurance and investment business.

Debt securities other than those held for trading or designated
at fair value and for which there is no active market at inception
are classified as loans and receivables. They are initiafly
recognised at fair value plus directly related incremental
transaction costs and are subsequently carried on the balance
sheet at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment.

All other investment securities are classified as availabie for

sale. They are initially recognised at fair value plus directly
retated incremental transaction costs and are subseguently
carried on the balance sheet at fair valua, Unrealised gains or
losses arise from changes in the fair values and are recognised
directly in equity in the available for sale reserve, except for
impairment josses ar foreign exchange gains or losses related
1o debt securities, which are recognised immediately in the
income statement in impairment on investment securities or
other operating income respectively. Income on debt securities
is recognised on an effective interest rate basis and taken to
interest income through the income statement. Income from
equity shares is credited to other operating income, with incoms
on listed equity shares being cradited on the ex-dividend date
and income on unlisted equity shares being credited on an
equivalent basis. On sale or maturity, previously unrealised gains
and lesses are recognised in other operating income,

Investment securities classified as avallable for sale are
continually reviewed at the specific investmant leve! for
impairment. impairment is recognised when there is objective
evidence that a specific financial asset is impaired. Objective
evidence of impairment might include a significant or prolonged
decline in market value below the criginal cost of a financial
asset and, in the case of debt securities, including those
reclassified as lcans and receivables, non-receipt of due
interest or principal repayment, a breach of covenant within the
security’s terms and conditions or a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows since their initial recognition.

Impairment losses on available for sale equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. Any increase in
the fair value of an avaiable for sale equity instrument after an
impairment loss has been recognised is treated as a revaluation
and recognised directly in equity.
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An impairment loss on an available for sale debt instrument is
reversed through the income staterment, if there is avidance that
the increase in fair value is due to an event that occurred after
the impairment loss was recognised.

The fair values of investment securities trading in active markets
are based on market prices or broker/dealer valuations, Where
quoted prices on instruments are not readily and regularly
available from a recognised broker, dealer or pricing service,

or available prices do not represent regular transactions in

the market, the fair valuss are estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar oredit, maturity and yield
characteristics or similar valuation models, Investment securities,
principally asset backed securities (ABS), not traded in an
aclive market are valued using valuation models that include
non-market observable inputs. These models use abserved
issuance prices in related asset classes, market correlations,
prepayment assumptions and external credit ratings. Additional
assessments are then made on possible deterloration in credit
risk for each individual security and on additional liquidity
considerations for particular asset classes.

The Group uses trade date accounting when recording the
purchase and sale of investment securities.

Jeintly Controlied Entities and Associates
Jointly controlled entities are entities over which the Group has
joint control under a contractual arrangement with other parties.

Associates are sntities over which the Group has significant
influence, but not control over the financial and operating
policies. Significant influgnce is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the entity but is not
control over those policies.

The venture capital exemption is taken for investrments where
significant or joint control is present and the investing area
operates as a venture capital business, These investments

are designated at fair value through the income statement.
Otherwise, the Group’s share of resulis of associates and
jointty controlled entities, generally based on audited accounts,
are included in the consolidated financial staternents using

the equity method of accounting. The share of any losses is
restricted 1o a level that reflects an cbligation te fund such
losses.

Goodwill

The excess of the cost of a business combination over the
interest in the net fair valug of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities at the date of acquisition of a business
is capitalised as goodwill. The goodwill is allocated to the cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the acquisitions concemed.

tn most cases, the cash-generating units represent the business
acquired,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill is allocated are subject to a semi-annual impairment
review at 31 March and 30 September and whenever there

is an indication that the unit may be impaired. This compares
the recoverable amount, being the higher of a cash-generating
units' fair value less costs to sell and its vaiue in use, with the
carrying value. When this indicates that the carrying value

of goodwill is not recoverable, it is irrevocabty written down
through the income statement by the amount of any impaired
less identified. Further details of the caiculation are given in the
critical accounting estimates and In Note 23.
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continued

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ has not been applied
retrospectively o business combinations that occurred befare 1
January 2004,

Software

Costs associated with the development of software for internal
use, subject to de minimis imits, are capitalised if the software
is technically feasible and the Group has both the intent and
sufficient resources to complete the devalopment. Costs are
only capitalised if the asset can be reliably measured and will
generate future economic bensfits to the Group either through
sale or use.

Only costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset into
working condition for its intended use are capitalised. These
costs include all directly attributable costs necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating

in a manner intended by management. Other development
expenditure is recognised in the income statement as an
expense as incurrad.

Capitalised development expenditure and purchased software
is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Onoe the software is ready for use, the capltalised
costs are amortised over their expected lives, generally four
years. Capitalised sofiware is assessed for impairment where
there is an Indication of impairment. Where impairment exists,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverabie
amount and the impairmant loss recognised in the income
staterment. Tha amortisation charge for the asset is then
adjusted to reflect the asset's revised carrying amount.

Subsequent expenditure is only capitalised when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates.

Purchased Value of In-Farce Investment Contracts

The Group's contractuat rights to benefits frorn providing
investment management services in relation to investment
contracts acquired in business combinations and pertiolio
transfers are measured at fair value at the time of acquisition.
The resulting asset is referred to as purchased value of in-force
investrnent contracts (PVIF) and is amortised over the estimatec
lives of the contracts on a systematic basis, At each reporting
date an assessment is made to determineg if there is any
indication of impairment. Where impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and
the impairment loss recognised in the income statement. The
amortigation charge is then adjusted to reflect the revised
carrying amount.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Freehold iand is not depraciated. Freshold and leasehoid
property, other than freehold investment properties, is stated at
cost and depreciated over fifty years or the length of the lease
term if shorter. Improvements to leasehold properties are stated
at cost and are depreciated in equal instalments over the lesser
of the remaining life of the lease or eight years. Premiums are
amortised over the pericd of the lease.

The cost of equipment, which includes fixtures and fittings,
vehicles and computer hardware, less estimated residual value,
is written off in equal instaiments over the expecied lives of the
assets, generally between three and eight years.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount, only when It is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item wil flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

Property and equipment is assessed for impairment where
there is an indication of impairment. Where impairment exists,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 1o its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss recognised in the income
staternent. The depreciation charge for the asset is then
adjusted to reflect the asset's ravised carrying amcunt,

Investment Properties

investment properties comprise freehold and leasehold
property that are held, sither to sarn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both. They are initially recognised at cost

and are fair valued annually. Renital incoma from investment
properties is recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of
the lease and any gains or losses ariging from a change in the
fair value are recognised in the income statement in the period
ihat they occur through other operating income, except for
those relating to insurance and investment business, which are
taken through net investment income related to insurance and
investment business.

Investments in Subsidiaries

investments In subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet. These comprise eguity investments in, and
capital contributions to subsidiary entities. These are carrigd

at cost less impairment provisions. At each reporting date an
assessment is underiaken to determine if thera is any indication
of impairment, This assessment can include reviewing faciors
such as the solventy, profitability and cash flows generated by
the subsidiary. i thers is an indication of impairment, an estimate
of the recoverable. amourt is made. If the carrying value exceeds
the recoverable amount then a provision for impairment is made
to reduce the carrying velue to the recoverable amount.

Disposal Group

Assets and lighilities of a disposal group are classified as held
for sale where the carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction as opposed te continuing use, This
applies where the assets and liabilities are available for sale

in their present condition, subject only to the terms that are
usual and customary for the sale of such assets and liabilities,
and whan a sale is highly probable and expacted to complete
within one year of being classified as a disposat group. Disposal
groups are meagured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell

Deposits by Banks and Customer Accounts

Deposits by banks and customar accounts held for trading are
classified as financial liabilities held for trading and are carried

at fair value. Gains, losses and reiated income are taken to net
trading income as they arise. All other custemer accounts and
deposits by banks are held at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The fair value of custormner deposits with no stated maturity date
is the armount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value
of fixad interest bearing deposits and other borrowings with

ne quoted market price is calculated using a cash flow model
discounted using interest rates for debts with similar maturities.

Repurchase Agreements ;

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements are retained
within the balance sheet where the Group retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership.



Funds received under these arrangements are included within
deposits by banks, customer accounts or financial fiabilities held
for trading. Conversely, securities acquired under commitments
to resell are not recognised in the balance sheet as debt
securities where substantially all the risks and rewards do not
pass to the Group. In this case, the purchase price is included
within loans and advances to banks, loans and advances to
customers, or financial assets held for trading. The difference
batween sale and repurchase prices for such transactions

is reflected in the income statement over the lives of the
transactions, within interest payable or interest receivable as
appropriate,

General Insurance Business

The Group underwrites general insurance products. For each
general insurance policy underwritten, premiums (net of refunds)
are credited 1o net earned premiums on insurance contracts
over the period of risk coverage of the insurance policy.

The cost of claims notified but not settled and claims incurred
but not reperted at the balance sheet date are estimated

and provided for, Claims incurred comprise the settiement

and handling costs of paid and outstanding claims arising

from events occurring during the financial year together with
adjustments to pricr year claims provisions. Estimates are
based upon an assessment of the likely costs taking account
of all known facts. Whaere the cutcome of cutstanding cases is
unclear, statistical technigues are used which take into account
the cost of recent similar claim settlernents.

Costs related to the acquisition of naw insurance contracts
{including commissions paid to intermediaries and other related
administration costs) are capitalised as deferred acquisition
costs (DAC) and arnortised on the same basis thal premiums
are recognised.

Where the expected value of claims and expenses attributabie
to unexpired risk periods exceed the value of unearned
premiums less DAC, at the balance sheet date, additional
provisions are made for the anticipated losses.

The accounting policies set out above in respect of the
measurement of the insurance contract liabilities include
fiabiity adequacy testing that meets the requirements of IFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’,

Insurance and Investment Product Classification

The Group has clagsified its long term insurance and investment
business in accordance with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ as
follows:

- Insurance contracts are contracts containing significant
insurance risk, Such contracts remain insurance contracts
until 2l rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

- |Investment contracts with a discretionary participation feature
(OPF) are contracts that do not contain significant insurance
risk but that contain discretionary participation features, which
for the Group are its with-prafit contracts; and

- Investment contracts are contracts that have neither
significant insurance risk nor a DPF.

General insurance business only issues insurance contracts,

Value of In-force Long Term Assurance Business (VIF)
The Group places a valug on the long term insurance contracts
and investment contracts with DOPF, which represents the
present valug of future cash flows attributable to the Group with
raspect to these contracts. The change in VIF is accounted for
as revenus,
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In-force business is defined as all policies where the first
premium has been paid. For traditional with-profit business, the
surplus attriputable to the Group equates to one ninth of the
cost of the bonuses declared in any vear. The level of assumed
future bonuses is calculated by projecting the portfolio of with-
profit business forward and applying reversionary and terminal
bonus rates so as to exhaust the projected surplus of assets
attributable to with-profit policyholders.

Insurance Contracts and Investment Contracts with DPF
Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF ligbilities
written within the with-profit fund. including both traditicnal and
unitised with-profit contracts, are calculated with reference

to the expected payout using realistic and, where applicabls,
market consistent assumptions in accordance with FRS 27

‘Life Assurance’. Insurance contract liabilities within the non-
profit funds are calculated in accordance with the Prudential
Sourcebook for insurers (INSPRU) issued by the UK Financial
Services Authority, For insurance contracts, premiums are
recognised as revenue when due from the policyholder and
claims payable are recorded when notified or due. For unitised
with-profit contracts, where the policyholder has the choice to
invest in a unit-linked investment fund, deposits and withdrawals
are accounted for directly on the balance sheet. Simitarly, for
investment contracts with DPF, deposits and withdrawals are
accounted for directly in the balance sheet.

At each reporting date an assessment is made of whether
liabilities are adequale using currerd estimates of future cash
flows and taking into account the value of any related VIF asset.
Any deficiency Is immediately charged to the income statement
by establishing a provision on the balance sheet.

Costs related 1o the acquisition of new long-term insurance and
investment with DPF contracts are expensed as incurred.

Investment Contracts

The Group's investment contracts, which include collective
investment schemes, are primarily unit-inked. These contracts
are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance
with the terms of the contracts as benefits are linked to the

fair value of the assets supparting the contracts. Accordingly,
the investrment contract liabilities have been designated at fair
value through the income statement with fair value changes
recognised through change in investment contract liabilities.
The fair value of the labilities is estimated using a valuation
technigue. In accordance with this technigue the liability is
established as the bid value of the assets held to match the
liability, 1ess an allowance in relation 1o deductions made to the
liahility for capital gains tax on the gans relating 10 the matching
assets. Deposits and withdrawals are accounted for directly

in the balance sheet as adjustments to the liability with other
changes recognised in the income statement.

Revenue in retation to investment management services is
recognised as the services are provided. (ncremental costs
directly attributable to securing the Group's contractual right

to benefit from providing investment management services in
relation to investment contracts, other than through a business
combinaticn or portfolio transfer (refer to the accounting policy
for intangible assets), are recognised as an asset i it is probabile
that they will be recovered.

Incremental costs include commissions paid 1o intermediaries
and other similar costs. This asset, referred to as deferred
origination costs, is amortised as the related investment
management revenue is recognised, and its recoverability
assessed at gach balance sheet date on a portfolio basis.
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Unallocated Surplus

The unallocated surplus is accounted for as a liability as
permitted by IFRS 4. The carrying vaiue cf the unatiocated
surplus is determined as the residual assets of the with-profit
fund after providing for the with-profit kabilities in accordance
with the policies described above,

Reinsurance

Contracts entered into with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on insurance contracts issued by
the Group, and that meet the classification requirements far
Insurance contracts, are classified as reinsurance contracts
held. The benefits to which the Group is entitled under these
contracts are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets
consist of short term balances due from reinsurers ag well as
longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related insurance
contracts. Amounits recoverable from or due to relnsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts, in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract, ana are regularly reviewed for
impairment,

Post Retirement Schemes

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is calculated separately for each plan. The net obligation
represents the present value of the future benefits owed to
employees in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, after the daduction of the fair value of any plan assets.

The discount rate used is the market yield on high guality
corporate bonds at the balance sheet date that have maturity
dates approximating to the terms of the Group’s ohligation.

The calculation is performad by a qualified actuary using

the projected unit credit method, Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately through the statement
of recognised income and expense.

The charge to the income statemant for defined benefit
schemes includes current service cost, past service cost, the
interest cost of the scheme liabilities and the expected return on
scherme assets.

The cast of contributions to defined contribution pension
schaemes are recognised as an expense in the ihcome
statement as incurred.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current
and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
diractly in equity, in which case il is recoghised in equity.

The tax charge is analysed between tax that is payable in
raspect of policyholder returns and tax that is payable on
shareholders’ equity returns. This allocation is based on an
assessment of the effective rate of tax that is applicabie to
shareholders’ equity for the year.

Defarred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financiai reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation pUrposes. The
following differences are not provided: goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets and fiabilities
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and overseas
earnings where both remittarice is controlied by the Group
and it is probable that the difference wilt not reverse in the
foreseeable future,

The amount of deferred tax provided Is based on the expected
manner of realisation or setflement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, based on tax rates that are enacted or
substantially enactad at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised whare it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
ternporary differences can be utilised.

The tax effects of losses available for carry forward are
racognised as an asset when it Is probable that futurs taxable
orofits will be available against which these losses can be
utifised.

Defarred and current tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they arise in the same tax reporting group and where there &
both a legal right of offset and the intention to settie on a net
basis of to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

The Group recognises a provision if there is a present obligation
as a consequence of either a legal or a constructive obligation
resulting from a past event, To recognise this it should be
probable that an outflow of sconomic resources, that can

be reliably measured, will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future
cash fiows taking account of the risks and uncertainties
associated with the specific liability where appropriate.

A constructive obligation is only deemad to exist in respect

of restrycturing once a detailed restructuring plan has been
farmally approved and the plan has been announced publicly or
work on the restructure has commenced.

Provision is made for undrawn loan commitments which have
bhecome onerous.

As explained under critical accounting judgerments, if the
Group assesses that a constructive obligation.for a regulatory
provision exists then a provision is established. Where the
provisioning criteria are met, the Group makes provision for the
estimated cost of making redress payments to customers in
respect of past product sales where the sales progesses have
been deficient. To calcufate the provision the Group estimates
the number of cases requiring redress and the average cost
per case. These are dependent upon, inter afia, the volume

of claims, the actions of regulators and, as appropriate, the
performance of investments. As progress is made in settling
claims, if necessary, the Group revises its judgsments and
estimates based on the emerging trends.

Debt Securities in Issue

Dabt securities in issus held for trading are classified as financial
flabilities held for trading and are carried at fairvalue. Gains,
losses and related expense are taken to net trading income

as they arise. Debt securities in issue designated at fair value
through the income staterment are carried at fair value. Gains,
losses and related expense arg taken fo other operating
income as they arise, except for those ralated to insurance

and invastment businass which are taken to net investment
income retated to insurance and investment business. All other
debt securities in issue are held at amortised cost. They are
initially recognised at fair valus plus directly related incremental
transaction costs and are subseguently carriett on the balance
sheet at amortised cost using the gffactive interest method.

Fair values are calculated based on quoted market prices.
Where quoted market prices are not available, a cash flow

model is usad, discounted using an appropriate current yield
curve tor the remaining term to maturity.



Other Borrowed Funds

Other borrowed funds comprises preference shares that
are classified as debt, preferred securities and suberdinated
liabilities, all of which are held at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Preference shares are classified as debt where they are
recleemable on a specific date, or at the option of the
shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary.
Dividends on preference shares classified as debt are
recognised in the income staternent through interest expense.

Pretferred securities are issued at or close to market values.
These are classified as debt where they are redesmable on
a specific date, or at the option of the hoiders, or if interest
payments are not discretionary. The interest payable or such
securities Is recognised in the income statement through
interest expense.

Subordinated liabilities consist of dated and undated loan
capital. The interest payable is recognised i the Income
statement through interest expense.

Share Capital
incremental costs directly attributable to the issus of new shares
are shown In equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Netting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amcunt
reported in the batance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right of offset and there is an intention and ability to settle on a
net or simultaneous basis.

Where master ﬁetting agreements allow for offset anly on
default by one of the parties, the Group presents the disclosures
on a gross basis.

Foreign Currencies
The consclidated financial statements are presented in sterling
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilties denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at balance sheet date exchange rates.
Exchange differences arising, including those from changes in
the amortised cost of foreign currency monetary available for
sale assets, ara recognised in the income statement except for
differences arising from hedges of net investments in foraign
operations and derivatives related to cash fiow hedges which
are recognised directly in equity.

Nen-monetary assets and liabilities carried at historical cost are
translated using the historical exchange rate.

Nen-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
translated at exchange rates on the date the fair value is
determined. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the income statement except those relating to available for sale
financial assets (equity investrments), which are recognised
directly in reserves.

The results and financiat position of all Group entities that have
a functional currency different from sterling are translated into
sterling as follows;

- assets and liabilities for each balance shest presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance shaet;
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- goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate; and

~ Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period {unless this is not a reasonabie
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case Income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions).

All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of other reserves within equity.

On consefidation, exchange diffarences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to equity where the
hedge is deemed to be effective. When a fareign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. The ineffective
portion of any net investment hedge is recognised in the income
statement immediately.

Curnulative translation differences for all foreign operations
are deemed to be zero at 1 January 2004. Any gain or loss
on the subsequent disposal of a foreign operation will exclude
transiation differences that arose before 1 January 2004, but
include later translation differences.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and balances at
central banks that are freely available, and loans and advances
to banks with an original maturity of three months or less
excluding financial assets that are held for frading purposes.

Share-based Payments

The Group predominantly operates equity-settled share-

based compensation schemeas in exchange for employee
services receivad. The fair values of options or shares granted
are determined at the date of grant and expensed over the
vesting pericd. The fair values of the options or shares granted
are measured using various models, taking intc account the
terms and conditions upon which the options and shares were
granted. Market conditions are taken into account to set the
fair value at grant and are not updated. Non-market vesting
concitions, including non-market performance conditions,

are not reflected in the grant date fair value but are refflected
within estimates of the numbaer of options or shares expected
ta vest. Any adjustments required as a result of updating these
estimates are taken to the income statemant over the remaining
vesting period. Modifications are assessed at the date of
modification and any incremental charges required are charged
to the income statement over any remaining vesting period. For
share based compensation schemes settled by the Company
a recharge equal 1o the cost during the period is made to
subsidiary companies.

Effective Interest Rate

Revenue on financial instruments classified as loans and
receivables, avallable for sale and expense on financiat llabllities
at amortised cost, are recognised on an effective interest rate
basis. This calculation takes intc account interest received

or paid and fees and commissions paid or received that are
integral to the vield as well as incremental transaction costs and
all other premiums and discounts. The effective interest rate is
the rate that discounts the expected future cash flows over the
expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the nat carrying amount of the financial
instrument at initial recognition.
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" These calculations are undertaken on a portfalio basis cther
than in respect of significant batances, relating principally t0
larger corporate customers, which are assessed individuatly.

In applying the portfolic basis, the Group makes use of various
statistical modeling techniguas which are specific to different
portfolios 1o estimate redemption profiles and derive the
expected cash flaws. A number of relevant considerations are
taken inte account to estimate the cash flows of individually
significant corporate balances, inciuding previous expérience
of customer behavicur, credit scoring of the custemer and
anticipated future market conditions at the date of acquisition.
The impact of the assumption refated to the expected fife of the
instruments is considered under critical accounting estimates.

Fees and Commission

Fees and commission income and expense is recognised in
the income staterment as the related service is provided except
those that are Integral to the effective interast rale calculations
or to investment contract deferred origination costs.

Fess and commission recognised in the tncome statement
include service faes, agency and management faes, transaction
fees, guarantee fees, latter of credit fees, asset management
fees and non-utilisation fees.

Syndication and undarwriting fees are spread over the expected
term of the sell down. [n the event of the loan not being sold
down then no fees are recognised. :

Eaas and commission included in the effective interest
calculation are those that are Incremental and directly.
attributable to the origination of the product and which are
integral to the yield of the product, These include arrangement
feas, incentives such as cash backs, intermediary fees and
commissions, high loan to value fees and procuremsant fees.

Guarantees

Financial guarantses are contracts that require the Group to
make specified payments to reimburse the halder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value

on the date the guarantes was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group's liabiities under such guarantees are-
measured at the higher of the amount determined under the
Group's accounting policy on provisions and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised to record
any fee income eamed in the period.

Intra-group fnancial guarantee contracts in the Company
financial statements are accounted for as general insurance
contracts. This practice also applies to any new intra-group
financial guarantees written.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The praparation of financial statemeryts requires management
1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Due to the inherent ungertainty in making estimates, actual
results reported in future periods may be based on amounts
which differ from those estimates. Judgements, gstimates

and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factars, incliding expectations
of future events that are believed to ba reasonable under

the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future pericds affected.

a) Critical Accounting Judgements _

The preparation of the financial staternents necessarlly requlres
the exercise of judgement in the application of accounting
policies which are set out above. These judgements are
continually reviewed and evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors. The principal crifical accounting
judgements made by the Group that have a material financial
impact on the financial statements are as follows:

Designation of Financial Instruments

The Group has classified its financial instruments in accordance
with 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Maasurement. In some instances the classification is prescribed
whilst in others the Group is able to exercise judgermnent in
determining the classification as follows:

- Non-derivative financial assets, other than those held for
trading, where there is no active market and which have
fixed or detarminable payments are classified a8 'loans and
receivables’;

- The Group's ‘trading’ portfolio is classified as-‘held for trading’.
The Group exercises judgement in determining which financial
instruments form part of its trading book. This is determined
at acquisition by the purpose for which the instrument is
acquired;

- The Group exercised judgement when determining that
the ongoing market dislocation and deterioration of the
world's financial markets that occurred during the third
quarter of 2008 was a sufficiently rare circumstance 1o
warrant a reclassification of certain financiat assets from
*held for trading’ 1o 'avallable for sale’ for which the Group
has the intention and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeabls future. The Group also subsequently reclassified
certain financial assets from "available for sale” to ‘loars and
recaivables’. In both cases, the Group had the intention and
ability to hold the financial assets for the foresesable future
and the financial assets transferred met the classification
criteria of loans and receivables;

- Derivative instruments are automatically classified as ‘at fair
value through the income statement’ unless they form part
of an effectiva kedging relationship. The Group's accounting
policy for hedge accounting is described under the policy for
derivatives;

- Instruments that are deemed by the Group on initial
recognition o ¢liminate a measurement mismaich or where
they contain an embedded derivative which is not separated
from the host contract are designatad on initial-recognition
as ‘at fair value through the income statermnent’. in addition
partiolios of assets, liabilities or both that are managed and
the performance evaluated on a fair vaiue basis In accordance
with a documented risk or investment management strategy
are designated on initial recagnition ‘at fair value through the
incorng statement’; .

- In addition the venture capital exemption-is taken for
investmeants where significant influence or joint control
Is present and the investing area operates as a venturs
capital business. These investments are designated ‘at fair
value through the income statement’. This policy is applied
consistently across the Group's portfolios. Judgement is
applied when determining whather or not a business area
cperates as a venture capital business. The judgement is
based on consideration of whether, in particular, the primary
businass activity is investing for cusrent income, capital
appreciation or both; whether the investment activities are



clearly and objectively distinct from any other activities of
the Group: and whether the investes operates as a separate
business autonomous from the Group;

- Assets in support of the general insurance and long term
assurance businesses are designated by the Group as *at fair
value through the income statement’;

~ nvestment contracts within the long term assurance business
are designated by the Group as ‘at fair value through the
income statament’;

~ The Group has chosen net to designate any financial assets
as ‘held to maturity’;

~ All other financial assets are classified as ‘available for sale’;
and

~ Ali other financiai liabilities are classified as 'at amortised cost’.

The accounting treatment of these financial instruments is set
out in the relevant accounting policy.

Active Markets

Asset backed securities not traded in an active market are
valued using models. An active market is one wherg prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, broker, pricing
service, industry group or regulator and these prices represent
actual and regularly occurring transactions on an arm's length
basis, Where there are no regular trangactons occurring
(significant liguid markets) the market is not described as active,
A significant increase in the spread between the amount sellers
are 'agking’ and buyers ara "bidding’ or the prasence of a
relatively small number of ‘bidding' parties, are indicators that a
market may be inactive, The determination of whether a market
is inactive requires judgement.

WMore detalls of the models used to value the securities not
traded in an active market are given in the 'fair values’ section in
critical accounting estimates below.

Impairment of Investment Securities

As explained in the accounting policy, investment securities
are reviewed at the specific investment level for impairment,
Impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence
that a specific financial asset is impaired. Objective evidence
of impairment might include a significant or prolonged decline
in market value below the original cost of a financial asset and,
in the case of debt securities, including those rectassified as
loans and receivables, non-recelpt of due interest or principal
repayment, a breach of covenant within the security’s terms and
conditions or a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows since thelr initial recognition.

The disappearance of active markets, declines in market

value and ratings downgrades do not in themselves constitute
objective evidence of impairment and, unless z default has
occurred on a debt security, the determination of whether or not
objective evidence of impairment is present at the balance sheet
date requires the exercige of management judgement.

Unarranged Qverdraft Charges

The Group's accounting policy in respect of regulatory
provisions is given in the section on provisions. In the absence
of a legal obligation, judgement is necessary in determining
the existence of a constructive obligation. In respect of the
claims made for refunds of unarranged overdrait charges,

the judgement of the Group is that there is no constructive
abligation pending the outcome of the legal case.
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Syndications

As explained in the accounting policy on syndications, the
Group has elected to trest loans and advances pending
syndication as loans and receivables rather than account for
them as trading assets. Accordingly these are initially recognised
at the draw down date at the fair value as at the commitment
date plus directly attributable incremental transaction costs.

Investment in Subsidiaries

As explained in the accounting policies, investments in
subsidiaries are included in the Company's balance sheet.
These comprise equity investments in and capital contributions
to subsidiary entities made by the Company. These are carried
at cost less impairment provisions, At each reporting date, an
assessment is undertaken to determine if thera is an indication
of impairment. This assessment can include reviewing factors
such as the solvency, profitability and cash flows of the
subsidiary.

If impairment indicators are evident, an estimate of recoverabie
amount is made which requires the exercise of management
judgement.

More details of the methodotogy used to calculate recoverable
amount are given In critical accounting estimates beiow.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities require managerent

" judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised.

in particular, when assessing the extent to which deferred

tax assets should be recognised with consideration given

to the timing, nature and level of future taxable income. The
recognition of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried
forward reliss on profit projegtions and taxable profit forecasts
prepared by management, where a number of assumptions are
required based on the levels of growth in profits and the reversal
of deferred tax balances,

bj Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements reguires the
Group to make estimations where uncertainty exists.
The principal critical accounting estimates made by

the Group are considered below. Disclosures about
estimates and the refated asgumptions are also included
in the appropriate Note to the Finangial Statements.

Fair Values

The designation of financial instruments for measurement
purposes is set out under the critical accounting judgements
above and the valuation methodologies for financial instruments
remain as disclosad in this accounting policy section.

Derivatives and other financial instruments classified as at fair
vaiug through the incorne statement or available jor saie are
recognised at fair value.

Debt securities measured at fair value and not traded in an
active market, principally comprising asset back securities
(ABS) in the Treasury division, are valued using valuation
models that include non-market observable inputs, These
models use observed issuance prices in related asset classes,
market corrglations, prepayment assumptions and externat
cradit ratings. For each asset class within the ABS portfotio, the
implied spread arrived at by using this methodology is applied
to the securities within that asset class. Additional assessments
are then made on possible deterioration in credit risk for each
individual security and on additional liquidity considerations for
particular asset classes.
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Of the total debt securities carried at fair value on the balance
sheet, the fair values of those calculated using models with
inputs that are not cbservable in the market is £3,054m (2007
£17,790m).

For debt securities valuations using non-market observable
inputs, the effect of a one hundred basis point move in credit
spreads (which based upon experience is only Key sensitivity)
would result in & pre-tax movement of £183m (2007 £185m)
for assets classified at fair valua through the income statement
and & post-tax movernent of £nit (2007 £{351)m), recognised in
equity reserves, on assets classified as avaiféble for sale.

On ABS that were valued using modsals with non-observable
market Inputs, a £1,056m (2007 £78m) pre-tax negative fair
value adjustment was recognised in the income staternent within
net trading income and a post-tax negative fair value adjustment
of £3,572m (2007 £158m) on ABS classified as available for sale
was recognised in equity reserves.

Retirement Benefit Obligations

The expected cash flows used in the calculation of the defined
benefit schemes’ liabilities include a number of assumptions
around mortality, inflation ratas applicable to defined benefits
and the average expected service lives of the employess. The
selection of these assumptions and the sslection of the discount
rate have a material impact on the estimaticn of the pansion
liabilities. The discount rate used by the Group to caloulate

the defined bensfit scheme liabillties is based upon a blended
market yield at the balance sheet date of high quality bonds with
a similar duration to that of the schemes' liablities and is derived
on a basis consistent with prior years. The sensitivity of the
scheme liabiliies to changes in the principal assurmptions used
are set out in Note 33.

Long Term Assurance Business

The estimation of the Group's insurance and investment
contracts with discretionary participating features {(DPF) liabikities
and related value of in-force [VIF) assets relies on a number of
assumptions in forecasting future experience. The selection of
appropriate assumptions reguires the application of matearial
judgement and is made with referenca to historic trends, taking
into account the analysis of actual versus expected experience
as well as industry data.

The accounting policy for insurance contracts and investment
contracts with DPF and the description af long term assurance
business in Note 30 desctibe the assumptions that are made
when calculating the value of these contracts, which also
impact on the value of the VIF and the unaliocated surplus. Tha
Group applies significant judgement when selecting the rates of
persistency to be used In these calculations. The considerations
given to lapse and surrender rate assumptions are detailed in
Note 30. The senslivity of the Group’s results to changes in
certain kay variables on long term insurance and investment
contracts and investment contracts with DPF are disclosed in
Note 28.

Effective interest Rate

As described in the accounting poticy for effective interest

rate, the Group uses statistical and mathematical models 1o
calculate the effective yield for loans and advances. The Group
applies judgement when determining the expected life of these
joans. The underlying products usually allow the custormer to
make early repayment before the contractual maturity date. In
estimating the expected life of the loan, the Group takes into
account a number of relevant considerations when the asset

is initially recognised to estimate the cash flows from early
redemptions including the type of product, previous experience
of custamer behaviour, credit scoring of the customer and
anticipated future market conditions. The cash flows are
adjusted in the light of actual experience, however the effective
interest rate is not reassessed, As a consequence of the reduced
ievels of principal repaid in 2008 and the resulting adjustments to
sstimated future cash flows a £200m credit {2007 £nif) has been
taken to the income statement. If the estimated life of the Retail
porticlio were to Increass or decrease by one morth then the
carrying value of the Retall portfolio would increase or decrease
by £6m (2007 £18m) respectively. :

impairment Losses on Loans and Advances

The Group regularly reviews its loan portfolies carried at
amortised cost to assess for impairment. This review is
conductec across all asset types and impairment-provisions are
established to recognise incurred impairment losses within the
loan portfolios. As explained in the Group's accounting palicy
on Loans and Advances, impairment loss calculations involve
the estimation of future cash flows of loans and advances based
on observable data at the balance sheet date, historical loss
experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics

and other factors including, inter alia, fuhire prospects of the
customers, value of collateral hetd and rafiabitity of information,
These calculations may be undertaken on either a portfolic basis
ar individually for individually significant exposures. In applying
the portfalio basis the Group makes use of various stafistical
modeling techniques which are speciiic to different portfolio

types.

The actual ameunt of the future cash flows and their tirning may
ditfer significantly from the assumptions made for the purposes

" of determining the impairment provisions given the range of

asset types, number of customers and current ecencmic
conditions. This uncertainty is exacerbated in the currant
economic climate, where the timing of anct value realisable from
tha collateral held in the form of property is particularly uncertain.
Consequently these allowances can be sutject to variation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a business. As explained in
the accounting poiicy for goodwil it is subject to a six monthly
impairment review. This compares the recoverable amount,
being the higher of a cash-generating units’ fair vaiue less costs
10 sell and its value in use, with the carrying vatue. When this
indicates that the carrying valus is not recoverable it is written
down through the income statement as goodwill Impairment,



The recoverable amount of goodwill carried at 31 December
2608 has been based upon value in use. This calculation uses
cash flow projections based upon the five year business plan
whiere the main assumptions used for planning purposes relate
to the currant economic outlock and opinions in respect of
economic growth, unemployment, property markets, interest
rates and credit quality. Cash flows thereafter are extrapiated
using a growth rate of 2.2% p.a, reflecting management’s

view of the expected future long term trend in growth rate of
the respective economies concerned, predominantly being

in the UK, and the long term performance of the busingsses
concemed, The pre-tax discount rate used in discounting the
projected cash fiows has, in view of current credit conditions,
been increased to within a range of 14.4% - 15.3% p.a (2007:
10.0% - 12.2% p.a) reflecting, inter alia, the perceived risks within
those businesses.

As at 31 December 2008 the carrying value of goodwill held on
the balance sheet is £1,556m (2007 £1,940m) as shown in Note
23, Goodwilt has been impaired by £158m during the year. The
unprecedented levels of market turmoil and current economic
conditions have adversely impacted the short-term profitability of
the cash generating units. The Group has considered the impact
upon the assumptions used and has conducted sensitivity
analysis on the impairment tests. For example, an increase in the
discount rate to 17% would result in an additional impairment to
goodwill of £31m; alternatively if projected cash flows reduced by
20% an additicnal impairment of £118m would arise.

Investment in Subsidiaries

As expiained in the accounting policies, investments in
subsidiaries are included in the Company's balance sheet.
These comprise equity investments in and capital contributions
o subsidiary entities made by the Company and are carried at
cost less impairmentt provisions. If impairment indicators are
present, a comparison of the recoverable amount, being the
higher of a subsidiary entity's value in use and fair value less
costs to sell, is made with the carrying value. When this indicates
that the carrying value is not recoverable it is written down by the
impairment loss identified.

At 31 December 2008, the carrying value of the Company’s
investment in its principal subsidiary undertaking, Bank of
Scotland ple, was £16,111m before write down.

The recoverable amount of this business is calculated based on

value in use. This calculation uses five year projections which are
extrapolated thereafter at a rate of 3.0% p.a with a discount rate

of 14.6% p.a applied throughout.

As IAS 36 requires that, inter alia, estimates of future cash flows
carnot include estimated future cash flows or related cost
savings or benefits that are expected from future restructuring
to which an entity ig, under tAS 37, not yet committed, these
projections exclude the effects of future synergies planned to
arise from the Group's acquisition by Lioyds TSB Group pic,

This methodology resuits in a recoverable amount of £11,919m,
Accordingly, a write-down of £4,182m was booked in the
Company's Income Statement for the year ended 31 December
2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

IERS and IFRIC Not Yet Apptlied

The following standards and Interpretations have been adopted
by the Eurcpean Union but are not effective for the year ended

31 December 2008 and have not been applied in preparing the
financial staterments:

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ which is effective for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2009. This standard replaces
IAS 14 ‘Segmental Reporting’ and aligns the disclosure of
operating segments in the financial statemenis with the internai
reporting of segmerts o senior management. Foliowing the
acquisition of the Group by Lioyds TSB pls the Group will adopt
the segmental structure and measureément basis for segments of
the Lloyds Banking Group. These are currently being determined
by the new organisation.

Amendments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements: A
Revised Presentation’ which ig effective for periods commenaing
on or afier 1 January 2009, The revised standard will affect the
presentation of owner changes in equity and of comprehensive
income, Adoption will not change the recognition, measurement
or disclosure of specific transactions or events as required by
other standards.

Amendment to IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ which is applicable
to borrowing costs related to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January
2000. The application of this revised standard in 2008 would not
have had a material impact on the financial stataments.

Amendment to IFRS 2 'Share-hased Payment: Vesting
Conditions and Cancefations’ which is effective for periods
commenclng on or after 1 January 2009. This defines ‘non-
vesfing' conditions and clarifies the accounting. The application
of this amendment would not have an impact upon the financial
staternents as the Group accounting policy accords with the
treatment prescribed by the amendment.

Amendments to JAS 32 and IAS 1 'Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation’ which is
effactive for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009,
This amendment addresses the balance sheet classification cf
puttable financial instruments and obligations arising only on
ligquidation. Where these instruments represent a residuat interest
in the net assets of an entity and maet certain other conditions
they should be classified as equity rather than liabilities. The
Group has no items currently classified as tiabilities that would
need to be presented ags equity as a result of this amendment
because these instruments fail to meet the criteria for such a
reciassification.

{FRIC 13 '‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ which is effectiva far
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2008, The application of
this interpratation In 2008 would not have had a material impact
on the financial statements.

The following interpretation has not yet been adopted by the
European Union but is effective for the year ended 31 December
2008. The Group has implemented the principles of this
interpretation in preparing the financial statements:

IERIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ which is effective
for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2008. Tha
application of this interpratation would not have affected the
financial statements as the Group accounting policy accords
with the requirements.

The following standards and interpretations have not yet been
adopted by the European Union, are not effective for the

year ended 31 Décember 2008 and have not been applied

In preparing the financial statements. Where appropriate
disclosures will be revised in the financial statements in the year
in which the standard or interpretation becomes applicable.

IFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of IFRS’ which is effective for periods
commenging on or aiter 1 January 2008, As the Group and

Company reports under IFRS, the application of this amendment
in 2008 would not have any sffect upen the financiat statements.

Amendments to IAS 27 'Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’ which is effective for pericds commencing on or
after 1 January 2008, This amendment removes the definition of
the cost method which requires dividends from pre-acquisition
profits 1o be set off against the cost of an investmant in 2
subsidiary. Application in 2008 would not have had an effect
upon the financial statements.

IFRIC 15 'Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’ which
is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009.
The application of this interpretation would not have affected the
financial statements as the Group accounting pelicy accords
with the requirements.

IFRIC 16 'Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation’
which is effactive for periods commencing on or after 1 October
2008. The application of this interpretation in 2008 would not
have affectec the financiat statements as the Group accounting
policy accords with the requirements.



IFRIC 17 'Distributions of Non Cash Assets to Owners' which
is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 Juty 2009, the
application of this interpretation would not have affected the
financial statements as the Group accounting policy accords
with the requirements.

IFRIC 18 "Transfer of assets from customers’ which applies to
transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1 July
2009. The application of this interpretation in 2008 would not
have had a material impact on the financial statements.

Improvements to IFRS 2008 The majority of these
improverments are effective for periods commencing on or after
1 January 2009 and their application would not have had a
material effect upon the financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement: Eligible Hadged ltems’ which is effective for
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2009. This amendment
clarifies what can be designated as a hedged item in & hedge
accounting relationship and application in 2008 would not have
had a material impact upon the financial statements.,

Amendments to IAS 39 ‘Reclassification of Financial Assets”:
Effective Date and Transition which is effective on or after 1 July
2008. This amendment clarifies the sffective date and transition
requirerments for the change to the standard issued in October
2008 permitting entities to reclassify non derivative financial
assets out of the fair value through the income statement
category in particular circumstances. The application of this
amendment would not have affected the financial staternents as
the Group accounting policy accords with the requirements.

Revised IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' and amended
JAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’
These changes are effective for periods heginning on or after 1
July 2008 with the main effects being that the cost of investment
will comprise the considergtion paid 1o the vendors for eguity
with acquisition costs being expensed immediately; goodwill will
be accounted for only upon the acquisition of a subsidiary as
subsequent changes in interest will be recognised in equity and
only upon the loss of control will any profit or loss be recognised
in income, Further, any pre-existing stake held will, where control
is subsaquently gained, be revalued with any profit or ioss arising
being booked to income. These changes will affect the manner
in which acquisitions and disposals made by the Group are
accountad for after the implementation of the revised Business
Combinations standard and related revisions to IAS 27.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

1 Net Interest Income

2008 2007
£ £m
Interest receivable:
Loans and advances to customers 29,892 26,354
Loans and advances to banks 740 2,295
Investment securities 652 115
Lease and hire purchase receivablas 299 321
interast recaivabla on koans and recelvabies 31,583 29,085
Available for sale financial assets 2,108 2,278
Interest receivable on derivatives ' 3,815 3,374
Other 205 275
Total interest receivable 37,411 35,012
Interest payable: :
Deposits by banks 3,959 2,568
Customer accounts 9,538 0,837
Debt securities in issue 10,191 10,482
Other borrowed funds 1,450 1,169
Interest payable on Jiabilties held at amortised cost 25,138 24,056
Interest payable on derivatives 3,473 3,399
Other ' 629 253
Total interest payable 20,240 27,708
Netinterest income 8,171 7,304
2 Net Trading (Expense)/Income
2008 2007
£m £m
Equity and commodity instruments and related non hedging derivatives 952 92
Interest bearing securities and related non hedging derivatives (4,174) 58
Foreign exchange and related non hedging derivatives (16) 72
Net gains and losses from trading financial instruments and non hedging derivatives {3,238) 222
Gains/(losses} an fair value hedges:
On hedging instrurments 3,467 +184
On the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk {3,110) {1,227}
357 43)
Cash fiow hedge inetfectivenass recognised 3 (1)
Total net trading {expense)/income {2,878) 178
3 Net Operating Income
2008 2007
£m £m
included within net opsrating income are the following:
Cash flow hedges:
Net (losses)gains released from equity into income (Note 41} (2,561) 7
Financial instruments &l fair value through the income statement:
Net {logses)/galng from trading financial instruments and nen hedging derivatives (Note 2) {3,238) 222
Net (losses)/gains from designated financial instruments (9,669) 4,884
Available for sale financlal instruments:
Dividend income 108 2N
Net realised gains on sale {Note 41) 24 281

Financial instruments designated as loans and receivables:
Net realised gains on sale 22 3
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4 (Loss)/Profit on Sale of Businesses

Non-operating income consists of the following:

2008 2007
Em £m
Loss on the sale of Bank of Westerr Australia Ltd and St. Andrews Australia Pty | td {845)
Profit on the part disposal of Rightmove plc {Note 21) 56 59
Distribution from Visa inc shares listing 26
Profit on the sale and leaseback of certain branch premises : 20 28
Profit on the sale of insight investment Management (C.1.) Limited 4
(743) 9

©On 8 Cotober 2008, the HBOS Group agreed the sale of part of its Australian operations, principaily Bark of Western Australia Lid
and St. Andrews Australia Pty Lid, to Commonwealth Bank of Austraiia Limited. The sale completed on 19 December 2008 and
results in a pre-tax loss on disposal of £845m {including goodwill written-off of £240m) which is included as non-operating income
within the (loss)/prefit on sale of businesses for the year.

Under the share sale agreement HBOS ple has provided certain warranties to Commonwealth Bank of Australia, that alf relevant,
material circumstances and facts in relation to the sale have been disclosed and described in agreement. The share sale agreement
provided for adjustments to the initial purchase price based on the risk weighted assets of Bank of Western Australia Limited and the
net assets of St. Andrews Australia Pty Limited. As a result, the 10ss on sale ¢f these businesses may be subject to adjustment for the
contingent element of the commitment receivable.

Following the sale HBOS retains a presence in Australia through Bank of Scotland [nternational {Australia) Limited and Capital Finance
Australia Limited which are engaged in corporate banking and asset finance activities respectively, together with the Bank of Scotland
plc Sydney branch and therefore this sale does not constitute a discontinued activity, As such, the performance of the businesses
sold and the loss on disposal remains within the profit arising from gontinuing operations of the Group. These businesses are
reported in International division for segmental reporting purposes.

5 Insurance Premiums and Claims

2008 2007
£m tm

Gross written premiums
Long term insurance 4,542 4,739
General insurance 887 889
5,429 5628
Premiums ceded 1o reinsurers : {178} (168}
Net changsé in provision for unearned premiums 93 156
Net earned premiums on insurance contracts . 5,344 5,616
2008 2007
£m Em

Claims incurred
Leng term insurance {3,450) {2,599)
General insurance {334) (420}
{3,784} {3,019}
Claim recoverigs from reinsurers 81 67
Net claims incurred on insurance contracts (3,703) {2,652)
6 Change in investment Contract Liabilities

2008 2007
Em £m
Net ¢change in investrnent contracts daesignated at fair value through the incoma statement 12,863 (2,451)
Net change in investment contracts with a discretionary participating feature {47) (87)
12,816 {2,538}
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

7 Administrative Expenses

2008 2007
£m £m
Administrative expenses include:
Regulatory provisions charga (Note 36}
Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) managemant expenses levy 200
Unauthorised overdraft charges 122
Colleague costs {Note 8) 2,983 2,91
Accomemodation, repairs and maintenance 493 45¢
Techriology 261 273
Marketing and communication 432 380

8 Colleagues

The Group refers to its employees as colleagues. Most UK based colleagues are contractually employed by the Company. The
expense related to these colleagues is recharged to the subsidiary that gains the benefit of their employment and accordingly there
are no residual staff costs held by the Company.

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Nuriber Number Number Number
The average number of colleagues empioyed during the year was.
Full time 58,101 57,129 53,680 53,455
Part time 16,575 16,958 15,882 16,265
74,6768 74,087 69,562 69,720
2008 2007
£m £m

The aggregats rerunaration payable in raspect of Group colleagues is included within administrative expenses and comprises:

Wages and salaries 2,348 2,340
Social security costs . 207 226
Pension costs (Note 33) 268 20
Otheér post retirement bensfits (Note 33) 4 5
Expense arising from share-based payments (Note 40) 156 139
2,983 2911
9 Directors’ Remuneration
2008 2007
£'000 £000
Emocluments 8,691 11,834
Compensation for loss of oifice™ 1,475
' 8,891 13,308
Totai potential pre-tax gains on share options exercised -1 715
Total potential pre-tax gaing on share schemss vested . 1,306 4,989
10,198 19,13
fa) Thisincludes non monetary banefits of £nil {2007 £rif}.
Highest Paid Director
2008 2007
£'000 £000
Emoluments® 1,452 2,608
Total potential pre-tax gaing on share optiens exercisad 3
Total potential pre-tax gaing on share schemes vested ‘ 603« 412
2,055 3,021

(o) This includes the 2007 elemant of the 2007/2008 blenhial cash incentive of £121,000 {2007 £172,000).

{c) As reported previously, a retertion reward originally granted in January 2002 matured in 2005. At this time, this was corverted inta shares and was subsequently
placed in the Sharekicker Scheme maturing in March 2008, The velue on maturity was £466,000 and this is included in gains on share schemas vosted.
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9 Directors’ Remuneration continued

The total emoluments {including taxable benefits and aliowances) of Directors in the year are set out in the table below:

Total Total
year ended year ended
2008 2007
Taxable Total Totad éxcluding excluding
Salary  benefits and year ended yaar anded pension pansion
and fees allowances 2008 2007 allowance aliowance
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chairman
Dennis Stevensan 795 20 815 821 815 821
Executive Directors
Pater Cummings 675 193 868 2,434 699 2,278
Jo Dawson 615 164 779 943 825 837
Mike Ellis 650 173 823 2929 660 250
Philip Gore-Randal 552 174 726 2751 588 235
Andy Hornby 1,025 306 1,331 1,672 1,075 1,437
Calin Matthew 630 179 809 1,055 652 905
Dan Watkins 520 162 682 287@ 552 247
Non-executive Directors
Richard Cousins 99 1] 70 og 70
Sir Ron Garrick 258 258 235 258 235
Anthony Hobson 230 230 221 230 221
Karen Jones 135 135 100 135 100
John E Mack 117 117 66 17 66
Coline McConville 192 192 151 192 i
Kate Nealon 138 138 151 138 151
Former Directors 244 58 302 3449 248 3,184
8,875 1,429 8,304 12,214 7,083 1,168
Biennial ¢ash incentive for 2007/2008™ 587 1,085 587 1,005
Total 8,891 13,309 7,670 12,281

{1} The biennial cash incentive 2007/2008 comprises only the glement eared in 2007 tul deferred and inciudes Peter Cummings £79,000 {2007 £172,000), Jo Dawson
£72,000 (2007 £156.000), Mike Ellis £20,000 (2007 £nil}), Philip Gore-Randall £19,000 (2007 £nil). Angy Hornby £121,000 (2007 £254.000}, Colin Matthew £73,000,
(2007 £160,000), Dan Watkins £54,000 (2007 £42,000), Former Directors £149,000 {2007 £311,000). The Directors walved their rights to any payment in respect of the
2008 slement of the scheme.

{2} Part year only

Emoluments

Ne bonuses werg paid to any Directors with respect 10 2008 following waiver by the Directors of their respective rights to receive
these bonus payments. Remuneration in respect of Non-executive Directors consists solely of fees. No short or long term bonuses or
benefits were paid to any of the Non-executive Dirgctors in the year.

The Group did not make any payments to Directors’ pensions during the year. The table above includes in "taxable benefits and
allowances” the non-pensicnable cash allowances payable to Executive Directors in fieu of any further service-related pension
accrual. The cash allowance was equivalent to 25% of salary, payable monthly. The allowances paid in 2008 were; Peter
Cummings £168,833; Jo Dawson £153,833; Mike Ellis £182,500; Philip Gore-Randall £138,000; Andy Hormby £256,000; Colin
Matthew £157,416; Dan Watkins £130,000; Phil Hodkinson £53,750.

During the year the non-pensionable cash allowance for Andy Hormby was increased by the Remuneration Committee of the
Company to 50% of salary with effect from April 2006. Andy Hornby waived his entitlement to receive this incremental backdated
increase of £645,000. His allowance of £256,000 is eguivaient to 25% of salary in 2008 as paid to all other Executive Directors.,

Comparative year end totals of emoluments excluding the non-pensionable cash allowances are also shown in the table above.

Penslon contributions paid, or treated as paid in the year, was nil (2007 £5,000) to defined benefit schemes and nil (2007 nil) to
money purchase schemes and were attributed to nif Directors (2007 one). Nit contributions related to the highest pald Director (2007
nil) resulting in 2n accrued pansion of £240,000 at the year end (2007 £344,000). Nil (2007 nil} was paid to past Directors in respect
of retirement benefits in excess of their normal entitlerments.

The fees pald to Dennis Stevenson comprises a payment made 10 him personally in respect of his service as Chalrman of the
Company of £795,000 (2007 £707,500).
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Notes to the Financial Statements |
continued

9 Directors' Remuneration continued

From 1 May 2007 the basic Board memhership fee payabis to Non-executive Directors was at & rate of £66,000 p.a. and from 1
May 2008 this basic Board membership tee was Increased 1o a rate of £70,000 p.a. The basic Board membership fee covers the
full range of duties and responsibilities associated with Non-Executive Directorship, including attending Board meetings and the
Company's Annual General Maeting.

The figures shown in the table above also include, in respect of Non-executive Directors, fees for service on Committees of the Board
and, where relevant, faes for services as Directors of Subsidiaries and Joint Venturas and for service on other Committees.

The taxable benefits and alowances payment to Dennis Stevenson comprises a Distant Accommodation Allowance of £20,000 p.a..

Taxable benefits and allowances for the Executive Directors comprise, where relevant, the benefit in kind values of company cars,
healthcare, life assurance, concessionary rate mortgages and, a contribution towards the cost of providing distant accommodation
away from the Exacutive Director's primary rasicential area, as well as the non-pensionable cash allowance mentioned earlier.

Resignations and terminations

Phil Hodkinson retired as a main board Director on 30 April 2008, He recelved no termination paymant and his pension bengfits,
based on service to 5 April 2006 {when further service based accrual ceased; and final pensionable salary at retirement, wers
reduced for early retirement based on the period between his retirenent date and his 55th birthday in accordance with his
contractual entittements, having served 5 years as an Exacutive Director.

Charles Dunstone stood down as Non-executive Director from the Board immediately following the Company's Annual General
Meeting on 29 April 2008. Termination payments are not made to Nan-executive Directors and no such payment was made to
Charles Dunstone.

On 16 January 2009, an the acquisition of the Company by Lioyds TSB Group ple (now Lloyds Banking Group plc (LBG)) becoming
effective, the Chairman and ali other Directors of the Company {other than Jo Dawson, Philip Gore-Randall and Dan Watkins) were
required to resign from the Board of the Campany, Jo Dawson, Philip Gore-Randall and Dan Watkins will resign from the Board of
the Company during 2009. For departing ExeCutive Diractors, the total payments and pension arrangerments put in place at the
termination of their respective employments do not, or will not, (as the case may be) go beyond their legal entitlerments. No saeverance
payments will be made to Jo Dawsen or Dan Watkins on thair resignation from the Board of the Company, as thay continua to be
employed by LBG.

On termination of their contracts by the Comparty, Massrs Homby and Stevenson waived thelr respective entitiements to receive their
contractual severance payments under their service agreements. Andy Hornby teceived & statutory redundancy payment of £2,970.

It was agreed that, on termination of thelr contracts, the foliowing Executive Directors would receive payments in lisu of notice
{equivalent to 12 months' salary) in accordance with their contractual entitlements; for entering into certain post-tarmination restrictive
covenants {approximately £10,000); and, in the case of Peter Cummings and Colin Matthew, statutory redundancy. In total, these
payments are as foflows: Peter Cummings £702,080; Mike Eliis £670,500; Philip Gore-Randall £568,000; Colin Matthew £656,405.
Na payments were made with respact to further service based pension accrual, of in fieu of pensicn. On termination of his contract,
Pstar Cummings waived his right to recelve a contractual bonus entitlernant of £4,320,000 which had been earned in 2007 but
deferred pursuant 1o its termns.

Pensions
The pension entitliements of the Executive Directors who were active members of the HBOS Final Salary Pension Scheme ("the
Scheme”) as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the table below:

Executive Directors’ pension entitlements Trarsfer value
of netincrease

increase to accrued

Increase in accrued pension {less

Accrued  in acgrued penslan Transfer Director’s

pension penslon over year value Increase In  contributions

Age at at 31/12/08 over year {net of inflatlon} at 31/12/08 transfer value at 31/12/08)

Name 31/12/08 £'000 pa £'000 pa 20060 pa £'000 £'000 £'000
P Cummings 53 389 25 7 7,080 112C 141
J Dawson 46 100 1 8 1,394 210 85
A Hornby 41 240 20 o 2,813 406 103
C Matthew . 58 416 18 m 9,089 1,290 {32)
D Watkins : 48 218 56 47 2,845 873 819

The accrued pension at 31 December 2008 Is the pension which the Diractor would have been entitled 1o réceive baged on his/her
completed pensionable service, had he/she left on 31 December 2008 peyable from normal retirement age (age 60) and subject to
revaluation increases between leaving and retirement.
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9 Directors' Remuneration continued

The transfer values are based on the accrued pensions at 31 December 2008 and are calculated as at 31 December 2008
raspectively based on factors supplied by the actuaries, Watson Wyalt Limited. The transfer value basis was reviewed by the scheme
Actuary, Watson Wyatt Limited, during 2008 to take account of changes in legislation for the calculation of such values and the
change in financial markets. The resulting increase in the transfer values is predominantly as a result of applving the new basis to the
accrued pensions at 31 Decembar 2008, The transfer values are the notional lump sums which would have been paid to ancther
pension scheme for the benefit of the Director had he or she lsfl service at the respective dates, It is not possible for a transfer value
to be paid directly to the Director personally.

The Director's contribution is the personal contribution required, if any, under the terms of the Scheme., Members of the Scheme
have the option to pay additional voluntary contributions: neither the additional voluntary contributions nor the resulting benefits are
included in the table.

For those Directors whose benefits were above the “Lifetime Allowance” at *A-day”, there will be no further service accrual of benefits
and no further Birectors’ contributions*. Those Directors receive the non-pensionable cash allowance referved to previously.

Philip Gore-Randall is not included in the Scheme and simply receives the cash allowance referred to previously, Mike Eftis is in
receipt of a pension from his earlier employment with the Group which is unaffected by, and independent of, his current employment.
In respect of his current employment he receives the cash allowance referred to previously.

Pension is generally based on retirerment from service at normal retirement age (age 60) and is based on final salary. Pension and
lump sum life assurance is provided from the Scheme and ctherwise from separate arrangements with the Group.

On death after retirement or after leaving service, a spouse's or dependant’s pension may be payable, Children's benefits may afso
be payable.

Executive Directors who have five years' service as an Executive Director have a contractual right to retire at age 55 or above with a
non-reduced pension and at age 50 or above {but below age 55} with a reduced pension.

Pension increases after retirement are a mixture of guaranteed and discretionary. Scheme provisions vary by individual; the
maximum extent of the Scheme guarantees is to increase pensicns in line with the RPI, subject to a maximum of 5% p.a. and

a minimum of 3% p.a. (no minimum for pensionable service after 31st March 2004). There is an established policy of reviewing
pensicns on a discretionary basis taking account cof increases in the RPL. Allowance is made in transfer values on leaving in respect
of the guaranteed and discretionary increases outlined above.

Peter Curmmings and Colin Matthew retired on termination of their respective employments with the Company on 16 January 2008,
as referred to in Resignations and Terminations above.

Pension benefits for Cotin Matthew were provided without reduction for early payment, based on his service to 5 April 2008 (when
further service based accrual ceased) and his final pensionabie salary at retirement in line with his contractual right as set out above.

Pension benefits for Peter Cummings were provided in accordance with the Company's standard policy for Directors and senior
managers retiring at age 50 and above. In such a case where a Director or senicr manager retires by way of redundancy the
Company does not reduce the pension payment to reflect retirerment after the Director's or senior manager's 55th birthday, The
notional additional capital cost of providing benefits for Peter Cummings in accordance with this policy was £6.7m. An actuarial
reduction of 4,75% for early retirement based on the period between his ratirement date and his 55th kirthday was applied to his
pension benefits based on service to 5 April 2006 (when further service based accrual ceased) and his final pensionable satary at
retirement. As a result, and in waiving his entitlernent to receive his contractual bonus of £1,320,000 referred to in ‘Resignations and
Terminations’ above, Peter Cummings received in total tess than his legal entitternents.

Potential pre-tax gains on share options exercised
During the year, two Directors exercised 2,045 options (2007 four Directors and 146,814 options) under share option schemes. The
highest paid Director did not exercise any share options (2007 600 share options).

Shares vested under long term incentive schemes

During the year, one Director (Peter Cummings} had a share grant of 43,350 shares released {2007 eight Directors had share grants
of 530,101 released) under long term incentive schemes, In accordance with his contractual entittement under the rules of the
schemes. This relates to the 2003-2006 long term incentive pian granted in January 2003. As explained in previous annual reports,
all participants could choose to fake any shares released after three years based on a three year performance outcome or could
continue to participate in the plan for a further two years and take shares at that point based on the better of the three year and five
year performance outcomes. Peter Cummings elected to continue to participate in the ptan for the further two years to the end of
2007. HBOS's Total Shareholder Return over the five year performance pericd exceeded the weighted average of the comparator
group by 1.57% consequently 183% of the original share grant was released under the terms of the long term incentive scheme on
27 February 2008. No share grant was released (2007 a share grant of 36,223 shares) under long term incentive plans in respect of
the highest paid Director,

- Dan Watking has an element of pre April 2006 pension accrual being released over 1he period 1o Apris 2011,
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8 Directors’ Remuneration continued

Shares vested under short term incentive schemes

During the year, seven Directors had share grants of 428,938 shares In total released (2007 seven Directors had share grants of
421,744 released) under short term incentive schemes, in accordance with contractual entitements under the rules of the schemes.
As explained in previous annual reports, Executive Directors could elect to take thair annual and biennial incentives in HBOS shares.
If they elected to do s0, and hetd the shares in trust for three years, additional shares wera awarded. The release of these 428,938
shares relates to the sharas placed in trust using short term incentive plan awards in 2004 together with the additional shares
awarded folowing the three year holding period. In respect of Andy Hornby, a share grant of 49,131 was released under short term
incentive plans, and a special award originally granted in 2002 of 212,739 shares was also released. Both of these releases occurred
hefore April 2008. None of these releasss related 1o performance in 2008,

The value of additional shares is shown net of income tax and National Insurance liability although the value of the additionat shares
was grossed up to take account of the associated income tax and Naticnal Insurance payable by the participant.

Value of shares vested under free shares plan

During the year, 2,674 (2007 nil) free shares relating to six Directors (2007 no Diractors) vested. In the year seven (2007 six) Directors
were awarded shares under the free shares plan (see Note 40 for further detail). in respect of the highest paid Director, 333 (2007 nil,
2006 nil) free shares vested in the year,

The net value of assets other than meney, shares and options received by aft Directors was nil.

Change of control

All of the HEOS share plans contained a provision relating to change of control. The acquisition of HBOS by LBG resulted in awards
and aptions vesting and becoming exarcisable, in accordance with contractua! entitternents under plan rules. Certain awaras were
exchanged for awards over LBG ordinary shares, but otherwise subject to the same terms as the criginal award. Certain optiorns will
also be exchanged 1o the extent they have not been exercised within the 8 month exercise period following the change of control.

Where the vasting of awards and options were subject to the satistaction of performance conditiong, in accordance with the plan
rules and the terms of such conditions, the Remuneration Committee of the Company determined the extent to which such awards
and options vested by taking into account the level ot performance. In relation to the Directors, the Remuneration Committee
exercised this discretion by reducing vesting to exclude any payments in relation to the 2008 financial year.

The total payments made to Directors of the Company on change of control were Peter Cummings, £129,000 and 2,051 share
options; Jo Dawson £138,060 and 3,330 share options; Mike Eliis £83,000; Philip Gore-Randall £73,000; Andy Hornby £251,000
and 7,509 share options; Colin Matthew £151,000; and Dan Watkins £88,000 and 3,330 share options.
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10 Auditors’ Remuneration
Ouring the year the Group (including overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the company's auditor and its
associates:
2008 2007
£m £m
Statutory Group audit of the parent Company and consolidated accounts 0.3 0.3
Fees payable for other services:
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 6.7 7.7
COther services pursuant to legislation 71 1.0
Total audit and audit related services 144 9.0
Tax services C 0.5 0.8
Services relating 1o information technology 01
Services relating fo corporate finance transactions 01 03
Other services 1.0 1.2
Total other services 1.6 2.4
Total® 15.7 11.4

1) Excludes value added taxes.

Other services pursuant to legislation includes reporting accountant services in support of the listing rules and includes the raview of

the half yearly results.

In respect of the Company, fees in respect of the statutory audit were £31,000 (2007 £22,000) and cther fees amounted to

£0.2m (2007 £0.3m}.
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11 Segmental Analysis

Principal activities of the HBOS Group are the provision ot banking and other financial services in the UK and overseas.

The Group's activities are organisad an a divisional
main divisions, including their key products and marl
axpenses of managing the Group. including technology so

services such ag cheque clearing and mailing.

Business sector

basis which reflect the busingss sector segments below. Information about the
kets, Is located in the Business Revisw. Group Items principally comprises the
far as it is not devolved to divisions, accommodation and cther shared

2008
Treasury &
insurance & Asset Group.
Retail Corporate Investment  International Management Items Total
£m £m £m £m £Em £m £m
Net interest income — internal {2,393} 300 (66} {3,723) 5,882
Net interest income - external 6,630 1,980 {31) 5,197 {5.605) 8,171
Net fees and commission Income - internal 144 62 (490} 38 246
Net fees and commission income - external 1,002 377 {292) 101 {61) 1,127
Net tracing income - external 56 {643) 21 (2,312} (2,878}
Other operating incoms - Internaf 66 3 37 (106}
Other operating income — external 16 1,594 {4,728) 234 76 {2,808}
Net operating income/{expense) 5,521 3,673 {5,607) 1,905 {1,880} 3,612
Administrative expenses - internal {635) {248) {118) (233) 1,232
Administrative expenses - external {1,339) {649) {726) (786} {65) (1,549) {5,114)
Depreciation and amortisation (55) {1,215} {51) (67) {7) {213) (1,608)
Goodwill impairment (69} {4) {85) {158)
Other cperating expenses 6,167 25 6,192
Operating expenses (2,098) {2,110) 5,268 {913) {305) (530) (688)
Impairment losses on loans and advances (2,230) (6,669) (858) {9,857)
Impafrment losses on investment securities {737) (35) {1,421) [2,183)
Operating {loss)/profit 1,193 {5,843} {339) {1 {3,606) {330} {9,126}
Share of {loss)/profit of jointly controlled entities
and associates 3 (950) 2 10 {21) (9586)
{Loss)/profit an sale of businesses 102 {845) {743)
{Loss)/profit before taxation 1,298 {6,793} {337) (836) {3,627) {530) {10,825)
Total assets 266,197 127,705 77,588 67,865 147,148 3,414 689,917
Included in total assets:
Intsrests in jointly controlied entities
and associates 70 952 {38) 166 11 1,161
Loans and advances to customers 255,284 116,388 60,997 2,554 435,223
Total liabilities 192,233 54,470 68,580 24,212 338,244 679 676,418
tncluded in total liabiities:
Customer accounts 143,703 38,500 87 6,507 33,454 222,251
Cagpital expenditure on property
and equipment and software 91 1 144 11 12 357 716
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Business sector
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In Juy 2008 the Group announced & divisional reorganisation under which the Group’s Business Banking became part of Corporate
division, moving from Retail division, in adidition, there was a transfer of Trading Cash Management fram Treasury ta Corporate
division, Accordingly the 2007 comparatives have been restated to reflect this new structure and certain other minar recrganisations,

There is no impact on the 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet and Income Statement as previously published.

2007
Treasury &
Insurance & Asset Group
Retail Corporate Investment Internationat Managemaent ems Total
£m £m Em €m £m £m £m
Net interest income — internal {1,024} 393 (70) (1,269) 1,970
Net interast income - external 5020 1,769 {2B) 2,357 {1.814) 7,304
Net fees and commission income - interna! 184 13 (158} 21 (50)
Net foes and commission income — external 1042 448 521) 45 248 1,260
Net trading income ~ external (7} 65 (7} {3 130 178
Other operating income — internal 19 15 45 {79}
Qther operating income - external 58 2,043 9,61 652 185 12,549
Net operating income ) 5,202 4,746 8817 1,848 588 21,291
Administrative expenses - internal {641) (182) {113} (6} (42 984
Aaministrative expenses - external (1,452} (773) {880 {665) {283) (1,126} {4,979)
Cepreciation and amortisation (70) {1,018) (57) (54) {4) {199) {1,402}
Goodwill impairment (5) {5)
Cther operating expenses (7,406) (278) {7.684)
Operating expenses {2,163} {1,973} (8,261} {1,003} (329) {341) (14,070)
Impairment losses on leans and advances {1,277} {619) (118} {2,012}
Impairment losses on investment securities {22) (37) (1) (60)
Operating profit/{loss) 1,830 2117 556 728 259 (341) 5,149
Share of {logs)/profit of jointly controlled entities and
associates {9) 232 (2 17 (4) 234
Profit on sale of businesses 87 4 91
Profit/{loss) vefore taxation 1,908 2,349 554 745 259 (341) 5,474
Total assets 259,255 122,642 88,454 76,087 119,806 773 667,017
included in total assets:
Interests in jointly contrelied entities and
associates 83 1,525 at) 133 24 1,724
l.oans and advances to cusiomers 252,595 110,087 67,094 23N 430,007
Total liabitities 218,614 53,624 81905 35,580 245758 3.302 644,783
ncluded in total liabitities:
Customer accounts 154,034 48,334 101 23,585 17,167 243,224
Capital expenditure on property and
equipment and software 6 43 11 83 16 397 556
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11 Segmental Analysis continued

Geographical

The table below analyses the Group results and asaets by geographical area based on the location of the customer.

2008 2007
Rest Rast
UK of world Total UK of world Tatar
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 6,455 1,716 8,171 6.044 1,260 7,304
Net fees and commission income 850 177 1,127 1,110 150 1,260
Net trading incoma {3,104) 226 {2,878) 144 34 178
Other operating income 28 {2,836) (2,808} 11,135 1,414 12,549
Net operating income 4,329 (717) 3,612 18,433 2,858 21,281
Administrative expenses {4,290) (824) {5,114} {4,289) {690) (4,879)
Depreciation and amortisation {1,635} {73) {1,608) {1,341) &1) {(1,402)
Goodwill impairment {143) {15} (158) {5} {5)
Othar operating expenses 6,690 {498} 6,192 {B.743) {941} (7.684)
Operating expenses 722 {1,410} {688) (12,378) (1.682) {14.070)
Impairment losses on icans and advances {8,899) {958) (9,857) {1,893) (119} {2,012)
Impairment on investment securities {2,158) {35} {2,193) (59) {1} (B0)
Operating (loss)/profit {6,006} {3,120) {9,126) 4103 1,046 5,145
Share of (loss)/profit of jointly contrelied entities and
associates {920) (36) {956} 51 183 234
(Lessy/profit on sale of businesses 102 {845) {743) 91 91
{Loss)/profit before taxation {6,824) {4,001) {10,825) 4,245 1,220 5474
Total assets 550,560 139,417 689,917 532,572 134,445 667,017
tncluded in total assets:
interests in juintly contralled entitieos and
associates 756 4905 1,161 1,442 282 1,724
Total liabilities 524,991 151,427 676,418 498 417 146,366 644,783
Inclucied in total liabilities:
Capital expenditure on property and equipment and software 575 141 716 473 83 556
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12 impairment Provisions and Losses

a} Impairment provisions and losses on loans and advances to customers designated as loans and receivables

2008 2007

Impalirment provisions £m £m
At 1 January 3,373 3,089
New impairment provisions iess releases 9,964 214
Amounts written off (2,515) {1,726)
Digposal of subsidiary undertakings {1158)
Discoun? unwind/interest income on impaired loans and advances to customers (149) (129}
Foreign exchange translation 135 28
At 31 December 10,693 3.373
Impairment provisions are held in respect of:
Retail secured lending 1,219 330
Retail tnsecured lending 1,819 1,889
Corporate 8,563 832
Intgrnational 1,002 322

10,693 3.373

2008 2007

tmpairment losses £m £m
New impairment provisions less releases 9,964 2
Recoveries of amounts previously written off (107) (99)
Net charge to income statement 9,857 2,012

b) Impairment provisions and losses on investment securities

Total impairment fosses on investment securities of £2,193m {2007 £60m) have been charged to the income statement, of which
£1,270m {2007 £23m) relates to available for sale financial assets (Note 41) and £923m (2007 £37m) relates to loans and receivables,
as shown below,
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2008 2007
Impairment provisions £m £m
At 1 January
New impairment provisions ess releases 923 37
Amounts written off (37)
At 31 December . 923
Impairment provisions are held in respect of:
Treasury 773
Corparate 150

923

2008 2007
Impairment losses £m £m
New impairment provisions less releases 923 37
Net charge to income statement . 923 37

SlUSWISIEIS [BIoUBU] o



74 HBOSplc Annual Report and Accounts 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

13 Taxation

The tax credit for the year of £3,409m (2007 tax charge of £1,365m) includes a £893m tax credit (2007 £18m tax charge) in respect
of the tax atiributable to the policyholder earings in the Group’s UK life companies. The 2007 tax charge of £1,365m includes a credit
of £178m in respect of the change in the rate of UK carporation tax. An overseas tax charge of £233m (2007 £293m) is within the tax
cradit of £3,400m.

2008 2007
£m £m
Current tax
Corporation tax on profit for the year {286) 1,156
Adjustmenits in respact of prior years (343) (32
Overseas taxation on profit for the year 219 285
Adjustments in respect of prior years 14 8
Relief for overseas taxation (49) (73)
{445) 1,344
peferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {2,939) 189
Adjustments in respect of prior years {25) 10
Deferred tax changes in rates of corporation tax (Note 34} {178)
{2,064) 21
Total income tax on (loss)/profit {3,409} 1,365
The above tax expensa is made up as follows:
Tax on policyholder returns {893) 18
Tax on shareholder returns (2,516) 1,347

The main UK corporation tax rate reduced from 30% to 28% in Aprt 2008. The average rate of UK corporation tax for the year {o
December 2008 is 28.5%. The sffsctive tax rate for the year is 31.5% (2007 24.9%) which is higher {2007 fower} than the average rate
of 28.5%. The differences are explained below.

2008 2007
em £m
{Loss)/profit befora taxation {10,825) 5,474
Expected tax (creditycharge at 28.5% (2007 30%) {3,085} 1,642
Effects of:
Changes in rates of corporation tax on deferred tax assets and liabilities bk (178)
{Income)/axpenses not deductiblesichargeabls) for tax purposes 358 (48)
Net effect of differing tax rates overseas 20 29
Gains exernpted or covered by logses {1385) {90}
Policyhalder tax for life assurance business {639) 13
Impairment on investment securities 56 16
Adjustments in respect of pravicus periods {341} (14)
Tax losses where no deferred tax provided 310
Other 36 (5)
Total income tax on {loss)/profit {3,409) 1,365
Currént tax credit recognised directly in equity )
Relating o share plans {21
Relating to available for sale investments {H) (117}
{11} T (138)
Deferred tax {¢redit)/charge recognised directly in equity (Note 34)
Relating to share plans 2 64
Relating to availzble for sale investments {1,917} (B5)
Relating to cash flow hedges ’ {376) {219)
Relating to employse benefits 202 130
Relating to long term assurance 5
Relating to other [§1]
{2,089) {86)

in addition there is £nil {2007 £1m) recognised in equity relating to changes in the rates of corporation tax (Note 34}.
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14 Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share are based upoen Group {foss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of £(7,580)m
(2007 profit £3,965m) which is calculated as follows:

2008 2007

£m £m
{Loss)/profit attributable to parent company shareholders (7,499) 4,045
Profit attributable to preference shargholders (81} (80)
{Lass)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for continuing operations {7,580) " 3,965

The average number of ordinary shares in issug in the prior year has been adjusted by the adjustment factor of 1.001 arising from
the Rights Issue and by a factor of 1.026 arising from the Capitalisation Issue. The impact on previously published comparatives is as
follows:;

2007
As pubfished:
Average number of ordinary shares in issue for basic EPS (millions} 3,735
- Earnings {pasic) 108.2p
- Earnings {diuted;} 105.5p
Restated:
Average number of ordinary shares in issue for basic EPS (millions) 3835
- Earnings {basic) 103.4p
- Earnings {dfiuted} 102.8p

To calculate basic earnings per ordinary share the weighted average number of 25p ordinary shares is used and for diluted
earnings per ordinary share the weighted average number of actual and potential 25p ordinary shares is used. Detaifs of these are
given bejow: :

2008 2007
Number Number
million million
{restated)
Actual weighted average number of shares in issue 4,518 3.838
Effect of dilutive share options and shares potentially to be issued or allotted 17 23
Potential weighted average number of shares in issue 4,535 3,858
The basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share are given below:

2008 2007
pence pence
{restated)

Earnings per ordinary share (continuing operations)
- Basic {167.8) 103.4
- Diluted™ (167.8) 102.8

(1) The effect of dilutive share options and shares potentially 1o be issued or allotted has not been included in the calzulation of diluted sarmnings per share for 2008
because doing so would have an anti-dilutive effect.

15 (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

By virtue of the exemption contained within Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the income statement of the Company is
not presented. Of the loss attributable to equity shareholders a loss of £1,902m {2007 profit £1,731m) is dealt within the financial
statements of the Company.
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16 Financial Instruments Held for Trading

Financial assets and liabilities hetd for trading (other than derivatives) are as follows:

2008 2007

£m £m
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities ’ ' 13,538 36,723
Loans and advances to banks 3,344 11,601
Loans and advances to customars 5,689 6,357
Total 22,571 54,681
Financial liabifities held for trading
Deht gecurities in issug 469
Deposits by banks 7,631 8,989
Customer accounts ' 11,220 13,247
Total 18,851 22,705

Financial assets held for trading include £4,369m {2007 £4,711m) subject to repurchase {Note 54}

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's (IASE) dacision in October 2008 to permit the reclassification of financial
assats, the Group's Treasury division reclassified certain securities from assets held for trading into the available for sale (AFS)
portiolio, and subsequently, in light of ingreasing Hliquidiity in the marksts for asset backed securities {ABS), changed the classification
of ABS from AFS to loans and receivables. Further datails of these reclagsifications are shown in Note 45,

17 Derivatives

The Group's derivative transactions are either custarner driven and generally matched, held within policyholder funds as permitted
by the investment strategies or are carried out for proprietary purposes within limits approved by the Board. Where a derivative held
tor economic hedging purposes does not qualify for hedge accounting, itis classified below as held for trading.

The Group uses interest rate swaps, Cross currency swaps and other derivative instruments to hedge and reduce the interest rate
and currency exposures that are inherent in any banking business. The hedge accounting strategy adopted by the Group is to utilise
a combination of the macro cash flow, ricro fair vaiue and nat investment hedge approaches.

2008 2007
Fair Value Fair Valus
Asset Liability Assat Liakility
£m £m £m £m

Total derivatives assets/liabilities:
He'd for trading 29,728 29,608 9,381 8,068
Held as qualifying hedges 22,082 9,297 4,760 4,243

Total recognised derivative assets/liabilities 51,810 38,905 14,141 12,311
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17 Derivatives continued

2008 2007
Group Fair value Fair value
Asset Liability Assat Liability
£m €m £m £m
Derivatives held for trading
Exchange rate related contracts:
Forward foreign exchange 2,209 3,690 1035 856
Cross currancy swaps 3,144 1,207 667 297
Options 1 1
5,353 4,897 1,703 1,154
Interest rate related contracts:
Interest rate swaps 19,417 21,267 5716 5,508
Forward rate agreements 1,474 1,461 119 11
Options 1,031 760 225 287
Futures 99 199 20 40
22,021 23,687 6,080 6,038
Equity/index and commadity related contracts:
Qptions and swaps 1,606 991 1,412 870
Credit related contracts:
Credit default swaps 748 a3 186 8
Tota! derivative assets/liabilities heid for trading 20,728 29,608 9,381 8,068
The Group has entered into derivative contracts for qualifying hedges as notaed balow:
2008 2007
Group Fair value Fair valua
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£Em £m £m em
Derivatives held as qualifying hedges
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges:
Interest rate swaps 4,738 574 732 575
Forward foreign exchange 27
Cross currency swaps 8,863 183 1,679 1,682
Options 55
13,601 812 2,411 2,284
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:
Interest rate swaps 7.218 8,337 1,558 1,801
Forward rate agreements 48 21 10 4
Cross currency swaps 1,037 123 756 139
Options 180
Futures 4 25 15
8,481 8,485 2,349 1,959
Total derivative assets/liabilities held as qualifying hedges 22,082 9,297 4,760 4,243

The Company has derivatives designated as fair vaile hedges. These comprise cross currency swaps with an asset fair value of
£2,495m (2007 £154m) and a liabitity fair value of £nil (2007 £49m), interest rate swaps with an asset fair value of £88m (2007 £8m)
and a liability fair value of £nil (2007 £7m) and indexation swaps 1o hedge subordinated debt with an asset fair value of £55m (2007

£nit}, and a liability fair valua of £55m (2CC7 Enil).

MBINBAD

MBIABY SSeuIsng

2oURLIBACY)

sjusweims jeroueuy o



78 HEQSplc Annual Report and Accounts 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

18 Loans and Advances to Customers

2008 2007

£m £m

Retail secured lending 239,758 235,858
Retail unsecurad iending 18,592 18,808
Corporate, International and Treasury 187,566 178,614
Gross loans and advances to customers 445,918 433,380
Impairment losses on loans and advances (Note 12) (10,693) (3,373}
Net leans and advances to customers 435,223 430,007

included In loans and advances fo customers is £56,858m (2007 £nil} subject to repurchase (Note 54).

Loans and advances to customers include advances securitised under the Group's securitisation and covered bonds programmes.
Further details are given in Note 18.

The Group's gross lending exposure before impairmment provisions and before taking account of collateral is analysed below:

2008 2007

£m £m

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 574 647

Energy 1,318 2,269

Manufacturing industry 3,887 4,332

Construction and property 46,634 41,099

Hotels, restaurants ang wholesale and retail trade 12,3686 12,620

Transport, storage and communication 7,693 6,834

Financial 8,729 6,312

Other services 12,688 14,749
‘Individuals h

Residential mortgages 238,696 235771

Cther personal lending 22,604 19,229

Nor-UK residents 90,726 89,518

445,916 433,380

2008 2007

£m £m

Loans and advances that are neither past due nor impaired (Note 48} 403,484 411,389

Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired (Note 48) 16,401 11,629

Impaired loans (Note 48) 26,031 10,362

445,916 433,380

Incluced in loans and advances that are neither past dua nor impalred are £478m (2007 £228m; of troubled debt restructured loans
that would have been past due or impaired had their terms not been renegotiated.

Loans and advances to customers include finance leases analysed as follows:

2008 2007
£m £m
Gross investment in finance receivables:
Within one year 2,994 3,206
Between one and five years 4,904 5,805
Morg than five years 3,986 4,221
11,884 13,232

Less: unearned finance income {1,849) (3,234)
Present value of minimum lease payments 10,035 9,998
Analysed as:
Within one ysar 2,407 2,669
Between ong and five years 3,796 4,646
More than five years 3,832 2,683
Finance lease receivables 10,035 9,008

At 31 December 2008 total unguaranteed residual values accrued to the benefit of the Group amounted to Enil (2007 £20m; and total
accumnulated allowances for uncollectable minimum lsase payments receivable amounted to £105m {2007 £67m).
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19 Securitisation and Covered Bonds

a) Securitisation

Loans and advances to customers inciude advances securitised under the Group's securitisation programmes, the majority of which
have been sold by subsidiary companies to bankruptcy remote special purpose entities {SPEs}), As the SPEs are funded by the issue
of debt on terms whereby some of the risks and rewards of the portfolio are retained by the subsidiary, the SPEs are consolidated
fully anc all of these advances are retained on the Group's balance sheet, with the related notes in issue included within debt
securities in tssue.

b) Covered bonds

Certain loans and advances to customers have been assignad to bankruptey remote limited liability partnerships to provide security
to issues of covered bonds by the Group. The Group retains substantially all of the risks and rewards associated with these loans and
the partnerships are consolidated fully with the loans retained on the Group's balance sheet, with the related covered bonds included
within debt securities in issue. :

The Group’s principal securitisation and covered bonds programmes, together with the balances of the advances subject to notes in
issue at 31 December, are listed below. The notes in issue are rgported in Note 37,

2008 2007
Gross assets Notes in Gross assets Notesin
securitised Issue sacuritised issue
Sacuritisation Typa of loan £m £€m £m £m
Permanent UK residential mertgages 32,613 38,490 31,577 31,540
Mound UK residential mortgages 8,063 - 8,238 4,545 4,454
Swan Australian residential mortgages 2,726 2,68¢
Gandide Dutch residential mortgages 5,569 5,704 2,705 2,768
Prominent Commaercial lcans 1,053 1,149 1,107 1,108
Pendeford UK residential mortgages 9,888 9,870 2.508 2,651
Melrose Commaercial lcans 750 1,134
Balliol UK residential mortgages 12,701 12,549
Bras UK residential mortgages 9,213 9,955
Dakeota UK residential morgages 3,988 3,685
Ceva UK residential morigages 6,747 6,703
Panarth Credit card receivables 4,189 2,633
Tioba UK residential morigages 2,647 2,568
Trinity UK rasidential morigages 12,975 12,638
Wolfhound Irish residential mortgages 4,083 4,107
Other UK residential mortgages 68 179 68 182
113,797 118,668 45,986 46,417
Coverad Bonds
Covered Bonds UK residential mortgages 51,756 49,408 34,711 38,315
Social Housing Covered Bonds UK residential morigages 3,475 2,919 2,354 1.519
) 55,231 52,327 37,065 39,834
Total securitisations and covered bonds 169,028 170,995 83,051 86,251
Less held by the Group {87,383) {84,265} (1.258) {1,258}
Total 71,665 76,730 81,703 84,893

The balances reported for the Prominent securitisation above include £456m {2007 £459m) advances and £456m {2007 £459m)
notes in issue that arise from a funded synthetic securitisation.

Cash deposits of £12,423m (2007 £5,144m) held by the Group are restricted in use to repayment of the debt securities issued by the
SPEs and other legal obligations.

In addition to the programmes noted above, the Group entered into synthetic securitisations, referencing an asset pool of £nil (2007
£14,089m), using credit default swaps of £nit (2007 £40m).

In total the Group has securitised £97,363m of mortgage assets under certain securitisation and covered bond programres

and purchased all of the loan notes in issue relating to those issuances for £94,265m. These transactions did not isad to any
derecognition of the mortgage assets as the Group has retained all of the risks and rewards associated with the loan notes. See Note
54 for further details about the Group's repurchase transactions.
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19 Securitisation and Covered Bonds continued

c) Other special purpose enlities

in addition to the SPEs describad above, the Group sponsors two conduit programmes, Grampian and l.andale, which invest in
asset-backed securities funded by commercial paper or through banking faciities. Detalls of the assets secured under thess conduit
programmes are given in Note 20. :

The SPEs within these conduit programmes are consolidated fully, except for two of the four SPE's within Landale. One ig the

central funding company for the conduit that obtains external funding and lends it to the purchasing companies. The secand is a
purchasing company that has acquired floating rate notes issued under the Group's mortgage securitisation programmes and which
is supported by liquidity lines that are provided by third party banks, These entities are not consolidated as there are insufficient
indicators of contral, in particular as the cradit risk relating to the assets held by the entities and the liquidity risks are not borne by the
Group. f thase two entities ware consolidated by the Group the financial impact would be rminimal with the principal effects increasing
deposlts by banks by £1,126m (2007 £1,756m) and customer accounts by £51m (2007 £100m} and increasing debt securities in
issue by £50m (2007 decrease by £1,856m). Group proflt before tax would be increased by £2m (2007 £0.5m).

20 Investment Securities

Group 2008
Policyholder
assels at fair At falr value
value through through
the income the income Available Loans and
statement statement for sale receivables Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Listed
Debt securities 20,880 6,145 22,071 25,325 74,421
Equity shares 37,806 293 112 38,211
Totai listed 58,686 6,438 22,183 25,325 112,632
Unlisted .
Debt securities 350 410 3,716 13,728 18,204
Equity shares 387 2,149 2,536
Total unlisted 350 797 5,865 13,728 20,740
Total 59,036 7,235 28,048 39,053 133,372
Comprising:
Dehbt securities 21,230 6,555 25,787 39,0583 92,625
Equity shares 37,806 680 2,261 40,747
Group 2007
Policyholdar
assats at fair At fair value
valua through through
the income the income Available Loans and
statement statermsnt for sala receivables Total
£m £m £m £m £
Listed
Debt securities 20,712 7774 31,944 60,430
Equity shares 46,875 383 261 47529
Total listed 67,587 8,167 32,205 107,959
Unlisted
Dept securnities 2 B47 14,833 702m 18,384
Equity shares 94 274 2,948 3,318
Total unlisted 96 1,121 17,781 702 19,700
Total 87,683 9,288 49,986 702 127,659
Comprising:
Debt securities 20,714 8,621 48,777 702 75,814
Equity shares 46,969 667 3,209 50,845

(1) Restated by £739m as explained in Note 21.

Included in investment securities is £37,263m (2007 £8,996m) subject to repurchase (Note 54).

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's (IASB) decision in October 2008 to permit the reclassification of financial
assets, the Group's Treasury division reclassified certain securities from assets held for trading into the available for sale {AFS)
portfolio, and subsaguently, inlight of increasing iliquidity in the markets for asset backed securities {ABS), changed the classification
of ABS from AFS 1o loans and receivables. Further details of these reclassifications are shown in Note 45.
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20 Investment Securities continued

The fair valug movement during the year on investment securities held at fair value through the income statement is a loss of
£13,415m (2007 gain of £1,014m) and the fair value movement during the year on investmeant securities classified as available for sale
is a loss of £8,173m (2007 a toss of £429m).

|.oans and receivables debt securities include ABS of £17,703m (end 2007 available for sale debt securities £18,563m) which are
held in the Group’s Grampian conduit. This is a series of bankruptcy remote special purpose entities (SPEs) that are funded by the
issue of commercial paper and banking facifities. The commaercial paper is included within debt securities in issue. As some of the
rewards and risks of the portioiic are retained by the Group, including the provision of liquidity facilities by Bank of Scotland pic ta the
conduit, the assets and liabilities of the conduit are consolidated as part of the Group. The Group alsc has a smaller conduit, Landaie,
of which two of the four SPEs are consolidated. These hold available for sale debt securities of £681m (2007 £604m). Details of the
Landale SPEs that are not consolidated by the Group are given in Nots 19,

Mo investment securities held by the Company at 31 Becember 2008 (2007 £1m),

21 Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Acquired Equity Share of Carrying
book value  adjustments net assels Goodwill value
Interests in jointty controlled entities £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 (as restated} 1,334 12 1,346 5 1,351
Exchange translation 1 1 1
Acquisitions and subscriptions of capital 329 329 329
Disposals (59) (3) {62) (62}
Loss after tax (669) (669) (669)
Dividends paid (12) (t2) {12)
At 31 December 2008 1,605 (672) 933 5 938
The Group's share of jointly controlied entities include the foliowing:
{Loss)/
profit Current  Non-current Cutrent  Non-current
Income Expenses Tax after tax assels assets fiabiltties labilities Equity
£m €m £m £m £m €m £m £m £m
2008 {440) (245) 16 {669) 2,388 5,470 {1,562) (5,358} 938
2007 529 1282} (13) 234 5,802 5,768 (5,128) 15,0931 1,351

The Group's unrecognised share of losses for the year is £164m (2007 £22m). For entities making losses, subsequent profits
earned are not recognised until previousty unrecognised losses are extinguished. The Group's unrecognised share of lossas
net of unrecognised profits on a cumulative basis is £211m (2007 £68m).

Acguired Equity Share of Carrying

bock value  adjustments net assets Goodwill value

interests in associates £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 (as restated) 367 6 373 373
Exchange transglation {1) (U] 1
Acquisitions and subscriptions of capital 160 160 160
Disposals (14} {14) (14)
Loss after tax {287) (287) {287)
Dividends paic {8} (8) {8}
At 31 December 2008 512 {289) 223 223
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21 Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates continued

The Group's share of associates include the following:

Loss
Revenus after tax Asgsets Liahilities Equity
£m £m £m £m £m
2008 {277) (287} 2,688 {2,465) 223
2007 26 1,876 1,503} 373

The Group’s unrecognised share of iosses for the year is £126m (2007 £5m). For entities making losses, subseguent profits
earnad are nol recognised until previously unrecognised losses are extinguished. The Group's unrecognised share of losses net of
unrecoghised profits on a cumulative basis is £131m (2007 £4m).

The Group's main jointly controlied entities af 31 December 2008 are as foliows:

Nature of Issued Giroup's Statutory Principal
businass share interest accounts areaof
capital made up to operations

Jointty controlied entities
AA Personal Finance Limited Finance ordinary £3,000,002 50% Dacember 2008 UK
esure Holdings Lt Ingurance ardlinary £3,330,000 70% Decemnber 2008 UK

preference £175,170,000 100%

Green Property Investment Fund 1 plc Investment ordinary 41,188,100 50% June 2008 Ireland
Sainsbury's Bank plo Banking ordinary 170,000,000 50% December 2008 UK

Except for the Green Property Investment Fung 1 pic which is incorporated in Iretand, all of the interests in jointly controlied entities
above are incorporated in the UK. Al interests in jointly controlied entities are held by subsidiaries. Where entities have accounts
tnat are drawn up to a date other than 31 December management accounts are used when accounting for them by the Group. The
Group’s remaining holding of 13% in Rightmove plc was disposed of during the year {Note 4).

During the year, the Group reviewed the classification of its investments in jointly controlied entities and associates together with its
tong term investment loans to joint ventures, (coliectively the Group's longer term interests in jointly controlled entities and associates)
in light of the deteriorating ecenomic environment. As a result of this review, certain longer tarm investment securities that in
substanca form part of the Group's overall net investment in jointly controlled entities and associates have been transferred from
investment securities - debt securities classified as toans and receivables 1o interasts in jointly controlied entities and associates.
These longer term interasts include loans for which settiement Is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the Group's interests in jointly controlied entities and associates have been restated in the 2007 consolidated balance
sheet as shown below. There is no overall impact on the net assets at 31 December 2007 as a result of this restaternent. Certain
2007 disclosures have been amended accordingly. ‘
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21 Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates continued

Acquired Equity Share of Carrying

ook value adjustments net assets Goodwill value

Intarasts in jointly controllad entities £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 (as published) 520 {105} 415 5 420
Transfer from investment securities 515 515 515
At 1 January 2007 (as restated) 1035 (108) 930 5 835
At 31 Dacember 2007 {as published) 819 12 831 3] 836
At 31 December 2007 (as restated) 1,334 12 1,346 5 1,351
Acquired £quity Share of Carrying

book value adjustments ngt assets Goodwil! velus

intarests in associates £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 (as pubiished) 133 48 181 18
Transfer from investment securities 224 224 224
AL 31 January 2007 (as restated) 357 48 405 405
At 31 December 2007 las published} 143 8 149 149
At 31 December 2007 (as restated) 367 6 373 373

22 Investments in Subsidiaries

investments in subsidiaries comprise investments in ordinary shares and capital contributions carried at cost.

Ordinary Capital
shares contributions Total
£m £m £€m
At 1 January 2008 ) 13,442 1,033 14,475
Subscriptions of capital 5,500 5,500
Impairment losses (4,192) {4,192)
At 31 December 2008 14,750 1,033 15,783

The impairment of £4,192m represents the write down of the company's investrnent in Bank of Scotland pl¢ to a recoverable
amount, based upon value in use, of £11,919m. The critical accounting estimate in respect of investment in subsidiaries explaing
the assumptions used and sensitivity of the impairment testing. The write-downs have been riggered principally by deteriorating
economic conditions,

Amounts ocwed by Group entities of £50,157m (2007 £38,885m) include £12,459m (2007: £10,044m) of other borrowed funds loaned
to subsidiaries.

The main subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Company's interest In ordinary Country of
share capital and voting rights Principal business incorporation
Bank of Scotland plc 100% Barking, financial and related services UK
and subsidiaries, including
Bank of Scotland {lrelana} Lic 100% Banking Ireland
HBOS Australia Pty Lic and subsidiaries 100% Banking Australia
HBCS Covered Bonds LLP 100%™ Residential mortgage funding UK
Halifax Share Dealing Lid 100% Exacution only stockbroking UK
HBOS Insurance & lnvestment Group Lid 100% Investment holding UK
and subsidiaries, including
Halitax General Insurance Services Ltd 100% General insurance brokerage UK
St. Andrew’s Insurance ple 100% General insurance UK
Clarical Medical Investment Group Ltd 100% l.ife assurance UK
Clerical Medical Managed Funds {td 10G% Life assurance UK
Halitax Life Lid 100% Life assurance UK
Halifax Investment Fund Managers Ltd 100% OEC management UK
Insight Investment Management Ltd 100% Investment management UK
Invista Real Estate Investrment Management Heldings plc 55% Property investment management UK
8t Andrews Life Assurance plc 100% Pensions UK
St. James's Place plc 60% Financial services UK

fay HBOS Covered Bonds LLP doas not have ordinary share capital. The Group consolicates 2 100% interest in this entity.
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29 nvestments in Subsidiaries continued

The above Informatian is provided in relation to the principal related undertakings and, in accordance with Section 231(5) of the
Companies Act 1988, a fult list of related undertakings, as at 31 December 2008, will be annexed to the Company’s next Annual
Return to be delivered to the Registrar of Companies for Scotland.

On 17 September 2007 in accordance with the provisions of the HBOS Group Reorganisation Act 2006 (the Act), the Goverrior and
Company of the Bank of Scotland registered as a public limited company under the Companies Act and changed its name to Bank
of Scotland ple. On the same day, under the Act, the business activities, assets {including investments in subsidiaries) and liabilities of
CAPITAL BANK plc, Halifax plc and HBOS Treasury Services plc transferred to Bank of Scotland plc.

All regulated banking and Insurance subsidiaries are requirad 10 rmaintain capital at levels agreed with the relevant regulators; this may
impact those subsidiaries’ ability to make distributions.

23 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

2008 2007
Group £m m
Goodwill 1,556 1,940
Other intangibles 819 850
2,375 2,790
2008 2007
Goodwlll £m £m
At 1 January ' 1,940 1,889
Exchange translation 30 38
Additions 33
Disposals {2586} {15
Impairment losses charged fo the income statement (158) (5)
At 31 December 1,556 1,840
Goodwill is analysed on a divisional basis as follows:
2008 2007
m £m
Retail 376 455
Corporate 268 277
Insurance & nvestment 850 832
International 23 337
Treasury & Asset Management 39 39
Total . I ' 1,566 1,840

The primary component of goadwill disposed of comyprises £240m in respect of the sale of Bank of Western Australia Ltd and
St, Andrews Australia Pty Ltd to Commanwealth Bank of Australia (Note 4).

The Group carries out semi-annual and, If necessary, other impairment reviews of cash-generating units to which goodwill is
allocated as described in the accounting palicy on goodwill. The critical accounting estimate in respect of goodwill explains the
assumptions used and sensitivity of the impairmert testing.

The goodwill impairment of £158m principally comprises £72m being the fuil weite-down of googwill held in respect of the acquisition
of the ICC business banking division in Iretand and £50m being the write-down of goodwiil relating to a specialist area of the UK
credit card business to a recoverable amount, based on a value in use, of £20m. The write-downs have been triggered principally by
deteriorating sconomic conditions.

In 2007, the impairment loss of £5rm related to a partial writa-down of the goodwill held in respect of fund management business in
Insurance & Investment division.

Cumulative impairment losses charged to the incoms statement total £218m (2007 £60m, 2006 £55m and 2005 £nil).
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23 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
2008 2007
Purchased Purchased
value of Software value of Software
in-force and other in-force anhd cther
investment Intangike invasiment intangible
contracts assets Total contracis assseis Total
Other intangible assets Em £m £€m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 396 1,333 1,729 396 1,068 1,465
Exchange translation 39 39 24 24
Acquired through business combination 7 7
Additions 306 306 249 249
Disposals {113} {113) {16) (16)
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings (3) {94) {9T)
At 31 December 393 1,471 1,864 398 1,333 1,729
Amortisation
At 1 January 75 804 879 45 620 665
Exchange translation 12 12 23 23
Amortisation charge for the year 27 182 209 30 163 193
Oisposals {2) {2) (2) (2)
Cisposal of subsidiary undertakings (1) {52) (53)
At 31 December 101 944 1,045 75 804 879
Carrying value
At 1 January 321 529 B5Q 351 449 800
At 31 December 292 527 819 321 529 850

The Company has other intangible assets relating to licenses at a cost of £10m (2007 £10m) less accumulated amortisation of £8m
(2007 £4m), of which £2m (2007 £2m) is the amortisation charge for the year.

24 Property and Equipment

2008 2007
Property Equipment Total Froparty Equipmant Total
£m £&m £m m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 1,733 1,622 3,355 1,662 1,613 3,275
Exchange translation 17 45 82 5 1 18
Additions 180 230 410 123 186 308
Disposals (118) {165} (283) (38} (187 {225)
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings (53) (108) {161)
Transfer to investment property (Note 25) (84) (84) {19) {19)
At 31 December 1,675 1,624 3,289 1,733 1,622 3,355
Depreciation
At 1 January 628 1,233 1,861 530 112 1,702
Exchange translation 8 31 39 5 7 12
Depreciation charge for the year 63 158 221 59 165 224
impairment logses an property under construction 10 10
Disposals (29) (135) {164) (26) (51) (77)
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings {16} {88} {101} ’
At 31 December 664 1,202 1,866 628 1,233 1,861
Carrying value
At 1 January 1,105 389 1,494 1,072 501 1,673
At 31 December 1,011 422 1,433 1,105 38g 1,494

Included within Group property and equipment are assets that are in the course of construction amounting to £8%m (2007 £306m)
which are not depreciated until the assets are brought into use. These are primarily propertiss that will be classified as investment

properties ypon completion.
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25 Investment Properties

2008 2007
. £m £m
At 1 January 4,731 5,010
Additions 128
Disposals [388) (&8}
Exchange translation 1
Net movement in properties held by policyholder funds {143) 351
Fair value movement : {1,358} (591)
Transfer from property and equipment {(Note 24) 84 19
At 31 December 3,045 4,731

Investment properties are carried at their fair value as determinad by independent qualified surveyors having recent expetience in
the location and category of the property being valued. Fair values were determined having regard to recent market transactions
for similar properties and in accordance with guidance published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyars. Valuations are
performed zt least annually.

Rental income and expenses in respect of the above properties amounted to £241m and £15m respectively (2007 £221m and
£11m respectively). At 31 Dacember 2008 investment properties of £3,001m {2007 £4,697rm} are held in the Insurance & lnvestment
business. ’

26 Operating Lease Assets

Assets leased to customers include the following amounts in respect of operating lease assets:

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying

Cost  Depreciation value Cost Depraciation value

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 6,483 {1,840) 4,643 6,164 . {1,483) 4,681
Exchange translation _ 96 {34) 62 (28) 30 2
Additicns 1,488 1,488 1,785 1,785
Disposals ] {1,733) 685 {1,048) {1,438} 598 1840)
Depreciation charge for the year {1,178) {1178) (085) {985)
At 31 December 6,334 (2,367) 3,967 6,483 {1840) 4,643

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellakle operating leases are dus io be received in the following periods:

2008 2007

£m £m

Not later than one year 849 864
Later than one year and nct later than five years 2,245 1,920
Later than five years 52 689
3,146 3473

included in the depreciation charge for the year is £144m (2007 £1m} in relation to changes in the estimated residual values of certain
operating lease assets.

Total future minimum sub-lease income of £18m at 31 December 2008 (£25m at 31 December 2007) is expacted to be received
under non-canceliable sub-ieases of the Group's premises.



HBOSpic Annual Report and Accounts 2008 ar
27 Deferred Costs
2008 2007
£m £m
Deferred acquisition costs 423 352
Deferred origination costs 758 749
1,181 1,101
The change in deferred costs is analysed as follows:
2008 2007
£m £m
At 1 January 1,101 853
Acquisition costs deferred during the year 418 588
Amortisation (312} {340)
Transfers (Note 28} {27)
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings (3)
Exchange translation 4 2
At 31 December 1,181 1,101
28 Value of In-Force Long Term Assurance Business
2008 2007
£m £m
At 1 January 3,184 3104
Unwind of discount rate 255 245
Expected return in the year (527) (415}
Effect of experience in the year (736) 1201)
New business 523 567
Changes in assumptions {96) (180)
Transfers 164
Exchange translation 225 64
At 31 December 2,992 3184

Transfer from investment contracts to long term insurance contracts
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During the year to 31 December 2008 changes have been made to certain investment bonds with additional lite cover being added.
In accordance with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’ this results in these products transferting from being accounted for as investment
contracts to insurance contracts. This has resulted in a £281m increase in the value of in-force long term assurance business.

This is partly offset by a net £96m, principally arising from a reduction in deferred origination costs, which are charged to fees and
commission expense. The overall impact of this change is an increase in profit before tax of £185m,

Also included within transfers is £117m that relates to a transfer from value of in-force long term assurance business to deferred costs.,

Assumptions
The key assumptions used in the measuremert of the value of in-force long term assurance business relating to insurance contracts
and investmeant contracts with a discretionary participating feature (DPF) are determined by the Board of Directors.

The sconomic assumptions that have the greatest effect on the calculation of the value in-force long term assurance business are set
out below.

The experisnce assumptions set out in Note 30 also have a significant effect on the cash flow projections. The selection of these
assumptions requires the application of material judgement and is made with reference to historic trends, taking into account the
analysis of actual versus expected experience as well as industry data.

Additional inforrmation on the long term assurance business risk is set out on pages 28 to 30 ¢f the Risk Management report.

Discount rate
The discount rate is used to calculate the present vatue of the future projected cash flows.

In 2008 gach cash flow is valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets. In
practice, to achieve the same result, where the cash flows are either independent of or move linearly with market movements, a
method has been applied known as the ‘certainty equivalent’ approach whereby it is assumed that all assats earn the risk free rate
and &ll cash flows are discounted at the risk free rate, The risk free rate assumed in valuing in-force businass is equal to the 15 year
gilt yield. This appiies to all business with the exception of immadiate annuity business.
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28 Value of In-Force Leng Term Assurance Business continued

The discount rate for annuity business is assumed 1o be higher than the risk free rate. Assets backing immediate annuity business
are invested in a mix of governmant stocks and corparate bonds, which are generally held to maturity. The yieid on corporate

honds typically exceeds the rigk free rate, partly reflecting ths risk of default, but also reflecting a premiurn required by invastors as
cormpensation for lower liquidity when compared with government stocks. The discount rate for annuity business is based on the
risk free rate with an aflowance for this ‘liquidity premiur’, [t is assumed that the prernium over the risk free rate is egual to 75% of the
spread between the yield on HBOS's portfolio of corporate bonds and the yleld on government stocks.

In 2007 the risk discount rate was increased to reflact the uncertainty associated with the projected cash flows. This increase can be
broken down into two principal components, being the market risk component and the non-market risk componeant.

‘he market risk component represented an allowance for uncertainty as to the level of future margins that woutd actually be achieved
by the Group's investments. The level of the market risk component was chosen g0 as to avoid capitalising any investment risk
premiums over the fong term view of the risk free rate of return. Following the move to the certainty equivalent approach in 2008, this
adiustment is no longer required as it is assumed that all assats earn the risk free rate.

The nan-market risk component represented an additional allowance In the risk discount rate to reflect the potential volatility of,
and uncartainty around, the future level of non-market risk inherent in the contracts. In 2008 this has been reptaced by an explicit
allowance for non-market risk, as describea below.

The breakdown of the discount rate is shown in ths table below:

2008 2007

% %

Risk free rate of return 3.74 5.0
Market risk compongnt n/a 1.0
Non-market risk component n/a 20
Total ] .~ 80

Investment return .

In 2008 it is assumed that all assets earn the risk free rate, in line with the certainty equivalent approach describad above, with the
exceptlon of immediate annuity business. For annuity business the assumed return is equal to the risk free rate plus the allowance for
the liquidity premium, calculated as described for the discount rate above,

in 2007 assumpticns were set for each individual asset class nased on the long term view of expected returns, and weighted 1o
produce an investment return assumption for gach particular class of business. The weighting was based on the long term asset
allocation sirategy for each class of business. In 2007 the long term view of expected returns was 5.0-5.5% for fixed interest
securities and 7.5% for equities.

Expenses

Operating expense assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force insurance cortracts and investment
contracts with DPF and associated overhaad expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base.

The current expenses are analysed having regard to the volume and type of buginess in force to derive per contract expense
‘assumptions. These per policy expensg assumptions are assumed to increase over the course of the projections in fine with
expected expenses over the plan pariod reverting 1o an assumed expense inflation rate of 3% {2007 3%, thereafter.

Non-market risk

* An allowance for non-market risk is made through the choice of kest estimate assurnptions based upon experience, which generally
will give the mean expectad financial outcome for shareholders and hence no further allowance for non-market risk is reguired.
However, in the case of operational risk and the with-profits fund there are asymmetries in the range of potential butcomes for which
an expiicit allowance is made.

Changes in assumptions

During the year, the certainty aquivalent approach described above was adopted, whereby it is assumed that all assets sarn the
risk free rate and all cash flows are discounted at the risk free rate. This applies to all business with the exception of immediate
annuity business, for which the giscount rate Is based on the risk frea rate plus an allowance for the liquidity premium. The certainty
equivalent approach has the effect of increasing the value of in-forca business assets by £143m in 2008, but has no effect on the
valuation of the related insurance contraci liabilities.

In addition to this, there were a number of changes to the underlying experience assumptions used to estimate the cashflows from
the long term assurance business. The selection of these assumptions also requires the application of material judgement and is
made with reference to historic trands, taking into account the analysis of actual versus expected experience as well as industry data.
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28 Value of In-Force Long Term Assurance Business continued

Sensitivities

The tables below indicate the stand alone impact of changes to certain key variables on long term assurance business, this includes
the impact on long term insurance contracts, investment contracts with DPF, value of in-force long term assurance business and
refated financial assets in support of the long term business but excluding thase relating o investrnent contract liabilities.

2008
increase/
{decrease}
in profit
Change In aflter tax
variable £m
Interest rates increase into perpetuity 25bps (24)
Equity/property market values fall and thereafter increase based
on the long term view of the risk free rate -10% {97}
Maintenance expenses fall and thereafter increase by the estimated expense inflation rate -10% 46
Mortality/morbidity rates decrease across all non annuity policy types and age groups -5% 33
Mortality rates decrease across all annuity policy types and age groups -5% {25)
Lapse and surrender rates decrease across all policy types and
cohorts over the duration of their lives {excluding paid-up policies) -10% 114
2007
Increase/
{dacrease)
in profit
Change in after tax
variable £m
Intgrest rates increase into perpstuity 25bps {23}
Equity/progerty market values fali and thereafter increase based onthe long term view of the risk free rate -10% (108}
Maintanance expenses fall and thareafter increase by the estimated expense inlation rate -10% 43
Mortality/morbidity rates decrease across all nen annuity poticy types and age groups -5% 30
Mortality rates decrease across all annuity policy types and age groups -5% {20)
Lapse and surrender rates decrease across all policy types and cohorts over the duration of their lives
(excluding paid-up policies) -10% 77

Although the tables above demonstrate the impact of individual variable changes, in practice due to the correlation between certain
variables change in one variable would normally be expected to have an impact on other assumptions. It should also be noted that in
some instances these sensitivities are non-linear,

29 Other Assets

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Reinsurance assets (Note 30) 1,396 963
Group refief recoverable 170 380
Other assets 3,455 8,505 15 15
4,851 7,468 185 395
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30 Insurance Contract Liabilities

2008 2007
Reinsurance Reinsuranca
Gross assets Nut of Gross agsets Nei of
liabltities {Note 29)  reinsurance lighilitias (Note 26} reinsurance
£m £m £m £m em £m
Long term insurance contract liabilities
insurance contracts within the with-profit funds 5,394 5,394 5,640 5,640
insurance contracts within the non-profit funds 24,610 (1,387) 23,223 20,274 (956} 19,318
30,004 (,387) 28,617 25914 {956) 24,958
General insurance contract liabilities
Provision for unearmed premiums 488 {5) 483 652 (7} 845
Claims provigions including claims incurred ' -
but not reported (IBNR) 220 (4} 216 208 298
108 {9) 699 950 ) 943
Total insurance contract liabilities 30,7112 {1,396} 29,316 26,864 {963) 25,901
The change in insurance contract liabilities {net of reinsurance) is analysed as follows:
2008 2007
£m £€m
At 1 January 25,904 24,103
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings {27)
Transfor from investment contracts 1o long term insurance contracts (Note 28} 6,203
Changes in assumptions 81 (279}
{Reduction inj/additions to insurance liabilties arising {3,279} 1,895
Exchange franslation 457 182
At 31 December 29,316 25,901

Long term insurance contract liabilities
The Group principally writes tha following long tarm cont

racts which contain insurance risk. The contracts also contain financial risk.
The principal risks associated with each type of contract are described below.

Life assurance — The policyholder is insured against death or permanent disabiity usually for predetermined amounts (principaly

martality and disability risk).

Anauity products — The policyholder is entitied to payments for the duration of their lifa and is therefore insured for living longer than

expected (principally longevity and market risk).

With-profit business - The primary purpose of these products is to provide a long term smoothied investment vehicle to the

policyholder, protecting them against short term market fluctuations. The policyholder is also usually insured against death and the
policy may carry an annuity option at maturity {principally market risk}.

Unitinked business — The primary purpose of these products is to provide an investment vehicle but where the policyholder is also

insured against death (principalty market risk),

Additional information on the risk associated with the long term assurance business is set out on pages 28 10 30 of the Risk

Management report.

The table below sets out the extent of the above exposures based on the carrying value of the liabilities:

2008 2007

Rainsurers’ Net Hainsursrs’ Net

fnsurance share of insurance Insurance share of insurance

contract contract contract contract epntract contract

liabilities llabilities liabilities liapilties liabikies ligbilities

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Life assurance 636 (65) 57t 327 {28} 299
Annuity products 2,198 2,198 2,041 2,041
With-profit 5,394 5,394 5,640 5,640
Unit-iinked 21,759 {1,314) 20,445 17,853 {©21) 16,972
Other 17 {8) 9 13 7) 3]
Total 30,004 {1,387} 28,617 25,914 (956} 24,958
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30 Insurance Contract Liabilities continued

Guarantees and options

The products with the maost significant guarantees and aptions are certain with-profit bonds which allow surrenders at specified
dates without market value adjustments being applied and withdrawals 10 be taken without penalty; certain contracts which provide
guaranteed minimum levels of return on policyholder contributions made to the contract; and certain pension contracts containing an
option that allows the policyholder to take an annuity benefit at any time between their 60th and 75th birthday on annuity rates that
were guaranteed at the outset of the contract. There are no other material guarantees and options within the long term assurance
business other than those discussed above.

For contracts where there are guarantess and options the most significant factor in determining the cost of the guarantees and
options {other than economic conditions in which the opfion or guarantee has value) is the actual take up rate of options. The most
significant factor in determining take up rates is customer behaviour which is influenced by a number of facters including the value
of the contract, and the financial circumstances of the individuals. The financial impact is dependent on the value of corresponding
investments, interast rates and longevity at the time of the claim.

In order to measure the risk of these guarantees, the Group makes use of statistical modelling technigues where appropriate to
determine the possible and most likely range of outcomes. To help mitigate the risks, the Group makes use of matching techniques in
order to hedge part of the expected cash flows ariging under the guarantees in these contracts with financial instruments,

Experience and valuation rates of interest assumptions
The assumptions used in the measurement of insurance liabilities are determined by the board of directors. Material judgement is
required in the cheice of assumptions refating to insurance contracts,

The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the measurement of the insurance contract liabilities are set out by type of busingss
below. -

Mortality and longevity rates
The process used to determine the Group’s mortality and longevity assumptions starts with an intemal investigation of the Group’s
actual mortality experience over the last five years. This investigation is updated regularly.

The results of this investigation are considered in the context of a number of factors including the credibility of the results (which will
be affected by the volume of data available), any exceptional events that have occurred during the period being considered, any
known or expected trends in underlying data and relevant published market data.

The rates derived from the Group's experience are adjusted in the light of the faciors mentioned above to derive a set of 'best
estimate’ rates. No deliberate margins for prudence are introduced as part of this process. These ‘best estimate’ assumptions will be
used in the projection of ‘best estimate’ cash flows, such as the measurement of the valug of in-force long term assurance business.

Fer insurance contracts within the non-profit funds, the liabilities are assessed on a prudent basis and hence the rates used need to
inckide a margin for adverse deviation that will increase liabilities and provide sorme protection from the risk that actual experience is
worse than the ‘best estimate’ agsumptions.

For insurance contracts within the with-profit fund, the liakilities are reguired to be determined using the realistic or 'best estimate’
assumptions.

The moriality tables used to determine insurance contract liabilities are as follows:

2008 2007
Non-profit policies
Pension annuities
Males 90% PMAZ2 me 98% PMAS2 mec
{(1.5% minimum improvement) {1.5% minimum improvement)
Females 87% PMA92 mc 80% PFAS2 75%mc
{1% minimum improvement) {1% minimum impravement)
Term assurances
Males 33% - 138% TM92 24% - 79% TM92
Females 33% - 94% TF92 26% - 95% TF92
Unit-linked policies
Life assurance and pensions 49.5% - 88% AM92/AF92 58% ~ 143% AMO2/AF32
With-profit pelicies
Life assurance and pensions 60.5% -88% AM92/AF92 49% - 132% AMOZ/AF92

For life assurance policies, increased mortality rates would lead to a larger number of claims and claims oceurring sooner than
anticipated, increasing the expenditure and reducing profits. For annuity contracts, the opposite is true.
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30 Insurance Contract Liabilities continued

Lapse and surrender rates {persistency)

A lapse oceurs when the termination of a contract results from the non-payment of premiums due under that contract. A surrender
occurs when a policyholder decides to voluntarily terminate their contract. Paid-up and partia! surrender are additional forms of lapse
and surrender. :

The process used to determine contract lapse and surrender rates is similar to that used to determine mortality and longevity rates.
The previous experience of the Group from 2005 to 2007 is analysed using statistical techniques, As the experience can vary
considerably between different praduct types and for contracts which have been in force for different pericds, the Internal analysis
breaks the data down into broadly hormegeneous groups for the purposes of this analysis, This analysis Is updated regularly.

The most recent experience is considered along with the results of previous analyses in order to determine a 'best estimate’ view

of what persistency experience will ba in the future. In determining this “best estimate’ view, a number of factors are considered
including the credibility of the results (which will be affected by the volume of data available), any exceptional events that have
occurred during the period being considered, any krown or expecied trends in underlying data and relevant published market data,

These 'best estimate’ assumptions will be used in the projection of 'best estimate’ cash flows, such as the measurement of the value
of in-force long term assurance business. For insurance contracts within the non-profit funds, the liabilities are calculated assuming a
prudent scenario. For insurance contracts within the with-profit fund, the liabilities are required to be determined using the realistic or
‘best estimatg’ assumptions.

Lapse and surrender rates vary according to bath contract type and the length of time a contract has baen irt force. No iapse and
surrender rates have bean presented bacause it is impractical to summarise the information in & meaningful marner.

The impact of an increase in lapse and surrender rates on contracts without guarantees and options would most fikely resull in a
decrease in profits, as the contracts would no lenger be in force to generats cash flows in the future. However, for certain policies
with valuable guarantees and options {principally within the with-profit fund), increased lapse and surrender rates may be beneficial to
the Group &s the policyholder loses the ability to exercise the potentially vajuable guarantee or option when their palicy terminates.

Valuation rate of interest
The valuation rate of interest is the rate used 1o discount the projected cash fiows on the contracts in order to datermine the value of
the liabliities as at the reperting date.

For insurance contracts within the non-profit funds, the liabillties are calculated using an estimate of the prudent vatuation rate of
intarast determined according to specific rules set out by the Financial Services Authority,

For insurance contracts within the with-profit fund, the liabilites are calculated using a reafistic or market consistent valuation rate of
interest based on the prevailing economic conditions at tha time of the liability assessment without further adjustment.

The valuation rates of interest used are as follows:

2008 2007
Nan-profit pelicies
Pension annuities 2.2% -4.9% 4.1% - 5.3%
Term assurances 2.5% - 3.7% 35%-44%
Unit-linked palicies
Life assurance 3.1% - 3.4% 3.3% - 4.0%
Pensions 2.4% - 3.4% 41% - 4.8%

In isolation, an increase in the vatuation rate of interest decreases Yabilities leading to an increase in profits or vice versa.

Discretionary participating bonus rates

The distributions to policyholdars with insurance and irvestment contracts with DPF are determined by the board of directors of
subsidiaries based cn local regulations and in line with arrangements in indfvidual policy contracts. For insurance and investment
contracts with DPF in the with-profit fund, the distributions to poiicyholders are governad by the fund’s Principles and Practices of
Financial Management. No material changes were made to the distribution policies for insurance and investrnent contracts with DPF
during the year under review.

Changes in experience and valuation rate of interest assumptions

The cnly significant changes to the assumptions used lo calculate the value of policyholder lisbilities at the year ended 31 December
5008 from those used at the year end 31 December 2007 were due to the changs in valuation rates of interest which were updated
to reflect prevailing economic conditions at the balance sheet date. The valuation rate of interest assumptions were broadly matched
by changes In the valuation of investment securities.
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30 Insurance Contract Liabilities continued

General insurance contract liabitities
The insurance business's general insurance claim provisions including IBNR by policy type are set out in the table below:

2008 2007
Relnsurers’

share of Reinsurarg'
Gross claims claims Net claims Gross ¢laims  share of claims Net claims
provisions provisions provisions provisions provisions provisians
£m £€m £m £m £m £m
Repayment insurance "3 4) 109 34 94
Household insurance 104 104 182 192
Other insurance 3 3 12 12
Total 220 (4) 216 203 298

Assumptions

For general insurance contracts, claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reported by policyholder and IBNR claims) are
established to cover the ultimate costs of settling the liabiiities in respect of claims that have occurred and are estimated based on
known facts and anticipated experience at the balance sheet date. The provisions are refined as part of a regular cngoing process
as claims experience develops, certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. Outstanding claims provisions are not
discounted for the timea value of money,

The measurement process primarily includes projection of future claims costs through a combination of actuarial and statistical
projection technicues. In certain cases, where thera is a lack of reliable historical data on which to estimate claims development,
relevant benchmarks of similar business are used in developing claims estimates.

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the general insurance business's past claims development experience.

This includes assumptions in respect of average claims costs, claims hancling costs, claims inflation factors, and claim numbers
for each accident year. Judgement is used to assess the exient to which external factors such as jucicial decisions and government
tegislation affect the estimates.

Additienal information on the Group's general insurance risk is given on pages 28 to 30 of the Risk Management report.

General insurance claims devefopment table

The development of general insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group's abillity to estimate the ultimate value of glaims.
The top half of the table below ilustrates how the Group's estimate of total claims outstanding for each accident year has changed at
successive year ends. The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the net liability appearing in the balance sheet.
The accident year basis is considered the most appropriate for the busingss written by the Group.

Accident year 200 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total
£m £Em £ £m £ £m tm Em £Em

Estimate of uitimate claims costs;

At end of accident year 62 77 85 177 328 363 482 324

Onea yaar later 50 56 62 158 278 316 391

Two vears latar 48 55 66 154 277 313

Three years later 48 55 66 155 274

Four years later 48 55 865 155

Five years tater 48 55 85

Six years later 48 58

Seven years later 48

Current estimate of )

cumulative claims 48 55 B5 155 274 313 391 324 1,625

Cumulative payments to date {48) {55) (85} {153) (272} {305) (365) {148) {1,409)

Total net Hability included

in the balance sheet 2 2 8 26 178 216
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31 Investment Contract Liabilities

2008 2067

£m £m

investment contract liabilities 29,057 40,387

Investment contract liabitties with a discretionary participating feature 6,161 7,192

35,218 47,579

Investment contracts refated to colletive investment schemes 4,264 5,249

Total investment contract liabilities 39,482 52,828
32 uUnallocated Surplus

2008 2007

£m em

At 1 January 1,493 1,543

Change in the year {942} {50

At 3t December 551 1,483

The nature of certain insurance and investmant contracts with DPF within the with-profit fund Is such that the allocation of the surplus
assets between the policyhalder and the Group has not been determined at the snd of the accounting period. The unallocated
surpius comprises these surplus assets and is deemed 10 be & liablity until allocation to the appropriate party has been determined.
In accordance with the requirements of FRS 27, the 'best estimate’ of the Group's share of future bonuses has been recognised as

part of the unallocated surplus.

Sensitivities

The table below indicates the stand alone impact of changes to certain key variables that have the greatest impact on the Group's
with-profit fund. These are shown with reference to the unallocated surplus and the underlying with-profit fabilities:

2008
Increase/ mpact on
Changein (decrease}in unallocated
variable llabilities surplus
£m m
Interest rates increase into perpetuity 25 bps (117}
Equity/property rarket values fall and thereafter increase based
on the long term view of the risk free rate ‘ -10% {312) {96)
Lapse and surrender rates decrease across all policy types and cohorts
{excluding paid-up policies) -10% 36 (36)
2007
Increase/ tmpact on
Change in {dacrease) in unallocated
variabie fiabilities surplus
om £m
Interest rates increase intc perpetuity 25bps {94} 29
Equity/property market values fall and thereafter increase based on the long term view of the risk free rate -10% (652} (257)
Lapse and surrender rates decrease across all policy types and cohorts {excluding paid-up policies) -10% 16 {16)

Although the tables above demonstrate the impact of indivicual varlable changes, in practice due to the correlation between certain
variables a change in one variable would normally be expected to have an impact on other assumptions. It should also be noted that

in some instances thesa sensitivities are non-linear.
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33 Retirement Benefit Obligations

The Group operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes, as wel as defined benefit post retirernant medical
and concessionary mortgage plans. The charge for the year in respect of the pension schemes is £272m (2007 £206m) comprising
£167m {2007 £141m;} for defined bensfit schemes, £101m (2007 £80m) for defined contribution schemes and £4m {2007 £5m)

for other post retirement benafits. The Group's IAS 19 pension surplus across all defined benefit post employment pians as at 31
December 2008 comprises an asset of £629m and a deficit of £1562m {gross of deferred tax) giving a net surplus of £E477m. As at 31
December 2007, the IAS 19 position was a deficit of £347m (gross of deferred tax).

Defined contribution post employment benefit plans
The principal Group defined contribution plan is the HBOS Group Money Purchase Scheme. it is funded by contributions from
colleagues and the Group. New colleagues are automatically enrolied in the scheme unless they opt out.

The level of Group contributions for the majority of members who contribute at the core rate of 4% is 6%. In addition, if members
wish to pay more, then the Group will also make further contributions in respect of the membars first 4% of additional contributions.
For the majority of members, stepping their contribution rate to 8% will result in the Group stepping up its rate to 12%. Higher levels
of Group cortributions are available to more senior colleagues. Alternatively, members may elect to pay a lower contribution of

2% and receive Group contributions at 3%. These were the levels of contributions for colleagues and Group for the majority of the
existing members at Aprif 2006 and other colleagues who were autcmatically enrolled into the plan. The respective default rates for
colleague and Group contributions have been increased to 3% and 4.5% in 2007 and was increased (0 4% and 6% in 2008.

The expense of all the Group defined contribution plans for the year ended 31 December 2008 was £10tm {2007 £60m).

Defined benefit post employment benefit plans

The Group provides severat defined benefit plans. The main scheme is the HBOS Final Salary Pension Scheme (HBOS FSPS} which
is a closed funded schems. It was formed in July 2006 through the merger of the Group's four main UK defined benefit schemes.
Accordingly disclosures prior to the date of the merger have been re-analysed to show pro forma comparatives for the HBOS FSPS
based on the comparative disclosures of the four legacy schemes.

Separate disclosures for all other defined benefit pension plans within the Group are made under the heading ‘Other Schemes’”.
These contain a mixture of funded and unfunded schemes and arrangements.

Separate disclosures are also made on a combined hasis for the unfunded post retirement medical plans and concessionary
mortgage plans under the heading ‘Other Post Retirement Benefits',

The Company sponscrs the HBOS FSPS Equitable Life Assurance Scheme (closed fund scheme), the unfunded scheme as included
within Other Schemes and the post retiremeant madical and martgage schemes as included within Othar Post Retirement Benafits,
The net assets of these schemes are £576m, £53m, £{48Ym and £(55)m respectively totalling £525m (2007 £(263)m, £{44)m and
£(53)m respectively totalling £(36G)m). Accordingly the disclosures relating to the HBOS FSPS and Other Fost Retirement Benefits
are also those of the Company.

The unfunded scheme in the Company had a lability of £44m at the start of the year (2007 £44m) and £49m at the year end (2007
£44m). The pension expense relating to the unfunded scheme in the Cormpany is £3m (2007 £2m) and Is comprised of an interest
cost and current service cost of £3m and £nil respectively (2007 £2m and £nil). In addition benefits paid by the Company in respact
of the unfunded scheme during the year amounted to £2m (2007 £2m). The unfunded pension liabilities have been secured by
assets held by the Group. These assets, comprising listed investment securities held at a value of £51m at 31 December 2008
{2007 £56m), are included in the Group's investment securities and would only be available to members in the event of certain
contingencies, such as the fallure to pay bensfits.

The assets of the Group's funded schemes are held in separate trustee-administered funds, which are independent of the Group's
own assets, to meet the long term pension ligbilities of past and present employees. The trustees of the schemes are required to act
with regard to tha best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries and a number of trustees are nominated or elected by the members
of the schemes, The trustees, in consultation with the Group, set the schemes' investment strategias and, with the agreement of the
Group, set the level of contributions to be made to the schemes.

The fiabilities of the defined benefit schemes are measured by discounting the estimated future cash flows to be paid cut by the
schemes using the projected unit method. This method is an accrued benefit valuation technique that makes allowances for
projected earmings. The Group estimates the average duration of the liabilities of the defined benefit scheme to be 23 years.

Following its formation in 2006, the first funding valuation and the most recent published valuaiion of the HBOS FSPS was carried

out as at 31 December 2006 by an independent actuary. The financial assumptions adopted within this valuation were based upon
the economic conditions prevailing at the date of valuation. This resulted in the Group adjusting the rate of regular contributions to
around 23% of pensionable salaries with effect from July 2007. From 1 June 2008 a salary sacrifice was introduced. Under this
arrangement all member contributions are instead paid by the Company, with a corresponding adjustment made to members’

net salaries. {This similarty applies to the defined contribution schemes noted above). In the light of the deficit of £96m under the
assumptions agreed for the valuation, the Company alsc agreed to make annual deficit contributions of £50m per annum for each of
the years 2007 to 2010 inclusive. The Company has paid £100m in respect of the first two years contribution during 2007. As such no
deficit contributions were paid in 2008. The level of contriputians payabile 1o the scheme is expected 1o be reviewed again following
complation of the next scheduled funding valuation, due as at 31 December 2009.

The Company cperates a post retiroment medical plan for certain former employees and provides post retirement mortgage benefits
to both current and retired employees.
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33 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued

On 1 January 2008, the Clericat Medical International Pension Schems, which is a funded defined benefit plan, included within
Other Schemes was merged with the HBOS FSPS. In anticipation of this, the Company paid a deficit recuction contribution
of £5m during 2007 as part of the merger agreement.

The Group's net post retirement berefit liabilities in respect of its defined benefit plans are analysed as follows:

. 2008 2007
Other Post Other Post
HBOS Other Retirement HBOS Cther Retirgrnent
FSPS Schemes Benetits Totat FSPS Schemes Banefits - Total
£m £m £m £m £m em £m tm
Defined benefit obligations {6,195) {514) {55) {6,764) (7.072) (B51) (53} (7,676)
Fair value of assets 6,771 470 7,241 6,809 520 7329
Met asset/(liahilities) 576 {44) {55) 4770 (263) {31) (53} (347)
Movements in the net post retirement
henefit liabilities wera as follows: . :
At 1 January {263) {31) {53) (347) (778} 7% {55} {912)
Pension expenss (157} {10) (4) (171} {131) (10} {5 {148)
Group contributions 191 a0 a1 250 42 292
Bensfits paig directly by the Group 2 2 4 1 2 3
Actuarial gains/{losses) 805 {35) 770 396 15 5 418
Al 31 December 576 (44) (55) 477 {263) (31) (53} (347)
Moverments in the defined benefit
obligations were as fallows:
At 1 January 7,072 551 53 7,676 6,952 549 55 7556
Etfect of scheme marger 26 (26)
Currant service cost 198 13 1 212 210 12 2 224
Plan participant contributions " 1 12 23 1 24
Interest cost 404 3t 3 438 358 28 3 389
Benefits paid (208) {15) (223) {185) 19} (184}
Benefits paid directly by the Group (2) {2) {4) {1) 2) (3}
Net actuarial {gains)/losses {1,320) (67) (1,387} (311) {24) {5) {340}
Past service cost 12 2 14 5 1 i}
Settlement/curtailment {9) {9) {4) 4
Foreign exchange translation 35 35 8 1
At 31 December 6,195 514 55 6,764 7,072 551 53 7676
tavements in the fair value of
plan assets were gs follows:
At 1 January 6,309 520 7.329 617 470 6,644
Effect of scheme merger 21 {21)
Actual return on plan assets (53} (65) {118} 527 24 551
Group contributions 191 30 221 250 42 292
Plan particicant contributions " 1 12 23 1 24
Benefits paid {208) {15) {223) {168) {19) (1843
Settlernent/curtailment (13} (13) (6) (6)
Foreign exchange translation 33 33 8 3
At 31 December 6,771 470 1,241 6,808 520 7,329
The fair valug of plan assets at
31 December comprise the following:
Equity instruments 2,814 234 3,048 3,940 260 4,200
Bonds 3,77¢% 137 3,916 2,478 329 2,607
With-profit investments 15 15 50 50
Property 178 7 185 298 8 3086
Qther assets 77 77 a3 73 166
Total value of assets 6,771 470 7,241 6,809 520 7,329
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33 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued
The expense recognised in the income statement for the year ending 31 December comprises:
2008 2007
Other Post Other Post
HBOS Other Retirement HBCS Other Hetirement
FSPS Schemes Benefits Total FSPS Schemes Benefits Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Current sarvice cost 198 13 1 212 210 12 2 224

inferest cost 404 K| 3 438 358 28 3 389

Expected return on assets {482) {(35) {497) {442) (33) (475)

Setilement/curtailiment 4 4 2 2

Past service cost 12 2 14 5 1 6

Effoct of scheme merger § {5}

Total expense 157 10 4 171 131 10 5 146
The actuarial gains/(fosses) recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense for the year ending 31 December
comprises:

2008 2007

Other Post Cther Post

HBOS Qther Retirement HBOS Other Retiremant
FSPS Schemes Benefits Total FSPS Schemes Benefits Total
£m £m £m £m £m m £m om

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (515) {100} {615} 85 {9) 76

Experience {loss)/gain on plan liabilitiss (22) (3) {25) 91} 4) 1 (94}

Gain/{loss) from change

in assumptions 1,320 87 3 1,410 402 28 4 434

Total actuarial gains/{losses) 805 (35) 770 396 15 5 418

The Group’s policy for racognising actuarial gains and losses is to take them directly to reserves in the period in which they arise.

A gain of £568m (2007 gain of £312m) (net of tax) was recognised in the consoiidated statement of recognised income and expense
in the year, Cumulative actuarial gains and ksses recegnised in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense at

31 Dacember 2008 amounts to a gain of £744m (2007 a gain of £176m) (net of tax).

The expected and actual returns on plan assets for the HBOS FSPS and other schemes is as follows:

2008 2007

HBOS Other HBAS Other
FSPS Schemes Total FSPS Schemes Total
£m £m €m £m £m £m
Expected return on plan assets 462 35 497 442 33 475
Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan assets {515) {100) (615) 85 (9) 76
Actual return on plan assets (53} {65) {118) 527 24 551
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33 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued

The history of expetisnce adjustments for the HBOS FSPS and other schemes is as follows:

2008 2007
HBOS Other HBOS Other
F5PS Schemes Total FSPS Schemas Total
£m £m £m £m em £m
Defined benefit obligations {6,195) {514) (6,709) (7,072) (851) (7.623)
Fair value of plan assets 6,77 470 7,241 6,809 520 7,329
Net assets/{liabilities) 576 {44) 532 (263) 31 {294}
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities: {Loss)/gain {£m) {22} {22) L)) {4) {95)
Percentage of plan liabiities (%) 5 1 . 1 1 1
Experience adjustments on plan assets: Gaindloss} (£m) {515) {100} {615) 85 (9) 76
Percentage of glan assets (%%} 8 21 8 1 (2 1
2006 2006
HBOS Othar HBOS Other
FSPS Schemes Total FSPS Schemes Total
£m £m em £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligations (6,952) (549} (7.501) {8,635) (500) (7,135)
Fair value of plan assets 6,174 470 6,644 4,934 409 5,343
Net fiabilities (778) (79) 857) (1,701) {91) {1,792)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilties: {LossYGain (Em) 138 7 143 (83) 7) (80}
Percentage of plan liabilities (%) @) 1 (2) 1 1 i
Experience adjusiments on plan assets: Gain {(£m) 149 25 174 581 10 591
Percentage of plan assets (%) 2 5 3 12 2 1t

The mortality assumptions used in 2008 are unchanged from those adopted following the 31 December 2006 valuation of the FSPS.
For current and deferred pensioners table PNAGO projectad to 2006 using the base level of improvements from the *92° serlas, with
subsequent future improvernents in fine with the 92" series ‘medium cohort’ projections have been used with a 10% loading to the
female table reducing life expectancy. This is to align it with actual axperience for the schemes’ pensioners. For active members tabie
A92ULT multiplied by 70% has been used.

Summary of assumptions and membership data
The following assumiptions and data have been used in respect of the defined benefit pension schemes:

HBOS FSPS Other Schemes

2009 2008 2007 2006 2008 2008 2007 2008
Actuarial assumptions at
beginning of the year
Discount rate {%) 6.25 570 515 4.85 5.7 570 - &a15 4.85
RP inflaticn rate 30 3.4 30 28 3.4 34 30 28
Expected return on plan assets™ (%) 5.53 8.78 718 715 6.66 6.66 6.86 8.29
Salary increases™ {%) 3.5 39 3.5 33 3.9 38 a5 33
Pension incroases™ (%) 3.0 33 3.0 28 3.3 33 3.0 2.8
Life expectancy at age 60 (years)
Retired members
Males 26 26 26 23 26 26 26 23
Females 27 27 27 26 27 27 27 26
Non-retired mambers
Males 27 27 27 24 27 27 27 24
Fermalas 29 29 29 27 29 29 29 27

{a) The expected rate of return on plan assets shown above is a weighted average based on the current investment stratagy. Refurn seeking asssls {eg equities) are

assumed 1o retum 7.55% pa, low risk matching assets (predominanily gilts) are assumed 1o return 3.85% pa, corporate bonds are assumed to return €.25% pa. wilh

profits funds are assumed to return 6.25% and property is assumed o return 6.5% pa.

In addition to the general assumed rate of salary increases. thare is a separaie assumed salary scale of increages due 1o promotions and increasing seniority worth

about 0.6% In oversl terms.

{c) The pension increase Is on the excess over the Guaranteed Minimum Pension. Pensions which are guaranteed ta increase at a rate of al least 3% per annum have
been assurned 1o increase at 3.25% per annum for the end of year caiculations (3.60% per annum {or 2007 and 3.40% per annum for 2006).

b

The expected company contributions for the year commenging 1 January 2000 total £274.5m (2008 £215.9m),
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33 Retirement Benefit Obligations continued

A summary of the membership data at the end of each year is as follows:

HBOS FSPS Other Schemeas

2008 2007 2006 2005 2008 2007 2006 2005
Active members
Number 26,061 27,893 30,044 32,504 1,149 2,581 2,118 2,289
Covered annual payroll (£m) 729 745 747 764 67 108 82 78
Average age a1 42 41 4 45 43 44 43
Avarags length of service 15 15 14 13 12 1 11 12
Deferred members
Number 37,037 35,869 35,167 32,844 1,996 2,557 2,019 1,969
Average age 45 42 42 44 45 44 47 44
Retired members
Number 15,909 14,460 13,866 12,932 684 675 877 644
Total annual pensions (Lm) 144 129 120 112 13 18 10 9
Average age 65 64 63 64 G4 63 64 65

The membership data above reflacts the transfer of Clerical Medical International Scheme into the HBOS FSPS.

The principal assumptions used in the catculation of the other post retirement benefits are the discount rate, which is the same as
that used for the pension schemes and the medical cost trend rate which has been assumed to be the same as the discount rate.

Sensitivity analysis for each of the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities, showing the increase in defined
benefit obligations at 31 December 2008, is set out below:

Factor HBOS FSPS Other Schemes

Changa in assumption Increase 2008  Ingrease 2007 Increase 2008 Increase 2007
Discount rate decreasse 0.1% 2.3% 2.3% 2.2% 2.2%
Rata of inflation increase 0.1% 2.3% 2.3% 2.2% 2.2%
Rate of salary growth : increase 0.1% 0.4% 0.5% 0.4% 0.4%
Life expectancy at age 60 increase by 1 year 2.7% 2.7% 2.5% 2.5%

34 Deferred Tax

The statutory position reflects the deferred tax asgets and liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated balance sheat and takes account
of the inability to offset assets and liabilities where there is no legally enforceable right of offset, The tax disclosure of deferred tax
assets and liabilities tie to the amounts outlined in the table betow which splits the deferred tax assets and liabilities by type.

2008 2007
Statutory Positlon £m £m
Deferred tax liabilities 227 2,600
Deferred tax asset (2,556} (70)
Net deferred tax {asset)/liability {2,329} 2,530

2008 2007
Tax Disclosure £m £m
Deferred tax fiabilities 1,608 2,945
Deferred tax asset {3.937) (415)
Net deferred tax (asset)/liability (2,329) 2530

At 31 December 2008 a deferred tax liability of £255m (2007 £251rm) relating to investments in subsidiaries has not been recognised
because the Company controls whether or not the liability will be incurred and It is satisfied that it will not be incurred in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax l0sses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable.

Deferred tax assets of £82m (2007 £nil) have not been recognised In respect of unrealised capital losses carried forward as there are
no predicted future capital profits, Capital fosses can be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition deferred tax assets of £69m (2007 £62m) have not been recognised in respect of Eligible Unrelieved Forsign tax (EUFT)
carried forward as there are no predicted future taxable profits against which the unrelieved foreign tax credits can be utilised. EUFT

can be carried forward indefinitely.
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34 Deferred Tax continued

As a result of the Finance Act 2007, the main UK corporation tax rate reduced from 30% to 28% in April 2008. UK deferred tax
palances that are riot expected to have been realised by Aprii 2008 have been restated at the rate of 26%. In addition, the German
corporation tax rate reducad from 25% to 15% in January 2008,

The movement in the net position is as follows:

2008 2007

cm £m

At 1 January 2,530 2,591
{Credit)/charge to income for the year (Note 13) (2,964) 198
Cradit to equity for the year (Note 13) {2,089) {86)

Disposals M
Changes in rates of corporation tax racognised in income (Note 13} (178}
Changes in rates of corporation tax recognised in equity (Note 13) 1
QOther movements 153 3
At 31 December (2,329) 2,630
Analysed as follows:
2008
Available Long term Effective
Capital for sale Employee assurance Interest

allowances investmenis bensafits business rate Other Totai

Deferred tax liabilities £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 1,060 15 1,610 98 162 2,945
Credit to income for the year {518} {78) {1,012) {12) C(62) (1,682)
{Cradit)/charge to equity for the year {15) 202 2 189
Disposals {3) {3) (6)
Other movements 72 20 70 ) 162
At 31 December 2008 811 144 668 86 99 1,608
Avatlable 2008

for sale Cash flow Employes Trading

invastments hedges benetits Provisions Other losses cl/fwd Total

Deferred tax assats £m f£m £ £m em &m £m
At 1 January 2008 (34) (98) (168) (115} (415)
Charge/{credit) to income for the year 975 98 (348) {494) (1,513) (1,282}
Credit to equity for the year 1,902) (376) (2,278}
Disposals 47 47
Other movements 3 {9) (2) {1 {9)
At 31 December 2008 (924} {410) {478) {611) {1,514} {3,937)

Deferred tax assets in respect of employee benefits primarily relate to ratirement benefit plans. Deferred tax assets relating o share

based compensation are included in other.

In the Company there is a deferred tax liability of £161m (2007 asset £85m). The liability is primarily in respect of the post retirernent

asset of the Cornpany.
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34 Deferred Tax continued

2007
Available Longterm Etfective
Capitat for sate Cash flow assurance interast

akowances investments hetgaes business rate Other Total

Deferred tax liabilities £m £m Em £m £m £m £m

Al 1 January 2007 1112 96 182 1738 13 30 3345

Charge/(credit) to income for the year 31 15, (44) {29) 88 37

(Credit)/charge to equity for the year (65} (182} 5 {1 (243)
Changes in rates of corporation

tax recognised in income ), {1 o 02 {196}
Changes in rates of corpaoration

tax recognised in squity {7 )

Other movements (7 12 3 (3} 5

At 31 Oacember 2007 1,060 15 1510 ag 182 2,945

Gash flow Employes 2007

hadges henefits Provisions Cthar Tatal

Defarred tax assets £m £m £m £m em

At 1 dJanuary 2007 (284) {213) (261) (758)

Charge to income for the year 45 36 8c 162

(Credit)/charge to equity for the year {37) 130 64 157

Changes in rates of corporation tax recognised in income 1 9 8 18

Changes in rates of corporation tax recognised in equity 3 5 8

Other movements 4 (6 {2}

At 31 December 2007 (34 {98) (168) {115) 415

35 Other Liabilities

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Unclaimed shares 150 151 150 151

Other liabilities . ] 4,959 4,921 146 53

5,109 5,072 296 204

Unclaimed shares comprise the net sale procesds of certain Halifax Group Limited {formerly Halifax Group pic) ordinary shares
which, following the Halifax Group restructuring which took effect on 1 June 1999, represented Halifax plc ordinary shares. These
shares were issued to meet claims for Halifax plc ordinary shares from qualifying members of Halifax Building Society and others
following the transfer of business from Halifax Bullding Society to Halitax plc in 1997, This liability also includes the retated unclaimed
dividends up to the date of sale and the unclaimed capital payments arising from the Halifax Group restructuring in 1999. These
amounts are being held con behalf of the persons who would have been entitled to claim the shares before they were sald. Amounts
representing the sale proceeds, together with the unclaimed capital payments, can be claimed during a period of nine years from the
date of sale {30 August 2001) after which time they will be forfeited, Amounts representing the ralated unclaimed dividends can he
claimed during the period of twelve years from the date of the resolution for payment of each dividend, after which time they will be
forieited. Following an internat reorganisation ont 1 July 2002, responsibility for these balances was assumed by the Company.

36 Provisions

Regulatory Other
provisions provisions Tatal
£m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 106 69 175
Exchange translation 3 3
Charge to administrative expenses 200 3 231
Utilised in year (10) (52} (62)
At 31 December 2008 296 51 347

The Group is an authorisad institution and operates in the UK or overseas within the regulatory frameawork established in the UK by
the Financial Services Authority or overseas by local regulatory bodies. As a result of this, regulatory provisions are established when
a legal or constructive cbligation exists as a result of a past event where it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Regulatory provisions include the following:
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36 Provisions continued

i, the estimated cost of making redrass payments to customers in respect of past product sales where sales processes have been
deficient or where fees and premiums have been overcharged; and

i the costs estimated by management for the Financial Services Compenisation Scheme management expense levy against deposit
taking fisns to fund the UK compensation scheme for custormers of authorised financial services firms that are unable to pay claims
made against them. Further details are given below.

In addition, other provisions include property-related costs in respest of surplus leased space that amounted to £30m (2007 £27m)
at the year end, provisions for long term and annual ieave, provisions in respect of legal fiabilities and for obligations under reward
programmes.

The timing of cash outfiows for regulatory and other provisions can be uncertain and depend on a number of varables cutwith the
control of the Group. Itis estimated that £191m (2007 £35m) of the outstanding provisions will be settled within the next year.

Financial Services Compensation Scheme {FSCS)

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) is the UK's statutory compensation scheme for customers of autharised
financial services firms that are unabie to pay claims made against them. Bank of Scotland ple, as an autharised firm, Is obliged to
pay levies to the FSCS as part of its funding arrangements, as explained betow.

The FSCS raises levies agamst firns authorised by the Financial Services Authority (FSA} in respect of its management expenses
and compensation costs. Under a new funding system introduced on 1 April 2008, the levies are split info five broad classes, one of
which is protected deposits. Each deposit-taking firm cantributas an amount in respect of these costs, which is proportionate to their
share of the protected deposits for the relevant year. The levies are subject to the maximum thresholds determined by the FEA.

Since October 2008, the FSGS has contriputed to the costs of transferring, anc/or paid cornpensation to, the customers of certain
failed firms (including Bradford & Bingley plc, Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander Limited, Heritable Bank pic, Landsbanki's lcesave and
London Scottish Bank plc). As a result, the FSCS is now a creditor of these firms.

To fund these activities, the FSCS has obtained interest-only finance from HM Treasury of £19.7 bition {as at 16 Decerber 2008).
which is due to be refinanced in 2011, The FSGS expects the amounts owed to it by failed firms to he reduced as asseis are
realised or other payments are made to craditors. In turn, thia will enable the FSCS to reduce its borrowings from HM Treasury:

In the meantime, the FSCS will need to mast its anticipated obligations in respect of interest payments on its borrowings through
management expenses levies on authorised firms.

The FSA, on behalf of the FSCS, has issued guidance regarding the levies 10 be mads by the FSCS in 2009. This guidance indicates
that the FSCS is expected to raise the next levy before 31 March 2008 and that the annual imit on the FSCS management expenses
levy tor 2008/02 has been set at £1 bilion. HBOS has accrued a charge of £200m in respect of forecast management expenses
levies for the levy years 2008/09 and 2009/1C that are based upon its share of protected deposits as at 31st December 2007 and
2008 respectively. :

When the existing borrowing with HM Treasury is refinanced in 2011, a repayment schedule for the outstanding principat will be
agreed Detween HM Treasury and the FSCS, after which the FSCS will raise compensation costs levies against firms in regpect of
these amounts. These levies could be significart. However, nc provision has been made for these costs to date as their amount is
unknown and is not expested to be guantifiable until 2C11 at the earliest.

37 Debt Securities in Issue

2008 2007
Al fair At fair

value through At value through At

the income amortised the income amortised
statement cost Total statement cost Total
. £m £m £m £m gm £m
Certificates of deposit 50,956 50,956 63,680 63,680
MTNs issued 48,630 48,630 28,199 29,199
Covered bonds . 34,022 34,022 39184 39,184
Commercial paper i 12,132 12,132 28,648 28,648
Securitisation 42,708 42,708 1,842 43,967 45,808
188,448 188,448 1,842 204,678 206,520

included within commercial paper above is £2,979m (2007 £11,954m) issued by the Grampian conduit and £nil (2007 £137m) issued
by the Landale conduit.

The additional amount contractually payable on maturity of the debt securities held at fair value through the income statement at 31
December 2007 was £294m. During 2007, £0.1m moverment in the fair value of these liabilities was attributable to changes in credit

spread fisk.
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38 Other Borrowed Funds
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Preferred securities 3,969 4,973
Preference shares 2,614 1,571 2,614 1,571
Subordinzted habiities
Dated 15,078 10,664 10,927 7.253
Undated 8,458 6,745 8,694 6,679
30,119 24,253 22,235 15,503
Group
2008 2007
Preferred secuyritias £m £m
USE750m 6.07 1% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities of US$1,000 each 513 374
US$1,000m 6.85% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities of US$1,000 each 684 489
£6800m 6.461% Guaranteed Non-voting Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities Series A of £1,000 each 600 600
£250m 8.117% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities Series 1 of £1,000 each {Class A) 250 250
£150m 7.754% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities Series 2 of £1,000 each {Class B} 150 150
£245m 7.881% Guaranteed Non-voting Non-cumulative Preferred Securities 245 245
$15m Fixed o Floating Rate Guaranteed Non-voting Nen-cumulative Preferred Securities 396 305
750m 4.839% Non-voting Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities 716 551
£2bn 6.0064/6.0895% Fixed Rate Perpetual Securities 2,000
Other Preferred Securities 4
Unamortised issue costs (22) {24}
Accrued interest 32 36
Fair value hedge adjustments 405 (17}
3,969 4,973

During 2007 Fortrose Investments Ltd, a subsidiary, issued £2,600m of Fixed Rate Perpetual Securities and other subsidiaries issued

Preferred Securities totalling £4m, all of which were redeemed during 2008,

Group Campany
2008 2007 2048 2007
Preference shares £m £m £m £
£300m 9 1/44% Non-cumulative Iredeemable £1 preference sharas 300 300 300 300
£100m 9 3/4% Non-cumulative Irredeemable £9 preference shares 100 100 100 100
US$750m 6.413% Fixed-to-Floating Rate US$1 series A preference shares 513 374 513 erg
US$750m 5.92% Fixed-to-Floating Rate US$1 series B preference shares 513 374 513 374
USE750m 6.657% Fixed-to-Floating rate US$1 preference shares 513 374 513 378
Unamortised issue costs {1 (9) {11) {9)
Accrued interest 32 27 32 27
Fair value hedge adjustments 654 31 654 31
2,614 1,571 2,614 1,571

The US$750m 6.413% Fixed-to-Floating Rate series A preference shares, the US$750m 5.82% Fixed-to-Floating Rate series B
preference shares and the US$750m 6.657% Fixed-to-Floating Rate preference shares have been issued in the form of American

Daposlitary Receipts.

On 21 May 2007 HBOS plc issued 7,500 American Depository Receipts representing US$750m 6.657% Fixed-to-Floating Rate US$1
preference shares. These are Tier | non-innovative non-equity preference shares that were issued at $1,000 per share. Dividends are
payable semi-annually in arrears until 21 May 2037 at which date the Company has the option 1o redeem them. Thereafter, dividends

are payable at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 1.27% per annum payable quarterly in arrears and can be redeemed by the Company

on any dividend payment date.

There have been no new issues during 2008, On 15 January 2008 HBOS ple issued £3,000m HMT preference shares (Note 57).
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38 Other Borrowed Funds continued

Group Company
2008 2607 2008 2007
Dated subordinated fiabilities £m £m em £m
€650m 4.75% Subordinated Bonds 2009 621 477
€500m 5.50% Instruments 2009 478 357’
LIS$500m Notes 2010 342 249
US$150m Notes 2011 . 103 75
€750m Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2012 16 561
€12.8m 6.25% Instruments 2012 12 2]
£1.000m Subordinated Callable Fixed/Floating Rate Instruments 2013 734
€325m 6.125% Notes 2013 310 239
UJS%1,000m 4.25% Subordinated Guaranteed Notes 2013 684 499 684 499
JPY 60bn 0.55% Subordinated Callable Notes 2013 267 267
USE500m Subordinated Callable Notes 2014 a42 248 342 249
£250m 11% Subordinated Bonds 2014 250 250
€1,000m 4.875% Subordinated Notes 2015 955 734 955 734
£€500m Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2016 478 287 478 367
£500m Subordinated Notes 2016 478 387 478 367
US$750m Notes 2018 513 374 513 374
€1,000m Subordinated Lower Tier I Notes 2017 055 734 955 734
US$1,000m Subordinated Caftable Notes 2017 684 499 684 499
Aus$400m Subordinated Callable Floating Rate instruments 2017 189 175 189 175
Aus$200m Subordinated Callable Fixed/Floating Rate Instruments 2017 95 88 95 a8
Can$500m Callabla Fixed to Floating Rate Notes 2017 279 254 279 254
¢500m Lower Tigr Il Subordinated Nates 2017 500 50D 500 500
£150m 10.5% Subordinated Bonds 2018 150 150
US$2,000m B.75% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2018 1,368 1,368
£950m 6.375% Instruments 2019 250 250
&750m Callable Fixad to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2019 716 551 716 551
£500m 9.375% Subordinated Bonds 2021 500 500 )
€180m Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2021 153 117 153 117
€400m B8.45% Fixed/Floating Subordinated Guaranteed Bongs 2023 382 294
€175m 6.5% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2023 167 167
€750m Fixed Rate Step-up Subordinated Notes due 2030 716 551 7186 551
USS750m 6.00% Subordinated Notes 2033 513 374 513 374
£245m 7.881% Subordinated Extendatie Maturity Notes 2048 245 245
€415m Fixed to Floating Rate Subordinated Extendatle Maturity Notes 2048 396 308
Unamortigsed premiums, discounts and issue costs {29} (32) (29) (25)
Accrued interest ‘ 261 221 108 79
Fair value hedge adjustments 947 (70} 418 (51}
15,078 10,964 10,927 7.253

During the year the following dated subordinated liabilities have been issued:

On 8 April 2008 HBOS ple issuad €175m Subordinated Lower Tier 2 Notes at par. The notes pay interest at a rate of 6.5% plus
Indexation {HICP excluding tobacce for Eurozone) annually in arrears untit maturity on 8 April 2023.

On 21 May 2008 HBOS plc issued US$2bn Suborcinated Lower Tier 2 Notes at an issue price of 98.334% of the principal amout.
The notes pay interest at a rate of .75% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears until maturity on 21 May 2018,

During 2007 the following dated subordinated liabiities were issued:

On 20 March 2007 HBOS plc issued €1bn Subordinated Lower Tier 2 Notes at an issue price o} 96.954% of {he principal amount,
The notes pay interest at a rate of threg month Euribor plus 0.2% per annum payabie guarterly in arrears until 21 March 2012 at which
time the interest rate will become threa manth Eurlbor plus 1.7% per annum payable quarterly in arears until maturity in March 2017.
Tne Company has the option to redesm thase notes on 21 March 2012 and quarterly thereafter.

On 27 Aprit 2007 HBOS ple issued Aus$4C0m Subordinated Callable Floating Rate and Aus$200m Subordinated Caltable Fixed/
Floating Rate Australian Domestic Instrumertts at issue prices of 100% and 99.423% of the principal amount respectively. The fixed
rate notes pay interest at a rate of 6.75% and the ficating rate notes at three monith AUD-BBR-BSW plus 0.26% per annum payable
quarterly in arrears untl 1 May 2012 at which time both interest rates will become three month AUD-BBR-BSW plus 0.76% per
annum payable quarterly in arrears until maturity in May 2017, The Company has the option to redeem these notes on 1 May 2012
and quarterly thereafter,
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38 Other Borrowed Funds continued

On 6 June 2007 HBOS plc issued US$1bn Subordinated Callable Notes at par. The notes pay interest at a rate of three month US$
LIBOR plus 0.2% per annum payable quarterly in arrears until 6 Septernber 2012 at which time the interest rate will become three
marth US$ LIBOR plus 0.7% per annurn payable quarterly in arrears untit maturity in September 2017. The Company has the option
to redeem thase notes on 6 September 2012 and quarterly thereafter,

On 20 June 2007 HBOS plc issued Can$500m Callabls Fixed to Floating Rate Notes at par, The notes are subordinated and pay
intergst at a rate of 5109% per annum payable quarterly in arrears until 26 June 2012 at which time the interest rate will become three
month CAD-BA-CDOR plus C.65% per annum payable quarterly in arrears until maturity in June 2017, The Company has the opticn to
redeem these notes on 20 June 2012 and quarterly thereaiter.

On 15 October 2007 HBOS pleissued 160m Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes at par, The notes pay interest at a rate of 5.374% per
annum payable annually and mature on 30 June 2021,

On 17 Octaber 2007 HBOS pic issued £500m Lower Tier 2 Subordinated Notes at an issue price of 99.9% of the principal amount.

The notes pay interest at a rate of 6.305% per annum payable semi-annually until 18 October 2012 at which time the interest rate will
became three month LIBOR plus 1.2% per annum payable quarterly in arrears until maturity in October 2017, The Company has the
option 1o redeem these notes on 18 Octeber 2012 and quarterly thereafter.

No repayment, for whatever reason, of dated subordinated fiabilities prior to their stated maturity and no purchase by the relevant
antity of its subordinated debt may be made without the consent of the Financial Services Authority. On a winding up of the Company
or subsidiary, the claims of the holders of dated loan capital shall be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of all depositors
and creditors of the Company or subsidiary undertaking, other than creditors whose claims are expressed to rank pari passu with, or
junior to, the claims of the holders of the dated loan capital.
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Notes to the Financial
continued

38 Other Borrowed Funds continued

Statements

Group Compsany
2008 2007 2008 2007
Undated subardinated liabilities £m £m £€m £m
£500m Cumulative Callable Fixed to Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes 500 500 500 500
US$750m 5.071% Undated Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Instruments 513 374
£750m 4.875% Undated Fixed to Floating Rate Suborainated Notas 718 551 716 551
€500m Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes 478 367 478 367
US$1,000m 5.375% Undated Fixed to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 6§84 488 634 499
£750m Undated Subordinated Fixed to Floating Notas 716 551 716 551
£800m 5.75% Undatad Subcrdinated Step-up Notes 600 600 600 600
LIS$1,000m 6.85% Undated Subordinated Notes 684 498
£EO0Mm Fixed 1o Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes 600 600
£500m Fixed to Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Motes 478 367 478 - 357
£300m Perpetual Regulatory Tier One Securities 300 300 -
£300m 7.5% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes 300 300 300 306
JPY 42,5bn 3.50% Undated Subordinated Yen Step-up Notes 3 189 3N 188
USS300m Reset Notes
£200m Perpetual Notes 200 200
£200m 7.375% Undated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds 200 200
€300m Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes 287 220 287 220
US$250m Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes 17 125
£150m Instruments 150 1580
JPY 1700 instruments 128 76
£100m Instruments 100 100
£100m 12% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 100 100
£100m 8.75% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 100 100
£75m 13.625% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 75 75
JPY 9bn Ingtruments 40
£50m 9.375% Perpstual Subordinated Bonds 50 50
£500m 5.75% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes 500 500 500 500
£750m 4.25% Perpetual Fixed/Floating Rate Resst Subordinated Guaranteed Notes 716 551
£750m 4.939% Undated Fixed to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 716 851
£750m Undated Perpetual Prefarred Securities 750
Unamortised premiums, discounts and issue costs {46) {1 {44) {48)
Accrued interest 145 146 144 104
Fair value hedge adjustments 489 {41 {249) (45)
8,458 6,745 8,694 6,679

On 18 March 2008 HBOS pic issued £750m Unciated Fixed

to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes at an issue price of 99.25% of the

principas amount io HBOS Capital Funding No. 4 LP, a subsidiary undertaking. The notes pay interest at a rate of 9.54% per anfum,
payable semi-annually in arrears until 19 March 20118 at which time the interest rate will become 3 month LIBOR plus 6.75% per
annum payable quarterly in arrears, The company has the option to redeem these notes on 19 March 2018 and quarterly thereafter.
Upon consolidation this is eliminated and minority interest arises, as disclosed in Note 41.

No exercise of any redsmption option or purchase by the rel

evant entity of any of the undated subordinaied lizbilties may be made

without the consent of the Financial Services Authority. On a winding up of the Company o subsidiary, the claims of the holders
of undated loan capital shall be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of all depositors and creditors of the Company or

subsidiary other than crecitors whose claims are expressed

to rark pari passu with or junior to the claims of the holders of the

undated loan capital. The undated loan capital is junior in point of gubordination to the dated loan capital referred to above.
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39 Share Capital

Ordinary Preference

shares sharas Total
Allotted, catled up and fully paid £m £m £m
A% 1 January 2007 9di 198 1,139
Issued under emgloyee share schemeas 5 5
Ordinary share buyback (13 (13)
At 31 December 2007 and t January 2008 933. 198 1,131
Issued under employee share schemes ‘ 10 10
Rights Issue 375 375
Capitalisation Issue 34 34
At 31 December 2008 1,352 198 1,550

Authorised share capital
On 28 April 2008 HBOS announced that it wotld make a rights issue of two new ordinary shares for every five ordinary shares held
at a price of 276p per share. On 26 June 2008 a General Mesting increased the authorised share capital of HBOS ple by 2,900m

ordinary shares to 7,640m ordinary shares and approved the rights issue. The rights issue was completed in July and raised £3,987m

net of expenses of £137m. On 12 December 2008 an Extraordinary General Meeting increased the authorised share capital of HBOS
plc by a further 7.500m to 15,140m.

At 31 December 2008 the authorised share capital comprised:

Ordinary shares
15,140m ordinary shares of 25 pence each (2007 4,740m)

Preference shares

198,065,500 6.475% non-cumulative preference shares of £1 each {2007 198,065,600}
350,002 6.3673% fixed to floating non-cumulative preference shares of £1 each (2007 350,000),
750,000 6.0884% non-cumulative preference shares of £1 each (2007 750,000),

The terms of the following preferance shares when issued ara such that these shares are classified as other borrowed funds rather
than as issued share capital .

2,587 million preference shares of £1 each (2007 2,597 million),

200 milion § /8% non-cumulative redeemabile preference shares of £1 each (2007 200 million),

375 million @ 1/4% non-cumulative irredeemable preference shares of £1 each (2007 375 mitlion),

125 million 8 3/4% non cumulative irredeemable preferencs shares of £1 each (2007 125 million},

250,000 8.117% non-cumuiative parpetual preference shares class ‘A’ of £10 each (2007 250,000},

150,000 7.754% non-cumulative perpetual preference shares class ‘B’ of £10 each (2007 150,000),

3,000 million preference shares of 1 gach (2007 3,000 miltion),

4,998 million preference shares of US$1 each (2007 4,898 million},

750,000 6.413% non-cumuative callable fixed to floating rate preference shares series ‘A’ of US$1 sach (2007 750 OOO)
750,000 5.92% non-cumulative callable fixed to floating rate preference shares saries ‘B' of US$1t each (2007 750,000),
750,000 8.657% non-curnulative callable preference shares of US$1 each (2007 750,000),

1,000 milion preference shares of Aus$1 each (2007 1,000 million),

1,000 million preference shares of Can$1 each (2007 1,000 mitlion),

400 million preference shares of JPY 250 each (2007 nil),

3,000,000 12% fixed to floating callable non-cumulative preference shares of £1 sach (2007 nil).

Note 38 details the preference shares that have been issued and classified as other borrowed funds.

Issued share capital
At 31 December 2008 the Company's issued ordinary share capital, excluding shares held in Treasury, amounted to 5,406,574,275
shares (2007 3,730,415,166). The Company's issued preference share capital amounted to 199,165,602 (2007 189,165,600).

HBOS ple compieted the rights issue in July 2008 issuing 1,500m ordmary shares of 25p each and raising £3,987m net of expenses
of £137m.

During the year HBOS plc used 2,589,000 shares praviously purchased under the 2007 share buyback programme to satisfy
employee share scheme demands. During the year HBOS plc has bought no further ordinary shares {2007 50m) at a total
consideration of nil (2007 £500m). At 31 December 2008 no shares (2007 2,582.000) bought back remained in Treasury.

The Group operates a number of share option plans and savings related option plans for colleagues. Detalls of thess, including the
impact of the rights issue, is given in Note 40.

On 15 January 2009 HBOS pic issued 7,482m ordinary shares under a placing with HM Treasury (Note 57). .

MBIAIBAD

malAsY ssoulsng

3OUBLISACK)

SjusLWeleS [eIoURULY §



108 HBOSple Annual Report and Accounts 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

40 Share-based Payments

As a result of the acquisition of the Group by Lioyds TSB on 16 Jénuary 2009, some of the share schermes vested in the perlod
between 12 January 2009, and 16 January 2009, For further details, see Note 57, This note therefore reflects the position of the
share schemes as at 31 Decermnber 2008. Datails of the accelerated vesting, together with the financial effects will be disclosed in the

financial statements for 2009,

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group operated the following share-based payment arrangements, which were

predominantly equity-settled:

Sharesave plan

Share option plans

Free shares

Sharekicker plan

Performance sharekicker pian

Long term incentive plan

Executive stock option plan

5t. James’s Place plans

Insight Investment plan

Invista Real Estate plans

Colleagues may enter into contracts through the sharesave schemes to save up to £250 per month
for a fixed term of 3, 5 or T years. At the end of the savings period a tax-free bonus is added to the
savings and colleagues have the option to acquire shares in the Group at a price equal to B80% of
the share price agreed.

The final awarg under the HBOS plan was made in 2004, Under this plan oplions over shares
at market value, with a face value equal to 20% of salary, were awarded to all colleagues with
the exception of those of level 8 and above. A separate option plan exists for St. James's Place,
which awards options in respect of HBOS shares, and which centinues to operate.

This was introduced in 2005 under the share incentive pfan iegisiation as a replacement for the
share option plan (not including the St. James's Place plan). In broad terms, it covers all colleagues
and free shares up to a fimit of £3,000 annually are awarded to sach colleague.

This provides colleagues with the opportunity to purchase shares with a propartion of their annual
net bonus. Far every two shares purchased a matching share Is awarded after three years.

With sffect from September 2008, the EP3 sharekicker plan was renamead the Performance
Sharakicker Plan. The plan is open to colleagues of level 7 and above (in relation to annual net
bonusas) and collsagues of kvel 8 and abave (in refation to net bonuses payable under the
two-year incentive scheme). This provides colleagues with the opportunity 1o purchase shares
with a proportion of thelr annuat net bonus. For every two shares purchased a matching share

is awarded after hree years. For the 2008 and 2007 awards, matching shares awarded under
this plan depends on EPS performance over the three year vesting pericd. For the 2008 award,
matching shares awarded under this plan depends an EPS performance in excess ot the BP! and
on operating cost performance over the three year vasting period,

For most senior colleagues, share grants of varying percentages of salaries are made and
colleagues may recelve up to 200% of the grant depending on the Group’s annuatised TSR
compared to the annualised weighted average TSR of a basket of comparator cornpanies, over a
three year period. See below for further detail. :

The final award under this plan was in 2000, Under this plan, options were granted at market
value 1o certain colleagues. The options vested upon satisfaction of a performance measure over
a three year period, Options are exarcisable from the date the measure is satisfied until the tenth
anniversary of the date of grant.

Various St, James's FPlace pic option and share plans are offered to some of its colleagues.

In 2007 insight !nvestment Management Ltd converted an existing incentive scherme into a
share-based payment arrangement, offering options and/or shares to some of its colleagues.

Various share-based plans are offered to certain colleagues in Invisia Real Estate (nvestment
Management Holdings plc.
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The table befow summarises the share-based payment awards grantad in 2008 and 2007:

Performance \ong term
Sharesave Sharesave Share Frea Sharekicker Sharekicker Loengterm  Incentive Plan
interim plan option plan shares pkin plan  incentive plkan tnsightis
Awards in 2008
Date of grant 20ctober 28 March 27 February 5 Septemhber 20March 20 March 6 March 14 March
Number granted
{pre rights issue) 78,625,974 27,762,345 1,220,709 21,048,159 8,572,591 1,366,451 3,360,653 18,152,934
Number granted
{post rights issue)® 78,625,974 27,960,647 1,229,428 21,045,159 8,707,637 1,387,977 3,413,584 185,438,902
Awards i 2007
Date of grant 30 March 1 March 7 August 23March 23 March 15 March 18 December
Number grantec 4,614,932 320,857 8372685 4535816 722340 2,163 B88 7,082,532
Contractual life 35 55and 3.5 55and 7 years 3years 3 years 3years 3 years 5 years
7.5 years 7.5 years
Vesting conditions 3.25,5.25 and 3.47, 517 and 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years. 3years 3years
7.25 yaars 717 years sarviga sarvice service service and  service and service
vasting vesting achiavement achievement
period+ period® of target of TSR
target

(a

(b} The awards relate 1o the St. James's Place plan.

{c
d

These are the number of deferred shares purchased.
Award of options include nil-priced options and options with an exerclse price equal to the price of the Company's B ordinary shares based on the mast recently

Although the savings periods are thies, five and seven years the vesling perieds are slightly longer since savings commenca after the grant cate.

approved annual valuation of the Insight business at the date of the grant. I all options and shares outstanding under the Insight Investment Pian at 31 December

2008 vested on that date, 46.6 million HBCS shares wouki be required 1o mest this.
The rights issue in July 2008 assumed a cashless takeup of the rights ata nil-paid rights price of 11.274p.

{8

Movements in options

Movements in options granted under tha various equity participation plans mentioned above are as fallows:

2008 2007
Weighted Weightad
average average
Number exercise Number axercise
Sharesave plan of options price (£} of options price (T}
Qutstanding at 1 January 40,293,627 6.65 48,560,991 8.29
Granted during the year 106,388,319 295 4614933 8.44
Rights issue 264,059
Exercised during the year {5,903,580) 552 (9,626,924) 5.52
Forfeited during tha year {2,763,722) 538 {2,949,595) 7.1
Expired during the yaar {2,536,600) 5.88 {305,778) 8.08
Cancelled during the year (60,319,267) 5.12
Outstanding at 31 December 75,422,836 2.80 40,293,627 8.65
Exercisable at 31 December 25,638 5.54 585,472 452
2008 2007
Waeighted Weighted
average average
Numbet exarcise Numbar axercise
Share option plans of aptions price (£) af options price ()
Outstanding at 1 January 20,782,033 7.26 35,860,579 713
Granted during the year 1,220,709 6.57 620,957 0.7
Rights issue 128,630
Exercised during tha year {55,211} 6.68 (15123,252) 710
Fortefted during the year {2,688,778) 7.28 (576,251} 7.20
Qutstanding at 31 December 19,387,383 716 20,782,033 726
Exercisable at 31 December 17,079,383 701 19,211,879 7.05
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40 Share-based Payments continued

2008 2007

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number exercise Numbert exarcise

Executive stock eptien plan of options price (£} of options prica (£)
Qutstanding at 1 January 813,027 6.28 1,251,907 611

Rights issue 8,267

Exercised during the year {2,000) 5.91 {395,980) ‘679

Forfeited during the year {202,731) 5.94 {42,000 5.87

Qutstanding and exercisable at 31 December 614,463 6.34 813,927 6.28

For the sharesave plan, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was
£6.77. The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had exercise prices in the range of £2.20 to £8.38 and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 4.6 years.

For the share option plans, the weighted average share price at the cate of exercise for share options exercised during the year was
£6.66. The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had exercise prices in the range of £6.49 to £10.64 and a weightad average
remaining contractual life of 1.5 years,

For the executive stock option plan, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised in the year
was £6.42. The options outstanding at 31 Decamber 2008 had exercise prices in the range of £5.35 to £7.07 and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1.5 years. ’

Financial assumptions underlying the calculation of fair value
The fair value expanse has been based on the fair value of the insiruments granted, as calculated using appropriate pricing models.
The tables below shows the assumptions and models used to calculate the grant date fair valua of awards in 2008 and 2007

Sharesaye Sharesave Share option Free Sharekicker
intanm plan plan® shares plan
Awards in 2008 .
Fair value {pence) 84 76 152 282 1634
Share price {pence) 170 540 657 282 446
Exercise price (pence) 220 508 657
Expected volatility (% p.a.)}® 490 40 40 N/A N/A
Expected dividends (% p.a.} 5 9.1 6.8 N/A 11,0
Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.) 4.1 4.2 4.5 N/A N/A
Awards in 2007
Fair value {pence) 260 182 945 47419
Share price {pence) 1,047 1,071 945 1,062
Exercise price {pence) 844 1,071
Expected volatility (% p.a.)® 20 20 N/A N/A
Expected dividends (% p.a.) c 4.0 3.5 N/A age
Risk-free interast rate (% p.a.) 53 53 N/A N/A
Pricing model Black- Black- Binormial B Black-
Scholes Scholes Lattice Scholes

(a) Expected volatility is based on an analysis of both the Group's historical volatility over the twelve months preceding the date of each awarg and the volatility implied
by the price of raded oplions as at the date of each award,

{b) The awards refate Lo the St. Jamnes’s Place plan.

{©) Asho performance conditions attach to these awards and dividends are reinvested, the fair vaiue is the same as the face valug of the awards.

(d) The fair value of Sharekicker awards reflects that & share is automatically awarded for every two hefd after three years.

te) Dividends payable on the malching shares during the vesting period are not awarded 1o the recipient.

(i Dividends payable on the shares during the vesting period are reinvested and so no dividend yield assumption is recuired.
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40 Share-based Payments continued

Long lerm Long term
Pertormance incentive Plan Incentive Plan
sharekicker Leng term ingight nsight
plan incentive plan {NIl - priced options} {Markst value options)

Awards in 2008
Fair value {pence} 326 a97 234 47
Share price (pence) 446 574 249 249
Exercise price (pence) Nit 249
Expected volatility {% p.a.}® N/A N/A 25 25
Expecied dividends {® p.a.} 1.0 N/A® 2 2
Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.) N/A N/A 43 4.3

Awards in 2007
Fair value (pence) 847 756 233 72
Shara price (pence) 1,062 1,017 214 214
Exercise price {pence) it 214
Expected volatility (% p.a.)® : N/A N/A 25 25
Expected dividends (% p.a.) 39w N/AND 2 2
Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.) NAA NIA 44 44
Pricing model Black- Monte Carto Black- Black-
Scheles Simulation Scholes Scholes

{&) Expected volatifity is based on an analysis of both the Group's historical volatility over the twetve months preceding the date of each award and the volatility implied
by the prica of traded options as at the date of each award.

) The awards relate to the St. James's Place plan.

) Asne performance conditions attach to these awards and dividends are reinvested, the fair valus is the same as the face value of the awards.

)} The fair value of Sharekicker awards refiects that a share is automatically awarded for every two held afler three years,

) Dividends payable on the matching shares during the vesting period are not awardad 1o the reciplent,

1) Dividends payable on the shares during the vesting pericd are refnvested and so no dividend yietd assumption is required.

Early exercise assumptions
The following aflowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested:

Sharesave plan As the length of the exercise window is only six months afl option holders are assumed to exercise
halfway through the exercise window.

St. James's Place plan It is assumed that haif of the option holders will exercise their options each year ¥ the share price is
at least 15% above the exercise price.

Allowance for performance conditions

The long term incentive plan includes a market based performance condition based on the Group's total sharehelder return relative
to an index of comparator companies, The impact of this performance condition has been modellad using Monte Carlo Simulation
technigues, which involves running several thousands of simulations of future share price movements for both the Group and the
comparator index. For the purpoese of these simulations it is assumed that the share price of the Group and the comparator index are
80% correlated (2007 award 60%) and that the comparator index has volatility of 30% p.a. for the 2008 award (2007 award 20% p.a.).

The performance condition is based on the Group's performance relative to the comparator index over a three year period
commencing on 1 January each year. The fair value calculations for the awards that were made in 2008 and 2007 therefote include
an allowance for the actual performance of the Group's share price relative to the index over the period between 1 January and the
award date.

In 2008 the weightings attached to certain comparators were amended with effect from 1 January 2008 and apply, from that date to
2005, 20086 and 2007 awards. To better match the business profile of the Group, the committee decided to amend the comparator
companies and Northern Rock has dropped out of the comparator group dus to governmant involvemanti. Alliance and Laicester and
Bradford & Bingley remain within the comparator group at their delisted prices. This amendment also applies to all future awards. The
modifications do not alter the fair values of any of the awards, nor make additional changes necessary.

Modifications
Changes to the Perforrmance Sharekicker plan as described above had no material effect on the fair value costs of the plans.

The Rights Issue carried out by HBOS plc in July 2008 created a modification to all share plans. This resulted in an adjustment to the
awards made to colleagues but had no material effect on the fair value of the awards,

A new sharesave award was made in October 2008 which commenced on 1 January 2008, On the making of the award, a
significant number of monthly savings contracts held by employees in respect of previous sharesave awards were cancellad and new
savings contracts commencad under tha new sharesave award. The new sharesave award has been identified as a replacement for
previous sharesave awards in respect of the cancelled marthly savings ¢ontracts. A medification approach has bean taken, which
has had no material effect on the fair value cost of the plans. Charges have been made for employees commencing new contracts or
increasing levels of savings.
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40 Share-based Payments continued

The period allowahie for colleagues to exercise their share options for the 2003 and 2004 share option plans was extended from 3
years to 7 years In October 2008. This resulted in an increase in fair value, chargeable directly to the income staterent, of £.6m.

Charge ta the income statement

2008 2007
£m £m

Expense arising from share-based payment transagtions (Note 8)
Equity settled 155 138
Cash settied 1 !
156 138

Included within the charge for the year is £16m (2007 £13m) in respect of share-based arangamenis within St. James's Place, £16m
in respect of the Insight Investment plan (2007 £4m) and £3m in respect of Invista Real Estate plans (2007 £3m). in relation to the
Group’s share schermnes, National Insurance and income tax costs are accrued by the Group. The credit of £9m (2007 £14rm - debit)
are notincluded in the above table.

The liabllity for cash settled share-based payment plans at 31 December 2008 is £2m (2007 £5m) and is included in accruals and
deferred income.

The Group uses trusts 1o purchase and hold its own shares as part of the share-based payment arrangements. Details of these
trusts and the shares held are given below.

No.1 and No.2 Employee Share Ownership Trusts

The No.1 Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT 1) administers shares conditionally granted to Executive Directors and other
executives under the HBOS Long Term Executive Bonus Plan, The Trust also administers shares which have been conditionally
granted to Executive Directors, other executives and employees under the HBOS plc Annuat Bonus Plan and overseas operations
of the HBOS plc Share incentive Plan (Free Sharas). The No.2 Employes Share Ownership Trust {ESOT 2) administers shares to

be awarded to Executive Directors, other executives and employees under the Group's Sharesave and share option plans, where
options are not satisfied by the new issue of shares or from shares held by the HBOS QUEST. Interest free loans have been provided
by the Company to the Trusts to allow shares to be purchased in the market to satisfy these share grants.

At 31 Dacernber 2008 1.3 milion HBOS pic ordinary shares (2007 0.5 milion) with a market value of £1m (2007 £4m) were held in
£30T 1 and 4.3 milion HBOS pic ordinary shares (2007 7.5 miffion) with a market value of £3m {2007 £55m) were held in ESOT 2.
The shares in the Trusts are included in the balance sheet of the Group at a net book value of £nil (2007 £nil), Under the terms of the
Trusts, dividends on these shares require to be waived,

HBOS ple Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust {the HBOS QUEST)
The HBOS QUEST operates In conjunction with the HBOS Sharesave scheme and the former savings-related share schemes
operated by Bank of Scotland and Halitax Group plc.

At 31 Decemnber 2008, the HBOS QUEST held no HBOS plc ordinary shares (2007 0.1 million - market value £1m). In the prior yaar
thesa shares are included in the balance sheet at nil value. Under the terms of the Trust Deed, dividends on these shares require to
be waived. :

Free shares plan
A nurmber of trusts operate in conjunction with the Free Shares Plan which commenced in 2005.

(a) The Share Incentive Pian trust operates in conjunction with free share awards made to employees throughout the Group, except
te the extant noted below. At 31 December 2008 this trust held 58.2 milion HBOS plc ordinary shares {2007 19.6 million), with a
market value of £40m {2007 £144m]. These shares are included in the balance sheet at nil value.

(o) The Irish Profit Share Trust holds free shares awarded o colleagues employed in Ireland. At 31 December 2008 this trust held 1.2
million HBOS plc ordinary shares (2007 0.5 million}, with a market vaiue of £0.8m (2007 £3m}, These shares are included in the
balance sheet at nil value. : ‘

(c) The HBOS Austraiia Employee Share Trust holds free shares awarded to colleagues employad in Australia, At 31 December 2008
this trust hald 3.8 million shares (2007 1.7 million) with a market value of £3m (2007 £13m). These ordinary shares are included in
the batance sheet at nil value,

(dy ESOT 1 administers free shares awarded io culeagues based overseas.
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41 Shareholders’ Equity
Other reserves®
Cash flow Available
Share Share hedge for sale Other Retained Minority
capital premium reserve reserve™ reserves® earnings interests Total
Group £m £m £m £m €m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 1,131 2,997 {85) {313} 552 17,567 385 22,234
Faoreign exchange translation (23} 210 187
Net actuarial gains from
defined benefit plans 770 770
Tax thereon (202} {202)
Available for sale investments:
Net change in fair value {8,173) {8,173)
Tax thereon 2,276 2,276
Realised gain on sale transferred
to the income statement (Note 3) {24) (24)
Tax thereon 7 7
Impairment recognised in income
statement {Note 12b) 1,270 1,270
Tax thereon (355) (355)
Cash flow hedges:
Effective portion of changes in
fair value taken to equity {3,895) {3,895)
Tax theregn 1,093 1,093
Losses transferred to
income statement (Note 3} 2,561 2,561
Tax therson {717) (717}
{Loss)/profit for the year (7,499) 83 (7,416)
Total recognised income and expense {958) (5,022) 210 (6,931) 83 {12,618)
Dividends paid (Note 42) {1,286} (55) {1,341)
Issue of new shares [Note 39) 419 3,712 750 4,881
MI acquisitions 242 242
Mt disposals {110} {110)
Movement in own shares B8 88
Movements in share-based compensation reserve 18 18
Other 5 5
At 31 Decernber 2008 1,550 6,709 {1,043) (5,335) 762 9,556 1,300 13,499

{1} The availatle for sale reserve is comprised of £(5,285)m (2007 £(450)m) in respect of treasury assets and £(50)m (2007 £137m} in respect of corporate and other

nvestments.

{2} Other reserves principally include the merger reserve of £494m arising from the combination of Halifax and Bank of Scotland in 2001,
{3) The cumulative balance for exchange transtation at 3t December 2008 is £159m (2007 £(28}m).

0On 19 March 2008 HBOS Capital Funding No. 4 LP. issued £750m Fixed-to-Floating Rate Perpetual Preferred Securilies at par, as
included in Minority Interest above, Discretionary distributions at a rate of 9.54% per annum payable sermi-annually in arrears until
19 March 2018 at which time the interest rate will become three month LIBOR plus 8.75% per annum payable quarterly in arears.
The Group has the option to redesm these securities on 19 March 2018 and quarterly thereafter.
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41 Shareholders’ Equity continued

Other reserves

Gash flow Available
Share Share hedge for sale Other Retained Minority
capital premium raserve reserve’!  reserves™® earnings intarests Total

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 1139 2,856 423 203 535 15,529 486 21071
Foreign exchange translation 1 1 2
Net actuarial gains from defined benefit plans 416 416
Tax thereon (104} {104)
Avaltable for sale investments:

Net change in fair value {429) (429)

Tax thereon g6 96

Reatised gains on sale transferred

to the income statement {Note 3) {281) (281)

Tax thergon 80 80

Impairment recognised in incorme

statement {Note 12b) 23 23

Tax thereon 6) (B)
Cash flow hedges:

Etfective portion of ¢changes in fair value

taken to equity {313) {313)

Tax thereon g7 97

Gains transferred to

income statement (Note 3) 417) @17)

Tax thereon 125 125
Profit for the year 4,045 68 4113
Total recognised income and expense (508} (518) 1 4,357 68 3,402
Dividends paid {(Note 42) {1,747} (39 1,786}
Issue of new shares {Note 39) 5 141 146
Ordinary share buyback (13) 13 {500} {500)
Sale of disposal group {130) (130)
Other movements (net of tax £11m) 3 (13) (12)
Movaement in own shares (177 (77)
Movements in share-based
compensation reserve 120 : 120
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 1,131 2,997 {85) {313) 552 17,567 385 22,234

{1} The avalable for sale reserve is comprised of £(5,285)m (2007 £{450lm) in respect of treasury assets and £(50)m (2007 £137m} in respect of corporate and othar

investments.

{2} Other reserves principally inglude the merger reserve of £494m arlging from the combination of Hallfax and Bank of Scotiand in 2001.
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41 Shareholders’ Equity continued

Cash flow
Share Share Qther hedge Retained

capital premium FRIBTVRS Teserve earmings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 1,139 2,856 53 4,537 8,585
Net acluariat gzains from defined benefit plans (net of tax) 261 261
Profit after tax 1,731 1731
Total recognised income and expense 1,992 1,992
Dividends paid (1,747) (1,747}
Issue of new shares 5 141 146
Ordinary share buyback (13} 13 {500) {500)
Acquisition af own sharas (82) 82}
Movements in respect of share-baged compensation 3 134 137
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 1,131 2,997 69 4,354 8,551
Net actuarial gain from defined benefit plans 808 808
Tax therean (215) {215)
Loss after tax (1,902) {1,902}
Total recognised income and expense (1,308} {1,309)
Dividends paid {1,2e6) {1,286)
Issue of new shares 419 3,712 4,131
Movement in cash flow hedge {2 2}
Movement in own shares {53) {53)
Movements in respect of share-based compensation 134 134
At 31 Decermnber 2008 1,550 6,709 69 {2) 1,840 10,166

Movements in own shares are inciuded within retained earnings. These shares are held for the purposes of satisfying obligations
arising from certain share-based compensation schemes as detailed in Note 40.

42 Dividends

A Capitalisation |ssue took place on 6 October 2008 in lieu of an interim cash dividend to shareholders. The Capitalisation amount
was £320m, Qualifying shareholders received new fully paid ordinary shares bassd on the capitalisation amount per ordinary share
as at 3 October 2008 {6.07p), muttiplied by the number of ordinary shares held at ciose of business on 3 October, divided by the
Capitalisation lssue price of 232p, being the value per ordinary share agreed under the terms of the acquisition by Lioyds TSB Group
plc (Note 57).

Ordinary dividends are charged direct to reservas only when the Company has a contractual obligation to pay.

The following dividends have been charged to retained earnings during the year:

2008 2007
£m m
Ordinary share dividends
2006 final dividend of 27.9p per sharg 1,048
2007 interim dividend of 18.6p per share . 519
2007 final dividend of 32.3p per share 1,205
1,205 1,667
Preference share dividends
Equity dividends paid 81 a0
1,286 1,747
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43 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

2008 2007
Group £m £Em
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements a5
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 4,898 6,891

4,898 6,934
Commitments
Short term trade related transactions 137 15
Undrawn formal stancby facllities, crecit lines and other comrmiiments 1o lend with maturity:
Up to and including one year 50,211 68,253
Over one year ‘ 33,109 31,416
83,457 00,784

Of the amounts shown above in respect of undrawn formal standoy facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend, £56,318m
(2007 £71,970m) was irrevocabile.

2008 2007

Company £m ) £m
Contingent liabilities :

Guarantees provided to subsidiaries 3,948 2,608

3,949 2,608

The contractual amounts above indicate the volume of business outstanding at the year end and do not reflect the underlying credit
and other risks, which are significantly lower as some facilities will not be drawn dewn and some facilities that are drawn will be
supportad by collateral. It should be noted that the Group's liquidity lines to the Group's Grampian and Landale conduits do not
appear in the table above as these are internal to the Group and are eliminatec on consolidation.

Where the Group is a lesses the future minimum lease payments under nor-cancellable cperating leases are dus to be paid in the
following periods: :

2008 2007
Group fm £m
Not tater than one year . 177 185
|ater than one year and not later than five years 645 674
Later than five years 1,230 1,320
2,052 2179

Whare the Group is a lesses the future obligations payabls under finance leases are as follows:
2008 2007
Group £m £m
Not later than one year 1

{_ater than one year and nct later than five years

Commitments in raspect of capital expenditure on property and squipment that is authorised but not provided for in the accounts,
for contracts which have been entered into amaount to £18m (2007 £21m). Commitments for contracts which have been placed in
refation to operating lease assets amount to £10m (2007 £11m),

Legal and regulatory matters:

a) Unarranged overdraft charges

On 27 July 2067 it was announced that members of the Group, along with seven other major UK current accourt providers, had
reached agreement with the OFT to commence legat proceedings in the High Court of England and Wales for a declaration {or
declarations) to resolve legal uncertainties concerning the fairmess and lawfulness of unarranged overdraft charges (the Test Case). It
was aleo announced that HBOS and those other providers will seek a stay of all current and potential future court pracsedings which
are brought against thern in the UK congerning these charges and have cbiained the consent of the Financial Ombudsman Service
{FOS} net to proceed with consideration of the merits of any complaints concerning these charges that are referred to them prior to
the resalution of the Test Case. By virtue of a waiver granted by the FSA of its complaints handling rules, HBOS {and other banks,
including the banks party to the Test Case) will not be dealing with or resolving customer complaints about unarranged overdraft
charges while the waiver is in force. On 22 January 2008, the FSA confirmed that it is extending its waiver regarding unarranged
averdrait charges complaints until 26 July 2609, -
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43 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments continued

The first step in the Test Case was a trial of certain prefiminary issues concerning the legal status and enforceability of contractual
terms relating to unarranged overdraft charges. This preliminary trial concluded on 8 February 2008 and the judgment was handed
down on 24 Aprit 2008. The judgment held that the contractual terms relating to unarranged overdraft charges currently used by the
Group (i) are not capable of being penalties, but (i) are not exempt from assessment for fairmess under the Unfair Terms in Consumer
Contract Regulations 1993 (UTCCRs}.

At a court hearing on 22 and 23 May 2008, the Judge granted HBOS and the other Test Case banks permission to appeal his
decision that current unarranged cverdraft charges are assessabile for fairmess under the UTCCRs. This appeal concluded on 5
November 2008. On 26 February 2009 the Court of Appeal dismissed the banks' appeal and hetd that the charges are assessable
for fairness. The banks will now be applying to the House of Lords for permission to appeal this judgement.

A further hearing took place in early July 2008, at which the Court was asked to consider whether terms and conditions previously
used by the Test Case banks are capable of being penalties and whether the Judge's decision in April 2008 (that the banks’ current
contractual terms are capable of being assessed for fairness under the UTCCRs) can be applied to historic terms.

The Court handed down its judgment on 8 October 2008 on this second stage of the test case process. The Court ruled that
charges applied under Halifax and Bank of Scotland's previously used terms and conditions cannot be penaities. However, the Court
also ruled that the historic terms and conditions are not exempt from assassment for fairness under the UTCCRs. The banks intend
to appeal this latter decision.

Further Court hearings wil be required before the test case process is concluded.
A definitive outcome of the Test Case is unlikely to be known for at least twelve months.

Given the early stage of these proceedings and the uncertainty as to their outcome, it is not practicable &t this time to estimate any
potential financial effect.

b} Payments Protection Insurance (PPI)

The final report from the Competition Commission {CC) into Payment Protection Insurance (PP1) was received on 29 January 2009,
The remedies published were broadly similar to those outlined in the CC's Provisional Decision with some changes to the sales
process.

Whilst the Group believes many of the remedies could improve customer searching and enable switching, the inability to sell
appropriate insurance products at a point when customers take on increased financial comrmitment, will likely result in lower levels of
protection for UK consumers.

The Group is actively reviewing its customer propositions, in the light of the CC’s Final Report, to ensure that the Group continue to
offer a valuable protaction product to the Group’s customers.

The Group took the decision to faunch a regular premium protection product. This was launched in early February 2009.

The FOS has been receiving a large number of complaints in relation to PPI soid by a number of providers and has written to the FSA
suggesting an industry wide review of PPl sales standards. in response, the industry is working on a Statement of Principles to define
& congistent way of handling sales complaints. The FSA is considering FOS' suggestions and a staterment from the FSA in refation to
its most recent thematic work in relation to PP is expected in the first quarter of 2009,

c) Other legal and regulatory matters
HBOS is engaged in other litigation in the UK and overseas arising cut of its normal business activities. HBOS considers that none of
these actions are material and has not disclosed any contingent liaoility in respect of these actions because it is not practical to do so.
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44 Measurement Basis of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The accounting policies describe how different classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses,
including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financiat assets and

labilities by category and by balance sheet heading. Investment contracts with DPF valued under iFR

At fair value through

S 4 are excluded from this table.

tem
Derivatives Held Designated Avaltable Loans and Finanetal Total
designated for upon for receivables liabitities at

as hedging trading initial sale amortised

instruments recagnitlon ) cost Group
£m €m €m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 2,502 2,502
[tems in course of collection 445 445
Financial assets held for trading 22,5M 22,571
Derivative assets 22,082 29,728 51,810
Loans and acvances to banks 4,854 12,791 17,645
L oans and advances to customers 435,223 435,223
Investment securities 66,271 28,048 39,053 133,372
Other financial assets 491 2,478 2,969
Total financial assets 22,082 52,209 71,616 28,048 492,492 666,537
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 97,150 97,150
Customer accounts 222,251 222,251
Financial liatziities heid for trading 18,851 18,851
Derivative liabilities 9,297 29,608 38,905
Deht securities in issue 188,448 188,448
Investmant contract liabilities 33,321 33,321
Other borrowed funds 30,119 30,1189
Other financial liabilities : 210 2,419 2,629
Total financial liabilities 9,297 48,459 33,531 540,387 631,674

(1) Financial instruments designated at fair value through the income statement upon initial reccgrition include £63,631m finencial assets and £33,362m financial

liatiities that are policyheider funds.
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44 Measurement Basis of Financial Assets and Liabilities continued
A1 fait vaiue hrough
1he ingome staternent
Darivatives Hetd Dasignated Available for Loans and Financial Total
cesignated for upen sale receivables liabilities at
as hadging trading initial amortised
instruments ragagnition’® cost
Group £m m £m £m m £m £m
As at 31 December 2007
Financial assets
Cash and batances with
central banks 2,945 2,945
Items in course of collection 945 945
Financial assets held for trading 54,681 54,681
Derivative aggets 4,760 9,331 14,141
Loans and advances to banks 3,118 4,565 7,683
Loans and advances to ¢ustomers 430,007 430,007
Investment securities 76,971 49,986 702 127,650
Other financial assets 887 B3 1,780
Total financial assets 4,760 64,062 80,976 49,986 440,057 639,841
Financial {iabilities
Beposits by banks 41,513 41,513
Customer accounts 243,221 243,221
Financial Habilities held for trading 22,705 22,705
Derivative liabiities 4,243 8,068 12,31
Investment contract liabilities 45,636 45,636
Debt securities in issue 1,842 204,678 206,520
Other borrowed funds 50 24,203 24,253
Other financial liabilities 502 665 1,167
Totaf financial liabilities 4,243 30,773 48,030 514,280 597,326
(1) Financial instruments deslgnated at fair value through the incoma statement upon initial recognition include £70,546m financial assets and £44,025m financial
liabilities that are policyholder funds.
At fair value through
tha income statement
Derivatives Held Designated  Available for Loans and Financial Totat
designated for upon sale receivables Habilities at
as hedging trading initial amortised
instruments recognition cost
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
As at 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Amounts owed by Group entities 50,157 50,157
Derivative assels 2,638 2,638
Other financial assets 58 58
Total financial assets 2,638 50,215 52,853
Financial liabilities
Amounts owed to Group entities 36,450 36,450
Derlvative liabiities 585 85
Qther borrowed funds 22,235 22,235
Other financial liabilities 296 296
Total financial liabilities 55 58,981 59,036
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44 Measurement Basis of Financial Assets and Liabilities continued

Al fair value through
the ingome statement

Derivatives Held Designated Avallable for Loans and Finanhcial Tetal

dasignated for upon sale receivables liabilities at

as hedging trading initial amortised

ingtrurnents recognition cost
Compary Cm £m fm £m £m m £m
As at 31 Decembar 2007
Financial assets
Amounts owed by Group entities 38,885 38,885
Derivative assets 162 - 162
Investment securitigs ) 1 1
Other financial assets 15 15
Totat firancial assets 162 1 38,800 30,063
Financial liabilities
Amounts owed to Group entities 29,267 29,267
Derivative liabilities 56 56
Other borrowed funds 15,503 15,503
Other financial kabilities ) 151 151
Totai financial tiabiitias 5B 44,821 44 977

45 Financial Asset Reclassifications

Fallowing the publication by the international Accounting Standards Board {IAS3) and subsegquent endorsement by the European
Union in October 2008 of the amsndments o International Accounting Standard 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ (|AS 39) and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, the Group has reviewed the classification of its trading
portiolio.

The Group has noted that the ongoing market dislocation and the deterioration of the world's financial markets that has occurred
during the third quarter of 2008 is a sufficiently rare circumstance to warrant a review of the classification of financial assets held for
trading.

With effect from 1 July 2008, the Group transferred from the held for trading classification certain asset backed securlties (ABS)

and floating rate notes (FRNs) with fair values at that time of £8.112m and £3,098m respectively, to the available for sale (AFS)
classification within investment securlties. The carrying values as at 31 December 2008 are £10,132m and £3,410m respectively and
the fair values as at 31 Decernber 2008 are £10,047m and £3.410m respectively.

Subsequent to the transfers performed on 1 July 2008, the Group determined In light of Increasing iliquidity in the markets for ABS
to change the classification of certain ABS assets from AFS 1o loans and receivables. A porifolio of ABS was re¢lassified to loans and
raceivables with effect from 1 Novermber 2008 with fair values at that time of £35,446m. Ths carrying values and fair vaiues as at 31
Dacember 2008 are £37,173m and £36,191m respectively.

The financial impact of the reclassifications described above is set out below.

a) Debt securities reclassified from held for trading to AFS, with effect from 1 July 2008

Negative fair value adjustrents of £730m were taken through the income statemant relating to these assets for the period from 1
January 2008 to 30 June 2008 (fult year 2007 £212m). If these assets hac not been reclassified during the year additional negative
falr value adjustments of £981m, net of accretion of discount of £96m, would have been recognised in the income statement and the
AFS reserve movement would have been reduced by £776m (past tax) for the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008,

At 1 July 2008 the effective intarest rates on the reclassified debt securities ranged from 3% to 12% with expected recoverable cash
flows of £13,359m.

b) ABS reclassified from availabie for sale to loans and receivables, with effect from 1 November 2008

Negatlve fair value adjustments of £3,301m (post tax} were taken through AFS resarves for the pericd from 1 January 2008 to 31
October 2008 {full year 2007 £319m post tax). If these assets had not been reclassified during the year additional negative fair value
adjustments of £708m {post tax) would have been recognised in the AFS reserves for the period from 1 November 2008 to 31
December 2008.

Following this change in classification, these securities are no longer subject to measurement at fair value, although they will continue
to be subject to regular impairment testing. ’

At 1 November 2008 the effective interest rates on the ABS reclassified, ranged from 3% to 12% with expected recoverable principal
flows of £40,968m.

The reclassifications of trading assets and AFS investment securities during tha year had the effect of increasing both basic and
diluted earnings per share by 15.6p.
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4% Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities not carried on the Group’s
balance sheet at fair value. This note provides additional information in respect of financiat instruments carried as loans and
receivables or held at amortised cost (Note 44).

Carrying Catrying Fair Fair

amount amaunt value valug

2008 2007 2008 2007

Group £m £m £m £m

Financial assets

Loans and advances to banks 12,791 4,565 12,824 4,048

Loans and advances to customers 435,223 430,007 422,019 431,639

Investment securities 39,053 0702 38,231 702

Cther financial assets 2,478 893 2,480 893
Financial liabilities

Deposits by banks ' 97,150 41,513 97,184 41,528

Customer accounts 222,251 243,221 222,092 244072

Deht securities in issue 188,448 204,678 182,470 203,579

Cther borrowed funds 30,119 24,208 20,895 23,981

Other financial liabilities 2,419 665 2,424 665

Carrylng Carrying Fair Fair

amount amount value value

2008 2007 2008 2007

Company £m £m £m £m

Financial assels

Amounts owed by Group entities 50,157 38,885 44,793 38,536

Other financial assets 58 15 58 15
Financia! liabilities

Amaounts owed to Group entities 36,450 29,267 36,552 29,334

Cther horrowed funds 22,235 15,503 15,229 15,253

Other financial liabilities 296 151 296 151

The valuation methodologies for calculating the fair value of financial instruments carried as loans and receivables and at amortised
cast are set out below.

Fair value is the amoint for which the Group could exchange an asset, or could settle a liabllity, with other knowledgeable, wiling
parties in an arm’s length transaction. The objective of the valuation techniques applied is to determine what the vaiues would have
been at year end in an arm’s length transaction motivated by normal business considerations.

Leans and advances to banks, loans and advances to customers, deposits by banks and customer accounts are not regularly
traded and so market prices are not available, In this Instancs, valuation technicues ara applied to determine the fair value of these
instrurmnents,

For lcans and deposits with variable interest rates, the fair value is represented by the carrying value as these products are at an
administered rate that can be immediately repriced. The portfalios are stratified into various sub-groups, and alsa distinguish between
performing loans and non-perfarming loans. For performing loans, counterparty credit risk is taken into account in determining the
fair value with reference to currerit spreads at which similar products are currently priced, as appropriate. For non-performing loans,
fair value is determined taking into account expected cash flows and discounting them over the period when they are expected to be
recovered.

For other loans fair value is estimated by discounting anticipated contractual cash flows at current market interast rates. The portfolios
are stratiflied into various sub-groups, and also distinguish between performing toans and non-performing loans. For performing
loans, current market interest rates are derived by reference to the rates at which similar products are currently priced and after
taking into account significant changes in credit spreads. Credit spreads are determined with reference to new originations for simitar
products, and take inte account the type of product, the maturity profile of the portfolio and collateral held, For non-performing loans,
fair value is determined taking into account expected cash flows and discounting it over the period when they are expected to be
recovered.

For other customer deposits, fair value is astimated by discounting anticipated contractual cash flows at current market interest rates.

For investrnent securities held as loans and receivables and debt securities in issue and other borrowed funds carried at amaortised
cost, the fair values have been derived using quoted prices where available, broker valuations and where these are not available,
cash flow models, adjusted for credit spreads where appropriate. Cash flow modals take into account expecied cash flows and the
expectad maturity of the instrument,

The fair values have been calculated on a product basls and as such do net necessarily represent the value that could have been
obtained for a portfolio if it were scld at 31 December 2008.
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47 Expected Maturity

The table below sats out the expected maturity of financial assets and liabilities.

2008 2007
Less thah 12 months Less than 12 months
Group 12 months or more Total 12 months or more Total
Financial assels
Cash and balances at central banks 2,502 2,502 2,945 2,945
Finarjciar assets held for trading 18,324 4,247 22,571 36,921 17,760 54,681
Loans and advances to banks 14,961 2,684 17,645 8,618 1,064 76383
Loans and advances to customers 119,673 316,150 435,223 137,337 202,670 430,007
tnvestment securities 41,514 91,858 133,372 29,379 98,280 127,659
Derivative assets 9,543 42,267 51,810 3608 10,533 14,141
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 94,863 2,287 97,150 40,182 1,321 41,513
Customer accounts 211,096 11,155 222,251 223,349 19,872 243,221
Financial {iabilities held for trading 18,851 18,851 22,503 202 22,705
Cerivativa liabiities 8,960 29,945 38,905 3439 8,872 12,311
investment contract liabilities 2,782 36,700 39,482 10,396 42,432 52,828
Dabt securities in issue 91,107 97,341 188,448 116,918 89,602 206,520
Other borrowed funds 2,948 27ATH 30,119 2,431 21,822 24,253
2008 2007
Less than 12 months Less than 12 months
Company 12 months or mora Totaf 12 months Or moFg Totat
financial assets
Derivative assets 2,638 2,638 162 162
Investment securities ! 1
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities 55 55 55 36
Other porrowed funds 572 21,663 22,235 475 15,028 15,503
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The Group's approach to rmanaging credit risk is set out on pages 16 to 21 of the Risk Management report. The table below sets out
the Group's exposure fo credit risk relating to financial instruments and insurance assets before taking account of collateral and other
security. Policyholder assets are excluded from the Group’s exposure in the table as the underlying credit risks are for the account of

policyholders.

2008 2007
Potlcyholder Group Policyholder Group
Tota! funds exposure Total fungs eXposUre
£m £m £m £m £m £
Assets

Cash and balances at central banks 2,502 2,502 2,945 2,945
terns in the course of coliection 445 445 945 945
Financia) assets held for trading 22,571 22,5M 54,681 54,881
Derivative assets 51,810 1,237 50,573 14,141 416 13,725
Loans and advances to banks 17,645 4,487 13,158 7,683 2,437 5,246
Loans and advances to customers 435,223 435,223 430,007 430,007
Debt securities 92625 21,230 71,395 76,814 20,714 56,100
Reinsurance assets 44 44 41 41
Other financial assets (excluding equity shares} 2,969 299 2,670 1,780 426 1,354
625,834 27,253 598,581 589,037 23,983 565,044

Irrevocable loan commitments and other credit related
contingencies 61,217 61,217 78904 78,904
Total 687,051 27,253 659,798 667,941 23,993 643,948

The table below sets out the Company's exposure to credit risk relating to financial instruments befere taking account of collateral

and other security.

2008 2007

£m m

Derivative assets 2,638 162
Amounts owed by Group entities 50,157 38,885
Debt securities 1
52,795 39,048

Contingent liabilities and commitments 3,949 2,608
56,744 41,656

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are managed on a divisional basis as shown in Note 11. Further analysis of loans and advances to

customers is given in Note 18.

Retall Treasury Corporate  International '?g&al
£m £m £m £m £m

Loans and advances to customers™:
Neither past due nor impaired 240,618 2,545 104,519 55,802 403,484
Past due but not impaired 8,609 4,570 3,222 16,401
Impaired 9,123 13,848 3,060 26,031
Total 258,350 2,545 122 937 62,084 445,916
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Before impairment provisions

Includied in loans neither past due nor impaired are the following troubled debt restructured loans which would have been past due or
impaired had their terms not been renegotiated:

2008
Retall Corporate  [nternational Total
£m £€m £m £m

Renagotiated loans 368 98 12 478
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48 Credit Risk continued

2007
Retail Traasury Corporate Intgrnational Total
m £m £m £m £m

Loans ang advances to customers”
Neither past due nor impaired 240,921 289 104,983 65,186 411,389
Past die but not impaired 7.342 2,720 1,867 11,628
Impaired 6,503 3,218 G641 10,362
Total 254,766 209 110,221 67,394 433,380

*  Before impalrment provisions

Included in loans neither past due nor impaired are the following troubled debt restructured loans which would have been past due or
impaired had their terms not been renegotiated:

2007
Retail Corporate international Total
£m £m £m £m
Renegatiated loans 227 2 229
Retail - residential mortgage lending
i) Loan to value analysis of residential mortgage lending
2008 2007
% Y%
|.ass than 80% (averaging 25%, 2007 28%) 28 47
680% to 70% 10 18
70% to 80% 13 18
80% t0 90% 18 13
a0% to 100% 16 4
Greater than 100% 17
Total 100 100
ii} Average loan to value of residential mortgage lending
) 2008 2007
% %
Stock of residential mortgages 56 44
New residential lending 67 Be
Impairad mortgages 76 57

Note: LTV analysis is based on indexed valuation for stock and valuation at inception of new loans. The stock of residential mortgages includes past due loans,

Corporate, International and Treasury
The Group’s Corporate, International and Treasury neither past due ner impaired lending exposures are analysed by internal credit-
rating below:

2008 2007

Treasury Corporate  Interngtionat Total Treasury Corporate Internationat Total

% % % % % % % %

Better than satisfactory risk 100 29 36 a3 100 34 A 37
Satisfactory risk 51 49 50 52 47 50
Viable but monitoring .17 12 15 12 12 12
High risk 3 3 2 2 i

100 100 100 160 100 100 100 100
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Past due but not impaired
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The ageing of the Group's lending exposure that is past dus but not impaired {before impairment provisions} is analysed below.

2008 2007
Retail'” Corporate  Intarnational Totat Retaitt* Corporate International Total
£m £m £m £m m £m £m £m
Oto3months 8,609 4,153 2,51 15,273 7.342 2,690 1,375 11,407
3to 6 months 417 505 822 7 145 152
More than £ months 206 206 23 47 70
Tatal 8,609 4,570 3,222 16,401 7,342 2,720 1,567 11,629
{@) Secured £7.993m (2007 £6,756m) and unsecured £66m (2007 £586m),
Impaired loans
The Group's impaired gross lending exposure (before impairment provisions) is analysed below:
2008 2007
£m £m
Retail securad lending 6,914 4,234
Retail unsecured lending 2,209 2,269
Corporate - noloss 1,242 1,648
Corporate - with loss 12,606 1,570
Internationat 3,060 641
26,031 10,362

Loans categorised as impaired with no loss represent loans that have been individually assessed as having impairment
characterigtics but where the Group expect, after taking into consideration collateral and other credit enhancernents, full recovery of

both interest and capital.

The ageing of the Group's gross lending exposure that is impaired {before impairment provisions) is analysed below:

2008 2007

Retail Corporate!' internationai Total Retail Cuorporatet International Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

0 to 3 months 89 8,585 1,299 $,973 165 1,052 211 1,428
3 to & months 3,580 1,704 578 5,862 2,298 534 170 3,002
6 to 12 months 2,204 1,927 629 4,760 1,38C 655 104 2138
Over 12 months 913 1,632 333 2,878 £33 977 89 1,599
Recoveries 1,784 1,784 1,795 1,795
Possession 553 221 774 332 67 399
Total 9,123 13,848 3,060 26,031 6,503 3,218 641 10,362

The balance of Corporate impaired loans include £1,242m (2007 £1.648m) of impaired loans with no loss and £12,8608m (2007

£1,570) of impaired loans with loss, Loans categorised as impaired with no loss represent loans that have been individually

assessed as having impairment characteristics but where the Group expect, after taking consideration of collateral and other credit

enhancements, fulf recovery of both interest and capital.

{1} For 2008 the ageing of the Corporate lending exposure is based upon the dale the loan becama overdus. For 2007, it is based upon the dals the account entered

impalred status.

Impairment provisions as a % of closing net advances are analysed in the following table:

2008 2007

As % of As % of

closing net closing net

£m advances £m advances

Reatait 3,038 1.19 2,218 0.88
Corporate 6,563 5.64 832 0.76
International 1,092 1.79 322 (.48
Total impairment provisions 10,693 2.46 3,373 0.78
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48 Credit Risk continued

Jmpaired loans as a % of ciosing net advances and impairmernt provisions as a % of impaired loans are analysed by division in the
following table:

impaired Impairment

loans” as % provislons g5

Het Impalred of closing Impairment % of impatred

Advances laans® advances provisions toans*

As at 31 December 2008 £bn £m Yo £m %

Retail: Secured 238.5 6,914 2.9 1,219 18

Unsecured 16.8 2,209 13.15 1,819 82

Total 255.3 9,123 3.57 3,038 33

Corparate® 116.4 13,848 11.90 6,563 47

International 61.0 3,060 5.02 1,092 36
Treasury & Asset Management 2.5 ) '

Total 435.2 26,031 5.98 10,693 41

{2) Within Corperata the percentage of Impaired loans es a % of closing advances which rolates 1o impaired loans with a loss as a % of closing advances is 1.07%
{2007 1.50%).

Impaired impairmant

loans' as % provisions as

Net Impaired of closing impairmant % of impaired

Advances Igans® advances pravisions loans”

As at 31 Dacember 2007 Cbn £m % £m %

Retail: Securad 235.6 4,234 1.8 330 8

Unsecured ) 17.0 2,269 13.35 1.8889 83

Total 2526 6,503 257 2,219 34

Corporate®? 110 3,218 292 832 26

Internaticnal 671 841 0.96 322 50
Treasury & Asset Management 0.2

Total 430.0 10,362 2.41 3,373 33

Before Impairmant provisions

(2} Within Corporate the percentage of impaired loans as a % of closing advances which relates 1o impaired loans with a 1655 as a % of closing advances is 1.07%
(2007 1.50%).

Colateral and other credit enhancements held
Financial assets that are past due or Individually assessed as impaired may be partially or fully collateralised or subject to other forms
of credit enhancement.

Assets in these categories subject to collateralisation are mainly corporate and residential mortgage loans,

For corporate loans, security may be in the form of floating charges where the valua of the collateral varies with the level of assets
such as inventory and receivables held by customer. For these and other reascns collateral given is only accurately valued on
origination of the loan or In the course of enforcemant actions and as a resuft it is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the
collateral held.

A description and the estimated fair value of coliataral held in respect of residential mortgage loans that are past due or individually
assessed as impaired was as follows:

2008 2007
Fair value Fair valua
em . £m

Nature of assets
- Residential property 13,534 10,660
13,534 10,660

Collateral included In the abave table reflects the Group's Interest in the property in the event of detault. That heid in the form of
charges against residential property in the UK is restricted ta the outstanding loan balance. In other territories, where the Group is not
obliged to retum any sale proceeds to the mortgagee, the full estimated fair value has been included.
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Repossessed collateral

During 2008 the Group obtained assets as a result of the enforcement of collateral held as security, as follows:
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2008 2007
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
Em £m

Nature of assets
- Residential property 617 292
617 202

The Group does not use assets obtained in its operations. Assets obtained are normally sold, generally at auction, or realised in an
orderly manner to settle indebtedness. Any surplus funds are returned to the borrower or are otherwise dealt with in accordance with

appropriate insolvency regulations.

Credit ratings

The internal credit ratings of the Group are assessed on a comparable basis to those given by externat credit rating agencies. Where
external credit ratings are available, these have been used in the analysis below.

AAA AA A BBB Other rated Unrated Totaf
As at 31 December 2008 % Y % % % % %
Finangiat assets held for trading 67.4 19.3 121 0.5 0.7 0.0 100.0
Derivative assets 4.1 34.5 44.3 0.8 0.0 16.3 100.0
Loans and advances 1o banks 29.6 36.6 223 8.7 0.8 20 100.0
Reinsurance assets 3.6 67.0 29.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0
Debt securities ' 52.0 23.8 16.8 3.1 28 1.5 100.0

AAA AA A 2es COther rated Unrated Total
As at 31 Dacembesr 2007 % % % % % % %
Financial assets held for tracing 51.5 34.4 137 01 0.2 01 100.0
Derivative assets 43 62.0 16.4 0.5 0.0 R 100.0
Loans and advances to banks 155 47.7 155 19.2 0.2 1.9 100.0
Reinsurance assets 2.2 78.2 0.1 0.0 Q0.0 195 100.C
Debt securities 57.8 258 129 a2 (oA 3.2 100.C

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading are aimost exclusively investment grade investments with 89% (2007 99%) of inter-bank and

structured investment portfolios rated ‘A’ or above based on internal credit ratings. An analysis of financial instruments held for trading

is given in Note 16,

Derivative assets

Derivative assets are primarily traded with invesiment grade counterparties with 83% (2007 83%) of derivatives rated ‘A’ or above
based on intarnal credit ratings. The Company's derivatives are wholly traded with Bank of Scotland plc which has a credit rating

of 'AA’ An analysis of derivatives is given in Note 17.

Loans and advances to banks

Loans anc advances to banks are primarily invested with investment grade banks of which 89% (2007 79%) have a credit rating of A’

or above based on internal credit ratings.

Debt securities

Debt securities are primarily held within the Treasury & Asset Management, Corporate and Insurance & Investment divisions and are
almost exclusively issued by investment grade counterparties with 93% (2007 96%;) of debt securities rated ‘A’ or above based on

internal credit ratings. The Company's investment securities comprise UK government gilts with an external ‘AAA’ credit rating.

Reinsurance assets

Of the reinsurance assets 71% (2007 80%;) are due from insurers with a cradit rating of ‘AA" or above.

Amounts owed by Group entities

The Company’s inter-company assets are primarily transacted with companies in the Group that have credit ratings of 'AA.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments are analysed in Note 43, This amount reflects the outstanding business at the year end and
reflects the maximum credit exposure that could be drawn down. Some facilitfes will not be drawn down or may be only partially

utilised,
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48 Credit Risk continued

Treasury debt securities - credit exposure

As part of invesiment credit activities Treasury holds a portiolio of debt securitiss which are analysed below. The investrment cradit
business has two functions: firstly it manages part of the Group's prudential liquidity portfolio and secondly it takes investmant

positions principally through the Grampian conduit,

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's (IASB)
reclassified certain securitios from assets held for trading into available for sale (AFS)

decision to permit the raclassification of financial assets, Treasury
portfolio and, subsaguently, in light of increasing

liguidity in the marksts for asset backed securities (ABS), changed the classification of ABS from AFS, to loans and receivables.

Further details about these reclassifications ara in Note 45.

Treasury's total debt securities portfolic as at 31 December 2008, net of fair value adjustments and impairments, is summarised in

the following table:

2008
Fair value
through
Loans & Available income
Receivables for Sale statement Total
Assel class £m £m Em £m
Asset Backed Securities:
Direct 20,443 3,054 23,497
Grampian conduit 16,730 18,730
37,173 3,054 40,227
Covered bonds 4,062 4,062
Bank/financial institutional Floating Rate Notes {FRNs) 15,985 1,901 17,886
Bank certificates of deposit (CDs) 2,960 3,068 6,028
Other!™ 1,787 6,045 7,832
Total Treasury Assets 37,173 24,794 14,068 76,035
Landale ) 695 695
Total (net of fair value adjustments and impairment provisions) 37,173 25,489 14,068 76,730
2007
Fair value
through
Loans & Available income
Recsivables for Sale staterment Tota!
Asset class Em £Em £m £m
Asset Backed Securities:
Direct 9,612 13,729 23,341
Grampian conduit 18,563 ' 18,563
28175 13,729 41,904
Covered bonds 3,070 3,070
Bank/financial institutionz] Floating Rate Notes [FRNs) 11,396 5,897 17,3631
Bank certificates of deposit {CDs}) 1774 13,618 15,3921
Other™ 1877 982 2.858
Total Treasury Assets 48,202 34,328 80,618
Landale 511 611
Total {net of net of fair value adjustments and impalrment provisions) 46,903 34,326 81,229

(1} Principally Governments and Supra-nationals,
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Fair value adjustments and impairment losses
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f-or the year 1o 31 December 2008, the iImpact of fair value adjustments and impairments on the Treasury debt securities portfolio

(after reclassification) is as follows:

ncome lncoma AFS AFS
Statement Statgment Reserve Reserva
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
2008 2007 2008 2007
Assal class £m £m £m em
Fair value adjustments
Asset Backed Securities 2,781 167 4,959 443
FRNs 343 102 1,309 169
Other (597) {42) 358 95
Total fair value adjustments 2,527 227 6,627 707
Impairment losses
Asset Backed Securities 773
FRNs 618
Other 30
Total impairment losses pre tax 1,421
Total fair value adjustments and impairment losses pre tax 3,948 227 6,627 707
Tax on Banking Book fair value adjustments (1,856) (198}
Total fair value adjustments taken to AFS reserve 4,771 509
(1) Included in Net Trading Income (Note 2) as part of interest bearing securitias and related non hedging derivatives.
Exposure to Asset Backed Securities (ABS)
Net Average Net Average
Exposure Mark Exposure Mark
As at As at As at Asat
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 311422007 31422007
£€m % £m %
Mortgage Backed Securities
US RMBS™ 6,922 64 9,307 28
Non-US RMBS 7,867 93 7,920 99
cmBsH 3,314 95 3,340 99
18,103 79 20,5867 99
Collaterised Debt Obligation
cBow 2,129 49 3,320 98
CLOm 3,455 91 3,214 99
5,584 68 6,534 99
Personal Sector
Auto loans 1,620 98 1,526 100
Credit cards 3,494 26 2,772 99
Personai loans 1,096 95 980 a8
6,210 96 5278 a9
FFELP Student Loans" 6,992 94 5,586 a8
Other ABS 637 89 672 242
Total Uncovered ABS 37,526 82 38,637 99
Negative Basis*™ 2,701 70 3,267 99
Total ABSW® 40,227 B1 41,304 99

(1) RMBS means Residentlal Mortgage Backed Securities; CMBS means Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities; CBO means Coilaterisad Bond Cbligations; CLO

means Collaterised Loan Obligations; FFELP means Federal Family Edusation Loan Programme,
(2) Negative basis means bonds held with seperate matching credit default swap (CDS) protaction.

{3) The lotal comprises US securities of £24.304m (2007 £16,333m), and Non-US securities of £15,923m (2007 £25,571m).
(4] There has been na increass in nat exposure as a result of the purchase of ABS during the year. Any incraase in net axposure is the result of exchange rate

movemeants in excess of paydowns, fair value adjustments and impairments.
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49 Market Risk

The Group's approach to

managing market risk is set out on pages 22 to 25 of the Risk Management report. The following table

shows, split by currency, the Group's sensitivity as at 31 December 2008 to an Immadiate interest rate shift of 25 basis points to all

interest rates.

2008 2007

+25 bps -25 bps +259ps -25 bps

impact of interest rate shift on income statement {expensel/income £m £m £Em £m
Currency

Sterling B82.4 (119.6) (21.2) 216

US Collar {2.9} 2.7 {0.6) 0.5

Euro (8.0} 8.1 {4.3} 43

Australlan Dollar (1.8) 1.5 01 {C.1)

Other {0.3) 0.3 03 (1)

Total 89.7 {107.0) (25.9) 26.2

The Company’s approach to managing market risk is to transfer interest rate and foreign exchange risk to its subsidiary Bank of

Scotland plc through a ¢ol

mbination of inter-company loans, deposits and derivative Instruments. The following table shows, split by

currency, the Company’s sensitivity as at 31 December 2008 to an immediate Interest rate shift of 25 basis paints to altinterest rates,

2008 2007

+25 hps -25 bps +25 bps -25 bps

impact of imeresi rate shift on income statement {expensa)/income £m £m £m £€m
Currency

Sterling (39) 39 {34) 34

Australian Doltar 1 1)

Total {39) 39 (33) 33

Non trading currency exposure
Structural currency exposures arise from the Group's investments in overseas subsidiaries, branches and other investments and are

noted in the table below,

2008 2007

Net Borrowing Remaining Nel . Borrowing Remaining

investments  taken outto structural invasiments taken out 1o structural

in overseas hedge net currency in ovarseas hedge net CUITBNCY

operations  investments exposure operations Investments GXposure

Functional currency of the oparation £m £m £m £m Em £m
Australian Doltar 2,015 2,015 2,023 2023

Euro 3,011 3,011 1,888 1,613 275
US Dollar 191 181 10 97 a7

Other {23) {23) 4 4

Total 5,154 5,207 {13) 4,012 3,733 279

Al 3% December 2008 and 31 December 2007 thers are no material net currency exposures in the ron-trading hook refating to-
transactional (or non-structural) positions that would give rise to net currency gains or losses. Additional information on the Group's
foreign exchange risk Is set out on pages 23 to 24 of the Risk Management report.
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50 Liquidity Risk
The Group's approach to managing liquidity risk is set out on pages 25 ta 28 of the Risk Management report.

The tables below set out the contractual cash flows attaching to the Group's financial liabilities (excluding those related to policyholder
funds) and the Company's financial liabilittes. Except for the insurance contract fiabilities these cash flows are not discounted and
include both the contractual cash flows pertaining tc the balance shest liebilities end futwre contractual cash flows that they will
generate. Certain long dated financial liabilities allow for the early termination at the option of the Group, Where the terms of these
instruments have beaen designed to economically compel the Group to early settle, the earlier settlement date has been applied.

For undated instruments the earlier of 20 years or expected date of maturity has been applied, The analysis of insurance contract
liabilities is based on the expected timing ot amounts recognised at the balance sheet date, Policyholder funds have been excluded
from the analysis as the underlying risks are for the account of policyholders and have no material direct impact on the Group’s
results.

2008
Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1year Over§
month months months to 5 years years
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 49,712 41,710 3,881 1,456 546
Gustomer accounts 160,616 15,648 41,634 6,474 1,670
Financial liabilities held for trading 10,994 4,640 3,518
Derivative liabilities:
Gross settled derivatives - outflows 35,701 31,615 19,016 42,827 35,077
Gross settled derivatives - inflows {36,761} (32,588} {19,028) {42,323) {33,121)
Gross settied derivatives - net fiows {1,060) {973} {12) 504 1,956
Net settled derivative liabilities 1,041 1,085 8,557 15,201 7,708
Derivative liabilities {19) 112 8,545 15,705 9,664
Insurance contract liabifities 107 131 597 923" 1,980
Investment contract liabilities 1 26
Debt securities in issue 21,684 25,443 40,453 83,513 26,732
Other borrowed funds 28 1,238 1,668 13,604 24,750
Other financial liabilities ) 1,226 4 61 14 1,392
Undrawn loan commitments 44,961 3,041 7,031 23,263 7,071
289,309 91,967 107,389 144,952 73,841
2007
Upwot tn3 3to 12 1 year Over 5
month months months to 5 years years
Group £m Em Em £m em
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 23,563 12,413 4,369 629 673
Customer accounts 193,031 19,276 25,220 7,934 1,642
Financial liabilities held for trading 10,610 5,556 6,540 242
Derivative liabilities:
Gross settled derivatives — outflows 20,580 21,968 15,575 39,030 15,700
Gross settled derivatives - inflows {20,558) {22,084) (15,298} {38,324) (14,998}
Gross settled derivatives - net flows 22 {118} 277 7086 702
Net settled derivative liabilities 332 516 1,347 4133 2,024
Derivative liabilities 354 398 1,624 4,839 2726
Insurance contract liabilities o9 B1 485 1,385 1,821
Investment contract liabilities 1 2 1,907 13 98
Debt securities in issue 26,990 48,086 42800 75,693 36,843
Cther borrowed funds 48 246 2145 11,778 23,91
Other financial liabilities a14 921
Undrawn loan commitments 48,060 2,670 5,761 22,006 6,995
303.67C 88,708 90,961 124,317 75,630
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50 Liquidity Risk continued

Uptot 1t03 3to 12 1 year Oﬁggg
mohth months months to 5 years years
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities
Derivative liabilities:
Giross settled derivatives - outflows 18 63 244 4,936 7.033
Gross settled derivatives ~ inflows (60) {238) {5,813) {6,957)
Gross settled derivatives - net flows 18 3 6 {877) 76
Amounts owed to Group entities 26,153 2,169 847 7147 7,155
Other borrowed funds 530 812 8,369 18,361
26,171 2,702 1,665 14,639 25,592
2007
Uptol 1103 3o 12 1 year Quer 5
monih months manihs to 5 years years
Company £m £m £m " Em £m
Liabilities
Derivative liabilities:
Gross settled derivatives - cutflows 12 77 564 4,539 8,356
Gross settled derivatives —inflows (58) (488) (4,412 (6,002)
Gross settled derivatives — net flows 12 19 78 127 354
Amounts owed to Group entities 16,597 1,050 2,814 10,208 11,568
Other borrowed funds 128 445 4935 10,691
16,609 1197 3.337 15,270 22,613

51 Related Party Transactions

Banking transactions are entered into by the Comp
commercial terms. Thase include loans, deposits an
subsidiaries ars shown on the Company balance sheet. Interest income and
(2007 £1,718m) respectively. HBOS plc is the principat employer of the Group and staff and other costs in the year
£2,457m) were recharged to subsidiaries,

in the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group provided both administration al
amounts payable to the Group during the year are £26m {2007 £42m
At 31 December 2008, Sainsbury’s Bank plc also has balances with t

), of which

£006m (2007 £726m) and deposits by banks of £1,274m (2007 £3,430m).

any with its subsidiaries in the normal course of business and are at norrhal

d foreign currency transactions. Balances between HBOS plc and its

expense are £2.880m (2007 £1.908m} and £2,344m
of £2,682m (2007

nd processing services to Sainsbury's Bank plc. The
£10m is outstanding at the year end (2007 £18m).
he Group that are included in loans and advances to banks of

At 31 December 2008 there are locans and advances to custorners of £14,196m (2007 £11,373m) outstanding and balaricss within
custorner accounts of £342m (2007 £575m) relating to jointly controlled entities
(2007 £175m) preference shares in esure are held by the Group and are reported in investmant securities (Note 20).

At 31 December 2008, thera are customer accounts of £30m {2007 £20m)
£872m {2007 £425m) related to the Group's pension arrangements. Additionally,
shares with a value of £3m (2007 £19m) and HBOS plc bonds with a value of £nil (2007 £2m).

and associated undertakings. In addition, £175m

and investment and insurance contract iabilities of
the Group's pension funds held HBOS plc ordinary
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Key management personnel comprise the members of the Board of HBOS pl¢ and, as the senior executive committee of the Group,

the members of the HBOS Executive Committee.

Remuneration and other compensation

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Emocluments 10,535 13,276
Compensation for loss of office 1,475
Post retirement benefits 82 ’ 63
Equity compensation bengfits 2,083 6,257

Product transactions

Key management personnel and cther colleagues, as well as receiving salary, incentives, shares, pensions and other benefits are
entitled to enter into product transactions with HBOS plc and its subsidiaries. These transactions are generally in the farm of banking,
savings, mortgage, loan, insurance, assurance and investment products, Any product offerings that are received on beneficial terms

compared to the terms received by customers and which give rise to taxabie benefits in kind are declared to HM Revenue & Customs

and taxed accordingly.

Key management personnel and connected persons have undertaken transactions with HBOS plc and its subsidiaries, jointly

controliad entitiss and associated undertakings in the normal course of business, detalls of which have been disclosed to the Group,

are given below:

Mortgages, credit cards and term loans

Number

of key

management
persannel £°000
At 1 January 2007 10 5,049
Amounts advanced during the year 1 3
nterest charged 8 271
Amounts repaid during the year 11 {2,036)
Upon resignation 3 (1,460)
At 31 Decernber 2007 7 1827
Amounts advanced during the year 8 453
Interest charged 9 o
Amounts repaid during the year 8 {567)
At 31 December 2008 8 1,823

Included above is £1,675k (2007 £1,682K) in respect of mortgages, £18k {2007 £15k) in respect of credit cards and £130k (2007

£130k) in respect of term loans.

The number of Directors together with their connectad persons who had transactions and balances with banking entities in the

Group were as follows:

2008 2007

Number of Number of
Directors £7000 Directors £'000
Loans 3 1,070 6 1,440
Quast-loans and ¢redit cards 4 12 8 14
7 1,082 6 1,454
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52 Transactions with Key'Management Personnel continued

Bank, cheque or current accounts

Number Credit Debit Net
of key balances balances balances
management
personnel £'000 £'000 £000
At 1 January 2007 1 7487 (1.017) 6,470
Upon appointment 3 413 413
Net movemant during the year 15 (1,129) (419) {1,548)
Upon resignation 3 {130) 1,238 1,106
At 31 Decembper 2007 2 8,641 (200) 5,441
Net movement during the year 12 {2,893) 190 (2,703}
At 31 December 2008 11 3,748 {10} 3,738
Savings and deposit accounts
Numbet
of key
management
personnel £'000
At 1 January 2007 8 3.300
Upon appointment 2 1,650
Amounts deposited during the year 9 3,123
Interest credited 7 114
Amounts withdrawn during the year 7 (2,393;
Upon resignation 1 (32)
At 31 Dacember 2007 10 5,662
Amounts deposited during the year 8 4,601
Interest credited 9 an
Amounts withdrawn during the year 9 (7,725}
At 31 December 2008 7 2,849
Life assurance and investment contracts
Number
of key
managemaent
- personnel £000
At 1 January 2007 8 6,080
Upon appointmeant 2 173
Premiums paid/amourts invested during the year g9 3,16t
" Other movements including investrent returns 10 {1,995)
Upon resignation ' 2 {1,331
Total sum insured/value of investment at 31 December 2007 8 7,027
Premiums paid/amounts invested during the year 6 3,017
Other movements including investment returns 8 {4,489)
Total sum insured/value of investment at 31 Decernber 2008 8 5,665
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53 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2008 2007

Restated

Group £m £m
Cash and balances at central banks 2,502 2,945
Lass: mandatory reserve deposits {296} (373)
2,206 2,572

Loans and advances to banks 17,645 7,683
l.ess: amounts with a. maturity of three months ar mara {7,748} (4,070
9,897 3613

Cash and cash equivalents 12,103 6,185

Mandatory reserve deposits are held with local central banks in accordance with statutory requirements; these deposits are not
available to finance the Group's day to day operations.

Included in total cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2008 is £864m (2007 £658m) of cash heid at the central bank as
collateral against notes in circulation of £957m (2007 £881m).

Mandatory reserve deposits of £373m at 31 Decernber 2007 have been reclassified from loans and advances 10 banks to cash and
balances at central banks. In addition, total cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2007 have been restated to include certain
cash deposits held with the centraf Bank of lreland of £853m (1 January 2007 £535m) and cash held at the central bank as collateral
against notes in circulation of £881m (1 January 2007 £857m} which are available to finance the Group's day to day operations, The
cash flow statements have been adjusted accordingly.

2008 2007
Company £m £m
Amounts owed by Group entities with an original maturity of fess than three months 1,870 177
Cash and cash equivalents 1,870 1177

54 Securities Borrowing and Lending, Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Group enters into securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements, whereby cash and securities are temporarily
received or transferred as collateral. Where the securities sold subject to repurchase or pledged as collateral are retained on the
balance sheet the funas received under these arrangements are recognised as liabilities. These transactions are all in respect

of standard securities borrowing and reverse repurchase agreements which are undertaken under steandard market terms and
conditions, or are in respect of securities exchange transactions under the Bank of England’s Spacial Liquidity Schema. Assets and
liabilities relating to such arrangaments at 31 December are as foflows:

Asset Liability
2008 2007 2008 2007
£ ' £m £m
Assets subject to repurchase

Financial assets held for trading (Note 16) 4,369 471 3,425 4,523

Lozans and advances to customers (Note 18) 56,858 39,220
investment securities (Note 20) 37,263 8,986 31,6682 7.841
98,490 13,707 74,327 12,364

In addition to the above, financial assets pledged as collateral as part of securities lending transactions amounted to £89,109m (2007
£11,918m). .

Securities heltt as collateral under stock borrowed or under reverse repurchase agreemeants amounted to £76,018m (2007
£33,975m), of which £64,378m {2007 £28,817m)} had been resold or repledged by the Group as collateral for its own transactons.
These securities are not recognised as assets, and the cash advanced is recognised within financial assets held for trading, leans
and advances to banks and loans and advances to customers,
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55 Capital Management

The Group's approach o managing capital is set out on pages 31 to 33 of the Risk Management raport. The Group’s capital

resourcas are set out below.

As at As at
31 December 2008 3 January 2008
m £m
Capital resources
Core Tier 1 -
Ordinary share capital 1,352 933
Eligible reserves 15,227 20421
Minarity interests 381 123
Perpetual non-cumulative preference shares
Preference share capital 3,195 2,781
Innovative Tier 1
Freferrsd securities 3,092 3,247
Deductions from Tier 1
Goodwill & other intangible assels {2,475) (2,862}
Excess expected losst! {536) {875)
Other deductions {446) (37)
Totai Tier 1 capital 19,790 23,731
Upper Tier 2
Available for sale reserve 187
Undated subordinated debt 8,096 5,581
Collectively assesaed impairment provisions 1,454 483
Lower Tier 2
Dated subordinated debt 10,306 §,900
Deductions from Tier 2
Excess expected losst! {536) (875)
Other deductions. {287) 3n
Total Tier 2 capital 19,033 15,229
Supervisory deductions:
LUnconsolidated investments - life (4,562} (4,596)
Unconsclidated investments - othar {482) (5086)
Total supervisory deductions {5,044) (5,102)
Total capital resources 33,779 33,858
(1) Unaudited
The tahle balow details mavements in Tier 1 capital during the year.
2008
£m
As at 1 January 23,71
Loss attributable to parent company shareholders (7,499}
Ordinary dividends paid {1,205)
Rights issue proceeds, net of expenses 3,087
Increase in minerity irterest {equity) 258
Decrease in goodwill and Intangible assets 387
Preferred securities issued 750
Rastriction on Innovative Tier 1 {1,484)
Dacreass in Excess EL 339
Cther 526
As at 31 December 19,790

The Group's practice is to use the Company to issue capital ingtruments and the Group's dividend policy requires surplus reserves o
be remitted o the Campany, except where they are required to be retained by the subsidiary for regulatory or financiat reasons.
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The Capital Position Statement sets out the total capital resources refating to the life assurance business of the Group.

The statement shows the shareholgers’ funds in the long term assurance business together with the adjustments required

to reconcile these arnounts with the amounts determined in accordance with the regufatery reporting framework,

CMIGL UK UK life Qverseas 2008
UK with-profit nen-profit  shareholder life Total life
fund funds funds business business
£m £m £m £m Em
Total shareholders’ funds 3,830 2 1,105 4,937
Adjustments onto regulatory basis:
Less value of in-force long term assurance business (Note 28) (2,1686) {826) (2,992}
Less purchased value of in-force investment business (Note 23} {291) (1) {292)
Add unallocated surplus {Note 32)« 551 551
Less shareholders’ share of realistic liabilities (39) (39)
Deferred taxation 460 196 656
Qther adjustments (621) 51 {225) {795}
512 1,212 53 249 2,026
Other quaiifying capital:
Loan capital 1,282 1,282
Total capital available® 512 1,212 1,335 249 3,308
The Group’s long term insurance and investment
contract liahilities are allocated as follows:
With-protit business 5,394 5,384
Unit-linked business 16,008 5,751 21,759
Other life assurance business 2,461 390 2,851
Total insurance contract liabilities {Note 30) 5,394 18,469 6,141 30,004
Investment contract liabilities® 25,877 3,180 29,057
investment contract liabilities with DPF 6,161 6,161
Total investment contract liabilities (Note 31) 6,161 25,877 3,180 35,218
Total policyholder liabilities 11,555 44,346 9,321 65,222
2007
CMIGL UK UK iife Oversaas
UK with-profit non- profit sharehoider life Totu! life
fund funds funds business business
£m £m £m £m £m
Total shareholders' funds 4,004 40 736 4,780
Adjustments onto reguiatory basis:
Less value of in-force long term assurance business (Note 28) (2,476} (708) (3.184)
Less purchased vajue of in-force investment business (Note 23) {320} 1 {321}
Add unaliocated surplus (Note 32)@ 1,483 1,493
Less shareholders’ share of realistic liabllities 81) 81}
Deferred taxation 1,102 135 1,237
Other adjustments (651} 55 87 (509)
1,412 1,659 95 249 3415
Cther qualifying capital:
Loan capital 1,039 1,038
Total capitat available* 1,412 1,659 1,134 249 4,454
The Group's leng term insurance and investiment
contract lizbilities are allocated as follows:
with-profit business 5,640 5640
Unit-linked business 15,484 2,409 17,893
Other lifa assurance busingss 2,280 101 2,381
Total insurance contract fiabilities (Note 30) 5,640 17,764 2,510 25,914
Investmant contract liabilities 33,890 6,497 40,387
Investment cantract liabilities with DPF 7182 7192
Total investment contract labilities (Note 31)™ 7192 33,890 6,497 47,579
Total policyholder liabilities 12,832 51,654 9,007 73,493

{a) The with-profit fund unallacated surplus is determined on an adjusted realistic basis,
5] Excludes investment contract labilities related to the collective investment schemes.

{c) Provisional avallable capiial,
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56 Long Term Assurance Business Capital Position Statement continued

Tha Group has one UK with-profit fund, the Clerical Meadical Investment Group Limited (CMIGL) with-profit fund, which is shown
separataly in the Capital Position Statement. The Group’s UK non-profit busingsses are aggregated as wel as the Group's overseas
lifa businesses for the purpose of this statement.

Far the Group's UK with-profit fund, available cepital and capital requirements are detarmined under the 'twin peaks’ assessment as
prescribed by the regutations of the Financial Services Authority (FSA). Under this assessment the available capital is determined by
comparing admissiole assets with the mathematical reserves determined on the ‘regulatory peak’ basis. This is adjusted by the with-
profit insurance capital component (WRICC) 1o arrive at the avallable capital position for the purpose of this disclosure. The capital
racuirement, acjusting for the WRICC, consists of the long term insurance capital requirement {LTICR).

The WPICC is determinad under the twin peaks test by comparing the reguiatory peak with the realistic peak. If the latter is more
onerous then this gives rise to a WPICC. At 31 December 2008 and at 31 December 2007, the realistic peak was more onerous.
Accordingly, the available capital of the with-profit fund is adjusted by the WPICC and presentad on a ‘realistic’ basis. As mare fully
dascrived in Note 32, the unaliocated surplus is determined on an adjusted realistic basis in accordance with FRS 27.

There are no formal arrangements, other than those relating to the CMIGL with-profit fund described below, for shareholders’ funds
or the surplus within the individual life funds to be used to support ather businesses or life funds within the Group. Howaver, as
described below, subject to certain conditions being met, the available capital within the individual funds is potentially transferable

to other parts of the Group. However, the capital within each fund is generally subject 1o restrictions as to its availability to meet
requirements that arise elsewhers in the Group, including other long term businesses. In particulay, for sections in the Capital Position
Staterment where aggregate capital amounts have been shown, such as for UK non-profit funds and overseas business, there are no
pricr arrangements in place to allow the capital to move fresly between entities within these sections.

Restrictions to the application of capital

Restrictions apply to the transfer of assets from any long term fund. In particutar, at all times, sach long term fund must mainiain an
excess of assets over liabilities. Transfers of assets from a long term fund can only be made once management are satisfied that they
have met the relevanit raquirements of the fund. The principal restrictions are: :

{a) CMIGL with-profit fund

The unallocated surplus held in the fund can only be applied to meet the requirements of the fund itself or distributed according

to the prescribed rules of the fund. Shareholders are entitied ta an amount not exceeding one ninth of the amount distributed to
policyholders in the form of bonuses. Such distributions would also be subject to a tax charge. The use of capiial within the fund

is also subject to the terms of the scheme of demutualisation effected in 1996 and the conditions contained in the Principles and
Practices of Financial Management of the fund. Capital within the Clerical Medical non-profit fund is available to mest the with-profit
fund’s capital requirements. There are no other arrangements that provide capital support to the fund.

{b} UK non-profit funds

Except as above, the capital held in the fund is attributable to the shareholders and, subject to meeting the regulatory requirements of
these businesses, this capital is potentially avaitable to meet capital requirements alsewhere in the Group. Any transfer of the surplus
would give rise to a tax charge.

(¢) Overseas life business

These incluce several smaller life companies outside the UK. In all cases the available capital resources are subject to local regutatory
requirements including Germany and Ireland. The available capital held In each company is patentially available to meet the capital
requirements in other parts of the Group, subject to additional complexity surrounding the transfer of capital from one country to
another.

Target capital

For the UK with-profit fund, the Group is required to tiofd eufficient capital to meet FSA requirements, based on tha risk capital margin
{RCM) determined in accordance with the F&A's requlatory rules under its realistic capitai regime. The determination of the RCM is
hased on the impact of specified changes in market prices of the fund assets as well as policyholder behaviour, taking into account
‘the actions management would have taken in the event of the particular adverse changes.

For UK non-profit business, the relevant capital requirement is the LTICR and resilience capital requirement determinad in
accordance with FSA regulations. .

Under the FSA's Individual Capital Adeguacy Standards framework, each company is required to carry out its own assessment of the
capita) required to meet its liabllities in all reasoriably forezeeable circumstances known as the individual capital assessment (ICA).
The ICA takes into account certain business risks not refiected in the FSA's other capital requirements.

Management intends to maintain surplus capital in excess of the varlous regulatory requirements, including the ICA, in order ¢
absorb changes in both the underlying businesses and the capital requirements over the short tarm. At 31 Decermber 2008 the
provisional availabte capital. excluding the with-profit fund, was 370% (2007 468%) of the provisional LTICR and resilience capital
requirements of E756m {2007 £650m). At 31 December 2008, the total provisional availabie capital including the with-profit fund on a
realistic basis was 263% (2007 399%) of the provisional LTICR and resilience capital requirements of £1,256m (2007 £1,116m;.
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Changes in capital
The principal factors that resulted in changes to the total provisional available capital are set out in the table below:
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CMIGL UK UK lite Qverseas
UK with-profit non-prafit  sharehalder lite Total life
fund funds funds business business
£€m £m £m Em £m
At 1 January 2007 1,436 1,655 678 233 4,002
Impact of adopting PS0E/14 273 279
Changes in non-investment assumptions® {15} 42 59 n 85
Investment markats and changes in investment assumptions™ {12) 128 10 26
New business™ (423} (138) {881)
Other experience'™ 103 548 31 206 888
Transfars of capital and dividends'® (870) 366 (81) (265}
At 31 December 2007 1,412 1,659 1,134 249 4,454
Changes in non-investment assumptiong (14} 57 (10) a3
Investment markets and changes in investment assumptions {883) {98) 244 3 {734)
New business‘™ (333) {10) (343)
Other experience® (3) 483 2 166 848
Disposals {22) {22)
Transfers of capital and dividends'™ {556} (45) {127) (728)
At 31 December 2008 512 1,212 1,335 249 3,308

{a) There were no significant changes to the nen-investmant assumptions during the year.

{b)
(c}

(d)

fe

)

Net negative market condition in 2008 led to a decrease in the value of securities resulting in a decrease in the total capital avallable,

The amount of cagital has been reduced by the increase in liabilities and new business strain lexcess of acquisition costs over marging due to significant volumes of

new long term assurance pusiness written since the last balance sheet date).
This is the effect of current year experience on in-force blocks of business,

This represents the dividends paid by, or transfers of capital to and from, the funds during the year.
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57 Post Balance Sheet Events

a) Lloyds Banking Group

On 18 September 2008, with the support of the UK Government, the boards of HBOS ple {HBOS} and Lloyds TSB Group plc {Lloyds
TSB) announced that they had reached agreement on the terms of the recommanded acquisition of HBOS by Lioyds TSB. The terms
of the acquisition were subsequently amended, as announced on 13 October 2008, at the same time as the announcement of the
participation by HBOS and Lioyds TSE in the Government's action plan to racapitalise some of the major LUK banks. Tha acquisition
was to be Imptemented by means of a scheme of arrangement with a separate schemne of arrangement in relation o preference
shares, under sections 895 to 899 of the Companies Act 2006.

On 12 January 2008 the Court of Session in Edinburgh, Scotland made an order sanctioning the scheme of arrangement for the
acquisition and the preference share schere of arrangement. The last day of trading in HBOS ordinary and preference shares was
14 January 2008, :

On 18 January 2000 HBOS raised £11.5bn of capital (before costs and expenses) through an issue of £8.5bn of new ordinary
shares under a placing with HM Treasury subject to clawback by existing shareholders, and an issue 1o HM Treasury of £3bn of new
preference shares. Lioyds TSB raised £4.5bn {before costs and expensss) through an issue of £3.6bn of new ordinary shares under
a placing with HM Treasury subject to clawback by existing sharaholders, and an issue to HM Treasury of £tbn of new preference
shares.

On 46 January 2009 the Lioyds TSB acquisition of HBOS completed following final court approval and Licyds TSB was renamed
Lloyds Banking Group plc. The exchange of HBOS shares for Lioyds Banking Group shares tock place at an exchange ratio of 0.605
of a new Lloyds Banking Group share for every one HBOS share held, As a resuit, the UK Govermnment through HM Treasury owned
approximately 43.4% of the enlarged ordinary share capital of Lloyds Banking Group. In addition, #ach class of preference share
lssued by HBOS, including the preference shares issued to BM Treasury in the capital raising was replaced with an equal number of
new Lloyds Banking Group preference shares.

HBOS ordinary and preference sharas were de-listed from the Official List of UK Listing Authority and admission to trading on the
London Stack Exchange was cancelled on 19 January 2009 when trading in the new Lioyds Banking Group shares commenced.

b) Other

As a result of the acquisition of the Group by Lioyds TSB, some of the share schemes vested in the period between 12 January
2008, being the date when the acquisition was approved by the Court of Session, and the 18 January 2009, the completion of the
acquisition tseli. The remainder of the share schemes will roll over into new Lioyds Banking Group Shares. These will continus uritil
thelr original maturity date. As a non adjusting post balance sheet event there is no accounting impact on the primary staternents as
at 31 December 2008.

58 UNtimate Parent Undertaking

From 16 January 2009, HBOS pic's ultimate parent undertaking and controling party is Loyds Banking Group pic {formerly Lioyds
TSE Group plc) which is incorporated in Scotland. Lloyds Banking Group plc will produce consolidated accounts far the year ended
31 December 2009. Copies of the annual report and accounts of Lloyds TSB Group ple for the year ended 31 December 2008 may
be cbtained from Lioyds Banking Group's head office at 25 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7THN.,

Copies of the annual report and accounts of HBOS plc for the year ended 31 December 2008 may be obtained from HBOS plc’s
registered office at The Mound, Edinburgh, EH1 1YZ or downloaded via www.lloydsbankinggroug.com.



